
 
 
Democratic Services Section    
Legal and Civic Services Department 
Belfast City Council 
City Hall 
Belfast  
BT1 5GS 
 
 
10th August, 2021 
 
 
REMOTE MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 

Dear Alderman/Councillor, 

 

The above-named Committee will meet remotely via Microsoft Teams on Tuesday, 17th 

August, 2021 at 5.00 pm, for the transaction of the business noted below. 

 

You are requested to attend. 

 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
SUZANNE WYLIE 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
AGENDA: 
 
1. Routine Matters   
 
 (a) Apologies   

 
 (b) Minutes  (Pages 1 - 46) 

 
 (c) Declarations of Interest   

 
2. Committee Site Visit  (Pages 47 - 48) 
 
3. Quarter 1 Finance Update  (Pages 49 - 70) 
 
4. Planning Appeals Notified  (Pages 71 - 74) 
 
5. Planning Decisions Issued  (Pages 75 - 118) 
 
6. Vesting Order and Abandonment  (Pages 119 - 124) 
 
7. Planning Applications   
 (a) (Reconsidered Item) LA04/2020/0847/F & LA04/2020/1208/DCA - Partial 

demolition and redevelopment of existing buildings to provide 16 apartments, 
communal bin store and landscaped communal garden at 25-29 University 
Road  (Pages 125 - 156) 

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
- 2 - 

 (b) (Reconsidered Item) LA04/2020/2280/F - Mixed use development comprising 
1 ground floor retail unit and 13 apartments, associated amenity space, 
landscaping and all other site works at 93-95 Falls Road  (Pages 157 - 176) 

 
 (c) LA04/2021/0001/F - Contractor's Temporary Site Compound (for proposed 

development at adjacent Ulster Independent Clinic planning ref: 
LA04/2019/0318/F) to include Contractor's buildings, storage, car parking, 
planted bank, Covid-19 Marshall Station / Testing Area and associated 
operational development with new, temporary site access on Site at junction 
of Malone Road and Cranmore Park to south of 14-20 Cranmore Park and 
east of 75 Cranmore Park  (Pages 177 - 186) 

 
 (d) LA04/2019/0775/F - 18 dwellings to include revision of site layout of previous 

approval Z/2007/1401/F at sites 2-8 (7 dwellings) and additional 11 No. 
dwellings, including landscaping, access via Hampton Park and other 
associated site works on lands approximately 50m to the north of 35 
Hampton Park and approximately 30m to the west of 60 Hampton Park, 
Galwally  (Pages 187 - 212) 

 
 (e) LA04/2020/0493/F - Alteration and extension of existing building to provide 4 

No one bed apartments at 23 Glandore Avenue and 2 Glanworth Gardens  
(Pages 213 - 226) 

 
 (f) LA04/2020/1858/F - 18 social housing units at Hillview Retail Park  (Pages 

227 - 238) 
 

 (g) LA04/2020/0754/F - 14 social housing units at 197-203 Crumlin Road  
(Pages 239 - 254) 

 
 (h) LA04/2020/1360/F - Demolition of existing church hall and construction of 

9.no apartments at 491-495 Lisburn Road  (Pages 255 - 266) 
 

 (i) LA04/2019/2778/F - Residential development comprising 18 x two-bedroom 
apartments and 5 x one-bedroom apartments with associated amenity space, 
cycle & bin storage, landscaping and site works (23 units in total) on lands at 
159-165 Holywood Road  (Pages 267 - 282) 

 
 (j) LA04/2021/1645/F - Single and two storey rear extension, rear car parking 

and turning area at 44 Ravenhill Park  (Pages 283 - 288) 
 

 (k) LA04/2021/1595/F - Lands in front of Calvert House - Re-placing existing 
kiosk with upgraded kiosk which includes covered area at 23 and 17 Castle 
Place  (Pages 289 - 298) 

 
 (l) LA04/2021/0773/F - Retention and alteration of shipping container for use as 

a community facility with domestic kitchen Ulidia playing Fields, Ormeau 
Road  (Pages 299 - 304) 

 
 (m) LA04/2021/0791/F - Renewal of planning permission LA04/2019/2412/F for 

temporary single storey timber structure at C.S. Lewis Square, Newtownards 
Road  (Pages 305 - 312) 

 
 



 

 
 

F1234 
 
 

Planning Committee  
 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
  
 

MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
HELD REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

Members present: Councillor Carson (Chairperson); 
Councillors Brooks, Matt Collins,  
Garrett, Groogan, Hanvey, Hussey, 
Hutchinson, Maskey, McCullough, McMullan, 
Murphy and O’Hara. 
 

In attendance:  Mr. A. Reid, Strategic Director of Place and  
   Economy; 
Mr. E. Baker, Planning Manager  

       (Development Management); 
Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor; 
Ms. C. Donnelly, Democratic Services Officer; and 
Mrs. L. McLornan, Democratic Services Officer.  

 
 

Apologies 
 

 An apology for inability to attend was reported from Councillor Whyte. 
 

Minutes 
 
 The minutes of the meetings of 18th and 20th May were taken as read and signed 
as correct.  It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council at its 
meeting on 1st June, subject to the omission of those matters in respect of which the 
Council had delegated its powers to the Committee. 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 Councillor Murphy declared an interest in Item 6g, namely LA04/2020/1593/F - 
Refurbishment works to Marrowbone Park, in that he had been involved with the project 
at different stages and had spoken with officers about the design of the scheme.  He left 
the meeting for the duration of the item and did not participate in the vote. 
 

Committee Site Visit 
 

The Members noted that a site visit had been undertaken to the following site, on 
3rd June:  
 

 LA04/2020/1363/F - 21 apartments and 3 retail units with ancillary lobby 
space, refuse storage, bicycle storage and amenity space between 173 
Newtownards Road and 1-5 Templemore Avenue. 

  

Page 1

Agenda Item 1b



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1235 
 
 

 
Planning Appeals Notified 

 
 The Members noted the receipt of correspondence in respect of a number of 
planning appeals which had been submitted to the Planning Appeals Commission, 
together with the outcomes of a range of hearings which had been considered by the 
Commission. 
 

Planning Decisions Issued 
 

 The Members noted a list of decisions which had been taken under the delegated 
authority of the Strategic Director of Place and Economy, together with all other planning 
decisions which had been issued by the Planning Department between 10th May and 
7th June. 
 

Vesting Orders 
 
 The Members noted that correspondence had been received from the Northern 
Ireland Housing Executive (NIHE), advising that: 
 

 a vesting Order had become operative on 24th May, 2021, in respect of 
Land at 167 to 175 Broadway, and that it was now within NIHE ownership; 
and 

 it had applied for a Vesting Order for Land at Alloa Street, between the 
former properties of 170/168 Manor Street and 49 Alloa Street. 

 
 The Members of the Committee agreed to recommend to the Chief Executive that 
they had no objections to the Orders. 
 

Miscellaneous 
 
Planning Performance Report 2020 - 21  
and Improvement Plan 
 

The Planning Manager (Development Management) provided the Committee with 
a detailed overview of the Planning Service’s performance in 2020/2021.  He explained 
that the report provided statistics on the progress across the three statutory targets for 
major development applications, local development applications and enforcement 
cases.  It also provided information relating to performance against the Council’s 
corporate targets. 
  

The Committee was advised that a total of 2,515 valid applications had been 
received between 1st April and 31st March 2021, which was an 8% decrease compared 
to the same period for the previous year.  Compared to the same period last year, he 
explained that the number of Local Applications which had been received was broadly 
similar while the number of Major applications was down 12%.  He highlighted to the 
Committee that “other development”, such as Certificates of Lawful Use Development 
and Discharge of Condition applications, were not included in statutory performance 
targets but currently made up 59% of applications received.   

Page 2



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1236 
 
 

He outlined that the Planning Service had received 77 Pre-Application 
Discussions (PADs), including 12 PADs for Major development and 65 for Local 
development. 29 PADs had been concluded, all for Local development. 

 
The Members were advised that 2,132 decisions were issued between 1st April 

2020 and 31st March 2021, which was 16% less than the same period in 2019/20.  95% 
of applications had been approved. 

 
The Planning Manager outlined that the Statutory target was that major planning 

applications were processed from the date valid to decision issued or withdrawal date 
within an average of 30 weeks. 

 
The Members were advised that 28 major applications had been received in the 

year 2020/2021, which was four fewer than the previous year.   The Planning Manager 
explained that 40 major applications had been processed during the period which was 
38% more than in the same period last year and the second highest since the Council 
became a Planning Authority in 2015.  He highlighted that performance was 44.2 weeks, 
slightly down on 37 weeks from the previous year, however, the regional average was 
61.8 weeks. 
  

He reported that 1,368 local applications were decided or withdrawn in the same 
period, which was 234 fewer than the same period last year. The Members were advised 
that, last year, the average processing time had been 14 weeks, whereas this year it was 
19 weeks, which was 4 weeks over the target of 15 weeks.  He explained that the regional 
average processing time was 17.8 weeks. 

 
The Members were advised that the largest number of local applications 

processed related to householder applications, such as domestic extensions, 
conservatories, loft conversions, garages and outbuildings.  He reported that there were 
676 householder applications received, which was a 26% increase on the previous year. 
He explained that it was reflective of a nationwide increase which was almost certainly 
linked to the pandemic and people’s desire for more accommodation. 

 
In relation to Statutory Consultee Performance, he reported that the Department 

for Infrastructure had established a Planning Forum which was examining ways to 
improve the role of statutory consultees in the planning application process. Belfast City 
Council was one of three councils on the Planning Forum representing local government. 

 
In relation to enforcement, he explained that the Statutory target was that 70% of 

all enforcement cases were progressed to conclusion within 39 weeks of the receipt of 
complaint.  He advised the Members that the number of enforcement cases opened 
during 2020/21 was 443, which was a decrease of 54% over the previous year. The 
number of enforcement cases which had concluded during the period was 618, which 
was 23% less than the previous year.  He outlined that the two main reasons for closure 
were that no breach had occurred (26%) and that cases had been remedied or resolved 
(38%). 
 

In conclusion, he advised the Members that the performance for 2020/21 was 
inevitably impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. He explained that, during Q1 and Q2, 

Page 3



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1237 
 
 

there was limited access to the office for staff, limited IT capacity for staff to work from 
home, representations which had submitted by post could not be considered, site visits 
could not be carried out and some staff were furloughed.  The Members were advised 
that this had reduced the number of applications, PADs and enforcement cases which 
could be processed and which had therefore increased overall processing times. 

 
However, despite those significant challenges, he reported that the Council’s 

Planning Service had adapted quickly and had been operating a full service (other than 
public access to planning reception) since the second half of Q2.  Notably, it had included 
the promotion of electronic submissions for applications and PADs.   

 
The pandemic had initially resulted in a backlog of enforcement complaints. 

He explained that the focus had been on clearing the backlog to improve the handling of 
new complaints. Whilst it had meant that the processing target had been missed for the 
first time since 2015, it had allowed the Service to reduce enforcement complaints to a 
more manageable level, which would have significant benefits moving forward. 
 

The Planning Manager detailed how the Service continued to work through and 
develop its Improvement Plan, with many actions completed and important new areas of 
work having been identified. The most significant area of improvement work related to 
the implementation of a new planning IT system to replace the outgoing Planning Portal. 
He advised that it would provide enhanced systems for processing planning applications 
and enforcement complaints, as well as a new public website interface. The new system 
would allow customers to submit online applications for the first time in Northern Ireland 
and it was expected to go live during the Spring of 2022. 

 
With regards to the review of the Council’s Planning Application Checklist, 

completed in February 2021, it had demonstrated that it had had a very positive impact 
on improving the quality of planning applications and processing times. The planning 
manager outlined that it had also started to shift the culture and attitude of customers 
towards submitting much better-quality planning application at the outset of the process.  
The Department had already confirmed that it would adopt that model through changes 
to the legislation to improve information requirements for new planning applications. 
The Planning Manager advised the Committee of the launch of Phase 3 of the Application 
Checklist in September 2021, when it would be applied to all applications except 
Householders, Adverts and minor Local applications, as well as new information 
requirements in relation to outline applications, telecommunications, employability and 
skills and front-loading draft S76 planning agreements for Major applications. 
 
 He outlined the new “FastTrack” process for the most straightforward applications 
and explained that it was already showing a positive impact on processing times.  He also 
explained that they continued to implement the enforcement audit recommendations with 
an impending relaunch of the enforcement service, new customer guidance and new 
Enforcement Operating Principles. 
  

A Member stated that she had concerns regarding the time that enforcement 
cases took and that it was extremely difficult to get information from officers in relation to 
updates in respect of such cases.  The Divisional Solicitor and the Planning Manager 
advised the Committee Members that, due to General Data Protection 

Page 4



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1238 
 
 

Regulation (GDPR) and the need to safeguard the investigation process, there were real 
limitations in terms of what information could be shared.  The Divisional Solicitor 
explained that a report would be submitted to a future meeting in respect of the change 
of process in relation to enforcement cases. 
 

A number of Members stated that they wished to put on record their thanks to the 
staff in the Planning Service and in Democratic Services for the work which had been 
carried out in terms of meeting the targets and adapting to the significant challenges and 
changes which had been required in response to the pandemic. 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority:  
 

 to note the reports; and  

 that a report would be submitted to a future meeting in respect of the change of 
process to planning enforcement in light of GDPR. 

 
Restricted Items 

 

 The information contained in the reports associated with the following 
two items is restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local 
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014. 
 

 Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of 
the Press and public from the meeting during discussion of these items 
as, due to the nature of the items, there would be a disclosure of exempt 
information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the Local 
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014. 

 
Appointment of the Director of Planning and Building Control 
 

The Members were advised that, following a rigorous selection process, 
Ms. Kate Bentley, had been appointed to the post of Director of Planning and Building 
Control. 
 
Request for a Special Meeting 
 

The Members of the Committee agreed to hold a remote Special Meeting on 
Thursday, 24 June at 1.00pm, for the purpose of considering the Chancery House 
application (LA04/2019/2653/F). 
 
Casement Park - Section 76 Consultation 

 
A Member expressed concern that Members had not been given long enough to 

consider the document which was over 200 pages. 
 
Moved by Councillor Collins 
Seconded by Councillor Hanvey and 
 

Page 5



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1239 
 
 

Resolved – That the Members agree to defer the item to the 
Special Meeting of the Members of the Committee, to take place on 
Thursday 24th June; and, in the meantime, that officers write to the 
Department for Infrastructure, urging them to share the contents of 
the Section 76 Agreement with local residents, in order to help facilitate 
the consultation process. 

 
Planning Applications 

 
THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE CONSIDERED THE FOLLOWING 

ITEMS IN ORDER TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
IN PURSUANCE OF THE POWERS DELEGATED TO HER BY THE COUNCIL  

ON 4TH MAY, 2021 
 

Withdrawn Item 
 

 The Members noted that the following application had been withdrawn from the 
agenda: 
 

 LA04/2020/1158/F - Demolition of existing building and erection of 65No 
Apartments including 20% social housing at 1-5 Redcar Street. 

 
LA04/2020/0847/F & LA04/2020/1208/DCA - Partial  
demolition and redevelopment of existing buildings  
to provide 16 apartments, communal bin store and  
landscaped communal garden at 25-29 University Road 
 
 Moved by Councillor Groogan 
 Seconded by Councillor O’Hara and 
 

 Resolved – That the Members of the Committee agree to recommend 
to the Chief Executive to defer consideration of the application to enable a 
site visit to be undertaken in order to allow the Members to acquaint 
themselves with the location and the proposals at first hand, particularly in 
relation to the Area of Townscape Character and the Conservation Area, the 
amenity space and the fire access. 

 
 The Members noted, as the application had not been presented, that all Members 
present at the next meeting, would be able to take part in the debate and vote on this 
item. 
 
(Reconsidered item) LA04/2020/2200/F &  
LA04/2020/2201/DCA - Demolition of Nos. 27 to 37  
Linenhall Street and Nos. 8-10 Clarence Street and  
erection of seven storey office building at  
8 -10 Clarence Street 27-37 Linenhall Street and  
existing car park at the corner of Linenhall Street  
and Clarence Street 
 

Page 6



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1240 
 
 

 The Principal Planning officer provided the Members with the details of the 
application. 
 

The Principal Planning officer reported that the application was scheduled for 
presentation to the Planning Committee on 17th April, 2021.  However, following the 
publication of the agenda for that meeting, the agent had requested that consideration of 
the application be deferred to allow for the submission of a viability assessment and an 
updated redline to enable further discussion in relation to public realm improvements.  
At the April meeting, the Members had been asked to consider the request for a deferral 
but officers had highlighted that a viability assessment would not address the fundamental 
design issues with the proposal. At that meeting the Committee had resolved to defer 
consideration of the application, to allow the developer to submit additional information. 
 
 The Principal Planning officer explained that further information had been 
submitted on 7th May 2021, including: 
 

 Further justification of design and 3D visuals showing potential design 
amendments and a case presented to suggest the changes would be 
detrimental to the resultant character of the building and the area. 

 Confirmation sought as to the outcome of consultations in relation to 
public realm contributions, as per the Developer Contribution 
Framework, and a reluctance to extend a red line in the absence of any 
demonstrated need for such improvements. 

 Confirmation that the developer was willing to enter into a Section 76 
Agreement to facilitate a contribution towards wider public realm 
improvement schemes within the area. 

 A letter from Savills, whereby it was argued that the buildings did not 
make a material contribution to the conservation area as their removal 
and appropriate replacement would not have an adverse effect on the 
area. It was claimed that efforts were made to market the site and the 
only interest was based on the demolition of the existing buildings and 
redevelopment. It was also claimed that the spaces within the existing 
buildings were deemed unsuitable, and what was felt as restricted 
access to two of the buildings made them unsuitable for modern office 
providers. 

 
He explained that officers remained of the opinion that: 
 

 any suggested design changes would be to the benefit of the overall 
character of the building, the appearance of the conservation area and 
would reduce the impact on the adjacent listed Ulster Hall; 

 a consultation response from DFC remained outstanding, however 
officers remained of the opinion that the red line should be extended to 
facilitate public realm improvements in the area immediately 
surrounding the proposed building. That was a standard requirement 
for such schemes within the city centre to mitigate the development 
and to enhance the character and appearance of the area; 

 it was considered that insufficient information had been submitted in 
terms of the overall viability of the scheme, and the merits for removing 

Page 7



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1241 
 
 

the existing buildings which Officers considered made a positive 
contribution to the character of the Linen Conservation Area.  Policy 
BH14 of PPS6 was clear that when a building made a positive 
contribution, the presumption was in favour of retention, and that the 
Council should have regard to the same broad criteria for the 
demolition of listed buildings (para 6.5 and policy BH 10). PPS6 Para 
6.5 reinforced the ethos that if the building made a contribution, then 
the presumption to retain and protect should only be relaxed under 
exceptional circumstances, including condition of the building, cost of 
repairing and maintaining, efforts made to retain the building and 
alternative proposals for the site. On balance, in the absence of what 
was considered to be sufficient information to justify the removal of the 
buildings and without an acceptable redevelopment proposal, it was 
the view of officers that the proposal was contrary to PPS6; and 

 there was insufficient evidence provided in relation to the marketing of 
the site, either in terms of selling or renting the existing buildings. 

 
The Members’ attention was drawn to the Late Items pack, whereby an objection 

had been received, concerned that the 3rd, 4th, 5th and 6th floor windows, on the western 
elevation, would prejudice the future development capacity of the adjacent site and that 
it was over-dominant in size and scale.  The Principal Planning officer advised the 
Members that it was not considered that the windows would significantly prejudice 
the development of the adjacent site however, the scale of the building was considered 
to be unacceptable and was one of the reasons for recommending refusal. 
 
 He also advised the Members that, immediately before the meeting had 
commenced, correspondence had been received from the Ulster Architectural Heritage 
Society (UAHS), stating that they supported the officers’ recommendation for refusal, as 
they believed it was contrary to the SPPS and PPS6. 
 

The Members were advised that the scale, height, massing, alignment and form 
of the building would have a detrimental impact upon the setting of a number of listed 
buildings, including the Ulster Hall.  The Principal Planning officer pointed out that HED 
objected to the proposal on the grounds of harm to the setting of listed buildings, which 
was contrary to Policy BH11 of Planning Policy Statement 6. 
 

The proposal included the demolition of two buildings, one on Clarence Street and 
one on Linenhall Street. The principle of demolition of the building on Linenhall Street, 
which made a positive contribution to the character of the Linen Conservation Area, was 
not acceptable and the proposed redevelopment scheme did not enhance the character 
and appearance of the area as it was of a scale and massing which was unsympathetic 
to the adjoining buildings and the characteristic built form of the area. Both the 
Conservation Officer and the Urban Design Officer objected to the proposal. 

 
He explained that the Council had a duty to adopt a precautionary principle and 

when considering demolition of a building which made a positive contribution to the 
character of a conservation area there should be clear and convincing evidence that all 
reasonable efforts had been made to sustain existing uses or find viable new uses, and 
that those efforts had failed. The onus, therefore, was on the applicant to provide detailed 

Page 8



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1242 
 
 

evidence in support of such claims.  He stated that officers remained of the view that the 
applicant had failed to provide such evidence. 
 

The Planning officer outlined that DAERA and NI Water had advised that, at 
present, the waste water treatment infrastructure did not have sufficient capacity to serve 
the proposed development and no acceptable, alternative solution had been proposed. 
However, for the reasons set out in the report, it was considered that the issue could be 
addressed by a suitably worded planning condition and a refusal reason on that issue 
was not considered appropriate. 
 
 The Chairperson then welcomed Mr. Stinson, agent, to the meeting.  Mr. Stinson 
advised the Committee that: 
 

 he was disappointed with the recommendation to refuse planning 
permission for a £13 million investment in the City Centre of 6,000 sq 
metres of Grade A office floorspace; 

 the building was separated from the main Ulster Hall by a small 
extension and was similar to the separation that exists between Ulster 
Hall and 21 Linenhall Street; 

 whilst the Ulster Hall was listed in its entirety, not all aspects of its setting 
were similar and the existing building heights on Linenhall Street 
resulted in a different context within which the building could still be 
appreciated. Para 9.31 of the officer report acknowledged that high-rise 
contemporary buildings had transformed the built context, and changed 
the overall context for listed buildings in the conservation area; 

 guidance had been given on how the relationship with the Ulster Hall 
impact could be addressed by amending the roof profile and introducing 
setbacks, however, it was considered that those features would result in 
a building that was uncharacteristic of that part of the Conservation Area 
as the characteristic uniformity and consistency of façade would be lost. 

 significant amendments had been made to the scale, form and mass of 
the building from the previous application; 

 the report stated that Linenhall Street and Adelaide Street were defined 
by large contemporary buildings, yet the officers considered that the 
building would dominate the immediate streetscape, suggesting that the 
building was significantly out of scale with the surrounding context. That 
could not be the case, as it was similar to the height of the building at 21 
Linenhall Street and was similar in width and form to other buildings 
along Linenhall Street and Adelaide Street; 

 the Councils Linen Quarter Vision Guidance identified the existing 
buildings as making a negative contribution to the area; 

 the interest for the site following the marketing was in the redevelopment 
of it; 

 the existing car park and associated advertising hoardings detracted 
from the conservation area.  The retention of those unlisted buildings 
removed the opportunity for the comprehensive redevelopment of the 
site and importantly the opportunity to enhance the Conservation Area 
was lost.  The proposed development realised the opportunity to 

Page 9



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1243 
 
 

enhance the Conservation Area, meeting the test set in legislation, and 
that should weigh significantly in the planning balance; 

 the officers report noted that a consultation from the Department for 
Communities was outstanding yet the officer opinion in the addendum 
report suggested that public realm improvements were required 
regardless of the DfC response; 

 the applicant was willing to make a contribution to public realm 
improvement schemes that the Linen Quarter BID was intending to bring 
forward for the area to ensure that any public realm was part of a 
coherent scheme for the Conservation Area and not one that was an 
isolated change at odds with the surrounding streets so that it would 
cause harm to, rather than enhance it; and 

 finally, they had met the legislative test to enhance the Conservation 
Area by removing the car park.  

 
 A Member queried how the current buildings were of architectural merit. 
 
 In response, Mr. G. Moore, Architect, advised that they did not feel that the 
buildings contributed positively to the Conservation Area and that the existing corner was 
a difficult site and was quite alien within the city centre. 

 
 The Principal Planning officer confirmed to the Members that the Linen 
Conservation Area Guide had identified the terraced façade for 
maintenance/enhancement, rather than a development opportunity, and that it had not 
been identified as making a negative or a positive contribution.  He advised the Members 
that the Conservation officer was of the view that the building did make a positive 
contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation area. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to refuse the application for the reasons detailed within the report. 
 
 (Councillor McCullough joined the meeting at this point in proceedings)  
 
(Reconsidered item)  LA04/2020/1363/F - 21 apartments  
and 3 retail units with ancillary lobby space, refuse  
storage, bicycle storage and amenity space between  
173 Newtownards Road and 1-5 Templemore Avenue 
 

The Principal Planning officer provided the Members with the details of the 
application for 21 apartments and three retail units within a single building which ranged 
from four to six storeys in height.  

 
She explained that the application was due to be considered by the Committee 

on 18th May but that it was deferred so that Members could gain an understanding of the 
context of the site through a site visit.  The Committee had undertaken a site visit on 
3rd June. 

 

Page 10



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1244 
 
 

The Members were advised that the site was located within the development limits 
for Belfast in both the BUAP 2001 and the draft BMAP 2015. The site was within a housing 
action area in the BUAP and fell within the draft Templemore Avenue Area of Townscape 
Character. 

 
She reported that the main issues which had been considered in the analysis of 

the application included the principle of the proposal at that location; the design, layout 
and impact on the character and appearance of the area; the impact on residential 
amenity; impact on built heritage; access, parking, and transport; infrastructure capacity 
and impact on human health. 

 
While the principle of the proposal and the proposed use were considered 

acceptable, she explained that it would result in overdevelopment of the site and would 
be out of character with the area. She also advised the Members that the proposal was 
contrary to the SPPS and PPS 7, in that it would result in an overly dominant building 
which would cause unacceptable damage to the local character due to the height, scale, 
massing, thereby resulting in overdevelopment of the site. 

 
It was also reported that the proposal was contrary to draft BMAP Arterial Route 

Policy AR02, which stated that building heights and massing should be appropriate to the 
scale of the street and should generally be two to three storeys high.  The proposed 
amenity provision was inadequate and inappropriate and was therefore contrary to the 
SPPS and PPS7, in that the development would create undesirable living conditions for 
prospective residents.  The Members were advised that the proposal would impact on 
the setting of the listed buildings and, as a result, failed to comply with PPS 6. 

 
She outlined that the scheme was not subject to a Pre Application Discussion 

(PAD) and that the applicant did not take the opportunity during the process to address 
the issues raised. 
 

The Members were advised that 11 representations and a petition of support with 
682 signatures had been received to date.  She detailed that the points raised in the 
letters of support included that the proposal would help to regenerate the area; that the 
scale of the building should be approved as it was a gateway building on a brownfield site 
and would enhance the appearance of a derelict site; housing provision; economic and 
community benefits; and that Cornerstone Ltd’s work was of a high standard. 

 
In respect of the impact on parking and traffic, DfI Roads had expressed no 

objections. Rivers Agency had stated that they required additional information.  NI Water 
and Environmental Health had offered no objections. 
 

The Members were advised that, during the deferral period, the applicant had 
added an area for a temporary local art installation on the western elevation, in response 
to the Council’s concerns relating to the exposed blank façade of the six storey western 
elevation.  However, while art features could improve the aesthetic appearance of a 
building, she explained that, in this instance, it did not overcome the concerns as it did 
not address the scale of the gable and still represented overdevelopment of the site.  
It was considered that the overall height, scale and massing of the building was over 

Page 11



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1245 
 
 

dominant and would result in a clear imbalance along both Templemore Avenue and 
Newtownards Road. 
 

The Principal Planning officer explained that the latest submission from the 
applicant included alterations to the ground floor layout, including a reduction in retail 
space; the provision of additional amenity space on the ground floor and in the form of 
private balconies to the rear of the two bedroom apartments, and that the design of the 
central apartments had been altered to open plan living/kitchen spaces in the central 
apartments to increase natural light.  As a result of those changes, the second refusal 
reason cited in the May 2021 planning committee report, referring to the lack of quality 
amenity space, could be removed. 
 
 Whilst the existing site was vacant, she advised the Members that it did not 
contribute to any special features of the area.  A six storey building of the proposed scale, 
height and massing was at odds with the two to three storey domestic scale character of 
the street and that the proposal was more akin to city centre development. 
 

The Members’ attention was draw to the Late Items pack.  The Principal Planning 
officer explained that HED had objected as it was contrary to Policy BH11 of Planning 
Policy Statement 6 and had offered further comments in relation to the views of the listed 
buildings which would be impacted by the proposal.  They stated that: 
 

 the immediate setting of St Patrick’s Church of Ireland would be impacted 
by the development in views along the Newtownards Road from both the 
East and West; 

 the wider setting of the other three churches – Westbourne, St Matthew’s 
and Megain Memorial would be impacted less so; 

 their spires would be obscured by the proposal from certain viewpoints, 
however it was generally accepted that in an urban context, views were 
dynamic rather than static; 

 the six-storey element would, if permitted, set a new precedent for building 
heights and that would diminish the character of the existing setting and 
would appear dominant; and 

 the four churches rose above the relatively low buildings as focal points, 
and contributed to the sense of place and were an important source of local 
identity. 

 
The Members were advised that the agent had been made aware of officers’ 

design concerns and had been advised that officers would be recommending refusal.  
The Principal Planning officer outlined that the agent did not amend the scheme but 
submitted a rebuttal to the issues raised by officers and consultees. 
 
 The Chairperson welcomed Mr. J. Martin, agent, and Mr. D. Jackson, managing 
Director of Cornerstone Construction NI.  Together, they advised the Members that: 
 

 the current site and the adjacent site were currently derelict and in need 
of regeneration; 

 the height restrictions mentioned in the draftBMAP were dropped on the 
adoption of BMAP and they had also not been carried forward into the 

Page 12



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1246 
 
 

latest draft plan strategy.  Whilst draftBMAP did have material weight, 
appeal decision 2016/A0202 stated that the draft BMAP urban design 
criteria should be afforded little weight if it was in compliance with BUAP; 

 BUAP encouraged new housing to stimulate urban renewal; 

 the Belfast Agenda included the aim of housing 66,000 additional 
occupants by 2035, with the new Local Development Plan aiming for 
37,000 new units in Belfast, and to reach that goal it was crucial that 
existing brownfield sites, particularly derelict ones, were allowed to 
increase density; 

 the western elevation had intentionally been left blank to allow for the 
future regeneration of no.171 Newtownards Road and to comply with 
Building Control Regulations; 

 there was no natural heritage to protect on site and the proposal was 
presented towards the Newtownards Road and stepped down towards 
the characteristic area of the ATC. The site was included in the ATC by 
default and detracted from the area. The current vacant site was a gap 
in the urban streetscape and detracted from the ATC and their proposal 
would help revive the important intersection; 

 the scale, massing and heights of the proposal had been carefully 
considered, with minor setbacks and contrasting materials all used to 
break the massing of the proposal whilst also keeping the footprint of the 
proposal feasible; 

 the planning report emphasised the residential nature of the area and 
the low buildings featured within it.  However, the surrounding 
development and extant site could not be ignored. The streetscape 
analysis, using VU.CITY clearly highlighted how the building sat within 
an area of taller buildings, yet they had been disregarded; 

 the committee report stated that the opinion of HED had not changed 
from the submission of the heritage statement which was untrue. In its 
initial consultation response HED stated that 2 or 3 storeys should be 
sought, and in its final response it stated it should be 4/5 storeys. It was 
evident that HED was not opposed to taller buildings, though they felt 
that the emphasis HED placed on a lower building height was misplaced; 

 the proposal did not detract from the nearby church spires, it sat 4metres 
below Westbourne’s Spire, 17metres below the spire of St Patrick’s and 
27metres below the spire of St Matthew’s; 

 Cornerstone’s approach was about finding the dark corners of the city, 
the parts that others overlooked, and to create projects which unlocked 
their potential and that the site in question, which was within walking 
distance of the city centre, had been overlooked for decades and was 
why their proposal for the site had been overwhelmingly supported by 
local residents; 

 all Councillors representing the Titanic DEA supported the application; 

 the site overlapped two wards, one sat within the 4% most deprived and 
the other the 8% most deprived in the NI Multiple Deprivation Index; 

 the project would be the first in the Northern Ireland to incorporate 
intentional community building into its model.  They had invested 
significantly in building Community Life, offering residents the 

Page 13



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1247 
 
 

opportunity to build relationships with those in the building and 
incentivise healthy, greener lifestyles; and 

 there was a big difference in planning permission being granted and 
sites actually being developed, and that they were not just chasing a 
green paper. 

 
A number of Members stated that, while they were sympathetic to the work and 

the ethos of the applicant, in terms of regenerating the area through the creation of much 
needed housing, they had to make their decisions in line with Planning Policy.  Further 
Members urged the applicants to ensure that their future proposals were compliant with 
planning policies at an early stage. 

 
In response, Mr. Martin explained that PPS7, in terms of the scale, height and 

massing of a building, was down to perception and that there was no written rule with 
exact numbers.  He stated that they felt that the application was in compliance with PPS7 
and that the planning officers had ignored the higher, surrounding buildings and had 
instead focussed on the single and two storey heights which were from a different era.  
Mr. Jackson added that, having spoken to numerous residents in the area, they had 
referred to the surrounding dereliction, boarded up buildings and paramilitary murals and 
that the site was in need of regeneration. 
 

In response to a question from a Member in respect of whether any of the 
apartments would be social housing, the applicant advised that they envisaged it as mixed 
tenure, with private and social housing together in one building.  They explained that they 
were in conversations with a housing association but that their first task was to have the 
planning permission agreed.  Mr. Jackson added that they had approached NIHE in 
relation to social housing for the proposal but, to their surprise, the area was not currently 
deemed to be an area of social housing need by the NIHE and that this needed to be 
rectified.   
 
 In response to a Member’s query regarding the limited amenity space for residents, 
the deputation advised the Committee that they intended that the residents would 
congregate within the public realm spaces.  They outlined to the Members that they had 
connected with the Smart Cities’ Civic Dollars scheme, which sought to connect people 
with the local community, encourage shopping with local retailers, encourage volunteering 
and the use of local parks, with incentives for anyone who did so. 
 

The Chairperson welcomed Ms. N. Golden, HED, to the meeting.  She clarified 
that the images that HED had submitted had demonstrated a four storey building which 
HED felt could fit comfortably on the site.  The application in front of the Members was a 
third taller.  She explained that HED believed that a four storey building, with a setback to 
five, would striking the right balance in terms of addressing the dereliction which currently 
existed there and the impact on the Listed Buildings.  She added that three storeys of 
commercial property was roughly equivalent to four storeys of residential.   
 

In response to a Member’s question, she clarified that the shoulder height of the 
Skainos building and the Masonic Hall would be the comfortable height in terms of Policy 
BH11.  She added that the scheme was not far from acceptable to them and, subject to 
changes, might be acceptable. 

Page 14



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1248 
 
 

 
The Cornerstone NI representatives stated that they had not been afforded the 

opportunity to resubmit or change their application and that if they could have made a four 
storey building viable, they would have done so.  They suggested that the Planning 
Committee should question what the City needed in areas of low value land as opposed 
to rigidly abiding by planning policies which could just be applied by planners. 

 
The Principal Planning officer, in response to the discussion between the applicant, 

the Members, HED and officers, explained that those were the types of conversations 
which should have taken place at PAD stage, upfront and before the application had been 
submitted.  She explained that the applicant was made aware, in early March, of the 
officers’ concerns with the scheme and that their recommendation would be for a refusal.  
She explained that the applicant had three months in which they could have proposed 
amendments and that they had used the deferral period to submit amendments to some, 
but not all, of the issues raised.  She added that the applicant had sent a rebuttal to the 
officers’ comments instead of amended plans.   

 
The Members were also advised that there was no indication within the planning 

application that it was for social housing. 
 
In response to a further Member’s query, the Planning Manager explained that the 

design context of the site was critical and that all sites were different in terms of the 
surrounding scale, height and massing, nearby listed buildings and individual character of 
an area. He explained that each design had to be considered within the specific context 
of the site. 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 

Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to refuse the application and that she would use delegated authority to finalise 
the refusal reasons. 
   
(Reconsidered Item) LA04/2020/1803/F - Change of use  
to House of Multiple Occupancy at 60 Springfield Road 
 
 (Councillor McCullough left the meeting at this point in proceedings) 
 
 (Councillors Murphy and McMullan did not participate in the vote on this item as 
they had not been present when it had previously been presented to the Committee) 
  
 The Principal Planning officer reminded the Members that the application had 
been presented to the Committee on 15th December 2020, where it was deferred for 
further consideration of the roads issues.  At the meeting held on 16th March, the item 
was deferred for a second time, to request that DfI Roads would carry out a site visit. 
 

The Principal Planning officer explained that DFI Roads had visited the site on 
two occasions, on 13th May at 5pm and again on 26th May at 8.30pm.  She outlined that 
DfI Roads had considered the busiest time on the road network during the evening peak 
period to be between 4:30pm-6pm, and that the second visit, at 8.30pm, had allowed for 
the evening peak to pass and for residential parking to have been established. 

Page 15



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1249 
 
 

 
The Members were advised of that DfI Roads position remained unchanged, and 

it had raised no objection to the proposal.  It was the Department’s position that the 
proposal would not ‘prejudice road safety or significantly inconvenience the flow of traffic’. 

 
She reminded the Members that, in respect of the principle of the proposal at that 

location, the application site fell within an HMO Development Node as designated within 
the HMO Subject Plan for Belfast (2015). She reported that Policy HM0 3 stated that 
planning permission would only be granted along the frontages of designated HMO 
Development Nodes, providing it did not include HMO development at ground floor level 
within a designated commercial node or shopping area. As the site was not within a 
designated commercial node or shopping area, the ground floor was not required to be 
commercial or shopping. The proposal was also in line with Policy HMO 6 as the criteria 
within that policy were either met or were not relevant. 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 

Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2020/1211/F - Mixed use regeneration scheme  
involving demolition of vacant buildings Hughes Christensen 
site; erection of 8No. Class B2 (light industrial) and Class B4  
(storage/distribution) unit; extension to and subdivision of  
existing supermarket building to form 4. Class B4 units  
(existing retail use to be discontinued); erection of  
replacement supermarket; provision of new accesses,  
road improvements; car parking, landscaping and  
associated site works. (Lynas Food Outlet building  
to be retained) at No 46 Montgomery Road (former  
Hughes Christensen site) and between nos 44 and  
46 Montgomery Road and no 41 Montgomery Road (Lidl) 
 
 The Principal Planning officer provided the Members with an overview of the major 
application which comprised two sites either side of Montgomery Road and adjacent to 
the Castlereagh Road.   
 

He advised the Members of the key issues in the assessment of the proposal, 
which included the principle of a major foodstore at that location; the loss of existing 
industrial land; design and layout considerations; impact on amenity / character of the 
area; impact on transport and other infrastructure and impact on the natural environment. 
 

The Members were advised that the proposal constituted an increase of 397sqm 
of convenience and 198sqm of comparison floorspace on the existing store, which was 
to be relocated from its current location to the factory site to the north.  The Principal 
planning officer explained that the site was outside any designated retail centres identified 
within both the BUAP and dBMAP. 

 

Page 16



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1250 
 
 

He reported that, following assessment of the economic information, on balance, 
it was considered that the majority of trade would be drawn from unprotected locations 
and, as such, the scale of impact on protected centres was not likely to be significant. 

 
At the time of writing the report, there were no sites available that could facilitate 

the proposal, largely due to the size of store proposed, and it therefore met the sequential 
test. 

 
It was felt that the proposal would provide regeneration benefits in terms of 

restoring a vacant site to active economic use. He advised that it might provide substantial 
community benefits, including in terms of job creation and improved built form and 
associated public realm, if all the business units were to become operational on an 
ongoing basis. 

 
The agent had indicated that the proposal would result in the following economic 

impacts: 

 the construction costs of the entire project will be around £8million, which 
would be a significant benefit to the local construction industry; 

 the proposed store would support 13 new jobs; 

 the proposed Class B2 & B4 units had the potential to create 87 full time 
equivalent positions; 

 there would be an increase in rates revenue for the Council of around 
£300,000+ per annum. 

 
In order to secure the retention of business/industrial use at the site and to offset 

the loss of such uses in substitution for the proposed retail use, it was fundamental that 
the conversion works of the existing Lidl building were provided prior to the new 
supermarket use commencing. As highlighted in the BCC LDP response, it was 
necessary to secure that by planning agreement under Section 76 of the Planning Act. 
He added that it was also considered necessary to restrict permitted development use 
rights for the business/industrial units, in order that the Council could retain control of 
operations at the site and to maintain appropriate amenity via planning condition. 
 

The Members were advised that all consultees had responded with no objections, 
apart from Invest NI who had not yet responded, despite numerous reminders having 
been issued.  

 
The Members’ attention was drawn to the Late Items pack, whereby the Council’s 

Economic Development Unit had no objection.  A response had also been received from 
the DFI Economics Branch, who had considered the “Development Appraisal and Viability 
Report” and the “Retail impact, Need and Assessment”.  The Principal Planning officer 
summarised their response and added that the Council’s Estates Valuer had considered 
the issues and that an independent review of the retail figures had been undertaken by 
the Council’s LDP team. 
 

He reported that Environmental Health had made comments in relation to the 
Construction Management Plan, in terms of hours of construction, and that DFI Roads 
had responded to advise that Condition 19 was no longer necessary and, after discussion 
with the agent in regards to Conditions 20-23, officers were awaiting final conditions from 

Page 17



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1251 
 
 

Roads and could be amended following receipt of response. Delegated authority was 
therefore requested to finalise all conditions. 
 

One objection had been received in relation to traffic and associated issues.  
He advised that DFI Roads had no objections in relation to those issues and, accordingly, 
any impacts were considered acceptable. 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application, to finalise the wording of conditions and to enter into 
a planning agreement under S76 of the Planning Act, subject to no new substantive 
planning issues being raised by consultees and third parties. 

 
LA04/2020/2071/F - Demolition of existing buildings  
and structures; and construction of 57 no. apartments  
with associated landscaping and car parking at 41-49  
Tate's Avenue Belfast 
 

The Senior Planning officer drew the Members’ attention to the Late Items Pack, 
where a letter had been received from Environmental Consultants providing further 
information on gas mitigation and points of clarification in response to Environmental 
Health concerns. He explained that the Environmental Health Department had since 
advised that it was content with the mitigation measures proposed. 
 

The Members were also advised that the Social Housing element of the Section 76 
Agreement had been omitted from the Committee Report.  He outlined that a Section 76 
clause would be applied, requiring 100% social housing provision which had meant a 
subsequent reduction in parking standards. 
 

The Members were provided with the details of the application.  They were 
advised of the key issues which had been considered during the assessment of the 
proposed development, including the acceptability of residential use at that location; 
demolition in an Area of Townscape Character (ATC); impact on the character and 
appearance of the ATC; Scale, Massing and Design; open space provision; traffic and 
parking; contamination; flooding and drainage; wastewater treatment and developer 
obligations. 
 

The Senior Planning officer explained that the principle of demolition of the 
existing buildings and new residential development was acceptable given the extant 
permission on the site.  The Members were advised that the additional 8 units proposed 
were located within the main block and had resulted in additional floorspace on the upper 
floor above the approved rear annex. The location of the additional mass ensured there 
would be no detrimental visual impact when viewed from the street.  The minor elevation 
changes to the Tates Avenue elevation ensured that the proposal continued to enhance 
the character of the ATC. 
 

He outlined that any additional windows were located so that separation distances 
and screening provided by the parts of the proposed building would ensure that there 
would be no impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties.  He added that the removal 

Page 18



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1252 
 
 

of the balconies and expanses of glazing also improved the relationship with the adjacent 
properties, particularly those to either side on Tates Avenue. 
 

In relation to car parking, he advised that 30 spaces were proposed in the 
basement, whereas 73 spaces had been proposed in the extant permission. He outlined 
that the reduction in spaces had been agreed between planners, DFI Roads and the 
planning agent, in light of the fact that the apartments would be social housing, where it 
was widely accepted that uptake of parking spaces was significantly less.  A parking 
survey had been carried out which considered the uptake of car parking in similar sized 
social housing sites and had taken into account on-street parking availability (not on 
Tate’s Avenue) as well as the site’s proximity to the amenities on the Lisburn Road.  
A Travel Plan was also proposed including green travel measures such as Travel Cards 
for three years, a cycle user scheme and a subsidy towards a Car Club.  He advised that 
DFI had advised that it was now content with the Travel Plan. 
 

He reported that a response from NI Water was outstanding in relation to the 
capacity within the receiving wastewater treatment works. In the interim, and as a 
precaution, a condition had been proposed that would ensure that no development was 
carried out until such times as capacity became available. 
 

The Members were advised that no objections had been received from third 
parties and that the Pre-Community Consultation Report submitted demonstrated that the 
applicant had carried out their duty under Section 27 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 to 
consult the community in advance of submitting an application. 
 
 The proposal was assessed against paragraphs 4.23-4.29 of the SPPS and Policy 
QD1 of PPS7.  He advised that the design of the proposed apartments fronting onto Tates 
Avenue were traditional in appearance, in keeping with the built form of the immediate 
surrounding properties.  He reported that the height of the new buildings followed the 
pattern of the existing streetscape in relation to the eaves/ridge height, window/door 
openings and building line. A more traditional design had been adopted along the Tates 
Avenue elevation to respect the established vernacular and that relationship was 
considered appropriate in the context of the street scene on Tates Avenue. 
 

He outlined that there were more windows in the front elevation than the previous 
approval, which strengthened the vertical emphasis, arguably producing a more 
traditional solid:void ratio more in keeping with the area.  Dormer windows were also 
proposed on the upper floor to match the original dormers found within the draft ATC. 

 
The Members were advised that it was considered that the stepped heights 

proposed on Tates Avenue was in keeping with the sloping nature of the site and 
generally accorded with the height of the existing built form of the area. 

 
He explained that the proposal had been assessed against Policy OS2 of 

Planning Policy Statement 8 which stated that an area of at least 3,000 square metres 
(10% of the site area) should be given over to communal open space.  He advised the 
Members that the area of open space provision amounted to approximately 1,000 square 
metres.  He clarified that Creating Places stated that “In the case of apartment or flat 
developments, or 1 and 2 bedroomed houses on small urban infill sites, private communal 

Page 19



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1253 
 
 

open space would be acceptable in the form of landscaped areas, courtyards or roof 
gardens, from a minimum of 10 sq m per unit to around 30 sq m per unit.”  He advised 
the Members that it was considered that the site was an urban infill site and, when the 
lower standard was applied, the level of communal amenity space would be 570 square 
metres. The proposed amenity provision was approximately 820 square metres and was 
therefore considered acceptable. 
 
 The Chairperson welcomed Mr. P. Stinson, agent, to the meeting.  He confirmed 
that: 
 

 the permission remained extant, having been granted in 2019; 

 the proposal would comprise 31 active elderly units, along with 26 
general needs units, and that an agreement in principle had been 
reached with a housing association; and 

 they welcomed the recommendation that the social housing element 
would be included within he Section 76 Agreement. 

 
 In response to a Member’s questions regarding the reduced number of car parking 
spaces, Mr. Stinson advised the Members that the decrease would mean that the 
construction would take less time and that the use of parking in social housing was 
significantly less than with other housing developments.  In addition to the availability of 
on street parking nearby and the Green Travel Measures, DFI Roads were content with 
the results of the Travel Survey. 
 
 In response to a further question, the Senior Planning officer outlined that DFI 
Roads had verbally agreed to the measures proposed but that they were awaiting a final 
response.  In relation to the outstanding Rivers Agency response, he explained that there 
was an extant approval on the site but that officers were awaiting a formal response.    
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions and the Section 76 
Agreement. 
 
LA04/2020/1593/F - Refurbishment works to existing park,  
comprising: revised accesses from Jamaica Road and  
Old Park Road; extension of existing 3G pitch;  
refurbishment of existing flood lighting; a replacement  
405m2 GFA changing pavilion incorporating community  
facilities and a shelter for up to 101 spectators;  
new MUGA; new multi-use community event space;  
new street furniture, outdoor gym equipment  
and park lighting; new inclusive/multi-age playground;  
new 2.4m boundary fencing; rationalisation of existing  
path network including resurfacing; new SUDS pond/ 
wetland wildlife area; landscape interventions including 
planting, woodland management, entrance improvements  
and all associated works at Marrowbone Millennium Park,  
Oldpark Road 

Page 20



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1254 
 
 

 
 (Councillor Murphy, having declared an interest in this item, left the meeting for 
the duration of the item and did not participate in the vote.) 
 
 The Principal Planning officer presented the details of the Belfast City Council 
application to the Members. 
 
 The key issues which had been considered during its assessment included the 
principle of use on the site; the design and layout; the impact on amenity and character 
of the area; impact on natural and built heritage; access, movement, parking, transport 
and road safety; flood risk; landscaping and other environmental matters. 
 
 He outlined that the site was located within an existing public park facility and was 
identified as an “Area of Existing Open Space” within (Draft) Belfast Metropolitan Area 
Plan (BMAP) 2004 and BMAP 2015 and, “Lands reserved for Landscape Amenity or 
Recreation use” in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP). The application site was 
also within a Local Landscape Policy Area (LLPA) as per (Draft) BMAP 2004. 
 
 The Members were advised that the proposal had been assessed against and 
was considered to comply with the SPPS, BUAP 2001, Draft BMAP 2015, Planning Policy 
Statement 2, Planning Policy Statement 3, Planning Policy Statement 6, Planning Policy 
Statement 8, and Planning Policy Statement 15. 
 

He reported that Environmental Health, Northern Ireland Water, BCC Tree 
Officers, BCC Parks and Recreation, DFI Roads Service, DFI Rivers Agency, Historic 
Environment Division (Historic Monuments), DAERA Water Management Unit, DAERA 
Regulation Unit and DAERA Natural Environment Division had raised no issues of 
concern, subject to conditions. 
 
 A Member asked for further information regarding the new inclusive, multi-age 
playground and whether it included a Changing Places facility.  The Planning Manager 
advised the Members that while those were not planning considerations that he would 
ask the Physical Programmes Department to provide the Member with further information 
in relation to the facilities which were to be included. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the wording of conditions. 
 
LA04/2020/0991/F - 3m high retaining wall and associated  
works at Colin Glen Forest Park 163 Stewartstown Road on  
lands north of Colin Glen Community Allotments opposite  
nos 27-29 Colinglen Road and accessed off Colinglen Road  
(Retrospective) 
 
 (Councillor Murphy returned to the meeting at this point in proceedings) 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the application which was in 
receipt of Council funding. 

Page 21



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1255 
 
 

 
The retrospective application was for a retaining wall to facilitate the new 

Toboggan run development at the Forest Park. The Members were reminded that 
planning permission for the Toboggan run development had been granted in April 2019 
(Ref: LA04/2018/2784/F). 

 
The Members were advised that the site was currently designated as existing 

open space in the adopted Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP) 2001 and Draft BMAP. 
The use as open space would remain as existing with the retaining wall located along the 
approved Toboggan run. 

 
The NIEA, Rivers Agency, and the Tree and Landscape team had been consulted. 

The Members were advised that NIEA had sought further information and, following the 
submission of this, had no concerns. The other consultees had no objections. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2020/2637/F - Single storey, stand-alone multi- 
purpose building and associated site works at Cregagh  
Primary School, Mount Merrion Drive 
 
 The Members considered the details of the Primary School application whereby 
the Council would be providing funding for the proposal. 
 

The Members were advised that the multi-purpose building would be a single 
storey with a flat roof and would comprise of two main rooms approx. 60sqm and 20sqm. 
Toilets and a storage area would be incorporated within the building. The associated site 
works included several raised planting beds and an area to be used as an outdoor 
playground for children. 

 
The application had been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press and 

no letters of representation were received. 
 

Environmental Health had been consulted and was content with the proposal, 
subject to an informative being placed on the decision relating to contaminated land.  DfI 
Roads had also been consulted and had offered no objection to the proposal. 
 

The Members noted that it had been assessed against and was considered to 
comply with the BUAP, Draft BMAP, and the SPPS, Addendum to PPS 6 and PPS 8. 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 

Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2021/0696/F - Development of 'Active Travel Hub',  
which includes the installation of a 9m x 2.5m shipping  
container, with modifications to accommodate an internal  

Page 22



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1256 
 
 

bike store, and a small office on hard standing adjacent  
to the car park and entrance to Whiterock Leisure Centre 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the application, whereby the 
Council was the landowner. The proposal was in association with the under-noted 
proposal for a mounted sign on a shipping container, under reference LA04/2021/0718/A. 
 

The proposed site was situated within Whiterock Leisure Centre and was 
designated as lands reserved for landscape, amenity or recreation use in the BUAP and 
as existing open space within both versions dBMAP and an urban landscape wedge.   
 

The Members were advised that the proposals would complement the existing 
Leisure Centre and its recreational use and would comply with the relevant policy and 
area designations. 
 

DFI Roads and Environmental Health had been consulted and had no objections 
and that no third party representations had been received. 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2021/0718/A - Mounted sign on face of a shipping  
container at Whiterock Leisure Centre 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the application, whereby the 
Council was the landowner. The proposal was in association with the above-noted 
proposal for an active travel hub, under reference LA04/2021/0696/F. 
 

The proposed site was situated within Whiterock Leisure Centre and was 
designated as lands reserved for landscape, amenity or recreation use in the BUAP and 
as existing open space within both versions dBMAP and an urban landscape wedge.   

 
The Members noted that the proposed advertisement would respect the amenity 

of the surrounding area and would not prejudice public safety.  DFI Roads had been 
consulted and had no objections and no third party representations had been received. 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 

Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2021/0735/F - Extension of public pavement area to  
create additional space for social distancing, to include  
sheltered structures, seating, planters and elements of  
incidental play on 8-83 Adelaide Street 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the Belfast City Council application 
for temporary planning permission, of two years, for the extension of the public pavement 
area. 

Page 23



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1257 
 
 

 
The site was located within the Linen Conservation Area and, overall, the proposal 

was thought to preserve the character and appearance of the area and would not be 
detrimental to the setting of nearby listed buildings, the amenity of neighbouring 
properties or harmful to highway safety. 

 
The application had been neighbour notified and had been advertised in the local 

press.  An objection had been received from the Department of Economy, raising concern 
over accessibility and loss of amenity. 
 

The Historic Environment Division (HED), Environmental Health and the 
Conservation and Heritage officer had been consulted and offered no objections. Whilst 
there was an outstanding consultation response from DFI Roads, it had indicated there 
was no objection in principle, subject to detailed design drawings which were currently 
being reviewed by Roads. 
 
 The Members’ attention was drawn to the Late Items report, where 
correspondence had been received from the Department for Communities, requesting 
further information on the footpath finishes and the management of street furniture.  
The Members were advised that the full specification was detailed on the plans and that 
the Council would maintain and manage all street furniture. 
 

A Member stated that she found it surprising that the Department for the Economy 
had objected to the proposal. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions, subject to no objection 
from DFI Roads. 
 
LA04/2021/0544/F - Installation of 6 projector units to  
create an interactive lighting installation along the  
hoarding of Brunswick Street on 5-11 Brunswick Street 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the Belfast City Council application 
for a temporary period of two years. It formed part of a citywide lighting strategy, 
undertaken by the Council, to create more welcoming, vibrant and safer places. 
 

The site was located within Belfast City Centre Conservation Area and, overall, 
the proposal was thought to enhance the character and appearance of the area and 
would not be detrimental to the amenity of neighbouring properties or harmful to highway 
safety. 

 
The application had been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press and 

no comments were received. DFI Roads and Environmental Health had been consulted 
and had offered no objections to the proposal.  

 

Page 24



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1258 
 
 

Whilst a consultation response from the Council’s Conservation and Heritage 
officer was outstanding, it was not considered that it presented any issue of principle, as 
the proposal was similar to other projector units that had already been approved in the  
Conservation Area, under references LA04/2019/2385/F and LA04/2019/2386/F. 
 

The proposal had been assessed against, and was considered to comply with, 
the SPPS, BUAP, Draft BMAP, PPS3 and PPS6. 

 
 The Members of the Committee recommend that, in accordance with the Council 
decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated authority to 
approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2021/0394/F - Floodlights (10m high) and ancillary  
equipment. Installation of scoreboard & water sprinkler  
system, replacement paths & fittings around bowling  
green at Balmoral Bowling Club 
 
 The Members were advised of the details of the Belfast City Council application. 
 
 The Members noted that the proposal involved the upgrade of an existing facility 
which would accord with one of the core planning objectives of the SPPS, to improve 
health and well-being.  The proposal complied with Policy OS7 of PPS8. 
 

Environmental Health was satisfied that the predicted level of light would not be 
obtrusive. DAERA Natural Environment Division was satisfied the floodlights would not 
harm bat or badger activity in the vegetated borders.  Northern Ireland Electricity (NIE) 
had initially advised that they had concerns that the floodlights might interfere with nearby 
overhead lines, however the applicant had been in discussions with NIE who had since 
confirmed that the proposal met the clearance distances. On that basis, no issue was 
raised. 
 

No third party representations had been received. 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

F1259 
 

Planning Committee  
 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
  
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
HELD REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

Members present: Councillor Carson (Chairperson); 
Councillors Brooks, Matt Collins,  
Garrett, Groogan, Hanvey, Hussey, 
Hutchinson, Maskey, McCullough, McMullan, 
Murphy, O’Hara and Whyte. 
 

In attendance:  Mr. A. Reid, Strategic Director for Place and Economy; 
   Mr. E. Baker, Planning Manager  
       (Development Management); 

Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor; 
Ms. E. McGoldrick, Democratic Services Officer; and 
Mrs. L. McLornan, Democratic Services Officer.  

 
 

Apologies 
 

 No apologies were reported. 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 Councillor Whyte declared an interest in item 2a, 12 - 30 Wellington Place and 
42 - 46 Upper Queen Street, in that he was previously employed by and retained a 
beneficial interest in a company which provided consultancy services to the company 
which owned the building.  He left the meeting for the duration of the discussion on the 
item and did not participate in the vote. 
 
 Councillor McCullough also declared an interest in item 2a, as a Member of his 
family worked for PwC, the tenant of the building.  He left the meeting for the duration of 
the discussion and did not participate in the vote. 
 
 Councillor Hussey declared an interest in Item 2b, Chancery House, in that he 
was a Member of the Bar Library, who had lodged an objection to the application, and so 
he left the meeting and did not participate in the vote. 
 

Miscellaneous Items 
 
Casement Park - Section 76 Consultation 
 
 The Members considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report and Summary of Main Issues 
 
1.1 This report was originally scheduled for consideration at the 

meeting of the Planning Committee members on 15 June. 

Page 27



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1260 
 

However, it was deferred to give Members more time to 
consider the report and documentation. It was also agreed to 
request that the Department for Infrastructure engages with 
local residents on the proposed S76 planning agreement. 
Officers have since put this request to the Department. 
The Department has also been invited to attend the meeting of 
the Planning Committee members on 24 June 2021 to field any 
questions that Members may have about the proposed S76 and 
process.  

 
1.2 The original report to the 15 June meeting is reproduced 

below. 
 
1.3 The Council has received correspondence from the 

Department for Infrastructure (the Department) in relation to 
planning application LA04/2017/0474/F for the redevelopment 
of Casement Park to provide a new stadium. The proposal is of 
regional significance and the application is being dealt with by 
the Department rather than Belfast City Council. 

 
1.4 In accordance with Section 76(3) of The Planning (Northern 

Ireland) Act 2011, the Department is consulting the Council, 
seeking its comments on the draft Section 76 Planning 
Agreement (S76) negotiated with the applicant, Ulster Gaelic 
Athletics Association (GAA). The draft S76 includes clauses 
relating to the appointment of a Stadium Manager, Travel Plan 
Co-ordinator, Event Safety Manager, Event Management 
Group and Traffic Management Contractors. There are also 
clauses regarding economic requirements for employment 
and ongoing monitoring. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Chief Executive, or her nominated 

officer, uses her delegated authority to offer no objection to 
the proposed S76 as set out in the Department’s letter of 
10 June 2021 and respond to any further changes to the 
proposed S76 Planning Agreement, provided that those 
changes are of a minor or technical nature.  

 
3.0 Main Report 
 
 Background 
 
3.1 The Council has received correspondence from the 

Department in relation to planning application 
LA04/2017/0474/F for the redevelopment of Casement Park to 
provide a new stadium (see Appendix 1). The proposal is of 
regional significance and the application is being dealt with by 
the Department rather than Belfast City Council. 

Page 28



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1261 
 

The Department is formally consulting the Council, seeking its 
views on the proposed S76 (see Appendix 2). The Department 
has given the Council six weeks to respond i.e. by 22 July 2021, 
hence reporting this matter to the Committee as a late item. 

 
3.2 The Council provided its substantive consultation response to 

the planning application in August 2017. The Planning 
Committee offered no objection to the application but made the 
following specific comments: 

 

 Further detailed cross sections through the entire site 
and surrounding properties were recommended 

 Further images to demonstrate impact on the skyline 
and key views were recommended 

 Greater certainty around travel, transport and traffic 
should be provided. 

 
3.3 The application was considered by the Planning Committee 

again in September 2019 following reconsultation. 
The Committee agreed to provide no further comments but 
that the Director of Planning and Building Control would write 
to the Department and recommend that the residents’ 
association known as MORA be given the opportunity to meet 
the Department and discuss their concerns. 

 
3.4 A final consultation was undertaken in February 2020 in 

relation to technical information regarding traffic and access. 
As the additional information was limited, the matter was dealt 
with under delegated powers with no further comment 
provided. 

 
3.5 The Department subsequently issued a Notice of Opinion in 

November 2020 advising of its intention to grant planning 
permission and listing the proposed conditions. The Planning 
Service responded to the Notice of Opinion advising that the 
Council is content for the Department to proceed with 
determination of the planning application.  

 
3.6 The Department further consulted the Council on 17 May 2021 

regarding proposed changes to conditions 14 and 36. 
The Department was seeking the Council’s agreement to these 
changes so that the drafting of the S76 could be finalised.  

 
3.7 The proposed changes were presented to the Committee in 

May 2021. No objections were offered and it was also agreed 
that delegated authority is given to officers to respond to any 
further changes to the proposed conditions, provided that 
those changes are of a minor or technical nature.  

 

Page 29



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1262 
 

3.8 The current consultation relates to the Department’s draft S76. 
The obligations contained in the draft S76 are as follows: 

 

 Appointment of a Stadium Manager; 

 Appointment of a Travel Plan Co-Ordinator; 

 Appointment of an Event Safety Manager; 

 Appointment of an Event Management Group; 

 Appointment of a Traffic Management Contractors; 

 Economic Development (clauses requiring at least 46 
Long-term unemployed and at least 27 apprentices to 
be employed in the construction of the development);  

 Submission of an Annual Performance Report, and; 

 Payment of an annual Service Contribution to the 
Department. 

 The draft agreement also sets out at Annex 7, the 
Resident Representative Appointment process to the 
Event Management Group. 

 
3.9 Additional documents attached as annexes to the draft S76 

and referred to in the above clauses (see Appendix 2) include: 
 

 The Event Management Plan 

 The draft Decision Notice 

 Sustainable Travel Plan 

 List of Travel Plan Co-ordinator duties 
 
3.10 It is considered that the the draft S76 addresses the key issues 

for a development of this scale including event management, 
traffic management, sustainable transport, sustainable 
employment and ongoing monitoring. 

 
3.11 Officers consider that the clauses are in principle appropriate, 

reasonable and necessary to ensure a satisfactory form of 
development. It should be for the Department’s legal advisors 
to advise of the appropriateness of the precise wording of the 
S76. 

 
3.12 It is recommended that the Chief Executive, or her nominated 

officer, uses her delegated authority to offers no objection to 
the proposed S76 as set out in the Department’s letter of 
10 June 2021, and respond to any further changes to the 
proposed S76 Planning Agreement, provided that those 
changes are of a minor or technical nature. 

 
4.0 Finance and Resource Implications 
 
4.1 None identified. 

  

Page 30



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1263 
 

 
5.0 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
5.1 None identified.” 

 
 The Members’ attention was drawn to the Late Items pack.  The Planning 
Manager explained that, following the meeting on 15th June, officers had written to the 
Department for Infrastructure, requesting that it would share the draft Section 76 
Agreement with residents to seek their views.  Officers had also asked a representative 
from DFI to attend the meeting on 24th June to answer any technical or procedural 
questions that Members might have had around the proposed Section 76 agreement. 
 

The Members were advised that the Department had responded on 21st June 
and advised that it would not be consulting the public on the proposed Section 76 
Agreement and that it had fulfilled its consultation duties in relation to the application in 
accordance with legislative requirements. The Department outlined that it had no 
objection to the Council seeking views from the public.  Unfortunately, due to other 
commitments, the Department was unable to attend the meeting. 
 
 The Planning Manager reported that the proposed Section 76 Agreement and the 
associated procedures had been considered by the Planning Service, Health and Safety 
(which was responsible for Safety Certificates for sporting venues), Building Control 
(which was responsible for large scale entertainment events) and Legal Services.  
He explained that it was considered that the proposed arrangements, including those 
relating to how local representatives were selected to sit on the Event Management 
Group were reasonable. In addition to local residents and businesses being represented, 
those statutory agencies responsible for safety at and around the venue were also 
proposed to be members of the Group. 
 

He outlined that a proposed amendment was suggested in relation to the Travel 
Plan Co-Ordinator Duties, set out in Annex 6 of the Agreement.  In terms of litter and anti-
social behaviour, the draft currently stated that the Travel Plan Co-Ordinator (‘TPC’) 
would be “required to deliver appropriate proposals as agreed with Belfast City Council 
to address these issues”.  It was recommended that this would be revised as follows: 
 

“The TPC will be responsible for putting in place arrangements to effectively 
deal with litter and any other anti-social behaviour associated with the 
operation of the venue in consultation with the EMG subject to any 
reasonable advice or requirements imposed by the Council in writing.” 
 
The Members were advised that, in relation to the substantive issue regarding 

public consultation, Legal Services noted that the legislation had clearly set out how it 
expected Planning Authorities to carry out public consultation in the course of determining 
a planning application. There was an express requirement for DfI to consult with a Council 
where it intended to enter into a Section 76 Agreement in its district, which was in addition 
to the standard consultation requirements.  In that context it was considered that 
embarking upon a non-statutory public consultation without any established process in 
place by which to do and in circumstances where the decision maker itself had carried 
out a consultation process, would leave the Council highly susceptible to legal challenge 

Page 31



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1264 
 

from both from the planning applicant and those dissatisfied with the consultation process 
devised by Council.  
 
 A Member stated that they had concerns in light of the fact that DFI would not be 
consulting the residents on the Section 76 Agreement, and that DFI had not been able to 
attend the meeting in order to discuss concerns.  He highlighted concerns with parking 
and the Event Management Plan.  He suggested that the Members could defer 
consideration of the Section 76 Agreement in order to request that a representative from 
DFI would attend a future meeting in order to discuss his concerns. 
 
 Further Members stated that the process had taken a significant period of time to 
date and that they were content with the contents of the Section 76 Agreement.  
 
 In response to further comments, the Planning Manager and the Divisional 
Solicitor advised the Members that they could submit separate comments to the 
consultation as elected representatives or as a Political Party. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to: 
 

 offer no objection to the proposed Section 76 Planning Agreement, as 
set out in the Department’s letter of 10th June 2021, subject to the 
proposed amendment in relation to the Travel Plan Co-Ordinator Duties 
as set out in the Late Items report; and  

 to respond to any further changes to the proposed Planning Agreement, 
provided that they were of a minor or technical nature. 

 
Listing of Various Structures 
 

The Planning Manager outlined that correspondence had been received from the 
Historic Environment Division (HED) regarding the proposed listing of 11 no. boundary 
markers.  He explained that Article 80 (3) of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 required that HED 
consulted with the Council before placing any building on the statutory list of buildings of 
special architectural or historic interest.  The Members were advised that the Department, 
based on the completion of detailed surveys, was considering the listing of the following 
11 boundary markers at: 

 

 Kensington Road, Tullycarnet, Belfast 

 Grosvenor Grammar School, Marina Park, Belfast 

 Orangefield Presbyterian Church, 464 Castlereagh Road, Belfast 

 Ladas Way/Ladas Park, Belfast 

 Glenside Bridge, Belmont Road, Belfast 

 84 Castlehill Road, Belfast 

 Near St Molua’s Church, Upper Newtownards Road, Belfast 

 Near ‘The Weir’, 276 Malone Road, Belfast 

 Outside 593-595 Falls Road, Belfast 

 Horse Shoe Bend, Crumlin Road, Ligoneil, Belfast; and 

 622 Ballysillan Road, Belfast. 
 

Page 32



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1265 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to offer no objection to the proposed listing of the structures.  
 
Planning Committee Training 
 
 The Members considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report and Summary of Main Issues 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee of 

NILGA’s 2021 Planning Training Programme for elected 
members (Appendix 1, available on mod.gov); seek permission 
for up to three Planning Committee members to participate in 
the full programme. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to: 
 

 note the appended NILGA 2021 elected member 
Planning Training Programme; and  

 approve the attendance of the Chair, Deputy Chair and 
up to one other member of the Planning Committee, or 
their nominees, to participate in the Programme. 

 
3.0 Main Report 
 
3.1 NILGA 2019 Planning Training Programme Invitation 
 
 NILGA has designed a regional elected member development 

programme for implementation during 2021/22 following on 
from the 2018 and 2019 programmes. The programme builds 
on the NILGA training initiative co-designed with the elected 
member development groups and the Regional Working 
Group. 

 
3.2 The overall NILGA elected member development programme 

includes a strand in respect of a Local Planning Programme 
for elected members, a copy of which is set out at Appendix 
One. NILGA has commissioned the seven module programme, 
which will run from September 2021 into March 2022 based on 
the experience form the previous experience and feedback. 
Each module will be held on a Friday afternoon with a 
proposed study trip in March 2022. At this stage the venue for 
the training has not been confirmed. 

 
3.3 The programme will be interactive in nature and have 

previously been delivered by a pool of planning practitioners. 
The programme will include short presentations; discussions; 

Page 33



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1266 
 

case studies and benchmarking practice in other jurisdictions; 
workshops with role play; question & answer sessions; and 
the optional site visit. 

 
3.4 A pre-requisite for the enrolment in the programme is that 

elected members who are nominated to attend must be in a 
position to complete all seven modules. Elected members who 
successfully complete the full programme, to a satisfactory 
standard, will be accredited with an endorsed Institute of 
Leadership and Management (ILM) development award. 

 
3.5 Finance and Resource Implications 
 
 The projected training costs associated with this report (£300-

475 per participant and potential additional optional Study 
Visit cost) can be met from existing training budgets. 

 
 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
3.6 There are no equality or good relations implications 

associated with this report.” 
 
 The Members of the Committee agreed to endorse the recommendations within 
the report. 
 
Request for a Special Meeting 
 
 The Members considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 Members of the Planning Committee are asked to agree to 

hold a Special, in-person, Planning Committee meeting in 
August to consider planning application LA04/2019/1540/F 
proposed Centralised Anaerobic Digestion facility at Dargan 
Road. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That Members agree to hold a Special, in-person meeting, at a 

date and time in August to be agreed in consultation with the 
Chairperson.  

 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 LA04/2019/1540/F - Centralised Anaerobic Digestion (CAD) 

plant to include a bunded tank farm, (6no. digester tanks, 2no. 
buffer tanks. 1no. storage tank and associated pump rooms), 
biogas holder, biogas conditioning system, temperature 

Page 34

http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208


 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1267 
 

control system, waste-water treatment plant (WWTP), motor 
circuit control room building, hot/cold water recovery system, 
feedstock reception and digestate treatment building, product 
storage building, odour control system and associated tanks, 
emergency gas flare, back-up boiler, administration/office 
building, car parking, 3no. Weighbridges, fire water tank and 
pump house, pipelines to existing combined heat and power 
(CHP) plant engines, switchgear earth bunding, 3no. accesses 
to existing Giant's Park Service road infrastructure and 
ancillary plant/site on lands to the northwest of existing 
Belfast City Council Waste Transfer Station, 2a Dargan Road 

 
3.2 Members will be aware that, under the current decision 

making arrangements, as agreed by the Council on 4th May 
2021, ‘for those decisions in respect of which the Chief 
Executive has a conflict of interest or which have a political 
sensitivity, she may decline to exercise delegated authority. 
Such decisions will be deferred until governance 
arrangements can be resumed or if necessary due to urgency 
through a physically convened meeting.’ 

 
3.3 Following a request from the applicant, the Chief Executive, in 

consultation with the Strategic Director of Place and 
Economy, has agreed that a Special, in-person, meeting will 
be held to consider the aforementioned planning application.  

 
3.4 As background, the application was submitted in June 2019 

and first brought to the Committee for its consideration in 
August 2020, where it was deferred, due to a late objection 
having been received and for the Committee to undertake a 
site visit. The application was brought back to the Committee 
in January 2021 and was deferred again, to allow a Non-
Mandatory Pre-Determination Hearing, which was held in 
February 2021. The application was brought back to 
Committee again in April 2021, where the Committee resolved 
for Planning Officers to consider proposals to refuse planning 
permission. 

 
3.5 Members of the Planning Committee are asked to agree to 

hold a Special, in-person, meeting in August to consider the 
application. It is proposed that the time and date for the 
meeting will be agreed in consultation with the Chairperson. 

 
3.6 The Planning Committee has two meeting dates scheduled in 

August.  Given that there are no meetings in July, there is 
likely to be a high volume of applications which are required 
to be considered on the meeting on Tuesday, 17th August.  

 
3.7 A Design and Conservation Member Training Workshop is 

currently scheduled to take place on Thursday, 19th August.  

Page 35

http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208


 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1268 
 

It is also felt that, if any applications cannot be considered due 
to time pressure on Tuesday 17th August, the Thursday can 
be used as a reserve meeting if necessary. Officers are 
therefore exploring the potential to hold the Special, in-
person, meeting on another date. 

 
 Financial & Resource Implications 
 
3.8 None identified. 
 
 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
3.9 None identified.” 

 
 The Planning Manager advised that the planning application for the CAD facility 
(LA04/2019/1540/F) would now likely be heard on Thursday 19th August 2021, being the 
reserve day for the Planning Committee. However, Members’ agreement was being 
sought for an additional meeting date in the event that it was required. 
 
 The Members of the Committee agreed to endorse the recommendations within 
the report. 
 
Issue Raised in Advance by a Member –  
Cllr Groogan  
 
 Councillor Groogan advised the Members that, at the meeting held on 15th June, 
a Planning Agent had made an inappropriate remark which appeared to have been made 
in reaction to her asking a question. 
 
 The Members of the Committee agreed to recommend that, in accordance with 
the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive, or her nominated officer, would 
exercise her delegated authority to send a letter to Turley Planning, reminding them that 
asking questions was an essential part of role the Members of the Planning Committee in 
order to scrutinise each planning application, and that agents should be mindful of their 
professional conduct at meetings. 
 

Planning Applications 
 
THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE CONSIDERED THE FOLLOWING 

ITEM IN ORDER TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
IN PURSUANCE OF THE POWERS DELEGATED TO HER BY THE COUNCIL  

ON 4TH MAY, 2021 
 
LA04/2020/1353/F - Erection of additional roof  
top plant, ventilation and ductwork (retrospective) at  
12 - 30 Wellington Place and 42 - 46 Upper Queen Street 

 
(Councillors McCullough and Whyte, having declared an interest in the item, left the 

meeting for the duration of the item and did not participate in the vote) 

Page 36



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1269 
 

 
 The Principal Planning officer provided the Members with the details of the 
retrospective application.  She reminded the Members that the full application was 
previously considered by the Planning Committee on 15th December, 2020. 
The Members were advised that the key issues were the impact on the setting of nearby 
Listed Buildings and the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 
She outlined that both Historic Environment Division (HED) and the Council’s 
Conservation Officer had expressed concerns and that the application was 
recommended for refusal.  At that meeting, the Committee had deferred the application 
to allow for further discussion of alternative options for the plant/plant screen.  
 

She explained that several meetings had been held between the applicant/agent, 
architects, HED, the Conservation Officer and the Planning Officers, and that the overall 
design of the proposal had evolved from the initial proposal, with all viable options for the 
plant having been considered.  The Members were advised that discussions had taken 
place to achieve a proposal which would serve the purpose required for the applicant and 
the tenants of the building, while minimising any potential impact on the setting of nearby 
listed buildings and the Belfast City Centre Conservation Area. 
 

The amendments to the original proposal included the following changes to the 
right-hand side of the pediment (of the Listed Scottish Provident building facing Donegall 
Square West): 

 

 the 3.1m high aluminium screen had been removed; 

 the Air Handling Unit (AHU) had been lowered and moved 1.5m 
away from Donegall Sq East, closer to the internal courtyard; 

 the high level (upper) duct from the AHU had been removed and 
repositioned lower at 

 roof level, reducing the overall height; and 

 the ducts had been moved away from Donegall Sq East, closer to 
the courtyard. 

 
The following change had also been included to the left-hand side of the pediment: 

 

 the high level (upper) duct from the second AHU, adjacent to 
Wellington Street, had been removed and repositioned and now 
ran behind the AHU rather than in front. 

 
The Principal Planning Officer reported that HED had been heavily involved in 

discussions with the agent and had played a major part in informing the amendments. 
She explained that HED’s main concern was the impact of the proposals on the setting 
of the Listed Scottish Provident Building and that HED had since advised that they were 
content with the proposals to remove the intrusive screen to the rooftop and also the 
proposed relocation of ductwork and a moveable / collapsible edge protection system. 
The Members were advised that HED’s final response had indicated that the proposal to 
remove the upper duct of the plant located to the left hand side of the Scottish Provident 
Building pediment was also welcomed. 
 

The Members were advised that the agent had provided additional information to 
HED including an image and CGI showing the mitigated impact of the removal of the 

Page 37



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1270 
 

upper duct on the Scottish Provident Building. HED had confirmed that they accepted 
that the removal of the upper duct would reduce the visual clutter of the roofscape of the 
application site, lessening the visual impact of the new roof on the backdrop of 
the Scottish Provident Building. She reported that, following on-site discussions with the 
agent, HED had noted that the relocation of the AHU plant could not be accommodated 
due to the complexities of the duct sizes, layout and existing service risers within the 
building.  In conclusion, HED recognised that the overall impact of the plant had been 
substantially softened and that the proposal had been greatly improved. HED clarified 
that extensive options had been explored and exhausted and that the current application 
illustrated the best realistic option considering the retrospective nature of the application. 
 
 The Conservation Officer had also welcomed that the plant/screen had been 
reduced to limit the impact on the historic buildings roof line, and that the plant/screen to 
the right hand side of the pediment had been greatly reduced to the point where it would 
be barely visible when viewed from within the grounds to the front of the City Hall and 
Donegal Square East. However, the Conservation Officer advised that the plant to the 
left hand side of the pediment remained prominently visible and would in their opinion, 
negatively impact on the setting of the Scottish Provident Building when viewed from 
Donegall Square East and within the grounds to the front of the City Hall. 
The Conservation Officer concluded that there would be an unavoidable negative impact, 
no matter how minimal as a result of the proposals but that it was recognised that the 
proposal had evolved positively from what existed and that all viable options had been 
explored to mitigate against the visual impact of the plant (including the AHU). 
The Conservation Officer noted that justification had been provided for the AHU 
remaining in its current location and appreciated the efforts made in producing a solution 
to what would be considered as a betterment to what currently existed. 
 

The Principal Planning officer reported that there was little room to move the plant 
in a practical or operational sense and an added complication was that a crane could not 
now reach the unit and that it would have to be manually jacked and skidded over the 
roof, which provided a significant health and safety risk, and such works would take 4-5 
weeks to complete.  It was reported that that part of the building would need to be closed 
down to facilitate the works. 

 
She outlined that, in considering all the information, together with the updated 

responses from both HED and the Conservation officer, Planning officers considered the 
proposal, on balance, to be acceptable.  She explained that it represented a significant 
improvement to what currently existed on the roof top of the building. 
 

The Members were advised that, having regard to the advice from HED, whilst it 
was considered that the proposal was not fully compliant with Policy BH11 of PPS 6, 
it was considered that all practicable options had been considered and that the setting of 
the Listed Scottish Provident building would not be unacceptably harmed or 
compromised.  

 
Whilst the proposal would fail to preserve or enhance the character or appearance 

of the Conservation Area, contrary to Policy BH12, she explained that the impact would 
not be significant. The Members were advised that the policy tests must be considered in 
the round, having regard to the economic considerations associated with the occupation 
of the office building for which the proposed plant would serve and the practicalities of 

Page 38



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1271 
 

servicing this building. In that context, the proposal was also considered acceptable 
having regard to Section 104 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
 She outlined that the officers’ recommendation to approve the application 
included a time bound condition requiring the applicant to complete the works in 
accordance with the approved plans within six months of the date of the permission. 
 
 The Chairperson welcomed Mr. M. Gordon, agent, to the meeting.  He advised 
the Committee Members that he wished to put on record his thanks to the Planning 
officers and to Ms. N. Donnelly, HED, for the opportunity to work through the issues with 
them. He added that, if approved today, the applicant intended to undertake the works 
almost immediately. 
 
 A Member queried why the original planning permission had not been adhered to 
and why it had been breached.  Mr. Gordon explained that the plant design had only been 
finalised after the planning permission was granted.  PwC, as the occupier, required very 
high performance requirements for a building which would be operational 24/7, and 
unfortunately they were constrained by the limited space available on the roof and there 
were certain areas where the plant had to be located.  He advised that he was aware that 
the situation was not satisfactory and that lesson had been learned throughout the 
process.  He advised the Members that the applicant had attempted to minimise the 
negative impacts as much as possible. 
 
 In response to a Member’s question in respect of the retrospective application, 
Ms. Donnelly, HED, advised that they looked at retrospective applications with the 
knowledge that they had already been built.  She outlined that, in HED's view, they would 
unlikely be able to sustain an objection to the proposal in the event of an appeal to the 
Planning Appeals Commission. Whilst the proposal did not quite comply with policy, they 
were mindful that the agent had taken steps to address the screen and the upper duct.  
She explained that their remaining concerns were around the Air Handling Unit and that 
it was disappointing that the plant top was built prior to their input but that HED recognised 
that the overall impact of the plant had been substantially softened and that the proposal 
had been greatly improved.  
 

Accordingly, the Chairperson put the officer’s recommendation, that, in 
accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would 
exercise her delegated authority to approve the application, subject to conditions, 
including a time bound condition to remedy the current situation on site and that she 
would finalise the conditions.  On a vote, eight Members voted for the proposal and four 
against and it was declared carried. 
 
LA04/2019/2653/F - Demolition of existing property  
and erection of a 9 storey building (overall height 37m)  
comprising a ground floor retail unit together with cycle  
parking and plant areas: and 8 floors of grade A office  
accommodation at Chancery House, 88 Victoria Street 
 
 (Councillors McCullough and Whyte re-joined the meeting at this point) 
 
  

Page 39



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1272 
 

 
(Councillor Hussey, having declared an interest in the item, left the meeting 

for the duration of the item and did not participate in the vote) 
 
 The Planning Manager reminded the Members that the application had been due 
to be considered by the Planning Committee in April 2021.  However, the Committee had 
deferred the application because Members had been unable to access all the relevant 
documents through the Planning Portal. The application was then scheduled to be 
considered by the Committee in May 2021, however, it was withdrawn from the agenda 
in light of further information having been received from the applicant. 
 
 The Members were advised that the application sought full planning permission 
for the construction of new 9 storey (37m tall) building comprising of ground floor retail 
space with 8 floors of Grade A office space above. The existing building had since been 
demolished under the terms of a previous planning permission which meant that the 
previous permission was extant in perpetuity. The current application followed Pre-
Application Discussions with officers. 
 

The Members were advised that the site already benefitted from an extant 
planning permission for the erection of a seven storey office building (Z/2011/0380/F) with 
retail use on the ground floor and offices above. The principle of retail and office 
development had already been established and was acceptable at the city centre 
location. The Planning Manager advised that the proposal would support jobs and 
contribute to the economy. 
 

He outlined the main issues which had been considered in the assessment of the 
proposal, including: 

 

 the principle of office and retail uses at that location 

 the demolition of the existing building; 

 the impact on the character and appearance of the area and ATC; 

 the impact upon the setting of nearby listed buildings;  

 the impact on amenity;  

 water infrastructure and flood risk; and  

 access and parking. 
 

He provided the Members with views of the following Listed Buildings which were 
in proximity to the site: 

 

 Old Town Hall (Grade B1) 

 Royal Courts of Justice (Grade A) 

 Nos. 161 – 163 Victoria Street and No. 2 Gloucester Street (Grade B1) 

 Former Northern Bank 108 – 110 Victoria Street (Grade B2) 

 Albert Clock Queen’s Square (Grade A) 
 

He outlined that the site was located within the development limits for the city, as 
designated within the BUAP, dBMAP 2004 and 2015 and was within the proposed 
Victoria & Oxford Street Area of Townscape Character (ATC). 
 

Page 40



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1273 
 

 In terms of its relationship with neighbouring buildings, it was considered that the 
impacts on outlook and natural light would not be significantly greater than those arising 
from the extant permission. 
 

He reported that HED had advised that the scale and design of the proposal had 
the potential to adversely impact on the setting of nearby listed buildings. However, 
officers considered that the scale and design of the building to be appropriate to its 
context, which included several substantial buildings in the area, and that the setting of 
listed buildings would not be harmed. 
 

The Members were advised that the proposal had been assessed against the 
SPPS, PPS 3: Access, Movement and Parking, PPS 4: Planning and Economic 
Development, PPS 6: Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage and Addendum, 
Areas of Townscape Character, PPS 15 Planning and Flood Risk. 

 
 The Planning Manager reported that there were additional confidential issues to 
consider which would be discussed with the Committee Members later in the meeting.   

 
He reported that objections had been received from third parties, citing issues 

around the excessive scale of the building, adverse impact on surrounding buildings and 
site access. 

 
The Bar Library Service objected to the scale and height of proposal and the 

potential impacts on neighbouring buildings, both listed and non-listed buildings.  
They also raised concern with respect to loss of light/privacy and proposed glazing on 
the party boundary wall.   

 
Similarly, the Law Society of Northern Ireland objected on heritage grounds. 

A report had been provided by Stelfox Conservation Consultants on behalf of the Law 
Society. The objection indicated that the proposal was in breach of planning policies for 
ATCs and raised concerns regarding excessive size and height, and that the proposal 
would have an adverse impact on surrounding buildings. referred to policies set out in 
PPS 6 and indicated that the proposal failed to satisfy policy. It also referred to the draft 
designation of the Victoria Street/Oxford Street ATC and the adverse impact of the 
proposal on the ATC.  It also assessed the potential impacts the proposal would have on 
the surrounding area and neighbouring listed buildings. The Law Society also had 
concerns about the impact of construction traffic and service deliveries on objectors’ 
properties and the impact of construction works on surrounding buildings. 

 
The Northern Ireland Courts and Tribunal Service had lodged concerns that the 

proposal was in breach of planning policies for ATCs; the excessive size and height would 
have an adverse impact on surrounding buildings; the impact of construction works on 
the structural stability of the Old Town Hall.  
 

Belfast Civic Trust objected to the height of the building and the choice of 
construction materials. They believed that the proposal was too high and wanted red brick 
to be used within the construction. 
 

The Members were advised that DfI Roads, NI Water, Rivers Agency and the 
NIEA had all been consulted and had no objection to the proposal. 

Page 41



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1274 
 

 
 The Chairperson welcomed Mr. G. Rolston, Clyde Shanks, who was representing 
Mr. D. Mulholland, Chief Executive of the Bar of Northern Ireland.  He outlined to the 
Members that:  
 

 they had raised concerns regarding the assessment of the height and 
scale of the proposal compared to how the approved 7 storey building 
was assessed; 

 the accuracy of the information which had been used by the Council to 
compare the height of the 9 storey building to the previously approved 
building; 

 it was a fundamental principle of the planning process that decision 
makers should behave consistently and, particularly so, where there had 
been no material change in policy since a previous decision; 

 where officers proposed to depart from a previous decision, there should 
be robust planning reasons for doing so and should eb clearly explained; 

 it was referenced in the committee report that a seven storey building 
was approved in August 2015, however, whilst approval was ultimately 
granted, the application had been submitted as an eight storey building; 

 during the process of the approved application, HED had considered the 
eight storey proposal unacceptable, under BH11 of PPS6, for reasons 
of the impact of the height, scale and massing of the proposed building 
on surrounding listed buildings; 

 the Councils’ Conservation officer agreed that an eight storey building 
would have an unacceptable impact on its surroundings; 

 the Planning officers had agreed with HED and insisted that the height 
of the building was reduced to seven storeys with the top two storeys to 
be set back and the applicant agreed to that; 

 that was the context in which the current application must be considered; 

 there was a conflict between the Planning officers’ position in August 
2015, where an eight storey was not considered acceptable on the site, 
and the current position, where a nine storey building was being 
recommended for approval; 

 they could find no justification for the change in position given there had 
not been a change in planning policy; 

 it was notable that HED had queried the Council’s position in regards to 
the nine storey building; 

 the Conservation officer still objected to the nine storey building which 
was consistent with their position during the processing of the approved 
planning application; 

 it would not be fair or reasonable for the current application to be 
approved in the absence of addressing the clear inconsistency between 
the processing of the two applications, and would leave it vulnerable to 
challenge; 

 they had concerns in respect of the measurements in the Committee 
report, whereby the seven storey building had a height of 28.7metres, 
with the plant hidden at the back of the roof and not visible from 
pedestrian level, and that the difference between the extant and the 
proposed building height was not 5.5metres but, in fact, 8.3metres; 

Page 42



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1275 
 

 the CGI image shown by officers of the approved building was not the 
correct image, it showed a six storey building with a single recessed 
storey on top, when the approved building was a five storey building with 
two recessed storeys on top; 

 they agreed with HED and the Conservation officer that the proposal was 
an unacceptable increase in height in respect of its immediate 
neighbours, the Bar Library, Law Society House and the listed Old Town 
Hall, and that the recommendation to approve the nine storey building 
was inconsistent with the position of Planning officers through the 
processing and determination of the approved seven storey building. 

 
The Chairperson then welcomed Ms. A. Wiggam, Turley, who were the agent for 

the application. She advised the Members that: 
 

 Conservation was about managing change and that buildings had to 
respond to the changing context around them in order to remain 
sustainable, contemporary and attractive; 

 the application site had the benefit of an implemented planning 
permission for a seven storey office building at 31.5metres in height;   

 the design responded to the immediate context of the site and its 
surroundings, and would improve the setting of the Old Town Hall 
through the development of a high quality design which defined the 
location with a building which added vibrancy to the important nodal 
point; 

 the contrast in scale, massing and the choice of materials between 
the Old Town Hall and the proposed development would allow the 
Old Town Hall to be read separately and ensure that the building 
retained its dominance onto Victoria Street, due to its proportions, 
materials and architectural detailing; 

 the proposals would provide 4,086 square metres of Grade A 
office/retail accommodation and would assist in addressing an 
identified need in the market place to serve indigenous businesses 
which were expanding and wanted to make the transition from a 
serviced office accommodation to a small office floor plate within the 
city centre; 

 it was estimated that, during the construction period, 150 jobs could 
be created over the 18 month build period and, once completed, the 
development could accommodate between 250 – 300 office workers, 
whose expenditure would assist in supporting retail and service 
outlets in the city centre; 

 the proposal was not reliant on funding from third parties and 
therefore could commence quickly following the grant of planning 
permission; and 

 there were no technical or environmental constraints that would 
preclude the redevelopment of the site, and the proposals largely 
accorded with current planning policy and with the Council’s City 
Centre Investment Plan. 

 
 A Member requested clarity regarding the difference in approach by officers in 
relation to what was deemed an acceptable height of the extant proposal and the current 

Page 43



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1276 
 

proposal, which was taller.  The Planning Manager advised the Members that the 
architectural approach to the current proposal was quite different to the extant design.  He 
stated that the current proposal was a more lightweight and elegant design that would sit 
more comfortably with the nearby listed buildings, as it was a more restrained backdrop 
building than the current approval. 
 
 A Member requested information from officers as to how the application met 
planning policy when policy stated that seven storeys was the maximum.  The Planning 
Manager advised the Members that if something was contrary to planning policy, the 
Planning Authority was still required to demonstrate that there would be demonstrable 
harm to the public interest resulting from the proposal.  The policy was to provide guidance 
on what may or may not be acceptable in the interest of the preservation of the character 
and appearance of the draft Area of Townscape Character.  He outlined that officers felt 
that there would be no overriding harm to the public interest because of the way that the 
building had been designed. 
 
 The information contained in the appendices associated with the item were 
restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act 
(Northern Ireland) 2014.  
 

 Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of the 
Press and public from the Committee meeting during discussion of the 
items as, due to the nature of the items, there would be a disclosure of 
exempt information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the 
Local Government Act (NI) 2014. 

 
 The Planning Manager provided the Committee Members with the issues which 
had been addressed within the restricted report and the appendices which had been 
circulated. 
 
 The Members received deputations from both objectors and the applicant in 
relation to the restricted report. 
  

 Resolved – That the Committee agreed to re-admit the members of the 
Press and public to the Committee meeting. 

 
 Moved by Councillor Groogan 
 Seconded by Councillor Collins 
 

 That, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercises her delegated authority to refuse the application due to 
the inappropriate scale, height and massing of the building, which would be 
harmful to the setting of the Listed Buildings contrary to Policy BH11 of PPS6; 
and was harmful to the character of the draft Area of Townscape Character, 
contrary to the PPS6 Addendum. 

 
 On a vote, five Members voted for the proposal and eight against and it was 
declared lost. 
 

Page 44



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1277 
 

 Accordingly, the Chairperson put the officer’s recommendation, that, in 
accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive be minded to 
approve the application, subject to the following conditions which were discussed during 
the restricted section of the meeting: 
 

1. that formal consultation be undertaken with objectors in relation to the 
restricted matters;  

2. that the proposed Section 76 Planning Agreement be drafted in 
consultation with those who spoke in relation to the restricted report; 
and 

3. that the application would be brought back to the Members of the 
Planning Committee for final agreement, to include the outcome of 
the formal consultation referenced above and presentation of the draft 
Section 76 Planning Agreement before a final decision is taken. 

 
 On a vote, eight Members voted for the proposal and five against and it was 
accordingly declared carried. 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Planning Committee 

 
      Tuesday, 10th August, 2021 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISIT – NOTE OF MEETING 
 
 Due to the ongoing pandemic, the following site visit was carried out in accordance 
with Public Health Agency guidance. 

LA04/2020/0847/F & LA04/2020/1208/DCA - Partial demolition and redevelopment 
of existing buildings to provide 16 apartments, communal bin store and 
landscaped communal garden at 25-29 University Road 

 
Member Present:       Councillor Hussey. 

 
 Officer in Attendance:  Ms. K. Mills, Principal Planning officer; and 
    Mr. N. Hasson, Case officer. 
 
 The Member and the officers convened at the site at 12.30 p.m. for the purpose 
of undertaking a site visit in respect of the application to allow the Member to acquaint 
himself with the location and the proposals at first hand. 
 
 The Member viewed the site with the proposed plans. 
 
 The visit concluded at 12.50 p.m. 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 47

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 3
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.



This page is intentionally left blank



1. 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 17 AUGUST 2021 
 

APPEALS NOTIFIED 
 
     COUNCIL:  BELFAST 
 
 
 
ITEM NO 1 PAC REF:   

 
2021/A0050 
 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2020/2136/F 

 
  

    
APPLICANT: Mr James Taylor  
    
LOCATION: 24 Deramore Gardens, Belfast   
    
PROPOSAL: Rear and side extension to dwelling, retrospective  
   
PROCEDURE:   

 
ITEM NO 2 PAC REF:   

 
2021/A0024 
 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2020/1687/F 

 
  

    
APPLICANT: Mr Conor Rooney, OTMNI Limited  
    
LOCATION: Old Pump House, N8 Balmoral Park, BT10 0QD Infill site 

located between 8 and 9 Balmoral Park, BT10 0QD 
  

    
PROPOSAL: Redevelop and build single infill dwelling on an urban gap, 

brownfield site, site located between 8 and 9 Balmoral Park 
 

   
PROCEDURE:   

 
ITEM NO 3 PAC REF:   

 
2021/A0056 
 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2016/0559/F 

 
  

    
APPLICANT: Mr Patrick Kearney, Kilmona Property Limited  
    
LOCATION: Site at the junction of Stewart Street/East Bridge Street and 

west of Central Station, East Bridge Street, Belfast 
  

    
PROPOSAL: Proposed construction of 4 No separate blocks of office 

development (block A 10 No storey, block B 14 No storeys, 
blocks C and D 3 No storeys).  Proposal also includes 4 No 
retail units, plant and car parking at lower ground floor levels 
with external plaza and associated landscaping 

 

   
PROCEDURE:   

Page 71

Agenda Item 4



2. 
 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 17 AUGUST 2021 
 

APPEALS NOTIFIED (CONTINUED) 
 

 

ITEM NO 4 PAC REF:   
 

2021/A0059 
 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2020/2477/F 

 
  

    
APPLICANT: Mr Sebastian Rogala  
    
LOCATION: Flat 2, 205 Albertbridge Road, Belfast   
    
PROPOSAL: Use of flat 2 (first and second floor flat), 205 Albertbridge 

Road, Belfast 
 

   
PROCEDURE:   

 
ITEM NO 5 PAC REF:   

 
2021/A0057 
 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2020/2200/F 

 
  

    
APPLICANT: Mr Ian Layford, Durnos UL Ltd  
    
LOCATION: 8-10 Clarence Street, 27-37 Linenhall Street and existing car 

park at the corner of Linenhall Street and Clarence Street, 
Belfast 

  

    
PROPOSAL: Demolition of Nos 27 to 37 Linenhall Street and Nos 80-10 

Clarence Street and erection of 7 storey office building 
 

   
PROCEDURE:   

 
ITEM NO 6 PAC REF:   

 
2021/A0062 
 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2021/0350/LDE 

 
  

    
APPLICANT: Harry Gannon  
    
LOCATION: 76 Bloomfield Avenue, Belfast   
    
PROPOSAL: House in Multiple Occupancy  
   
PROCEDURE:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



3. 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 17 AUGUST 2021 
 

APPEALS NOTIFIED (CONTINUED) 
 
 
ITEM NO 7 PAC REF:   

 
2021/A0064 
 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2020/1836/F 

 
  

    
APPLICANT: Ian Hawthorne  
    
LOCATION: Rear gardens to 158/160 Barnetts Road, Belfast, BT5 7BE   
    
PROPOSAL: Retrospective approval for garage  
   
PROCEDURE:   

 
ITEM NO 8 PAC REF:   

 
2021/E0006 
 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2019/0276/CA 

 
  

    
APPLICANT: E A Lonergan  
    
LOCATION: Land at 376 Upper Newtownards Road, Belfast   
    
PROPOSAL: Without the grant of planning permission the alleged 

installation of 3 unauthorised extraction vents on the rear 
elevation of the building 

 

   
PROCEDURE:   

 
ITEM NO 9 PAC REF:   

 
2021/A0080 
 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2020/2201/CA 

 
  

    
APPLICANT: Mr Ian Layford, Dumos UK Ltd  
    
LOCATION: 8-10 Clarence Street, 27-37 Linenhall Street and existing car 

park at the corner of Linenhall Street and Clarence Street, 
Belfast 

  

    
PROPOSAL: Demolition of Nos 27-37 Linenhall Street and Nos  

8-19 Clarence Street and erection of 2 storey building 
 

   
PROCEDURE:   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



4. 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 17 AUGUST 2021 
 

APPEAL DECISIONS NOTIFIED 
 
 

ITEM NO 1 PAC REF: 2020/E0048 
  
PLANNING REF: LA04/2016/0112/CA 
  
RESULT OF APPEAL: WITHDRAWN 
  
APPLICANT: Mr Sean Matthews 
  
LOCATION: Land or premises at 25 Colinglen Road, Ballycullo Tom of the Tae-End, 

Dunmurry, Antrim, BT17 0LR 
  
PROPOSAL: 1.  The alleged unauthorised change of use of the land to facilitate sales of 

fuel and associated mobile unit/office.  2.  The alleged unauthorised erection 
of floodlighting, fuel pipeline, fuel pumps and lean to cover structure, 
underground overflow tank, retaining wall and site boundary fence in 
association with the unauthorised change of land.   

 

 
 
 

Page 74



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2019/0054/F LOCDEV At edge of public footpath  7m North of the junction of  Millfield & 

Samuel Street  Belfast  BT1 1JE.

20m telecommunications mast, with shroud enclosed antenna and associated 

works including 3No. equipment cabinets (in substitution for planning 

La04/2018/1472/F).

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2019/1104/F LOCDEV Lands situated at Gainsborough Drive south of  Alexandra Park 

Avenue and west of  North Queen Street  Belfast.

Residential development of 28No. semi-detached dwellings, landscaping, private 

amenity space, on street parking and private parking and associated site works.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2019/1231/DC LOCDEV Lands bounded by Bedford Street INI Building  McClintock Street 

and  Franklin Street  Belfast  BT2 7GP.

 Discharge of condition LA04/2015/0264/F &  LA04/2015/0094/LBC CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2019/2256/F LOCDEV Lands North of  21 Middle Braniel Road  Belfast  BT5 7TU. Retrospective application for change of use from agricultural land to a 

hardstanding for agricultural purposes on lands within the curtilage of the active 

farm holding at 21 Middle Braniel Road. (Additional information - Drainage 

Assessment)

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2019/2285/F LOCDEV Lands at the corner of  Little York Street and  Little Patrick 

Street  adjacent to  123 York Street  14 Little Patrick Street and 

opposite  23-33 Little York Street  Belfast.

Proposed 12 storey building to provide an extension to the purpose built 

management student accommodation (PBMSA) development currently under 

construction at 123 York Street (Ref:Z/2015/0177/F0. Development comprises 94 

No. student accommodation rooms with communal living rooms/kitchens, 

associated office space and all other site works.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2019/2387/F MAJDEV Land adjacent to Quay Gate House  15 Scrabo Street  Belfast  

BT5 4D: footpaths and public realm at Scrabo Street  Station 

Street and Middlepath Street.

Residential development comprising 151 apartments and ancillary uses including; 

management suite, communal space, reception area and servicing 

(refuse/recycling/bicycle storage) and plant equipment; and associated car 

parking and public realm improvements to Scrabo Street, Station Street and 

Middlepath Street.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2019/2553/F LOCDEV Land to the rear of 532-556 Shore Road  Belfast  BT15 4BL Application to vary Conditions 12 & 13 (Landscape Proposals and Management 

Plan) of Z/2013/1460/F (11 no. residential dwellings consisting of 3 detached and 

8 semi-detached)

PERMISSION GRANTED

Planning Decisions Issued between 8 June and 9 August 2021

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 5



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2019/2592/F LOCDEV 93 Hillhead Crescent  Belfast  BT11 9FW Demolition of existing dwellings and construction of apartment development 

comprising 6 units.

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2019/2982/F LOCDEV 2 Cherryvalley Park  Belfast  BT5 6PL Proposed partial demolition of rear extension to existing nursing home with 

erection of 2no. 2 and half storey terraced dwellings with alterations to existing 

parking layout, site works and landscaping.

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/0311/LDE LOCDEV 45 Ulsterville Gardens  Belfast  BT9 7BA. Change of use to HMO. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2020/0403/LDE LOCDEV 270B Antrim Road  Belfast  BT15 5AA House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2020/0483/A LOCDEV Land to a section of existing Tesco car park  Ballygomartin Road  

Belfast  BT13 3LD

Installation of 1no freestanding totem sign PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/0517/F LOCDEV Circular Road SW Adjacent to  299 Holywood Road  Belfast  

BT4 2EX.

The installation of a 20 metre Apollo streetpole with 6No. antennas (3no. enclosed 

within a shroud) 2No. equipment cabinets, 1No. metre cabinet and ancillary 

apparatus/works.

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/0539/F LOCDEV On the grass verge of Belvoir Road  Approx. 117m South West of 

Newtownbreda Baptist Church  43 Newtownbreda Road  Belfast  

County Down  BT8 7BQ (NGR: E 146914  N 525077).

Installation of a 20 metre Apollo streetpole with 6No. antennas (3no. enclosed 

within a shroud) 2no. equipment cabinets, 1no. meter cabinet and ancillary works.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/0546/F LOCDEV Upper Knockbreda Road SW  In front of 35/33 Upper Knockbreda 

Road  Belfast  County Antrim  BT6 0NA

The installation of a 20 metre Apollo streetpole with 6no. antennas (3no. enclosed 

within a shroud) 2no. equipment cabinets, 1no. meter cabinet and ancillary 

apparatus/works.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/0594/DC LOCDEV 144 Upper Springfield Road  Hannahstown  Belfast  BT17 0LZ. Discharge of condition no. 2 of LA04/2018/2539/F (privacy screen) CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2020/0799/F LOCDEV 32-60 South Link  Belfast  BT11 8GX. Change of use from ancillary accommodation to provide new open office space 

and kitchenette. Alterations to rear elevation to provide new rear door and window 

to WC.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 76



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2020/0850/F LOCDEV Lands at and surrounding 1a Deerpark Road & 372-382a Oldpark 

Road  and to the north west and west of 384-404 Oldpark Road  

Belfast

Erection of 17 one bedroom and 14 two bedroom apartments, in two blocks (31 

units in total), with associated parking, amenity space and landscaping with 

access from Oldpark Road.

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/0867/F LOCDEV Beside entrance to Great Northern Mall  Great Victoria Street  

Belfast.

ATM Kiosk PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/0917/F LOCDEV Public footpath on the Lagmore Road set 24metres South West of 

No. 2 Teeling Avenue.

Proposed bus shelter. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/0932/F LOCDEV 27 Viewfort Park  Belfast  BT17 9JY. Detached infill dwelling (AMENDED REDLINE AND PLANS) PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/0935/F LOCDEV Outside 144 Upper Newtownards Road  Belfast  County Down  

BT43EQ.

The installation of a 20 metre Apollo streetpole with 6no. antennas (3no enclosed 

within a shroud) 2no. equipment cabinets, 1 no. meter cabinet and ancillary 

apparatus/works.

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/0954/F LOCDEV Beside entrance to Great Northern Mall  Great Victoria Street  

Belfast.

Coffee Kiosk. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/0991/F LOCDEV Colin Glen Forest Park 163 Stewartstown Road  on lands north of 

Colin Glen Community Allotments  opposite nos 27-29 Colinglen 

Road and accessed off Colinglen Road  Belfast  BT17 0HW

Erection of maximum 3m high retaining wall and associated works (retrospective) PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/0995/F LOCDEV Lands approx. 40M South of No  77 Edenderry Road  Edenderry 

Village  BT8 8JN.

Residential development comprising 1No. detached dwelling with garage and 

including associated road works and landscaping.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1074/F LOCDEV 208 Tates Avenue  Belfast  BT12 6ND Replacement of waste collection unit. PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 77



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2020/1112/LBC LOCDEV 43-45 Malone Road  Belfast  BT9 6RX. Removal of condition 3 of planning approval LA04/2018/1747/F and rear single 

storey extension for staff facilities and extractor flue.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1179/F LOCDEV 250-252 Woodstock Road  Belfast  BT6 9DL. Demolition of existing buildings and construction of new 3 storey building 

comprising 6 residential apartments

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1191/F LOCDEV 25 Bawnmore Road  Belfast First floor extension above existing ground floor to side of dwelling and elevation 

changes.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1287/F LOCDEV 73 Eglantine AvenueBelfastand parking spaces at 79 Eglantine 

AvenueBelfast

Alteration and extension of existing property to provide 8 apartments PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1323/F LOCDEV 34 Cyprus Avenue  Belfast BT5 5NT. Single storey rear extension.(amended Plans) PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1341/F LOCDEV 601- 605 Lisburn Road  Belfast  BT9 7GS Proposed change of use from offices to retail at ground floor and 8no. apartments 

at first and second floors (including demolition of internal walls, stairwell and rear 

wall window openings). Includes elevation changes at first and second floor and 

external roof terrace.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1353/F LOCDEV 12-30 Wellington Place and 42-46 Upper Queen street  Belfast  

BT1 6FX

Erection of additional roof top plant, ventilation and ductwork (retrospective) 

(amended description)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1379/F LOCDEV 39 Osborne Park  Belfast  BT6 9JP Demolition of existing coach house and single storey rear extension erection of 

single storey side and rear extension.  Internal alterations and associated 

landscaping removal of existing roof lights to form 2no. box dormers to rear 

elevation.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1382/DCA LOCDEV 39 Osborne Park  Belfast  BT9 6JP Demolition of existing coach house and single storey rear extension.  Partial 

demolition as part of internal alterations, removal of existing roof lights to rear 

elevation.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1412/F LOCDEV 68 University Street  Belfast  BT7 1HB Conversion of main building into three 1 bedroom apartments and construction of 

new three storey rear return incorporating three 1 bedroom serviced apartments.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 78



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2020/1456/DCA LOCDEV 34 Cyprus Avenue  Belfast  BT5 5NT Demolition of single storey kitchen area measuring 20.5m Removal of utility 

external and internal wall to incorporate new kitchen design

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1471/LBC LOCDEV 68 University Street  Belfast  BT7 1HB Conversion of main building into three 1 bedroom apartments and construction of 

new three storey rear return incorporating three 1 bedroom serviced apartments.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1560/F LOCDEV Strathmore Park Streetworks -  Footpath on Antrim Road  At 

junction with Strathmore Park (South-West side)  Belfast  County 

Antrim. BT15 5HH.

The installation of a 17.5 meter Apollo streetpole with 6no. antennas, a GPS 

Module, 2no. equipment cabinets, 1no. Meter cabinet and ancillary equipment.

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/1565/F LOCDEV Ground Floor  106 Joy Street  Belfast  BT2 8LG. Change of use of existing unit to hot food restaurant with takeaway with installation 

of window to front elevation.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1574/F LOCDEV South of Crosscollyer St Church & SW of 122 Mountcollyer Ave on 

Footpath on Limestone Road  Belfast  BT15

The installation of a 20 metre Apollo streetpole with 6no. antennas (3no enclosed 

within a shroud) 2no. equipment cabinets, 1no. meter cabinet and ancillary 

apparatus/works.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1652/LBC LOCDEV Hampton House  8 Glenmachan Park  Ballyhagan  Belfast  BT4 

2PJ.

Internal alteration works to the existing listed building Hampton House (8 

Glenmachan Park) to include new gas stoves fitted into existing fireplace 

openings, alterations to proposed internal room arrangements in utility room and 

bedrooms and new bathroom fixtures and  fittings.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1675/DCA LOCDEV 25 Bawnmore Road  Belfast. Partial demolition of roof and walls to accommodate second floor extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1726/F LOCDEV Belfast Celtic FC  Glen Road Heights  Belfast  BT11 8RB New 3G pitch in revised position with floodlights, dug outs, turnstiles, 1.2m fence 

to pitch and associated ground works (previous approved application 

Z/2013/1485/F). (Amended Plans)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1735/F LOCDEV Shed Restaurant  467 Ormeau Road  Belfast  BT7 3GR Variation of Condition 3 of planning approval LA04/2020/0531/F to extend the 

hours of operation (AMENDED DESCRIPTION)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1750/F LOCDEV 26 Colenso Parade  Belfast  BT9 5AP Single storey rear extension. Change of roof type from hipped to pitched to 

facilitate rear dormer and gable window.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 79



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2020/1909/F LOCDEV 9 Fairway Avenue  Belfast  BT9 5NL. Single storey rear extension with patio and steps to rear garden, bay window to 

the front (amended plans).

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1938/F LOCDEV One Advantage Way  Ballygomartin Road  Belfast  BT13 3LZ Proposed replacement of existing shredder and baler.  New modern equipment 

operates at reduced noise level to existing machinery.  No change to current 

business operations.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1963/F LOCDEV 1 Randal Park  Belfast  BT9 6JJ Two storey rear extension, rear dormer and rooflights. (amended description) PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/1975/LDP LOCDEV To the rear of  131 Lower Braniel Road  Castlereagh  Belfast. Use of buildings and land for allotments for growing food. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2020/2024/F LOCDEV 5 Lockview Road  Belfast  BT9 5FH Change of use from hairdressing salon to cafe and amalgamation with existing 

adjoining cafe; replacement shop front and new external seating area with awning 

and support frame.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2029/DC LOCDEV Highgrove Meadows  Ballymurphy  Belfast  BT13 3FX. Discharge of condition no. 10 of LA04/2019/2482/F (Management Plan) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2020/2075/F LOCDEV Lands to the rear of  18 The Cottages  Upper Springfield Road  

Belfast  BT17 0NB.

Two storey dwelling and detached garage. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2083/LDE LOCDEV 2 Gransha Drive  Belfast BT11 8AL The building works (including a ground floor extension to the dwelling's original 

kitchen and a first floor extension to the original bathroom.) were substantially 

completed and in use more than five years before the date of this application 

(summer 2015).

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2020/2101/F LOCDEV Units A5  A6 and A7 Portview Trade Centre  310 Newtownards 

Road  Belfast  BT4 1HE

Change of use from storage units to microbrewery extension to include a visitor's 

centre comprising restaurant, public bar/ tap room, tasting area, exhibition space 

and ancillary areas.  Alterations to west elevation to create a new doorway and 

installation of external extraction system.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 80



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2020/2102/LBC LOCDEV Units A5  A6 and A7 Portview Trade Centre  310 Newtownards 

Road  Belfast  BT4 1HE

Creation of doorway into west elevation.  Installation of external extraction 

system. Creation of openings in partition wall between Unit A5 and Unit A6 to 

provide doorway link and glazed screen. Internal reconfiguration with new stud 

walls.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2116/F LOCDEV 10 Hawthornden Gardens  Belfast  BT4 2HF Proposed 2 Storey Extension to Rear of Dwelling. Demolition of Existing Garage 

and Erection of Single Storey Extension to Side of Dwelling.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2125/F LOCDEV 4 Ballygowan Road  Belfast  BT5 7LL Change of use of first floor from hypnotherapy clinic to a 2 bedroom apartment 

with rear balcony.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2139/A LOCDEV Gable of Hatfield Bar  130 Ormeau Road  Belfast  BT7 2EB. Paper advertising panel. PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/2170/F LOCDEV 2 + 4 Willesden Park  Belfast. Demolition of existing semi detached houses and construction of two replacement 

semi detached houses. Construction of new boundary wall and railing to Willesden 

Park.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2172/DCA LOCDEV 73 Eglantine Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6EW Demolition of rear returns and conservatory. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2174/F LOCDEV 14 Harberton Crescent  Belfast (Plot 129  Harberton Park 

Development)

Retrospective application for repositioning of detached dwelling within the plot to 

permit relocation of the driveway from south to north of the dwelling.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2189/F LOCDEV 236-238 Malone Road  Belfast  BT9 5LR Construction of 9 Apartments PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2195/F LOCDEV Lands approximately 25 metres South of No. 25 Harberton Park  

Belfast

Access, car park and additional 3 spaces with associated pathway to facilitate 

development approved under LA04/2017/1394/F (Amended Description)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2200/F MAJDEV 8-10 Clarence Street  27-37 Linenhall Street and existing car park 

at the corner of Linenhall Street and Clarence Street  Belfast.

Demolition of Nos. 27 to 37 Linenhall Street and Nos. 8-10 Clarence Street and 

erection of seven storey office building.

PERMISSION REFUSED

P
age 81



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2020/2201/DCA LOCDEV 8-10 Clarence Street  27-37 Linenhall Street and existing car park 

at the corner of Linenhall Street and Clarence Street  Belfast

Demolition of Nos. 27 to 37 Linenhall Street and Nos. 8-10 Clarence Street and 

erection of seven storey office building.

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/2211/F LOCDEV McGs Kitchen Bar  131-133 Kingsway  Dunmurry  Belfast  

BT17.

External tent structure and external seating area (AMENDED DESCRIPTION) PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2216/F LOCDEV Lands in front of Calvert House  23 Castle Place  Belfast BT1 

1GB

Replacing existing kiosk with upgraded kiosks which includes covered area. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2217/F LOCDEV 35 Hawthornden Road  Belfast  BT4 3JW Proposed replacement dwelling and attached garage. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2246/DCA LOCDEV 1 Randal Park  Belfast  BT9 6JJ. Replacement main roof. Demolition of rear elevation to allow for proposed 

extension.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2253/LDE LOCDEV 167 Stranmillis Road  BT9 5AJ House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2020/2270/F LOCDEV 312 Stranmillis Road  Belfast  BT9 5EB Two Storey Side Extension with Alterations to Side and Rear Elevations to Create 

Additional Window Openings. Associated Works to New Front Porch Area.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2347/F LOCDEV Victoria House  15-17 Gloucester Street  Belfast  BT1 4LS External alterations including new entrance canopy and sliding double doors on 

Gloucester Street elevation

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2348/A LOCDEV Victoria House  15-17 Gloucester Street  Belfast  BT1 4LS Facia sign and projecting signs x2 PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2377/A LOCDEV 72 Tates Avenue  Belfast  BT9 Advertising signage on side elevation of property PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/2392/F LOCDEV Lands south of 11-15 Castlekaria Manor and north of 12 Castlehill 

Park  Castlehill Road  Belfast

Proposed construction of 7no. dwellings (change of house type at sites 4, 6, 7, 8, 

10, 11 & 21 from that approved under planning application LA04/2015/0670/F) 

with associated car parking and landscaping.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 82



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2020/2426/F LOCDEV 114 Bloomfield Avenue  Belfast  BT5 5AE Proposed change of use from Salon to a single dwelling house with 3 bedrooms 

and 2 bathrooms.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2458/F LOCDEV 21 Windsor Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6EE Proposed renovation of existing dwelling with partial demolition of kitchen roof and 

wall panels also conservatory.  Internal and external restoration

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2465/LBC LOCDEV 21 Windsor Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6EE. Proposed renovation of existing dwelling with partial demolition & restoration of 

noted built elements.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2469/F LOCDEV Land covering the road surface on Brunswick Street between the 

James Street South junction and Franklin Street Junction.

Pedestrianised public space to include cafe/bar/storage container/canopy areas, 

performance stage, outdoor seating and associated works (temporary 

permission).

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2476/RM LOCDEV Site adjacent to no3 Wilmont Park  Dunmurry  Belfast  BT17 

9JW

Proposed detached dwelling PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2477/F LOCDEV Flat 2  205 Albertbridge Road  Belfast  BT5 4PU Use of flat2 (1st & 2nd floor flat), 205 Albertbridge Road, Belfast as a House in 

Multiple Occupation (HMO)

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/2480/F LOCDEV 84 Squires View  Belfast Proposed change of house type from previously approved LA04/2016/1839/F PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2485/F LOCDEV 4 Lepper Street  Belfast  BT15 2GM. 2 Storey rear extension. PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/2490/DC LOCDEV Lands at Kings Hall Complex  Lisburn Road  Bamoral  Belfast  

BT9 6GW

Discharge of condition no18 of planning approval LA04/2019/1254/f CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2020/2491/F LOCDEV 27 Braniel Park  Belfast  BT5 7JL Two storey rear extension, single storey side extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2494/RM LOCDEV 93-95 Castlereagh Road  Belfast  BT5 5FE. Demolition of existing building and construction of 6 apartments and associated 

bin and cycle store.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2496/F LOCDEV 95 Malone Road Lower   Belfast  BT9 6SP. Single storey side extension; single storey rear extension; porch extension to 

front; dormers to front and rear; new slate roof finish and rendering of dwelling. 

(amended description and plans)

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 83



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2020/2510/LDE LOCDEV 105  Malone Road  Belfast  BT9 6SP. House in multiple occupation (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2020/2519/DC LOCDEV 261-263 Crumlin Road  Belfast  BT14 7ED Discharge of condition no. 11 and no. 12  of Z/2012/0372/F (Archaeological 

conditions)

CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2020/2528/LDE LOCDEV 15 Tates Avenue  Belfast  BT9 7BY House in multiple occupation (HMO) APPLICATION REQUIRED

LA04/2020/2544/F LOCDEV 48 Downshire Road  Belfast  BT6 9JL. Single storey extension to rear, single storey porch extension to front, raise height 

of main roof by 0.7m; replacement of windows; demolition of existing garage and 

replacement single storey garage/garden room; new access to Rosetta Road 

East.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2546/F LOCDEV 58 Stirling Gardens  Belfast  BT6 9LW. Proposed single storey garage extension to side; new vehicular access. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2558/DC LOCDEV 141 & 149 Upper Newtownards Road  Belfast  BT4 3HX. Discharge of condition no. 17 of LA04/2019/2334/F (boundary treatment) CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2020/2571/DC LOCDEV 95 Crumlin Road and site of (formerly) 1-7 Cliftonpark Avenue  

Belfast BT14 6AD

Discharge of condition no. 2 of LA04/2016/2532/F (phasing plan) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2020/2576/LBC LOCDEV 70 Donegall Pass  Belfast  BT7 1BU Change of use from offices to 3no apartments with internal refurbishment and 

elevations changes to rear return (internal refurbishment to include removal of 

some internal walls and formation of new openings)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2583/F LOCDEV Ground Floor (Units B C  D  E  F) The Soloist Building  1 

Lanyon Place  Belfast  BT1 3LP

Proposed change of use of ground floor (units B,C,D, E & F) from restaurant/cafe 

to office accommodation with outdoor cycle parking (Amended Description)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2593/DC LOCDEV 7 Mornington  Annadale Avenue  Belfast. Discharge of condition no. 2 of LA04/2018/0089/F (badger survey report) CONDITION DISCHARGED

P
age 84



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2020/2604/F LOCDEV Land at (to the south of)  29 Colinglen Road  BT17 0LR. Change of use of the land to allow for the display and sale of motor vehicles (sui 

generis)

PERMISSION REFUSED

LA04/2020/2605/F LOCDEV Lamh Dhearg CLG  168 Upper Springfield Road  Belfast  BT17 

OLZ.

aErection of spectators stand (with 253 seats, 2 wheelchair spaces with 

associated access facilities).

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2620/LBC LOCDEV Euston Street Primary Scholl  Euston Street  Belfast  BT6 9AG Replacement of windows to listed building PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2629/NMC LOCDEV Land adjacent to east of 1-13 Lewis Park and 2-20 Lewis Mews  

Belfast  BT4 1FY

NMC to LA04/2018/0916/F NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED

LA04/2020/2630/NMC LOCDEV Lands adjacent and East of 1-3 (odds) Lewis Park and 2-20 Lewis 

Mews  Belfast

Non Material change - LA04/2019/1285/F NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED

LA04/2020/2634/F LOCDEV 35 Langley Street  Town Parks  Belfast  BT13 3GG Proposed three storey apartment block to accommodate 1no. one bedroom 

apartment and 2no. two bedroom apartments with amenity space + 3no. two 

storey, two bedroom houses with rear gardens.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2020/2637/F LOCDEV Cregagh Primary School  Mount Merrion Ave  Belfast  BT6 0FL Proposed single storey, stand-alone multi-purpose building and associated site 

works

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0013/A LOCDEV Boucher Centre  Boucher Crescent  Belfast  BT12 6HH. 7 no. signs, including 6no. building facade signs and 1no. freestanding totem sign. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0017/F LOCDEV 230 Upper Malone Road  Belfast  BT17 9JZ Demolition of existing bungalow.Replacement 2 storey dwelling with associated 

balconies.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 85



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0044/LBC LOCDEV David Keir Building  Stranmillis Road  Belfast  BT9 5AG External ductwork to roof, roof plant, and minor improvements to service yard to 

facilitate new internal works (metal barriers, gas store gates and metal sheet roof 

repair). Internal works include general refurbishment of a number of research and 

teaching labs located on the north and central wings of the building on levels 

0B/LG/0G/01/02 & 03. Works to include minor re-arrangement, new doors, new 

and refurbished floors, new and refurbished worktops, replacement of storage 

units and installation of new fume cupboards

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0055/F LOCDEV Area of pavement adjacent to  1 Donegall Square West  Belfast. Ticket vending machine with electrical feeder pillar box and a canopy. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0064/F LOCDEV 19 Grand Parade  Belfast  BT5 5HG Demolish existing rear return and replace with single storey rear extension to 

dwelling. (Retrospective Permission)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0066/F LOCDEV Area of pavement adjacent to Castlecourt Shopping Centre  Royal 

Avenue  Belfast

Ticket vending machine with electrical feeder pillar box and a canopy. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0068/F LOCDEV Area of pavement adjacent to number 3 Upper Queen Street  

Belfast

Ticket vending machine with electrical feeder pillar box and a canopy. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0072/F LOCDEV David Keir Building  Stranmillis Road  Belfast BT9 5AG External ductwork to roof, roof plant, and minor improvements to service yard to 

facilitate new internal works (metal barriers, gas store gates and metal sheet roof 

repair). Internal works include general refurbishment of a number of research and 

teaching labs located on the north and central wings of the building on levels 

0B/LG/0G/01/02 & 03. Works to include minor re-arrangement, new doors, new 

and refurbished floors, new and refurbished worktops, replacement of storage 

units and installation of new fume cupboards

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 86



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0074/F LOCDEV 340 Shankill Road  Belfast Change of use from first and second floor storage to 2 bedroom apartment with 

first floor extension to rear

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0077/F LOCDEV 19 Glenshesk Park  Dunmurry   Belfast  BT17 9BA Loft conversion with dormer to rear and single storey extension and patio to rear. 

(Amended Plans)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0097/F LOCDEV 7 Cyprus Avenue  Belfast  BT5 5NT Amendments to LA04/2018/0312/F with internal alterations, new window to front 

elevation

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0120/A LOCDEV Units 9 and 10  Prince Regent Road  Castlereagh  Belfast  BT5 

6QR

Trade shop fascia sign PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0122/LDE LOCDEV 19 Tates Avenue  Belfast  BT9 7BY. House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0123/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2  95 Wellesley Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6DH House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0124/LDE LOCDEV 232 Donegall Road  Belfast BT12 5NE House in multiple occupation (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0127/LDE LOCDEV 208 Donegall Road  Belfast  BT12 5NE House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0128/DCA LOCDEV 95 Malone Road Lower  Belfast  BT9 6SP Demolition works to front, rear and side elevations to accommodate new 

extension.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0132/LDE LOCDEV 9A Cameron Street  Belfast  BT7 1GU House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0170/F LOCDEV 27 Duncrue Street  Low-Wood Intake  Belfast  BT3 9AR. Single storey warehouse extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0180/LDE LOCDEV 17 Queensberry Park  Belfast  BT6. Change garage door to new window (blocking up lower section in matching to 

existing finish) and convert garage to bedroom and ensuite. New flat roof over 

same.

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

P
age 87



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0198/DC LOCDEV 33-39 Bridge End  Belfast Discharge of condition no11 of planning approval LA04/2015/0707/F relating to 

remediation

CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0214/F LOCDEV 12 Wynchurch Park  Belfast  BT6 0JN Change of roof type from hipped to pitched on existing dwelling to facilitate roof 

space conversion with rear dormer and roof lights. Single and two storey side 

extension.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0215/F LOCDEV 10 Maryville Park  Malone Lower  Belfast  BT9 6LN Single storey rear extension to existing courtyard and elevation changes PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0223/F LOCDEV 361 Woodstock Road  Belfast  BT6 8PU Change of use from vacant shop to restaurant PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0245/F LOCDEV 8 Kilbourne Park  Dunmurry  Belfast  BT17 0HZ. Retention of building for additional garage / storage to the rear of dwelling 

(Retrospective Permission).

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0247/F LOCDEV 26 Greenwood Park  Belfast  BT43JN. Two storey front extension and single storey rear extension. Alterations and 

extension to garage and terrace area to rear. (Amended Description)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0259/F LOCDEV Lands adjacent to Clarendon Dock and Clarendon Road  Belfast Environmental improvement works comprising bollards, railings, cycle stands and 

safety mesh

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0265/F LOCDEV 50 Haddington Gardens  Belfast  BT6 0AN Two storey extension to rear and single storey side extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0268/DC LOCDEV 98 Holywood Road  Belfast Discharge of condition no. 12 of LA04/2018/1486/F (Noise report) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0270/F LOCDEV M3 Slip Road Street Works - At cut through from M3 to A2 Slip 

Road  (Approx. 103m South-West from 13 Sydenham Road)  

Belfast  County Antrim. BT3 9HA. (NGR: 147391E  530017N).

The installation of a 20m Apollo street pole with 6no. Antennas, 1no. GPS module, 

2no. Equipment cabinets and 1no. Meter cabinet.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 88



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0272/F LOCDEV 398 Lisburn Road  Belfast  BT9 6GN Change of use from retail to coffee shop PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0276/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2  70 University Avenue  Belfast  BT7 1GY House in multiple occupation (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0279/LDP LOCDEV 86 Galwally Park  Belfast  BT8 6AH Single storey side extension and extension of existing fence PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0287/F LOCDEV 14 Downview Avenue  Belfast  BT15 4EZ Ancillary outbuilding to rear of existing dwelling to accommodate additional living 

space

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0289/F LOCDEV 1 Malone View Park  Belfast  BT9 5PN Dormer window to front (north-east) elevation and elevation changes to existing 

dwelling. (Amended Description)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0292/LBC LOCDEV 43 & 45 Malone Road  Belfast  BT9 6RX Proposed change of use from existing hardstanding / front garden to proposed 

external dining / seating space works to include relocation of access ramp.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0301/F LOCDEV 42 Dunmurry Lane  Belfast  BT17 9JR. Two storey rear extension and garage conversion to home gym. Elevational 

changes to dwelling. Front boundary fencing fixed to existing wall and replacement 

gates. Landscaping works including retaining walls and fencing.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0306/F LOCDEV 46 Rosetta Road Belfast BT6 0LT Proposed single storey extension to rear of dwelling alteration of existing kitchen 

window to form exterior door on side gable. Patio to rear.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0310/F LOCDEV 60 Ballynahatty Road  Belfast  BT8 8LE. Storey and a half extension to dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0320/F MAJDEV Lands bounded by Bedford Street  INI Building  McClintock Street 

and Franklin Street  Belfast  BT2 7GP.

Variation of Condition 3 (agreement of proposed materials prior to 

commencement) of planning permission LA04/2015/0264/F to enable a change to 

the proposed materials to be agreed prior to occupation of the development 

(currently under construction).

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0330/DCA LOCDEV 10 Maryville Park  Malone Lower  Belfast  BT9 6LN. Partial demolition of rear walls to accomodate extension/alterations. 

(ADDITIONAL PLAN)

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 89



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0331/F LOCDEV 42 Glenburn Road  Dunmurry  Belfast  BT17 9AN. Two storey extension to side and rear. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0350/LDE LOCDEV 76 Bloomfield Avenue  Belfast  BT5 5AE House in multiple occupancy (HMO) APPLICATION REQUIRED

LA04/2021/0360/NMC LOCDEV 20 Glendun Park  Dunmurry  BT17 9AY. NMC to LA04/2019/2900/F NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED

LA04/2021/0376/F LOCDEV 29 Lansdowne Road  Belfast  BT15 4AA. Conversion of existing garage to multifunction space/ study. Extension to the 

rear/side of garage, alterations to the roof profile and elevation changes including 

rendering. Raised planters with fencing to the front/ side of garage. (Amended 

description/plans)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0379/LDE LOCDEV 4 Pandora Street  Belfast  BT12 5PR. House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0384/DCA LOCDEV 7 Cyprus Avenue  Belfast  BT5 5NT The proposed demolition of a single storey side and rear extension and detached 

garage

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0387/F LOCDEV Rooftop of East Belfast Constitutional Club 353-359 Newtownards 

Road Belfast BT4 1AJ

Proposed Replacement of 2no. Existing Antenna with 4no. New Antenna on 2no. 

New Steel Tripods with GRP Screens plus 3no. New Equipment Cabinets and ail 

associated Ancillary Equipment including GPS Module, remote Radio Units and 

Feeder Cables.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0388/LDP LOCDEV Triangular Area between Bridge End and a pathway behind 

Rotterdam Court  Bridge End  Belfast.

Proposed Fence. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0396/LBC LOCDEV 374-382 Lisburn RoadBelfastBT9 6GL Works include external repairs to deteriorated render and Tudor timber. 

Elevations are to be repaired on a like for like basis

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0397/F LOCDEV 32-36 Great Victoria StreetBelfast BT2 7BA Change of roof to accessible roof terrace at 11th Floor, surrounded by glass 

balustrade.  Elevational amendments.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 90



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0402/F LOCDEV Holy Trinity Amateur Boxing Club  2A Norglen Gardens  Turf 

Lodge  Belfast  BT11 8EL.

Two storey side extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0405/LDP LOCDEV Rear of  14 Malone View Road  Belfast  BT9 5PH. Construction of Domestic Garage PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0407/RM LOCDEV Site adjacent north to Roselands  23a Andersonstown Road  

Belfast  BT11 9AF

Proposed demolition of vacant units and erection of 2 No detached dwellings and 

associated ground works

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0411/F LOCDEV 416 Ormeau Road  Belfast  BT7 3HY Change of use from office to tattoo studio PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0414/F LOCDEV 16 Richill Crescent  Knock  Belfast  BT5 6HF Proposed rear two storey extension and single storey side extension. Change of 

existing house material to render. (amended description and plans)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0417/F LOCDEV 57 Dunmurry Lane  Belfast  Co. Antrim  Belfast  BTI7 9JR Proposed single storey infill extension to link detached garage with main dwelling, 

to include new rear entrance, kitchen, cloaks, wc and covered outdoor garden 

room.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0433/DC LOCDEV Former Visteon Factory  Blacks Road  Belfast  BT10. Discharge of conditions 20 & 23 Z/2013/1434/F. CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0438/F LOCDEV Lands approximately 25m west of 25Q Harberton Park  Belfast 

(Plot No. 68 of the Harberton Park development).

Change of house type to that as approved under reference LA04/2017/2383/F 

with modifications to include first floor plan update and addition of roofspace 

bedroom

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0440/LDE LOCDEV 2 Ardenlee Way  Belfast  BT6 8QW. HMO (House in Multiple Occupancy). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0442/F LOCDEV 3 Richmond Park  Stranmillis  Belfast  BT9 5EF. Demolition of rear two storey return and garage. Construction of single and two 

storey rear and side extension. Widening of access with new entrance gates and 

pillars with associated works.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 91



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0450/F LOCDEV 138-140 Ravenhill Road  Belfast  BT6 8ED Retrospective change of use from retail to offices on 1st floor with access door on 

ground floor level to include rear flat roof, rear terrace, and rooflights to front 

elevation.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0457/NMC LOCDEV Former Visteon Factory  Blacks Road  Belfast  BT10. Non material change Z/2013/1434/F. NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED

LA04/2021/0460/F LOCDEV Mater Inflrmorum Hospital  45 - 51 Crumlin Road  Belfast  BT14 

6AB.

Provision of temporary container for containerised medical grade oxygen 

generation system and associated site works

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0469/LDE LOCDEV 14C Lisburn Road  Belfast  BT9 6AA House in multiple occupancy (HMO). APPLICATION REQUIRED

LA04/2021/0470/CONTPOLOCDEV 21 Broomhill Park  Belfast  BT9 5JB. Works to 60 trees. WORKS TO TREES IN CA - AGREED

LA04/2021/0471/F LOCDEV 1 Boucher Crescent  Belfast  BT12 6HU. Proposed change of use from office to medical clinic with research & development 

function (No alterations to exterior of building).

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0481/A LOCDEV 20 Windsor Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6EE External totem sign PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0484/F LOCDEV BT Riverside Tower  5 Lanyon Place  Belfast  BT1 3BT Replacement entrance facade. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0487/F LOCDEV 149 Donegall Avenue  Belfast  BT12 6LT Retrospective application for two storey extension to rear and interior alterations 

to existing dwelling

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0488/F LOCDEV Royal Jubilee Maternity Hospital  274 Grosvenor Road  Belfast  

BT12 6BA

Retention of temporary link corridor between the existing Maternity Delivery Suite 

(lower Ground Floor) and the new Maternity Hospital (Level One)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0510/F LOCDEV 288-306 Newtownards Road  Belfast  BT4 1HF Internal reconfiguration and alterations to Coffin Store and Limousine Garage, 

Demolition Of Vacant Shop, creation of new frontage with Staff Parking behind.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 92



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0511/LDE LOCDEV 19 Damascus Street  Belfast  BT7 1QQ. House for multiple occupancy (HMO). APPLICATION REQUIRED

LA04/2021/0512/LDE LOCDEV 23 Wellington Park Terrace  Belfast  BT9 6DR. House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0522/F LOCDEV 44-46 Corporation Street  Belfast. Change of use of 1st floor from manufacturing to Children's well-being community 

centre.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0523/F LOCDEV 245-247 Upper Newtownards Road  Belfast. Change of use from bank premises to 2 No commercial units with 1 No new shop 

front.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0527/LDE LOCDEV 29 Tates Avenue  Lisburn Road  Belfast  BT9 7BY. House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0531/F LOCDEV Lands situated at the junction of  North Queen Street and Castleton 

Avenue  and adjacent and west of No. 80 York Street.

Residential development of 4No. semi detached dwellings, landscaping and all 

associated site works.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0534/DC LOCDEV Corner site between  Mayo Street and Mayo Link  off Lanark 

Way  Shankill Road  Belfast.

Discharge of condition no. 6 of LA04/2016/1276/F (program of archaeological 

works)

CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0544/F LOCDEV 5-11 Brunswick Street Belfast  BT2 7GE Installation of 6 projector units to create an interactive lighting installation along 

new hoarding of Brunswick Street (Temporary 2 years)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0545/F LOCDEV 89 Gardenmore Road  Belfast Single Storey Rear Extension with Ramped Access PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0550/F LOCDEV 8 Clonlee Drive  Belfast  BT2 3DA Two storey extension to side and rear and single storey rear extension to dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0554/F LOCDEV Block A/School House  Methodist College Belfast  1 Malone 

Road  Belfast  BT9 6BY

Proposed new pedestrian path to existing front entrance, Methodist College 

Belfast.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0555/LBC LOCDEV Block A / School House  Methodist College Belfast  1 Malone 

Road  BT9 6BY

Proposed new pedestrian path to existing front entrance, Methodist College 

Belfast.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 93



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0557/F LOCDEV 48 Wynchurch Park  Belfast  BT6 0JN Two storey extension to the side/rear. External alterations to dwelling including 

new roof to existing rear return and new openings.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0560/F LOCDEV 2 Roddens Park  Belfast  BT5 7JG Two storey extension to the rear, conversion of garage to habitable space and 

external alterations.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0565/F LOCDEV 120 Blacks Road  Ballyfinaghy  Belfast  BT10 0NF 2no underground 50,000 litre double skinned fuel tank installation and associated 

works (retrospective)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0566/F LOCDEV 275 Orby Drive  Multyhogy Belfast  BT5 6BG Single Storey Rear and Side Extension. Removal of Existing Detached Garage 

and Erection of Garden Room. (Amended Description)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0567/F LOCDEV 74 Gortin Park  Belfast  BT5 7EQ Conversion of existing garage to habitable space with first floor extension to the 

side/rear. One a half storey extension to the rear with lower ground level and 

external balcony above. Elevational changes to dwelling

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0570/F LOCDEV 15 Cricklewood Crescent  Belfast  BT9 5HD Single storey rear extension, front and side facade alterations and associated site 

works. Raised decking to rear. (Amended Description)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0580/F LOCDEV 8 Annadale Crescent  Belfast  BT7 3DJ single storey rear extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0583/DC LOCDEV Site located at the weir at  Stranmillis near Belfast Boat Club  BT9 

5FJ.

Discharge of condition no. 2 of LA04/2016/0041/F (CMS) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0586/F LOCDEV (Fourth Floor)  32-36 Great Victoria Street  Town Parks  

Belfast  BT2 7BA.

Change of use of fourth floor from Use Class B1 to Use Class D1 (Laser eye 

surgery clinic)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0597/F LOCDEV 33 Camden Street  Malone Lower  Belfast  BT9 6AT. (AMENDED DESCRIPTION) Internal reconfiguration, modernisation and 

reduction from seven to six studio/bedsit units.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0598/LDP LOCDEV 16 Orangefield Grove  Belfast. BT5 6DA. Single storey rear extension PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0599/F LOCDEV 23 Glenmillan Park  Belfast  BT4 2JE First floor extension to rear, ground floor extension to front porch area, 3 no. Velux 

windows to front on first floor level, dormer to side on front elevation (AMENDED 

DESCRIPTION)

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 94



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0617/A LOCDEV 35 Lisburn Road  Belfast BT9 7AA Window graphics, window vinyl decals, projecting sign and door plaque PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0618/A LOCDEV 18 Windsor Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6EE Non illuminated freestanding totem, ACP building sign over the door with internally 

illuminated lettering, Transparent perspex door plaque with vinyl lettering

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0621/F LOCDEV 134 Sandown Road  Belfast  BT5 6GX Two storey rear extension, single storey front extension. Replacement of front bay 

window. 1st floor extension to garage and associated works.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0625/LDE LOCDEV 137 Ulsterville Avenue  Belfast  BT9 7AU. House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0626/LDE LOCDEV Apartment 1  92 University Street  Belfast  BT7 1HE. House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0627/LDE LOCDEV Apartment 2  92 University Street  Belfast  BT7 1HE HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0630/F LOCDEV 29 Downshire Park South   BT6 9JT 2 storey side and rear extension and single storey side extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0635/F LOCDEV 56 Bladon Drive  Malone Lower  Belfast  BT9 5JN Proposed single storey extension to side and rear of dwelling, elevational changes 

to the front, side and rear of dwelling.  Two dormer windows and two velux 

windows at first floor level to front and rear (amended description and plans)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0638/LBC LOCDEV Presbyterian Church  32 Townsend Street  Belfast  BT13 2ES Replace the Existing Wall between Townsend Enterprise Park and Townsend 

Presbyterian Church with Security Railings as a Temporary Measure for a Period 

of 5 Years

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0641/F LOCDEV 3 Rosepark East  BelfastBT5 7RL Single storey extension to side and rear. Change of window type at rear to allow 

for new ensuite. (AMENDED ADDRESS)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0647/LBC LOCDEV Royal Courts of Justice  95 Chichester Street  Belfast  BT1 3JF Refresh Technology to Provide Enhancement of Audio Visual Provision in 

Courtrooms.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 95



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0648/LBC LOCDEV Royal Courts of Justice  Chichester Street  Belfast  BT1 3JF Installation of a New CCTV System in Public Areas, Main Entrance and Main Hall PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0654/F LOCDEV 263 - 265 Grosvenor Road  Belfast  BT12 4LL. Material change of use from Retail to Bookmaking Office PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0659/F LOCDEV Lands 50m to the North East of 28 Lacefield  Belfast BT4 3PA Erection of 1 no. dwelling (Change of house type to Site 22 previously approved 

under LA04/2017/1682/F) and introduction of a new retaining wall and single 

garage

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0668/F LOCDEV 1 Stormont Park  Belfast  BT4 3GW. Dropped kerb access for off street parking at front of premises. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0670/DC LOCDEV 31 Osbourne Park  Belfast  BT9 6JN. Discharge of condition no. 7 of LA04/2015/0397/F (programme of works) CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0674/DC LOCDEV Lands West of Monagh By-Pass  South of Upper Springfield Road 

& 30-34 Upper Springfield Road & West of Aitnamona Crescent & 

St Theresa?s Primary School.  North and East of 2-22 Old Brewery 

Lane Glanaulin  137-143a Glen Road & Airfield Heights & St 

Mary?s CBG School  Belfast.

Discharge of condition 16 LA04/2020/0804/F. CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0683/F LOCDEV 157 Andersonstown Road  Belfast  BT11 9EF Change of ground floor use from vacant medical floorspace to retail floorspace 

and erection of new shopfront.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0684/F LOCDEV Units 12-14 DC Enterprise Park  Kennedy Way  Belfast  BT11 

9AP

Change of use from office/stores to food production facility. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0685/LDE LOCDEV 31 Melrose Street  Belfast  BT9 7DL House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0688/F LOCDEV 138 Orby Drive  Belfast  BT5 6BB 2 storey side extension and single storey side/rear extension to allow kitchen utility 

and bathroom. New ground and 1st floor windows in existing gable wall.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 96



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0693/DC LOCDEV 332-334 Ormeau Road  Belfast  BT7 2GE Discharge of conditions nos2 and 3 of planning approval La04/2018/1415/f CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0695/DC LOCDEV 753 Antrim Road  and lands to the east of  nos 751-755 Antrim 

Road  Belfast  BT15 4EN.

Discharge of condition no. 19 of LA04/2019/2255/F (samples) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0696/F LOCDEV Whiterock Leisure Centre  Whiterock Close  Whiterock Road  

Belfast  Antrim BT12 7RJ

Development of  'Active Travel Hub', which includes the installation of a 9m x 

2.5m shipping container, with modifications to accommodate an internal bike 

store, and a small office.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0697/A LOCDEV 19-31 Lisburn Road  Belfast  BT9 7AA. 3 No. replacement window graphics, window vinyl decals, 2 No. projecting signs 

and 4 No. door plaques.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0698/F LOCDEV 1 Wynchurch Close  Belfast  BT6 0JW. Single Storey Side Extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0700/F LOCDEV 4 Earl Haig Park  Belfast  BT6 8NR. Two storey side extension with extended front porch. Elevation changes. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0702/F LOCDEV 13 Priory Park  Belfast  BT10 0AE. Single storey rear & side extension to dwelling. Patio to rear. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0704/F LOCDEV 80 Lagmore Glen  Dunmurry  BT17 0WK Conversion of existing garage to habitable space with extension linking to main 

dwelling and first floor extension above. External alterations

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0706/F LOCDEV 40 Circular Road  Ballymisert  Belfast  BT4 2GA Demolition of existing rear and side outbuildings and erection of single storey rear 

and side storage area and garden room with external flue and terrace

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0709/F LOCDEV 39 Orpen Road  Belfast  BT10 0BP Proposed single storey/2 storey extension to rear of existing dwelling proposed 

replacement detached garage and proposed additional off-street parking to front

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0712/F LOCDEV 10 Rosetta Drive  Belfast  BT7 3HL Amendments to approval LA04/2017/2525/F (two storey rear extension) to include 

fenestration changes and full width rear return at first floor level Amendments to 

approval LA04/2017/2525/F (two storey rear extension) to include fenestration 

changes and full width rear return at first floor level

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 97



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0716/F LOCDEV 16 Clonaver Crescent North  Belfast  BT4 2FD. 2 storey extension to rear of dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0718/A LOCDEV Hard standing adjacent to the car park and entrance to Whiterock 

Leisure Centre  Whiterock Close  Whiterock Road  Belfast  

BT12 7RJ

Mounted sign on face of a shipping container. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0719/F LOCDEV 38 Colinbrook Crescent  Belfast  BT17 0PF Single Storey Rear Extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0725/F LOCDEV 36 Dorchester Park  Upper Malone  Belfast  BT6 6RJ Proposed change to previously approved application LA04/2020/1324/F changes 

to double and single storey extensions to side and rear of dwelling.  Slightly 

extending sunroom, utility and first floor bedroom and en-suite & dressing room.  

Alterations to windows and door to rear.  New proposed attic conversion with 

single dormer & roof light to rear.  Widen access & other associated site works as 

previously approved.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0726/F LOCDEV 13 Kensington Park  Belfast  BT5 6NR Proposed New Front Porch PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0728/O LOCDEV 237 Lower Braniel Road  Belfast  BT5 7NQ. Outline for demolition of existing house and construction of 4 No. single storey 

detached dwellings (previously granted under outline approval 

LA04/2016/2109/O).

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0733/DCA LOCDEV 51 Myrtlefield Park  Belfast  BT9 6NF. Demolition of the existing rear conservatoy. Make good the external area and 

install a new external double door within the existing door opening.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0747/F LOCDEV 6 Seamount Parade  Belfast First floor extension to rear PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0749/F LOCDEV 574 Antrim Road  Belfast  BT15 5GL Conversion of an existing garage to 2 bedrooms and new single storey link to 

existing dwelling

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0750/F LOCDEV 94 Oakhurst Avenue  Blacks Road  Belfast  BT10 Single storey extension to the side and rear of dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 98



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0751/F LOCDEV 75 South Sperrin  Belfast  BT5 7GG Single storey rear/side extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0752/F LOCDEV 54 Marlborough Park North  Malone Lower  Belfast  BT9 6HJ Single storey extension to rear to create new open plan kitchen/dining/living room, 

including patio and steps and flowerbeds to rear to allow access to rear garden

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0753/F LOCDEV 2 Thirlmere Gardens  Belfast  BT15 5EF Proposed erection of single storey rear extension and raised patio with stepped 

access to rear (amended description and plans)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0755/F LOCDEV 100 Orby Drive  Belfast  BT5 6AG Alterations to existing detached garage to a garden room including change of roof 

profile and elevational changes. Raised decking platform with pergola structure to 

rear.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0756/F LOCDEV 12 Netherleigh Park  Belfast  BT4 3GR Single storey side extension and two storey rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0757/NMC LOCDEV 1 Larkfield Avenue  Upper Lisburn Road  Belfast  BT10 0LY. Non material change to LA04/2020/1739/F NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED

LA04/2021/0761/LDP LOCDEV 18 Graham Gardens  Belfast. Single storey rear extension. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0767/LDE LOCDEV 25 Sandhurst Gardens  Belfast  BT9 5AW. House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0776/DC LOCDEV 753 Antrim Road  and lands to the east of  nos 751-755 Antrim 

Road  Belfast.

Discharge of condition no. 18 of LA04/2019/2255/F (detailed elevations for site 1) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0778/F LOCDEV Public footpath on the Blacks Road set 25 metres North East of No. 

35B.

Proposed 3 bay cantilever narrow bus shelter PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0780/LDE LOCDEV 10 Cadogan Street  Belfast  BT7 1QW House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0792/F LOCDEV 119 Woodvale Road  Belfast  BT13 3BP Change of Use from Residential to House of Multiple Occupancy (HMO) PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 99



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0794/A LOCDEV Ulster University Campus  York Street  Belfast  BT15 1ED 3 external totem signs (2.3m x 1m), internal vinyl and external campus logo 

lettering

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0806/F LOCDEV 46 Denorrton Park  Belfast  BT4 1SF Proposed single storey rear extension to replace existing sunroom and patio area 

to rear

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0807/F LOCDEV 34 Willowhome Drive  BT6 8BP Single storey rear extension, raised decking area to rear. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0812/F LOCDEV 20 Glengoland Gardens  Belfast  BT17 0JE Single storey extension to side of dwelling. Elevation changes including new front 

door and alterations to windows.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0814/F LOCDEV 1 Lakeside Drive  Ballyfinahy  Belfast  BT10 0NU Proposed single storey attached garage PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0815/F LOCDEV 1 Corrina Avenue  Dunmurry  BT17 0HR 2 storey side extension to dwelling PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0817/F LOCDEV 12 Wandsworth Parade  Belfast  BT4 3TF Internal modifications and alterations to existing rear elevation with new single 

storey garage store to side of existing dwelling. Landscaping works and paved 

area to rear

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0818/F LOCDEV 118 Balmoral Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6NZ Ground floor living room extension to rear, first floor link between original house 

and 2 storey annex, and decking to rear

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0819/F LOCDEV 135 Malone Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6EQ Single storey extension to rear of existing dwelling PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0820/DCA LOCDEV 47 Cranmore Gardens  Belfast  BT9 6JL Demolition of 2 storey side and rear walls and garage PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0821/F LOCDEV 47 Cranmore Gardens  Belfast  BT9 6JL 2 storey rear and single storey side extension to provide open plan kitchen dining 

and family area and first floor bedrooms and single storey rear bay and demolish 

garage

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0822/F LOCDEV 41 Kingsway Park  Belfast  BT5 7EW 2 storey rear and side extension to semi-detached property PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 100



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0824/F LOCDEV 42 Waring Street  Cotton Court  Belfast  BT1 2ED. Retractable canopy attached to buildings to match the canopy that exists. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0828/F LOCDEV 2 Gilnahirk Crescent  Tullycarnet  Belfast  BT5 7DU Single storey rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0829/LDP LOCDEV 16 Quarry Road  Belfast  BT4 2JD. Single storey rear extension. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0832/F LOCDEV 6 Downshire Park South  Belfast  BT6 9JT Proposed roofspace conversion with rear dormer window. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0838/DC LOCDEV 95 Crumlin Road and site of (formerly) 1-7 Cliftonpark Avenue  

Belfast  BT14 6AD

Discharge of condition no 5 of LA04/2016/2532/F (CEMP) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0840/F LOCDEV 154 Kings Road  Belfast  BT5 7EL Single storey rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0841/F LOCDEV 220 Stockman's Lane  Belfast  BT11 9AR Single storey extension to garden room to form 'Granny flat'. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0842/F LOCDEV 2 Cloona Avenue  Dunmurry Lane  Belfast  BT17 0HJ Single storey rear extension with elevation changes. Conversion of garage to 

living room.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0854/F LOCDEV 42 Hawthornden Road  Belfast  BT4 3JW Demolition of existing front porch, attached garage, store and rear kitchen. 

Proposed single storey front entrance, single storey utility, kitchen and living area 

to the side and rear and external steps and patio area to the rear of the dwelling

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0855/F LOCDEV Everton Day Centre  589-593 Crumlin Road  Belfast  BT14 7GB Proposed internal alterations to the existing building layout to cater for changing 

service need with one additional room being added within the existing landscaped 

courtyard.  Alterations to the front and south facing facade with additional 

projecting bay windows and door openings proposed.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 101



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0863/DC LOCDEV Lands Opposite Ruby Cottages  and St Ellens Terrace Edenderry 

Road  Edenderry Village  BT8 8JN

Discharge of condition no 17 of LA04/2017/1439/F (samples) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0865/F LOCDEV 7th Floor Terrace Area at   No. 5-7 Upper Queen Street  Belfast  

BT1 6FS.

Metal Louvered Pergola to Existing Terrace Area with Glazed Side Panels, 

Located on 7th Floor.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0866/DCA LOCDEV 118 Balmoral Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6NZ. Demolition of external rear wall to living and utility room and internal demolition 

works

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0867/LBC LOCDEV North Belfast Working Men's Club  32A Danube Street  Crumlin  

Belfast  BT13 1RT.

External like for like Maintenance and Repairs to Roof and Front Facade / North 

Elevation. To include Amended Rain Water Gutters and Roof Edge Detail to East 

and West Sides.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0869/F LOCDEV 22 Annadale Avenue  Belfast  BT7 3JJ. Provision of two new windows to side of dwelling, sunpipe to the roof and new 

rooflights to rear elevation.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0871/F LOCDEV 29 Somerton Road  Belfast  BT15 3LG. Single storey rear extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0872/F LOCDEV 276 Whitewell Road  Newtownabbey  BT36 7NL Proposed front porch extension to dwelling (Amended Plans) PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0875/DCA LOCDEV 135 Malone Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6EQ Demolish existing single storey rear return and existing oil boiler house PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0878/F LOCDEV 37 Ormonde Park  Belfast  BT10 0LT Demolition of existing rear return and construction of new single storey extension 

to the rear

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0880/F LOCDEV 344 Beersbridge Road  Belfast  BT5 5DY Change of use of the ground floor from an estate agents to a dental surgery (class 

D1)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0883/F LOCDEV 119 Upper Malone Road  Ballyfinaghy  Dunmurry  Belfast  BT9 

6UF.

Single storey rear extension, raised terrace and steps to access rear. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0887/F LOCDEV 343 Cregagh Road  Belfast  BT6 0LE Demolition of existing rear single storey extension. Construction of new single 

storey side and rear extension and internal alterations

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 102



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0890/LDP LOCDEV 32 Mount Merrion Ave  Belfast  BT6 0FR. Single storey rear extension and associated works PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0891/F LOCDEV 4 Ashfield Crescent  Belfast  BT15 3F. Side and rear canopy and elevation changes. Air Source Heat unit to the rear. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0894/NMC LOCDEV Approximately 50m north east of number  80 Sydenham Road  

Belfast  BT3 9DP.

Non Material Change to LA04/2019/2912/F NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED

LA04/2021/0907/F LOCDEV 42 - 44 Rosemary Street  Avenue House  Belfast  BT1 1QE Proposed new roller shutter door with automatic glazed sliding doors. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0914/F LOCDEV 6a Isadore Avenue  Belfast  BT14. Single storey rear extension, rear window enlarged. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0927/F LOCDEV 16 Marina Park  Belfast  BT5 6BA. Single storey extension to side and rear of dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0928/F LOCDEV 17 Gransha Drive  Belfast  BT11 8AL. Single storey side extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0929/F LOCDEV 17 Inishmore Crescent  Belfast  BT11 8NR. Two storey rear extension and elevation changes. (Amended Scheme) PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0940/F LOCDEV 10 Mount Eagles Close  Belfast  BT17 0GT. Two storey extension to the side. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0944/F LOCDEV 21 Holland Park  Belfast  BT5 6HB. Demolition of existing single storey side sunroom replaced with single storey side 

extension with balcony

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0948/F LOCDEV 91 Lagmore Dale  Belfast. Single storey attached garage to side of dwelling to replace existing sub standard 

garage.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0956/F LOCDEV 11 Broughton Park  Belfast  BT6 0BD Demolition of garage. Single storey rear extension with elevation changes. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0962/F LOCDEV 139 Ulsterville Avenue  Belfast  BT9 7AU Single storey rear extension, level access at rear with a ramp to side PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 103



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0964/F LOCDEV 25 Dalebrook Park  Belfast  BT11 9EW Single storey rear extension, installation of door to gable wall, render to front and 

rear of dwelling and replacement windows to front of dwelling

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0968/LDE LOCDEV Flat 1  9 Lawrence Street  Belfast  BT7 1LE. House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0972/LDE LOCDEV Apartment 4-2a India Street  Belfast  BT7 1LJ House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0973/LDE LOCDEV Apartment 3 -2a India Street  Belfast  BT7 1LJ House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0975/LDE LOCDEV 8 Sandymount Street  Belfast  BT9 5DP House in multiple occupation (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0985/CONTPOLOCDEV 2 Cyprus Avenue  Belfast  BT5 5NT. Works to 1 tree. WORKS TO TREES IN CA - AGREED

LA04/2021/0986/F LOCDEV Lands south west of no 22 Oldpark Terrace  Belfast  BT14 6NP Application under section 54 to vary conditions applied to planning reference 

LA04/2019/1475/f to facilitate development of this proposal. The relevant 

conditions requiring amendment are:  Condition 10 - Landscaping (seeking 

amendment of approved landscape plan)  Condition 12 - Boundary Treatment 

(seeking amendment boundary treatment plan)-additional information received

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0987/LDE LOCDEV 13B Cameron Street  Belfast  BT7 1GU House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/0988/F LOCDEV 93-105 Great Victoria Street  (Ground Floor unit)  Belfast  BT2 

7AG

Change of Use to office use, Class B1 : Business, of vacant ground floor unit with 

current retail use.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/0989/DC LOCDEV Lands south of Kitchener Drive  north of 2-30 (evens) Frenchpark 

Street and west of 59-149 (odds) Donegall Avenue

Discharge of conditions nos 5,6,7 and 8 of planning approval LA04/2017/0431/f CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/0995/F LOCDEV 28 Shandon Park  Belfast  BT5 6NX Proposed roof space conversion, addition of dormer windows to front and rear of 

property.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 104



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/0998/F LOCDEV 11 Graymount Park  Newtownabbey  BT36 7DT Single storey extension to front and rear of dwelling PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1000/F LOCDEV 26 Trench Park  Belfast  BT11 9FG Proposed single storey rear extension and associated alterations PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1001/F LOCDEV 57 Deramore Park South  Belfast  BT9 5JY Single Storey rear extension with chimney, new flat roof over existing garage, new 

box window to front elevation.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1003/F LOCDEV 12 Chichester Park South  Belfast  BT15 5DW Single storey extension to rear PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1004/F LOCDEV 103 Glenburn Road  Dunmurry  Belfast  BT17 9AR Demolition of garage and sunroom and proposed single side and rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1005/F LOCDEV 261 Falls Road  Belfast Proposed new shopfront PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1006/LDE LOCDEV 85 South Parade  Belfast  BT7 2GN 3 self contained flats PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1007/LDE LOCDEV 34 Edinburgh Street  Lisburn Road  Belfast  BT9 7DS Five bedroom house in multiple occupation  (5 bed HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1011/LDE LOCDEV 32 Sandhurst Drive  Stranmillis  Belfast  BT9 5AY House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1013/DC LOCDEV 29 Ava Drive  Belfast  BT7 3DW Discharge of condition no. 2 of LA04/2020/2185/F (Management Plan) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1025/F LOCDEV 54 Tullymore Gardens  Belfast  BT11 8NE. Attic conversion with raised ridge height, dormer window to rear and velux 

rooflights and porch to front elevation.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1026/DC LOCDEV 16-24 Cornmarket  Belfast  BT1 4DD. Discharge of condition no. 2 of LA04/2019/2110/F (Generic Quantitative Risk 

Assessment)

CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1031/F LOCDEV 95 Priory Park  Belfast  BT10 0AG. Single storey side and rear extension with internal layout modifications. PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 105



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1034/LDE LOCDEV Apartment 1  2A India Street  Belfast  BT7 1LJ. House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1036/DCA LOCDEV 14 Windsor Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6ET. Demolition of existing two storey side and rear return along with rear wall and 

associated development.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1040/F LOCDEV 214 Duncairn Gardens  Belfast  BT15 2GP Retrospective Change of Use from Residential Dwelling to House in Multiple 

Occupation (HMO)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1044/F LOCDEV Industrial Lands 25 Duncrue StreetBelfastBT3 9AS New roller shutter door with double gates and relocation of existing external steps. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1045/LDE LOCDEV 58 Pretoria Street  Belfast  BT9 5AQ. House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1051/F LOCDEV 1 Dermott Hill Drive  Belfast  BT12 7GG Single storey side kitchen extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1055/F LOCDEV 1 Spruce Hill  Belfast  BT17 0HS. Proposed conversion of attic with rear dormer. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1056/LDE LOCDEV Apartment 2  2A India Street  Belfast  BT7 1LJ. House in multiple occupation (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1058/F LOCDEV 31 Willesden Park  Malone Lower  Belfast. BT9 5GX. Demolition of existing garage & new side extension to dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1059/F LOCDEV 37 Mountainview Gardens  Belfast  BT14 7GU. 2 storey extension to rear of detached dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1060/F LOCDEV 51 Deramore Park South  Belfast. BT9 5JY. Single storey rear extension, projecting pay window to front elevation, new patio, 

and steps to rear, window and door alterations to side and rear elevations.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1061/F LOCDEV Primark Store  29-43 Castle Street  Belfast  BT1 1BL. Erection of roof top plant, ventilation and ductwork comprising replacement of 

existing chiller on the roof of building with a containerised generator.

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 106



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1063/F LOCDEV 3 Aberfoyle Gardens  Belfast  BT10 0DZ. First floor side extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1065/F LOCDEV 52 North Gardens  Belfast  BT5 6BZ. Single storey side extension comprising living area, dining area, kitchen and utility 

room, with existing garage converted to bedroom.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1067/F LOCDEV 4 Ravenhill Park Gardens  Belfast  BT6 0DH First floor side extension. Side window blocked up. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1068/F LOCDEV 19 Cairnburn Crescent  Belfast. Single storey rear extension and first floor rear extension over existing ground 

floor.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1070/F LOCDEV 606c Ballysillan Road  Belfast  BT14 6RP Single storey side extension for a garage and store PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1072/NMC LOCDEV 84-92 Ravensdale Street  Belfast  BT5 5GA Non material change - LA04/2020/0321/F NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED

LA04/2021/1074/F LOCDEV 16 Bilston Road  Belfast  BT14 8GA. Single storey rear extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1075/F LOCDEV 55 Knockvale Park  Belfast  BT5 6HJ. Single storey rear and side extension, external raised patio to rear. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1078/DCA LOCDEV 12 Chichester Park South  Belfast  BT15 5DW. Single storey portion (ground to first floor) of rear elevation (Kitchen & dining only) 

to be demolished in order to extend room. New wall to match existing.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1085/LDE LOCDEV 104 Eglantine Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6EU. 3 storey building containing 12 occupied apartments. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1090/DC LOCDEV 16-24 Cornmarket  Belfast  BT1 4DD. Discharge of condition no. 6 of LA04/2019/2110/F (sample panel) CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1093/DC LOCDEV Lyndon Court  32-38 Queen Street  Belfast  BT1 6EF. Discharge of conditions 2 & 13 LA04/2019/0553/F. CONDITION DISCHARGED

P
age 107



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1095/DC LOCDEV Lands north west of  1-6 Linen Mill Grove  Edenderry Village  

Belfast.

Discharge of condition no. 24 of LA04/2018/1795/F (CEMP) CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1101/LDE LOCDEV 30 Ashley Courtyard  1A Fane Street  Belfast  BT9 7JS. House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1105/LDE LOCDEV 18 Dunluce Avenue  Belfast  BT9 7AY House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1106/LDE LOCDEV 16 Pretoria Street  Belfast  BT9 5AQ House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1111/DC LOCDEV Land bounded by Library Street  Stephen Street and Kent Street  

Belfast. BT1 2JJ

Discharge of condition no 6 of LA04/2015/0676/f & 2016/A0044 CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1113/LDP LOCDEV 36 Linden Gardens  Belfast  BT14 6DD Single storey rear extension. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1114/LDE LOCDEV 44 Brooklands Street  Belfast  BT9 7FZ House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1116/LDE LOCDEV 16 Malone Ridge  Belfast  BT9 5QW. Lawful development of existing dwelling approved under 2014/E0021 (formally site 

10)

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1122/F LOCDEV 11 Forest Lane  Dunmurry. BT17 0YT Single storey rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1123/F LOCDEV 39 Glencolin Heights  Belfast  BT11 8PB Proposed loft conversion with dormer to rear of existing terraced dwelling PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1126/F LOCDEV 55 Woodside View  Dunmurry  Belfast  BT17 0SU Single storey rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1146/F LOCDEV 5 Wolfhill Grove  Legoniel  Belfast  BT14 8NR. Single storey rear extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 108



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1149/DC LOCDEV Lands to the East and adjacent to  No.8 Upper Braniel Road  

Belfast  BT5 7TS.

Discharge of condition 7 LA04/2021/0256/F. CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1151/LDE LOCDEV 14 Stranmillis Gardens  Belfast  BT9 5AS House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1153/DC LOCDEV 95 Crumlin Road  and Site of 1-7 (Formerly) Cliftonpark Avenue  

Belfast  BT14 6AD.

Discharge of Condition 6 LA04/2016/2532/F. CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1160/F LOCDEV 25 Connaught Street  Belfast  BT12 6GB Two storey rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1167/DC LOCDEV 64 Andersonstown Road  Belfast  BT11 9AN Discharge of condition no9 of planning approval LA04/2020/2077/f CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1168/F LOCDEV 161 Sicily Park  Belfast  BT10 0AQ Single storey rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1174/F LOCDEV 49 Kirkliston Park  Belfast  BT5 6ED Single storey extension to rear of dwelling and new rear door opening PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1177/F LOCDEV 11 Kingsberry Park  Belfast  BT6 0HT Attic conversion with dormer to rear, single storey side extension, changes to rear 

elevation, demolition of rear outbuilding and new garden studio building to rear

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1178/F LOCDEV 10 Knightsbridge Manor  Belfast Alterations to dwelling including roof space conversion with rear dormer extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1179/F LOCDEV 6 Harberton Lane  Malone  Belfast  BT9 6WQ Roof space conversion with addition of 7 roof lights PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 109



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1191/F LOCDEV Land at former king's Hall Complex located to the east of the King's 

Hall and to the rear of nos 7-23 Harberton Park BT9 6GW

Section 54 Application for the removal of planning condition nos 8, 9 and 10 of 

planning permission LA04/2019/1254/f for the erection of independent living 

complex 16 no units with associated landscaping, parking and access, which 

require various elements of the restoration works to the King's Hall as approved 

under planning permission LA04/2018/0040/f to be completed within 1,2 and 3 

years of the occupation of the ninth unit

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1194/DC LOCDEV Lands at  15-17 Upper Lisburn Road  Belfast  BT10 0GW. Discharge of condition 15 LA04/2018/1170/F  (contaminated land). CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1203/F LOCDEV 21 Helens Wood  Dunmurry  Belfast  BT17 0RY Amendments to LA04/2020/1486/F - additional single storey side extension and 

alterations to 2 nos. front car parking spaces.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1206/F LOCDEV 4 Malone view Road  Belfast  BT9 5PH New boundary wall to frontage onto Malone View road (rendered masonry) to 

replace existing low-level brick wall on western site boundary. Existing vehicle 

entrance retained, gates to be fitted to new masonry piers

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1207/F LOCDEV 9 Upper Cavehill Road  Belfast  BT15 5EZ Proposed roof space conversion including a dormer to rear and new window at 

gable elevation

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1212/F LOCDEV 4 Glenmillan Park  Belfast  BT4 2JE Single storey rear extension with associated works PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1215/F LOCDEV 7 Cambourne Park  Belfast  BT9 6RL Single storey extension to side and rear of dwelling, with associated site works. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1216/F LOCDEV 35 Edgcumbe Gardens Belfast BT4 2EG Single storey side and rear extension. Insertion of 2 nos. side windows (0bscure 

glazing) (retrospective)

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1220/F LOCDEV 49 Onslow Parade  Belfast  BT6 0AS Single storey side and rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1225/F LOCDEV 96 Glen Road  Andersonstown  Belfast  BT11 8BH First floor rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 110



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1227/NMC LOCDEV 2 and 2a Hampton Park  Belfast  BT7 3JL. NMC to LA04/2020/0104/F. NON MATERIAL CHANGE REFUSED

LA04/2021/1233/LDE LOCDEV 9 Ulsterville Gardens  Belfast  BT9 7BA. House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1235/DC LOCDEV 14-16 Upper Crescent  Belfast  BT7 1NT. Discharge of condition 12 LA04/2020/1505/LBC. CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1237/DCA LOCDEV 54 Marlborough Park North  Malone Lower  Belfast  BT9 6HJ Demolition of existing rear return, removal of existing rear steps and balustrade PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1244/LDE LOCDEV 53 Balfour Avenue  Belfast  BT7 2EU House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1250/LDE LOCDEV 65 Tates Avenue  Belfast  BT9 7BY House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1252/F LOCDEV 38 Beechgrove Avenue  Belfast  BT6 0NF First floor side and rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1255/F LOCDEV 9 Annadale Mews  Belfast  BT7 3LR Change of use from residential to house in multiple occupation HMO and addition 

of window in front elevation

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1258/F LOCDEV 16 Locksley Gardens  Finaghy  Belfast  BT10 0EA Single storey rear extension and new fencing at shared boundary to rear PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1260/F LOCDEV 28 St. Annes Road  Belfast  BT10 0PQ Single storey rear extension, change from garage door to window at front 

elevation, change of window types to rear, new patio area to rear.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1261/F LOCDEV 40 Belmont Church Road  Belfast  BT4 3FF Single storey extension to rear of dwelling, internal alterations and  patio area to 

rear with glazed guarding and stepped access.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1270/F LOCDEV Stormont Hotel  Upper Newtownards Road  Belfast  BT4 ELP Facade refurbishment to western elevation of western block of hotel. Insulated 

render system and new PPC aluminium windows to 1-3rd floor level bedrooms. 

Timber cladding to 'La Scala' restaurant elevation to ground floor level

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 111



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1273/F LOCDEV 42 Onslow Gardens  Belfast  BT6 0AQ. Replacement of garage to store/garden store with associated works 

(retrospective).

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1275/F LOCDEV Galaxy Bingo Unit  First Floor  Cityside Retail Park  100-150 

York Street  Belfast  BT15 1WA.

Extension to existing public bar and lounge involving the change of use from bingo 

hall (D2) to public bar and lounge at ground floor and involving new internal 

accesses between units and to existing smoking terrace.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1283/CONTPOLOCDEV 15 Malone Park  Belfast  BT9 6NJ. Remedial maint. T1 - remove deadwood, reduce S endweight by 2m, remove 

smaller stem. T2 - reduce S and E endweight by 2m. All works only as per 

recommendations on survey report (att)

WORKS TO TREES IN CA - AGREED

LA04/2021/1286/LDP LOCDEV 38 Downview Avenue  Belfast  BT15 4FB Proposed new sun room and garden shed. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1287/LDE LOCDEV 58 Chadwick Street  Belfast  BT9 HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1289/LDE LOCDEV Flat 1 23 Rugby Avenue  Belfast  BT7 1RD House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1302/DC LOCDEV Lands at former Rosepark House  Upper Newtownards Road  

Belfast  BT4 3NR

Discharge of condition no16b of planning approval LA04/2017/0235/F relating to 

Remediation Verification Report for Phase 5

CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1305/F LOCDEV 287 Shore Road  Belfast  BT15 3PW The proposal is for the installation of 2no. new condenser units along the North 

elevation of the Virgin Media premises, these are serving internal digital media 

equipment.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1310/F LOCDEV 10 Glenmachan Grove  Belfast  BT4 2RF. Single storey rear extension to replace existing sunroom & external raised Patio. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1314/F LOCDEV 23 Prince Edward Park  Belfast  BT9 5FZ. Single storey side extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1321/F LOCDEV 40 Mount Eagles Crescent  Belfast  BT7 0GL. Proposed single storey extension to side of dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 112



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1323/F LOCDEV 52 Ramoan Gardens  Belfast  BT11 8LN Single storey side and rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1324/F LOCDEV 47 North Gardens  Belfast  BT5 6BZ Single storey rear extension with steps to access and steps to front entrance of 

property

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1326/F LOCDEV 22 Highbury Gardens  Belfast  BT14 7LG Proposed single storey extension to rear of dwelling PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1330/DC LOCDEV Lands at nos 43-63 Chichester Street  29-31 Gloucester Street and 

Seymour lane  Belfast

Discharge of conditions nos 10, 12 &13 of planning approval LA04/2019/0909/f CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1331/F LOCDEV 120 Ballysillan Road  Oldpark  Belfast  BT14 7QR Two storey side extension to dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1336/F LOCDEV 18 Knocklofty Park Belfast BT4 3NA Single storey rear extension, first floor rear extension with access to a new roof 

terrace with a 1.8m privacy screen, alteration to roof with a new window at rear.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1341/F LOCDEV 3 Netherleigh Park  Belfast  BT4 3GR. Conversion of garage to living accommodation. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1342/F LOCDEV 26 Callan Way  Belfast  BT6 0EU Single and two storey rear extension with internal and external alterations PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1343/F LOCDEV 11 Glasvey Close  Dunmurry  BT17 0EE Single storey rear extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1346/LBC LOCDEV Ground floor unit - 43 Malone Road  Belfast Convert existing cafe unit into a restaurant PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1347/PAN MAJDEV Lands north of 14 Mill Race and 15 Belfield Heights and south of 2-

15 St Gerards Manor  Ballymurphy  Belfast  Co. Antrim.

Proposed social housing development comprising up to a maximum of 130 

residential dwellings, associated internal road network, pedestrian and cycle ways, 

public open space, children's play area, landscaping (including 8 metres 

landscaped buffer to western boundary), parking, access (provision of a right turn 

lane) and ancillary site works.

PROPOSAL OF APPLICATION NOTICE IS ACCEPTABLE

P
age 113



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1359/DC LOCDEV 277 Woodstock Road  Belfast  BT6 8PR. Discharge of condition 2 LA04/2018/0297/F. CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1361/F LOCDEV 33 Everton Drive  Belfast  BT6 0LJ. Demolition of existing single storey rear extension and attached side garage. 

Proposed two storey rear and side extension and external patio area to rear.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1363/LDE LOCDEV 74 Sandymount Street  Belfast  BT9 5DQ. House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1365/LDE LOCDEV 74 Sandhurst Gardens  Belfast  BT9 5AX l1365House in multiple occupation HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1375/F LOCDEV 43 - 45 Malone Road  Belfast  BT9 6RX. Removal of condition 3 (restriction on hot food service) of planning approval  

LA04/2018/1747/F.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1376/F LOCDEV 43 - 45 Malone Road  Belfast  BT9 6RX. Rear single storey extension for staff facilities and extractor flue. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1377/F LOCDEV 17 Haddo Woods  Ballydollaghan  Belfast  BT8 8FS Roof space conversion including rear dormer and two additional windows in rear 

roof elevation

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1380/F LOCDEV 27 Glasvey Close  Dunmurry  BT17 0EE Single storey side and rear extension. Level access to be provided to front of 

property

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1381/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2  46 Wolseley Street  Belfast  BT7 1LG. House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1386/LDE LOCDEV 6 Lisburn Avenue  Belfast  BT9 7FX House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1390/PAN MAJDEV Clarendon Playing Fields  29 Somerdale Park  Belfast  BT14 

7HD

Upgrading of existing sports facilities to include new floodlighting, fencing and ball 

stops, changing facilities, 3G goalkeeper training area  and associated 

maintanence infastructure and parking provision.

PROPOSAL OF APPLICATION NOTICE IS ACCEPTABLE

P
age 114



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1397/DC LOCDEV Lands immediately North of  Stanhope Street West of Clifton Street 

and  East of Regent Street  7a Stanhope Street  Belfast.

Discharge of condition 3 LA04/2018/0875/F. CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1399/DC LOCDEV Former Visteon Factory  Blacks Road  Belfast  BT10. Discharge of condition 3 Z/2013/1434/F. CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1403/F LOCDEV 20 Stockmans Crescent  Belfast  BT11 9AW. Single storey extension to side of dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1405/DC LOCDEV Templemore Baths  Templemore Avenue  Belfast  BT5 4FW. Discharge of condition 10 LA04/2018/2603/F relating to construction management 

plan

CONDITION DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1408/F LOCDEV 611 Ballysillan Road  Belfast  BT14 6RQ . Single storey extension to rear of dwelling, new ground floor window to side 

elevation.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1411/F LOCDEV 69 Duncoole Park  Belfast  BT14 8JS Single storey extension to rear, conversion of garage to habitable room with bay 

window.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1424/PAN MAJDEV 5-7 Little Victoria Street + 28-29 Bruce Street  Belfast. Demolition of existing property and erection of purpose built multi-storey managed 

student accommodation and associated shared/ancillary spaces (amended 

scheme that includes re-configuration of proposed student accommodation).

PROPOSAL OF APPLICATION NOTICE IS ACCEPTABLE

LA04/2021/1443/LDE LOCDEV 24 Eglantine Avenue  Belfast  BT9 6DX. House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1453/DC LOCDEV Lands to the rear of 7-19 Aghery Walk and 86-112 Areema Drive  

Dunmurry  BT17 OQH

Discharge of condition no 7 (Tree Works)  of planning approval LA04/2018/2726/f CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1461/F LOCDEV 14 Lagmore View Crescent  Dunmurry  Belfast  BT17 0FS Two storey side extension PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1462/F LOCDEV 14 Manna Grove  Ballyrushboy  Belfast  BT5 6AJ Boundary treatments to front of dwelling to include new wall, pillars, railings, and 

gates

PERMISSION GRANTED

P
age 115



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1466/F LOCDEV 220a Belmont Road  Belfast  BT4 2AW The proposed build work is for a single storey extension to the rear of the 

property, with the addition of a dining and social space onto the existing kitchen

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1488/F LOCDEV 7 Lake Glen Close  Belfast  BT11 8JT Proposed extension to rear of existing dwelling. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1490/LDE LOCDEV 22 Lindsay Street  Belfast  BT7 1AX House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1496/NMC LOCDEV Lands at Kings Hall Complex  Lisburn Road  Balmoral  Belfast. Non material Change LA04/2019/2848/F. NON MATERIAL CHANGE REFUSED

LA04/2021/1499/PAN MAJDEV Units 34  61 and Mall 01-k9 Castlecourt shopping centre  Royal 

avenue  Belfast  BT1 1DD

Proposed change of use relating to part of Unit 34 ground floor area from (class 

A1) retail to (sui generis) coffee shop with provision of external seating area: 

change of use (including re-configuration of internal stair/lifts, ancillary spaces and 

all associated  works) of first and second floor levels of unit 34 and existing first 

floor level of unit 61 (class A1) and mall 01-k9 to (sui generis) family 

entertainment centre to include , crazy golf lazer quest indoor caving escape 

rooms bumper cars virtual reality arcade, restaurants and bars, and (class d2) 

cinema with bar.

PROPOSAL OF APPLICATION NOTICE IS ACCEPTABLE

LA04/2021/1502/PAN MAJDEV Former Kennedy Enterprise Centre (north of West Shopping 

Centre)  Blackstaff Road  Belfast  BT11 9DT

Proposed social housing led, mixed tenure residential development comprising of 

c. 144 no. dwellings, vehicular access, open space, landscaping and associated 

site works.

PROPOSAL OF APPLICATION NOTICE IS ACCEPTABLE

LA04/2021/1506/F LOCDEV 47 Glendale  Dunmurry  BT10 0NX. Single storey rear extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1525/A LOCDEV Dublin Road Dental  23 Dublin Road  Belfast  BT2 7HB. Canopy sign over door with adjacent panel complete with high level dual side 

projecting sign inside door vinyl.

PERMISSION GRANTED

LA04/2021/1553/DC LOCDEV Lands bounded by Bedford Street  INI Building  McClintock Street 

and Franklin Street  Belfast.

Discharge of Condition 3 Parts 1, 2 and 3, LA04/2021/0320/F. CONDITION DISCHARGED

P
age 116



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1555/CONTPOLOCDEV 27b Deramore Park  Belfast  BT9 5JX. Tree surgery to 8 Lime 1 Sycamore . WORKS TO TREES IN CA - AGREED

LA04/2021/1558/PAN LOCDEV Lands approximately 700m north of  28 Colinglen Road  

Dunmurry  Belfast  BT17 0LR.

Proposed Battery Energy System (BESS) with storage capacity up to 25MW, 

associated electricity substation/transformer compound, improvement to the 

existing access, landscaping and associated ancillary developments works.

PROPOSAL OF APPLICATION NOTICE IS ACCEPTABLE

LA04/2021/1559/PAN MAJDEV Lands at Finaghy Road North  Belfast (to be south-west of 

Woodland Grange).

Residential development comprising 94 units including detached, semi-detached, 

townhouses and apartments.

PROPOSAL OF APPLICATION NOTICE IS ACCEPTABLE

LA04/2021/1599/DC LOCDEV Tesco  Ballygomartin Road  Belfast Discharge of condition no 6 of planning approval LA04/2020/0550/F CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

LA04/2021/1648/PAN LOCDEV Former BHS Building  13-25 Castle Lane  Belfast  BT1 5DB Physical development - comprising of the re-cladding of the exterior of the 

building, creation of a new access point to the upper floors and central core on 

Castle Arcade, demolition of part of the building over Castle Arcade and erection 

of a new oversail section at the junction of Castle Lane and Castle 

Arcade. Change of Use - comprising partial change of use of ground floor from 

storage to retail (Class A1) and change of use of all upper floors from retail and 

storage to a mixed use of Assembly and Leisure (Class D2 and a sui-generis 

multi-faceted leisure use combined with the sale of food and drink for consumption 

on the premises and change of use of the rooftop to an external leisure and food 

and drink use. All of the above is combined with association ancillary 

development and services installations.

PROPOSAL OF APPLICATION NOTICE IS ACCEPTABLE

LA04/2021/1671/LDE LOCDEV 18 St Ives Gardens  Belfast  BT9 5DN House in multiple occupancy HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

LA04/2021/1679/CONTPOLOCDEV 13 & 15 Cyprus Avenue  Belfast  BT5 5NT. Reduce overhang to enable broadband service line with telephone, approx 3 trees 

trimmed 2.0 mtrs off ends

WORKS TO TREES IN CA - AGREED

P
age 117



Reference Number Hierarchy Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/1830/PAN MAJDEV Former Kennedy Enterprise Centre (north of Westwood Shopping 

Centre)  Blackstaff Road  Belfast  BT11 9DT.

Proposed social housing led, mixed tenure residential development comprising of 

c. 144 no. dwellings, vehicular access, open space, landscaping and associated 

site works.

PROPOSAL OF APPLICATION NOTICE IS ACCEPTABLE

P
age 118



Page 119

Agenda Item 6



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Committee Application Addendum Report 
 

Development Management Report  

Application ID:  LA04/2020/0847/F 
 

Date of Committee:  17 August 2021 

Proposal:  
Partial demolition and redevelopment of 
existing buildings to provide 16 apartments 
(social housing units), communal bin store 
and landscaped communal garden (Amended 
Description and Drawings) 
 

Location: 
25-29 University Road and lands to the rear of 3 -17 
Claremont Street, Belfast, BT7 1NA 

Referral Route:  Objections received - Proposal is for over 12 residential units 
 

Recommendation:   
 

 REFUSAL (Previously approval) 
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
HOLG Ltd 
159 Durham Street 
Belfast 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Carlin Planning Limited 
Forsyth House 
Cromac Street 
Belfast 
 

ADDENDUM REPORT 
 
This full application was previously listed for Planning Committee on 15th June 2021. The item was 
deferred to allow the members of the Planning Committee to visit the site. The site visit took place on 
Tuesday 10th August 2021.  
 
Members should read this Addendum Report in conjunction with the original full detailed planning 
report attached below.   
 
Further Representations 
Prior to the June Planning Committee meeting, three additional objections were received in relation to 
the above proposed development (details of which were included in the late items for the June 
meeting). The content of the objections are detailed below: 
 
Email received on 11th June 2021 from one objector raising the following issues: 

 The objector notes planning approval and questions why he has not been notified of the 
outcome of the application. 

 Issues previously raised by objector are not indicated in the Planning Service Public 
Statement.  

 The clash of two areas, one an Area of Townscape character (ATC) and one a Conservation 
Area (CA) have not been properly addressed. DFC Heritage advice through the PAC states 
their concerns that this clash is in need of addressing. It is a material consideration the 
application falters on.  

 This is contrary to the requirement for due consideration at a time when the difficulties of 
formal / informal approaches have been hugely impacted. Caution in taking decisions in these 
circumstances is not evident.  

 Objector advises that he intends to seek a judicial review on the grounds of proposal failing to 
full address the ATC and CA standards as PAC and DFC have made intentional in their 
planning service instructions. This includes high density occupation of areas and overspill in 

Page 125

Agenda Item 7a



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 2 of 22 

granting more high-density occupation in oversaturated area outside the ‘Holylands’ and is 
evident in the absence of previously formed HMOs which this proposal is a variation of.  

With regard to this objection, members should note the following points: 
 

 Applications LA04/2020/0847/F and LA04/2020/1208/DCA have not been approved. Both 
applications were previously recommended for approval and listed for presentation at the 
June Planning Committee meeting, during which the applications were deferred for a 
committee site visit.  

 The issues previously raised by the objector were summarised and addressed in the report 
for LA04/2020/0847/F.  

 Issues pertaining to the ATC and CA designation are discussed in the case officer report for 
LA04/2020/0847/F. The other application LA04/2020/1208/DCA relates to the proposed 
demolition within the CA, therefore only the CA was considered in respect of this application.  

 Initial neighbour notification for LA04/2020/0847/F took place on 16th June 2020, with further 
notification taking place on 25th November 2020 and 19th May 2021.  

 The objector was notified on 19th May 2021 following submission of amended drawings.  

 Case officer report for LA04/2020/0847/F provides assessment of residential density of 
proposal in relation to surrounding context.  

 The proposed development relates to residential apartments. HMOs are not included within 
the proposal. In the event of approval, planning permission would be required to change the 
use to HMO.  

 
Following the Council’s response to the above email, a further email from the same objector was 
received on 15th June 2021: 

 The email advised that there are material considerations not accounted for which compromise 
the current considerations and may make them subject to judicial review if not properly 
considered.  

 Access to the application site from Claremont Street is via an existing archway. The objector 
advises that timber bearings and unsound structural arch support the first floor flat above and 
advises that this is not in the ownership of the applicant. Fire access is severely compromised 
at this point due to minimal headroom, structural defects and subject to other’s control.  

 Issue regarding the potential use of the internal stairs as a means of escape in emergency.  

 Paladins and refuse storage on street pavement are in front of 3 Levels Restaurant fire exit 
and delivery point.  

 
With regard to this second email, members should note the following points: 
 

 The issues raised were considered in the original case officer report, with exception of 

proposed refuse storage in front of the ‘3 Levels Restaurant’.  

 The structural issues and potential fire escape issues will be assessed by Building Control. 

Building Control are the relevant Authority to assess compliance with the Building 

Regulations.  

 The proposal does not include car parking. The 2 no. parking spaces marked on Drawing No. 

01B are for the use of the owner of No. 23. Therefore, it is anticipated that the majority of 

people accessing the rear of the site via the archway will be on foot or bicycle.   

 The proposed development does not include paladin fencing on Claremont Street. Bins are 

stored at the rear of the site within a secured area. Bins will only be stored on Claremont 

Street temporarily on collection days.  

 

A further objection was received from Ulster Architectural Heritage on 15th June 2021. The letter 
states:  
 

Page 126



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 3 of 22 

Ulster Architectural Heritage objects to the above applications and supports the Planning Officer’s 
report which concludes that the proposals would be contrary to policy.  
 
To grant demolition and partial demolitions of the properties, which are situated in a conservation 
area, would be contrary to policies PPS6 BH14, BH10 and BH12. 
 
On these grounds, UAH calls for the application to be refused and new proposals brought forward 
which are more sympathetic to the historic buildings and maintain their material contribution to the 
Queens Conservation Area. 
 

Members should note that the original case officer report did not conclude that the proposal is 

contrary to policy. Initially, the Case officer report concludes that, on balance, the proposed 

demolition and development complies with the policy tests of the SPPS and PPS 6. 

 

Subsequent to the June Planning Committee, a further objection (including photographs) was 
received dated 23rd June 2021. This objection raised the following issues: 
 

 Fire Safety and the uncontrolled means of escape. 

 Structural Archway is supported on timber bearings, which are in very unsound condition.   

 The applicant has ignored these issues as well as several other aspects of Fire Safety. 
 

Amended Scheme and Reconsideration  
On 4th August, the agent submitted amendments, specifically relating to the description of the 
proposal and proposed drawings. The proposal description has been amended to ‘Partial 
demolition and redevelopment of existing buildings to provide 16 apartments (social housing 
units), communal bin store and landscaped communal garden’. The proposed drawings have 
been amended to show the removal of the landscaped garden at the rear. 
 
It is noted that the proposal description still refers to the landscaped communal garden which has 
been removed. It is also noted that the drawing notes refer to the proposed amenity space of the 
original scheme, not the amended scheme.  
 
The agent has advised the Council that the applicant is in advanced discussions with Radius 
Housing Association (HA) and has indicated that there is significant social housing need in the area. 
The site has also been registered with Northern Ireland Housing Executive (NIHE). The Council has 
consulted with NIHE, however no response has yet been received. It is anticipated that members will 
be updated through the late items.  
 
Amenity Space Provision 
The agent has advised that Radius HA have indicated that they do not want the communal garden 
area at the rear of the development as it will be difficult to manage and maintain. The agent has 
advised that the overgrown area to the rear will be cleared and grassed, to improve the visual 
appearance / outlook, but not included as formal amenity space. Consequently, this results in a total 
amenity space of approximately 123 sq metres, equating to approximately 7.7 sq metres per 
apartment  
 
The agent has advised that the Council has previously accepted reduced amenity space standards 
for similar residential schemes, with previous approval LA04/2017/1268/F referenced as a potential 
precedent. Upon further consideration of this approved development, it is acknowledged that the 
proposed amenity space was lower than the proposed development. However, the ‘precedent’ 
scheme involved the re-use of listed buildings on Upper Crescent which has direct access to 
Crescent Gardens directly opposite the site. Consequently, it is not considered that this previous 
approval represents a precedent for a reduction in amenity space.  
 

Page 127



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 4 of 22 

 
Reduced Amenity Space and Noise Impact 
It is also noted that 55 sq metres of the proposed amenity space relates to two private areas at the 
front of the building for Apartment No’s 1 and 2. It is not considered that this area represents a quality 
amenity space, due to the noise associated with traffic along University Road. Para 8.40 of the 
original case officer report stated ‘that it is unlikely that recommended WHO guideline limits would be 
met’ in relation to the two front areas and the proposed balconies. EHO noted the additional 
communal amenity area at the rear of the proposed development and advised that it is likely that 
noise level during the day may achieve levels below the recommended noise limit as residents had 
the choice of using this area. EHO also refer to British Standard guidance regarding noise ‘the 
acoustic environment of external amenity areas that are an intrinsic part of the overall design should 
always be assessed and noise levels should ideally not be above the range 50-55dBLAeq,16hr’. The 
standard continues, however, as follows: “these guideline values may not be achievable in all 
circumstances where development might be desirable. In such a situation development should be 
designed to achieve the lowest practicable noise levels in these external amenity spaces but should 
not be prohibited’.  
 
As the original scheme included the rear communal garden, which would have been protected to a 
great extent from traffic and street noise, the case officer report concluded that, that given the various 
amenity options within the development, the proposal was considered acceptable in terms of noise. 
However, following amendments removing the rear garden and reducing the total amenity space to 
approximately 123 sq metres, it is now considered that the scheme is more reliant on the small 
amenity space provided at the front and balconies and it now falls short in terms of both space and 
quality of space. Consequently, it is now considered that the proposed amenity space will result in an 
unacceptable adverse effect on proposed properties in terms of noise.  
 
Whilst a communal courtyard is proposed at the rear of the development, it is minimal at 
approximately 35 sq metres and likely to be overshadowed for a significant period of the day and 
therefore again is not appropriate. 
 
Internal Space Standards 
Para 8.37 of the original case officer report stated that ‘Policy LC1 does not apply to this proposed 
development as the site location is not within an ‘established residential area’ as defined by Annex E 
of PPS 7 Addendum. Although the policy does not apply, it is noted that only 7 of the proposed 
apartments comply with the space standards, as set out in Annex A’.  
 
The proposed development has now been amended to ‘social’ housing specifically. It is noted that 
the space standards contained within Annex A of PPS 7 Addendum have been derived from DSD’s 
Housing Association Guide 2009: Design Standards. Consequently, it appears that over half, 9 out of 
16, of the proposed apartments are below the standard internal floor area.  This is unacceptable, as 
the impact on the quality of residential environment for this small space living accommodation is 
exacerbated by the loss of amenity through the loss of the rear garden area. Therefore, it is 
considered that the loss of space results in unacceptable over development of the site. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: REFUSAL 
 
Refusal Reasons: 
 

1) The proposal is contrary to the SPPS and Policy QD1 of Planning Policy Statement 7 in that 
the scheme results in overdevelopment of the site as it fails to provide a quality residential 
environment for prospective residents due to inadequate and inappropriate public and private 
amenity space; the internal living space fails to meet the standards set out and will further 

Page 128



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 5 of 22 

 
  

impact the quality of the living environment due to the failure to provide adequate and 
appropriate amenity space. 
 

2) The proposed is contrary to the SPPS and Policy QD1 of Planning Policy Statement 7 in that 
the proposed amenity space will result in an unacceptable adverse impact on proposed 
residents by way of noise and nuisance. 
 

 
 
 

Page 129



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 6 of 22 

Committee Application 
 

Development Management Report  

Application ID:  LA04/2020/0847/F Date of Committee:  15 June 2021 

Proposal:  
Partial demolition and redevelopment of 
existing buildings to provide 16 apartments, 
communal bin store and landscaped 
communal garden (Amended Drawings / 
Additional Information) 
 

Location: 
25-29 University Road and lands to the rear of 3 -17 
Claremont Street, Belfast, BT7 1NA 

Referral Route:  Objections received - Proposal is for over 12 residential units 
 

Recommendation:  APPROVAL   
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
HOLG Ltd 
159 Durham Street 
Belfast 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Carlin Planning Limited 
Forsyth House 
Cromac Street 
Belfast 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
The proposed development relates to ‘Partial demolition and redevelopment of existing buildings to 
provide 16 apartments, communal bin store and landscaped communal garden’.  
 
An associated application for Conservation Area Consent has been submitted in respect of the 
application site, proposing ‘Demolition of 25-29 University Road with retention of front facade and 
alterations to the ground floor façade’ (reference LA04/2020/1208/DCA).  
 
6 representations have been received in relation to this proposed development, 5 objections and 1 
support letter.  
 
The site is not zoned for a use within BUAP or draft BMAP. The building and front portion of the site 
is located within the Queens Conservation Area (CA), whilst the rear part of the site is located within 
the draft ‘Lower Lisburn Road’ Area of Townscape Character (dBMAP). The site is also located 
within the designated Queens Office Precinct (dBMAP). The site fronts on to University Road, which 
is a designated arterial route, as designated by dBMAP.  
 
The key issues to consider relate to: 
• Principle of demolition in the Conservation Area 
• Impact of proposal on the Conservation Area 
• Impact on residential amenity 
 
In relation to the proposed demolition, it is acknowledged that No. 25 and 27 have been damaged by 
fire. The CA Officer (CAO) has advised that there is no objection to the proposed demolition, 
provided the submitted structural information is accurate. An independent engineer has advised that, 
following consideration of the information, there is a case for partial demolition. The proposal results 
in the retention of the building facades, thereby protecting the features of the buildings which 
contribute to the character of the CA. Furthermore, it is noted that No. 29 University Avenue is a 
relatively new building and the internal layout of No. 25-27 has been amended over the years in line 

Page 130



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 7 of 22 

with its restaurant use. In conclusion, it is considered that, on balance, the proposed demolition is 
acceptable.  
 
With regard to the proposed development, it is considered that the retention of the front facades and 
improvements will result in the preservation of the character of the CA. However, the CAO has 
advised of concerns regarding the proposed rear elevation. These concerns are alleviated by the 
limited public views of the rear of the building. The only views of the proposed development from 
Queens CA will be of the front elevation. On balance, it is considered that the proposed development 
complies with the policy tests of the SPPS, PPS 6 and PPS 7 in respect of new development within 
CA’s.  
 
It is considered that the proposed development will not result in an adverse impact on residential 
amenity of proposed or existing occupiers. However, in order to achieve this, mitigation measures 
such as ‘opaque glazing’ and ‘sound reduction’ windows will need to be utilised. This can be secured 
by imposition of planning conditions. The proposal results in an acceptable provision of communal 
and private amenity space.  
 
Section 76 Agreement 

 As it is integral to the acceptability of the proposal, the communal amenity space to the rear 
will be secured through a Section 76 agreement.  

 A Travel Plan Co-ordinator will be appointed, establishment of a ‘car club’ scheme, provision 
of residential travel cards and cycle schemes for 3 years. 

 Façade retention system to ensure the building is adequately secured during demolition 
works. 

 
There are no concerns with regard to impact on the nearby listed building, site access, parking, 
drainage, flooding or sewage infrastructure. 
 
Recommendation - APPROVAL 
 
On balance, it is considered that the proposed development complies with the tests of the 
Development Plan and retained planning policy, therefore recommendation is to approve, subject to 
conditions and Section 76 agreement.  It is recommended that the Chief Executive, or her nominated 
officer, uses her delegated authority to finalise the wording of any conditions and to agree a Section 
76. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 8 of 22 

 
Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 
 
1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
1.5 
 
 
 
1.6 
 
 
 

Description of Proposed Development 
 
The proposed development relates to ‘Partial demolition and redevelopment of 
existing buildings to provide 16 apartments, communal bin store and landscaped 
communal garden’.  
 
The proposed development includes demolition of rear and internal walls with 
retention of the front façade and reinstatement of the fire damaged roof at No’s 25 
and 27.  
 
The proposed development will result in a 3-storey terraced building between the 
two existing buildings at No. 23 and 31. The proposal includes the retention of the 
front façade, with a three-storey cantilevered extension at the rear. Two car parking 
spaces, bin storage, cycle parking and a communal amenity area are located at the 
rear of the building, whilst there are two small areas of private amenity at the front of 
the building.  
 
The proposed front elevation includes 4 dormer windows and 4 roof lights within the 
proposed roof plane. The external materials include dark grey roof slates, hard 
wood sliding sash windows, render walls, metal downpipes and metal clad dormers.  
 
The proposed rear elevation includes two metal clad dormers within the roof plane. 
The rear extension is proposed to be finished in a mix of dark grey and buff white 
brick.  
 
An associated application for Conservation Area Consent has been submitted in 
respect of the application site, proposing ‘Demolition of 25-29 University Road with 
retention of front facade and alterations to the ground floor façade’ (reference 
LA04/2020/1208/DCA).  
 

2.0 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 

Description of Site 
 
The site is located within the urban limits of Belfast. The application site relates to 3 
buildings located within an existing terrace along University Road. Two of the 
buildings (No. 25 and 27) have been badly damaged in a fire, with damage to the 
roof, windows, doors and internal fittings clearly visible from the street. The 
buildings are 3 storeys in height, with a dormer window located on the roof plane of 
No. 29. The buildings are finished in render and the style / dimensions of the 
existing window openings of the application buildings replicate the neighbouring 
buildings along the terrace. The ground floor doors and windows are more modern 
in design and appearance. The front of the site is currently secured with fencing. 
The rear of the site is accessible via an existing archway located directly beside No. 
3 Claremont Street. There is a small yard at the rear of the site, which is currently 
used for parking and storage. At the rear of this yard, there is an elongated 
triangular area that runs along the rear of No. 9 – 17 Claremont Street. This area is 
quite overgrown with vegetation and appears to have been used for small scale 
dumping in the past.  
 
The surrounding area is characterised primarily by a mix of land uses, primarily 
residential and commercial (including restaurants, retail, offices and financial 
services). The front portion of the site, including the buildings, is located within the 

Page 132



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 9 of 22 

 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Queens Conservation Area, whilst the rear portion is located within a draft Area of 
Townscape Character.  
 

 
 
 

 
Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 
 

Site History 
 
LA04/2020/0392/DCA – 25-29 University Road - Full demolition of existing first and 
second floors including facades with facade retention of ground floor front and rear 
walls due to fire damage – Application Withdrawn  
 
LA04/2019/1523/F - 25-29 University Road - Partial demolition, alteration and 
extension of existing buildings including change of use from restaurant/offices to 20 
apartments and erection of communal bin store – Application Withdrawn 
 

Page 133



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 10 of 22 

LA04/2019/1526/DCA - 25-29 University Road - Partial demolition of internal and 
external walls, roof and rear returns – Application Withdrawn 
 
Z/2005/0326/A – 25-27 University Road - Advertising Banner on front elevation of 
Restaurant (Retrospective) – Permission refused 28/6/05 
 
Z/2004/0152/F – 25-27 University Road - Change of use and refurbishment of 
existing restaurant to provide public house – Permission Granted 18/5/04 
 
There are also various older applications associated with the historic restaurant use. 
 

4.0 Policy Framework 
 

4.1 
 
4.2 

Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP) 
 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (dBMAP)  
 

4.3 Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS)  
PPS 3 Access, Movement and Parking 
PPS 6 Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage 
PPS 6 Addendum Areas of Townscape Character 
PPS 7 Quality Residential Environments 
PPS 7 Addendum - Safeguarding the character of established residential areas 
PPS 12 Housing in Settlements 
PPS 15 Planning and Flood Risk 
 

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

5.1 DFI Roads – No objections, subject to conditions. 
 

5.2 
 

Historic Environment Division – No objections, subject to condition.  

5.3 
 

NI Water – No objections 
 

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

6.1 BCC Environmental Health – No objections, subject to conditions 
 

6.2 Rivers Agency – No objections 
 

6.3 
 

BCC Conservation Area Officer – No objection to demolition, on the basis that 
submitted structural information is accurate. Concerns with proposed development 
noted, however balanced against the limited public views.  
 

7.0 Representations 
 

7.1 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 

6 representations have been received in relation to this proposed development, 5 
objections and 1 support letter.  
 
The objections raised the following issues: 

 Land ownership issues have been raised by third parties.  

 Claremont Street being dealt with by two separate planning officers as it is 
split by postcode. 

Page 134



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 11 of 22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 

 Only one means of escape and only one staircase for all upper floor 
accommodation, resulting in fire risk.  

 Open living rooms / kitchens are compressed into the unsized flats with no 
consideration of amenity or safety.  

 Minimal outlook from apartments.  

 Apartments accessed through a very low archway under separate 
management and therefore not a reliable escape route or fire access route.  

 Rear of the site is used for car parking by restaurant and other occupants, 
restricting the amenity, safety, refuse, air quality, anti-social activities and 
neighbourhood intensity. 

 The proposal has no community benefit.  

 The proposal removes historic diversity.  

 Overbearing nature of the rear extension is without design precedent and is 
of poor design standard.  

 Proposal represents overdevelopment.  

 The archway on Claremont Street is compromised by this application. 

 Buildings and site access are all affected by subsidence, including adjacent 
restaurant and nearby housing at Claremont Court.  

 Proposed building is not fully wheelchair accessible.  

 Proposal fails to meet the ATC and historical aspects of the location.  

 Proposal raises a prematurity issue in relation to the Local Area Plan.  

 Proposal is inappropriate and questions whether it is HMO / Air BnB style 
accommodation. 

 
The support letter raised the following issue: 

 The removal of the fire damaged building is welcomed. 
 

8.0 
 

Assessment 
 

 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.3 
 
 

 
Preliminary Matters 
Objections has been received from third parties claiming that parts of the site are 
not in the ownership of the applicant. Following receipt of the first objection 
regarding land ownership, the applicant served notice on a 3rd party landowner and 
amended the planning certificate on the P1 form to reflect the 3rd party ownership. 
One objection related to the land at the rear of the site behind No. 11 Claremont 
Street. The Council sought further clarification from the planning agent, who advised 
that the application certificate in relation to ownership had been completed correctly. 
In the absence of any evidence to the contrary, it is assumed that the correct 
certificate has been completed. The grant of planning permission relates to the land, 
not the applicant.  
 
A further objection letter advised that Claremont Street is being dealt with by two 
separate planning officers as it is split by postcode. It is not unusual for different 
planning officers to deal with proposed developments on the same street or within 
the same area. Belfast City Council is the statutory Planning Authority and the 
identity of the individual case officer is not considered to be material.   
 
Development Plan context 
Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 requires regard to be had 
to the Development Plan, so far as material to the application and to any other 
material considerations. Section 6(4) states that where regard is to be had to the 
Development Plan, the determination must be made in accordance with the Plan 

Page 135



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 12 of 22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.5 
 
 
 
 
 
8.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.7 
 
 
 
 
 
8.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.10 
 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The adopted Belfast Metropolitan 
Area Plan 2015 (BMAP) has been quashed as a result of a judgement in the Court 
of Appeal delivered on 18th May 2017. As a consequence of this, the Belfast Urban 
Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is now the statutory development plan for the area with 
dBMAP remaining a material consideration.  
 
The site is not zoned for a use within BUAP or draft BMAP. The front portion of the 
site including the buildings is located within the Queens Conservation Area (CA), 
whilst the rear part of the site is located within the draft ‘Lower Lisburn Road’ Area 
of Townscape Character (dBMAP). The site is also located within the designated 
Queens Office Precinct (dBMAP). The site fronts on to University Road, which is a 
designated arterial route, as designated by dBMAP.  
 
SPPS 
The SPPS provides a regional framework of planning policy that will be taken 
account of in the preparation of Belfast City Council’s Local Development Plan 
(LDP). At present, the LDP has not been adopted therefore transitional 
arrangements require the council to take account of the SPPS and existing planning 
policy documents, with the exception of PPS 1, 5 and 9.  
 
Para 6.18 of the SPPS states that the guiding principle for managing development 
within a CA is to ‘afford special regard to the desirability of enhancing its character 
or appearance where an opportunity to do so exists, or to preserve its character or 
appearance where an opportunity to enhance does not arise. Accordingly, there will 
be a general presumption against the grant of planning permission for development 
or conservation area consent for demolition of unlisted buildings, where proposals 
would conflict with this principle’. This is consistent with Section 104 of the Planning 
Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 (The 2011 Act). 
 
Development proposals within the CA should be sympathetic to the characteristic 
built form of the area, respect the character of adjoining buildings, not result in 
environmental problems, protect important views within, into and out of the area, 
protect trees and landscape features and conform with the guidance set out in the 
Conservation Area Design Guide. 
 
The SPPS also aims to promote more sustainable housing development within 
existing urban areas and places emphasis on increasing housing density within 
settlements, particularly locations that benefit from high accessibility to public 
transport facilities. The SPPS also encourages balanced communities and good 
design. 
 
Principle of Demolition 
Policy BH14 of PPS 6 states ‘The Department will normally only permit the 
demolition of an unlisted building in a conservation area where the building makes 
no material contribution to the character or appearance of the area’. 
The Conservation Area Officer (CAO) has provided comment on the proposal, 
advising that the existing buildings make a significant contribution to the 
architectural and historic interest / character and appearance of the CA. As such, 
there is a presumption against demolition. In assessing proposals for demolition, the 
Department will have regard to the same broad criteria for demolition of listed 
buildings.  
 
Para 6.5 of PPS 6 provides further amplification of the issues that are generally 
relevant to listed building consent applications, specifically importance of the 
building, its architectural and historic interest, the particular physical features of the 

Page 136



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 13 of 22 

 
 
 
 
8.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.12 
 
 
 
 
8.13 
 
 
 
8.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.15 
 
 
 
 
 
8.16 
 
 
 
 
 
8.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.18 
 
 

building, the building’s setting and contribution to the local scene and the extent to 
which proposed works would bring substantial benefits to the community.  
 
The CAO has identified the features of the buildings which make a significant 
contribution to the architectural and historic interest / character and appearance of 
the CA, i.e. the buildings feature a stuccoed finish, with decorative quoins, console 
brackets supporting eaves and sliding sash windows within moulded surrounds. The 
agent has advised that the proposed demolition does not include these features as 
the front facades are to be retained.  
 
Policy BH10 of PPS 6 states ‘There will be a presumption in favour of retaining 
listed buildings. The Department will not permit the demolition of a listed building 
unless there are exceptional reasons why the building cannot be retained in its 
original or a reasonably modified form’. 
 
The agent advises that the exceptional reason for demolishing the internal parts of 
the building and rear elevations is that the building has been severely fire damaged. 
It is noted that only two of the three buildings (No’s 25 and 27) are fire damaged.  
 
In accordance with Para 6.23 and 6.25 of PPS 6, the agent has provided additional 
information in support of the case for demolition. The agent advises that the building 
is fire damaged and is not currently in use, therefore the proposal offers a viable 
new use for the site. He does not believe that it would be viable for a charitable or 
community organisation to bring this building back into use. Furthermore, he 
advises that the important features of the buildings previously identified by the CAO 
are proposed for retention and there are clear benefits to regenerating the site to 
provide housing in line with the Belfast Agenda and emerging LDP. The agent 
advises that the condition of the building is very poor as outlined in the structural 
reports and the intention of the scheme is to repair the building whilst retaining and 
enhancing the historic features identified by the CAO. He considers the proposed 
scheme represents an alternative proposal for the site.  
 
The CAO acknowledges the information submitted by the agent in support of the 
proposed demolition and recommends that an independent structural engineer’s 
report is sought to verify the submitted details. The CAO advises further that on the 
basis that the submitted details are bona fide and sufficient to meet the PPS6 
criteria, there would be no objections to the demolition works. 
 
As noted earlier, information has been submitted by the agent to support the case 
for demolition. The Council has sought independent expert advice and has been 
advised that there appears to be a case for some demolition (or careful 
dismantling), however the engineer questioned the argument in relation to 
demolition of No. 29 as it had not been damaged in the fire.  
 
Further research into the history of the building at No. 29 shows that this building 
was actually constructed approximately 16-18 years ago, in accordance with 
previous approval(s) Z/2002/1532/F and Z/2002/1533/F. The below image from 
Google earth shows the site of No. 29 as a vacant gap site in December 2001. It is 
noted that the redevelopment of the site took place subsequent to the designation of 
Queens CA.  
 

Page 137



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 14 of 22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.19 
 
 
 
 
 
8.20 
 
 
 
8.21 
 
 
 
 
8.22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.24 
 
 

 
 
In addition, there is a significant planning history associated with No. 25 and 27 in 
relation to the previous use as a restaurant. Consequently, the internal layout of 
both buildings had been amended significantly from the traditional layout when the 
buildings were first constructed.  
 
Character 
As indicated previously, the front portion of the site is located within the Queens CA, 
whilst the rear portion of the site is located within the draft ‘Lower Lisburn Road’ 
Area of Townscape Character (ATC).  
 
There was an objection to the proposed ATC designation during the BMAP public 
inquiry. Although the PAC report advises that no site-specific details were included 
with the objection, it is unclear if a Lower Lisburn Road ATC designation will be 
included, if and when BMAP is adopted.  
 
The PAC also considered objections to the general policy for the control of 
development in ATCs which is contained in the draft BMAP. The PAC 
recommended that the policy be deleted and that detailed character analysis be 
undertaken, with a design guide produced for each ATC. It would be wrong to make 
any assumptions as to whether these recommendations will be reflected in any 
lawfully adopted BMAP or as to whether the text detailing the key features of the 
Lower Lisburn Road ATC will be repeated. As it stands, it is unclear how the area 
will be characterised in any lawfully adopted BMAP and by extension, how the 
proposal will impact the character. Regardless of the lack of a policy context, the 
impact of the proposal on the proposed ATC remains a material consideration and 
can still be objectively assessed. 
 
With regard to the proposed development, the CAO has provided comments, 
advising of no objections in relation to the front elevation, ‘As now proposed the 
front elevation is considered of suitable scale, form, massing, design and 
elevational treatment to preserve the character and appearance of the conservation 
area. Considering the damage that has been done to the existing building, it would 
also represent an enhancement over the current situation on site’. 
 

Page 138



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 15 of 22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.26 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.28 
 
 
 
8.29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The CAO advises that the existing rear returns do not respect the traditional three-
dimensional hierarchical arrangement of domestic architecture, however, suggests 
that the proposed rear building line should project no further than the existing 
returns. Concerns are noted that the rear return projects in an irregular shape 
beyond the ground floor building line, thereby increasing the overall massing/bulk, 
resulting in a return which is not subservient to the parent building. The CAO also 
raises issue with the roof form of the rear return and the proposed dormers at the 
rear of the primary building. The Queens Conservation Area Design Guide states 
that ‘Dormer windows will not be permitted to collectively occupy more than 30% of 
the area of any particular roof elevation’. The proposed dormer windows cover 
approximately 36% of the rear roof elevation. However, the CAO acknowledges that 
there are no public views onto the rear return from the street scene therefore it is 
difficult to conclude that it would result in a negative visual impact on the CA.  
 
In summary, with regard to the proposed rear return, the CAO advises that 
‘Concerns remain with scale, form and massing of the rear extension/alterations, 
and it would be preferable if the scheme was revised to address these; however I 
acknowledge that due to the limited views of the rear return from the public realm, 
that there would be no demonstrable harm arising as a direct consequence. As 
such the character and appearance of the conservation area would still be 
preserved’.  
 
Following consideration of the CAO’s comments, it is concluded that the proposed 
front elevation represents an opportunity to enhance the character and appearance 
of the CA, both in the repair of the existing fire damaged building and the addition 
and refurbishment of architectural details, such as decorative quoins and console 
brackets supporting eaves. On close inspection of the existing buildings, the 
brackets on No. 29 are not as ornate and are missing the decorative panels as 
exhibited on No’s 25-27. The proposed elevation results in No. 29 replicating the 
architectural details of the other two buildings. As the proposal includes retention of 
the existing building facades, a Section 76 agreement is required to secure this. 
 
Despite this, there are concerns with the proposed rear elevation, in relation to the 
form / massing / roof form of the rear return and the provision of large dormer 
windows on the roof of the primary building. These concerns are balanced 
somewhat by the limited views of the rear elevation from the public realm. 
Furthermore, the only achievable views of the proposed development from Queens 
CA are limited to the front elevation.  
 
It is not considered that the proposed development conflicts with the policy tests of 
Policy ATC 2 of PPS 6 Addendum. The portion of the site within the draft ATC does 
not include any built development.  
 
In summary, on balance, it is considered that the proposed development complies 
with the policy tests of the SPPS and PPS 6 in that it results in an enhancement of 
the character and appearance of the CA. Furthermore, the proposal complies with 
the tests of PPS 7 in that the development respects the surrounding context and is 
appropriate to the character and topography of the site. 
 
Residential Density 
The application site measures approximately 800 sq metres. The proposed 
development for 16 apartments equates to a residential of approximately 200 
dwellings per Hectare and is therefore considered a high-density development. It is 
important to consider the surrounding context in terms of residential density. 
University Road is defined by a mix of uses, predominantly of a commercial and 

Page 139



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 16 of 22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.31 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.32 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.33 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.34 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

residential nature. There are examples of high-density residential development 
along University Road within close proximity of the site, such as University Court, an 
apartment development located approximately 60 metres to the north of the site. 
University Court has a residential density equating to approximately 280 dwellings 
per Hectare. Claremont Street is a predominantly residential area, with 2 relatively 
large apartment developments. The residential density of Claremont Street equates 
to approximately 166 dwellings per Hectare. Claremont Court, an apartment 
development located approximately 30 metres south of the application site has a 
residential density of approximately 380 dwellings per Hectare.  
 
The front of the application site, including the existing buildings, is located within the 
Queens CA. This contrasts with most of the surrounding residential development, 
which is located outside the CA. It is not considered that the application site is 
located within a residential part of the CA. Furthermore, the SPPS advises that 
higher density housing development should be promoted in locations that benefit 
from high accessibility to public transport facilities. It is therefore considered that the 
proposed residential density is acceptable.  
 
Impact on Listed buildings 
The application site is located in close proximity to a Grade B listed Building, 
Methodist Church (Deconsecrated), University Road (Ref. HB26/28/006). Historic 
Environment Division have considered the effects of the proposal on the listed 
building and concluded that it satisfies the policy tests of the SPPS para 6.12 and 
Policy BH11 of PPS 6, subject to a condition ensuring all works, materials and 
finishes are in accordance with the submitted drawings.  
 
Residential Amenity 
An ‘Internal Daylight Report’ was submitted in support of the proposed development 
following a request from the Council. It is noted that the ground floor apartments at 
the rear will be most impacted by reduced levels of daylight / sunlight, however the 
proposed design has been amended to include additional windows. For example, 
Apartment 4 kitchen / living room has been amended to include 4 separate windows 
to increase the amount of daylight received internally. The report concludes that the 
proposed development meets the target design standards and published guidance 
in terms of daylight levels within habitable rooms.  
 
The front of the building is orientated in an easterly direction, whilst the windows in 
the proposed rear extension are generally orientated in a southerly or westerly 
direction. The building at No. 31 University Road has a large rear extension and is 
located due south of the application site. It is considered that this extension will 
result in overshadowing of the proposed development, however the courtyard 
provides separation of approximately 6.5 – 8.5 metres between the two extensions. 
Given the surrounding context, it is not considered that the potential overshadowing 
will create an adverse impact. 
 
Six of the rear apartments include balconies orientated in a southerly direction. The 
orientation of the rear extension means that potential for overlooking towards the 
dwellings from No. 3 to 17 Claremont Street is limited. The closest dwellings on 
Claremont Street (No. 3, 5 and 7) are located to the south west of the proposed 
return therefore mitigating against potential overlooking. No. 9 Claremont Street has 
a rear return with two windows facing the proposed building. The separation 
distance is approximately 17 metres. The primary windows in the living areas of 
Apartments 7, 11 and 15 are orientated to the south, however each apartment has a 
bedroom window and living room window orientated in a westerly direction. On 
balance, whilst views of No. 9 Claremont Street are achievable, it is not considered 

Page 140



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 17 of 22 

 
 
8.36 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.37 
 
 
 
 
 
8.38 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.39 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.40 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.41 
 
 
 
 
 

to represent an unacceptable adverse impact. There are concerns with potential 
overlooking from the rear access ramp into the living area of Apartment 4. It is 
considered that this can be mitigated by a condition requiring opaque glazing in the 
event of approval.  
 
8 of the 16 proposed apartments have outlook on to University Road. Furthermore, 
the private amenity space at the front of the development provides defensible 
space. The remaining apartments located at the rear have outlook over the 
courtyard and / or the communal amenity area at the rear of the site. The inclusion 
of the communal green area is important in this scheme to provide an outlook for 
the rear facing apartments which otherwise would not be acceptable.  
 
Space Standards 
Policy LC1 does not apply to this proposed development as the site location is not 
within an ‘established residential area’ as defined by Annex E of PPS 7 Addendum. 
Although the policy does not apply, it is noted that only 7 of the proposed 
apartments comply with the space standards, as set out in Annex A.  
 
Noise & Odour 
A Noise and Odour Impact Assessment was originally submitted in support of the 
proposed development, however additional noise and odour information was 
submitted throughout the process to address issues raised by BCC Environmental 
Health (EHO). The Assessment identified that the proposal could be impacted by 
traffic noise and plant / equipment noise associated with the adjoining restaurant at 
No. 31 University Road.  
 
EHO have considered the properties at No. 21 and 23 University Road in relation to 
potential noise nuisance. There is an extant approval for ‘Change of use from place 
of worship (sui generis) to public house (sui generis)’ at 21 University Road (ref. 
Z/2014/1655/F) and there is an existing restaurant at No. 23, which is currently 
closed. Information was submitted calculating the potential noise impact as a result 
of patron dispersal from these premises. It is considered that this impact can be 
mitigated by addition of ‘sound reduction’ windows.  
 
EHO have also provided comment on the proposed amenity areas of the proposed 
development. In relation to the private amenity spaces and balconies, the noise 
consultant advises that it is unlikely that recommended WHO guideline limits would 
be met. However, EHO note the additional communal amenity area at the rear of 
the proposed development and advise that it is likely that noise level during the day 
may achieve levels below the recommended noise limit. Furthermore, EHO also 
refer to British Standard guidance regarding noise ‘the acoustic environment of 
external amenity areas that are an intrinsic part of the overall design should always 
be assessed and noise levels should ideally not be above the range 50-
55dBLAeq,16hr’. The standard continues, however, as follows: “these guideline 
values may not be achievable in all circumstances where development might be 
desirable. In such a situation development should be designed to achieve the 
lowest practicable noise levels in these external amenity spaces but should not be 
prohibited’. Given the above comments in addition to the urban location of the 
proposal and the various amenity options within the development (i.e. communal 
amenity area, courtyard, private amenity areas and balconies), it is considered that 
the proposal is acceptable in terms of noise.  
 
EHO provided additional comment on the communal amenity area at the rear of the 
development, advising that it could create potential nuisance for the neighbouring 
residents. Consequently, EHO recommend a condition should be placed in the 

Page 141



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 18 of 22 

8.42 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.43 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.44 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.45 
 
 
 
8.46 
 
 
 
 
8.47 
 
 
 
8.48 
 
 
 
 
8.49 
 
 
 
 
 

event of approval restricting access to the area after 11.00 pm. A management Plan 
for the apartments will also be conditioned. 
 
In relation to odour, EHO have considered the aforementioned restaurant at No. 23 
University Road, which is currently closed. EHO note that it is unlikely that the 
kitchen extraction system was designed to provide a very high level of odour control 
as at that time there would not have been residential premises immediately 
adjoining it. However, the dispersion point for this extraction system is such that it 
would not be expected to arise in a significant odour concern.  
 
Amenity Space 
The proposed development includes an area of communal amenity space to the 
rear, including benches and landscaping. This area measures approximately 167 sq 
metres. Furthermore, there is a courtyard at the rear of proposed building with 
benches for amenity. The four ground floor apartments have private amenity areas, 
whilst six of the apartments on the upper floors have private balconies. 
Consequently, the proposed development includes adequate provision of amenity 
space.  
As it is integral to the acceptability of the proposal, the communal amenity space to 
the rear will be secured through a Section 76 agreement. Members should note that 
this part of the site is not currently within the ownership of the applicant. The 
applicant has advised that notice has been served on the appropriate landowner.  
 
Access and Parking 
The proposal does not include any parking spaces (2 spaces are retained for use of 
the owner of No. 23), however 16 covered cycle parking spaces are provided. A 
Parking survey and Travel Plan have been submitted in support of the proposal. 
The Travel Plan includes measures to encourage the use of other modes of 
transport other than the private car, including appointment of a Travel Plan Co-
ordinator, establishment of a ‘car club’ scheme, provision of residential travel cards 
and cycle schemes for 3 years. DFI Roads provided comment on the proposal and 
offered no objections.  
 
Ramped access is provided at the rear of the proposed building, in addition to level 
access at the front. Furthermore, there is a lift proposed within the building, 
therefore assisting the needs of people whose mobility is impaired. 
 
Movement and Connectivity 
The site is located on an arterial route and is highly accessible for walking, cycling, 
driving and by public transport. Local neighbourhood facilities are also located in 
close proximity to the site.  
 
Sewage infrastructure 
NI Water (NIW) have advised that there is available capacity within the existing 
sewage network to facilitate the proposal. 
 
Flooding & Drainage 
A Drainage Assessment was submitted in support of the proposal, in accordance 
with Policy FLD 3 of PPS 15. Rivers Agency provided comment on the DA and 
advised they have no objections to the proposed development 
 
Fire safety & Structural issues 
The objections have raised issues regarding fire safety and structural issues in 
relation to the archway. It is not considered that the internal layout of the proposed 
development will contribute to risks in the event of fire. In any case, in the event of 

Page 142



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 19 of 22 

 
8.50 
 
 
 

approval, an application will need to be made to Building Control who assess the 
proposal in accordance with the Building Regulations.  
 
Section 76 Agreement 

 As it is integral to the acceptability of the proposal, the communal amenity 
space to the rear will be secured through a Section 76 agreement.  

 A Travel Plan Co-ordinator will be appointed, establishment of a ‘car club’ 
scheme, provision of residential travel cards and cycle schemes for 3 years. 

 Façade retention system to ensure the building is adequately secured during 
demolition works. 

 

9.0 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
9.5 

Summary of Recommendation:    APPROVAL 
 
In relation to the proposed demolition, it is acknowledged that No. 25 and 27 have 
been damaged by fire. The CAO has advised that there is no objection to the 
proposed demolition, provided the submitted structural information is accurate. An 
independent engineer has advised that, following consideration of the information, 
there is a case for demolition. The proposal results in the retention of the building 
facades, thereby protecting the features of the buildings which contribute to the 
character of the CA. Furthermore, it is noted that No. 29 University Avenue is a 
relatively new building and the internal layout of No. 25-27 has been amended over 
the years in line with its restaurant use. In conclusion, it is considered that, on 
balance, the proposed demolition is acceptable.  
 
With regard to the proposed development, it is considered that the retention of the 
front facades and improvements will result in an enhancement of the character of 
the CA. However, the CAO has advised of concerns regarding the proposed rear 
elevation. These concerns are alleviated by the limited public views of the rear of 
the building. The only views of the proposed development from Queens CA will be 
of the front elevation. On balance, it is considered that the proposed development 
complies with the policy tests of the SPPS, PPS 6 and PPS 7 in respect of new 
development within CA’s.  
 
It is considered that the proposed development will not result in an unacceptable 
adverse impact on residential amenity of proposed or existing occupiers. However, 
in order to achieve this, mitigation measures such as ‘opaque glazing’ and ‘sound 
reduction’ windows will need to be utilised. This can be secured by imposition of 
planning conditions. The proposal results in an acceptable provision of communal 
and private amenity space.  
 
There are no concerns with regard to impact on the nearby listed building, site 
access, parking, drainage, flooding or sewage infrastructure. 
 
On balance, it is considered that the proposed development complies with the tests 
of the Development Plan and retained planning policy, therefore recommendation is 
to approve, subject to conditions and Section 76 agreement. It is requested that the 
Section 76 Agreement and final wording of conditions is delegated to the Strategic 
Director of Place and Economy. 
 

10.0 
 
 
 
 

Conditions 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 
years from the date of this permission. 
 

Page 143



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 20 of 22 

 
 
 

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
 2. No dwelling shall be occupied until weather protected cycle parking has 
been fully provided in accordance with Drawing No. 01B uploaded to the Planning 
Portal on 20th November 2020.  
 
REASON:  To ensure acceptable cycle parking facilities on the site and to 
encourage alternative modes of transport to the private car. 
 
 3. No dwelling shall be occupied until hard surfaced parking areas have been 
provided and permanently marked in accordance with Drawing No. 01B uploaded to 
the Planning Portal on 20th November 2020. . These facilities shall be permanently 
retained. 
 
REASON:  To ensure acceptable parking facilities on the site. 
 
 4. The development shall operate in accordance with the Waste Management 
Plan uploaded to the Planning Portal on 22nd May 2020.  
 
REASON: In the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users. 
 
 5. The development shall operate in accordance with the Travel Plan uploaded 
to the Planning Portal on 7th January 2021. 
 
REASON: To encourage alternative modes of transport to the private car. 
 
 6. Prior to installation, the applicant shall submit to the Planning Authority, for 
review and approval in writing, the final window schedule detailing the glazing 
configuration and sound reduction performance of the proposed windows to 
habitable rooms on all facades of the hereby permitted development. The window 
specification for habitable rooms shall be in line with recommendations of section 5 
of the Layde Acoustic Noise and Odour Impact Assessment (dated March 2020, 
referenced P389/2). 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 
 
 7. Prior to occupation of the hereby permitted development, the approved final 
window schedule and approved alternative means of ventilation shall be installed so 
as to achieve suitable internal noise levels in all habitable rooms in accordance with 
BS8233:2014, with the windows closed and the alternative ventilation provided in 
compliance with building control requirements 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 
 
 8. Prior to installation, the applicant shall submit to the Planning Authority, for 
review and approval in writing, confirmation of the specification of alternative 
mechanical means of ventilation. The specification shall be located at rooftop as 
recommended in section 6.3 of the Layde Consulting Noise and Odour Impact 
Assessment dated March 2020. The specification for the alternative means of 
ventilation shall demonstrate that the operation of the system will not compromise 
the recommended internal noise levels of habitable rooms outlined in British 
Standard BS8233:2014. 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 

Page 144



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 21 of 22 

 
 9. Prior to occupation of the hereby permitted development, the approved final 
window schedule and approved alternative means of ventilation shall be installed so 
as to achieve suitable internal noise levels in all habitable rooms in accordance with 
BS8233:2014, with the windows closed and the alternative ventilation provided in 
compliance with building control requirements 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 
 
10. Prior to occupation of the hereby permitted development, the approved final 
window schedule and approved alternative means of ventilation shall be installed. 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 
 
11. Prior to occupation of the hereby permitted development, the developer shall 
verify that the window schedule and alternative means of ventilation as approved 
have been installed by way of a written declaration from the supplier and installation 
contractor confirming such installation. 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 
 
12. The fire damaged party walls between the commercial premises at no. 23 
and no.31 University Road shall be upgraded to a finished construction as 
presented in point 11 of the Layde Consulting letter dated 8th July 2020, referenced 
P/389/2 and shall be capable of providing a sound reduction of at least 55dBRw. 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 
 
13. The fire damaged party walls between the commercial premises at no. 23 
and no.31 University Road shall be upgraded to a finished construction as 
presented in point 11 of the Layde Consulting letter dated 8th July 2020, referenced 
P/389/2 and shall be capable of providing a sound reduction of at least 55dBRw. 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 
 
14. Access to and use of the communal external amenity area located between 
the rear of Claremont Street and Fountainville Street shall not be permitted between 
the hours of 23:00-07:00hrs. 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 
 
15. The rear external communal amenity area shall incorporate a 1.8m high 
close boarded fence and include retention of the boundary wall as shown in 
Drawing No. 01B uploaded to the Planning Portal on 20th November 2020. 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity. 
 
16. No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used in 
the construction of the external surfaces of the building hereby permitted, have 
been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Council. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to allow the Council to control the 
external appearance. 

Page 145



Application ID: LA04/2020/0847/F 

Page 22 of 22 

 
17. The window marked with an X on Drawing No. 06C uploaded to the 
Planning Portal on 4th June 2021 shall be finished in opaque glass, shall be 
permanently retained, and in the event of breakage shall be replaced with obscure 
glass within four weeks to the satisfaction of Belfast City Council. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity. 
 
18. All works, materials and finishes shall be completed in accordance with 
Drawing No. 06C uploaded to the Planning Portal on 4th June 2021.  
 
Reason: Protection of nearby listed building.  
 
19. Prior to the first occupation of the dwelling units hereby approved an Apartment  
Management Plan (AMP) shall be submitted for agreement in writing by the Council.  
The AMP will include the management of resident activity in the communal amenity 
area, hours of operation; and the retention & management of boundaries and 
landscaping and access. 
 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity 
 
 

Notification to Department (if relevant) 
 
 

Representations from Elected members: 
 
N/A 

 

 

Page 146



 

 

 

Development Management 

Addendum Report 

Application ID:  LA04/2020/1208/DCA Date of Committee:  17 August 2021 

Proposal:  
Demolition of 25-29 University Road with 
retention of front facade and alterations to the 
ground floor facade (Amended Description & 
Drawings) 
 

Location: 
25-29 University Road and lands to the rear of 3 -17 
Claremont Street, Belfast, BT7 1NA 

Referral Route:  Objections received - Proposal is for over 12 residential units 
 

Recommendation:    REFUSAL (Previously Approval) 
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
HOLG Ltd 
159 Durham Street 
Belfast 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Carlin Planning Limited 
Forsyth House 
Cromac Street 
Belfast 
 

 
ADDENDUM REPORT 
 
This Conservation Area Consent application was previously listed for Planning Committee on 15th June 
2021. The item was deferred to allow the members of the Planning Committee to visit the site. The site 
visit took place on Tuesday 10th August 2021.  
 
Members should read this Addendum Report in conjunction with the original full Case Officer report 
attached below.   
 
An associated full application for redevelopment of the site has been submitted in respect of the 
application site, which now as amended proposes ‘Partial demolition and redevelopment of existing 
buildings to provide 16 apartments (social housing units), communal bin store and landscaped 
communal garden’ (reference LA04/2020/0847/F).  
 
The proposal description has been amended since the June 2021 Planning Committee meeting to 
include ‘social housing’ in the description. This application was previously recommended for approval, 
subject to a Section 76 agreement to secure the inclusion of an area of rear amenity. Following the 
recent submission of amendments including the description to social housing and the removal of the 
rear communal amenity area, the full application is now recommended for refusal. 
 
Without the rear amenity area, the provision of amenity space falls to approximately 7.7 sq m per 
apartment, below the minimum standard advised in Creating Places. Furthermore, removal of this area 
results in a reliance on the private balconies and amenity areas at the front of the building, which is not 
appropriate as it will be impacted by noise for potential occupiers as its located on a busy main road. 
It is noted that the previous recommendation to approve was a balanced recommendation, with 
concerns noted in relation to the proposed demolition, impact on Queens Conservation Area and 
residential amenity. The rear amenity space was considered integral to the acceptability of the 
proposed development. Following the removal of same, it is considered that the balance is no longer 
in favour of approval, the officer recommendation has therefore changed and the proposal is 
recommended for refusal. 
 

Page 147



Application ID: LA04/2020/1208/DCA 

Page 2 of 10 

PPS 6 clarifies that full information and detailed plans about what is proposed for the site after 
demolition will be required with any conservation area consent applications, and where consent may 
be granted, this would normally be subject to conditions requiring redevelopment in line with an 
approved scheme.  
 
Consequently, whilst there is no objection in principle to the proposed demolition under Policy BH14, 
consent would only be considered appropriate where a suitable replacement scheme has been fully 
evaluated and found to be acceptable in accordance with planning policy. The full application 
LA04/2020/0847/F has been recommended for refusal, therefore the proposed demolition does not 
comply with Policy BH 14 of PPS 6 and is therefore recommended for refusal.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: REFUSAL 
 
Refusal Reasons: 
 

1) The proposal is contrary to the SPPS and Policy BH 14 of Planning Policy Statement 6 in that 
appropriate arrangements for the redevelopment of the site have not been approved.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 148



Application ID: LA04/2020/1208/DCA 

Page 3 of 10 

 
 
 

Committee Application 
 

Development Management Report  

Application ID:  LA04/2020/1208/DCA Date of Committee:  15 June 2021 

Proposal:  
Demolition of 25-29 University Road with 
retention of front facade and alterations to the 
ground floor facade (Amended Description & 
Drawings) 
 

Location: 
25-29 University Road and lands to the rear of 3 -17 
Claremont Street, Belfast, BT7 1NA 

Referral Route:  Objections received - Proposal is for over 12 residential units 
 

Recommendation:  APPROVAL   
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
HOLG Ltd 
159 Durham Street 
Belfast 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Carlin Planning Limited 
Forsyth House 
Cromac Street 
Belfast 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
The proposed demolition works relate to ‘Demolition of 25-29 University Road with retention of front 
facade and alterations to the ground floor façade’.  
 
An associated full application for redevelopment of the site has been submitted in respect of the 
application site, proposing ‘Partial demolition and redevelopment of existing buildings to provide 16 
apartments, communal bin store and landscaped communal garden’ (reference LA04/2020/0847/F). 
This application is recommended for approval.  

 
The site is not zoned for a use within BUAP or draft BMAP. The front portion of the site including the 
buildings is located within the Queens Conservation Area (CA), whilst the rear part of the site is 
located within the draft ‘Lower Lisburn Road’ Area of Townscape Character (dBMAP). The site is 
also located within the designated Queens Office Precinct (dBMAP). The site fronts on to University 
Road, which is a designated arterial route, as designated by dBMAP.  
 
1 objection has been received in relation to this proposed demolition.   
 
The CA Officer (CAO) has advised that there is no objection to the proposed demolition, provided the 
submitted structural information is accurate. An independent engineer has advised that, following 
consideration of the information, there is a case for demolition. The proposal results in the retention 
of the building facades, thereby protecting the features of the buildings which contribute to the 
character of the CA. Furthermore, it is noted that No. 29 University Avenue is a relatively new 
building and the internal layout of No. 25-27 has been amended over the years in line with its 
restaurant use. In conclusion, it is considered that, on balance, the proposed demolition is 
acceptable. 
 
Section 76 Agreement 

Page 149



Application ID: LA04/2020/1208/DCA 

Page 4 of 10 

The façade will be secured by a façade retention system and over seen by a suitably qualified 
structural engineer and secured by a Sec 76 Agreement. 
 
Recommendation: APPROVAL 
 
On balance, it is considered that the proposed development complies with the tests of the 
Development Plan and retained planning policy, therefore recommendation is to approve, subject to 
conditions and Section 76 agreement. 
 
It is recommended that the Chief Executive, or her nominated officer, uses her delegated authority to 
finalise the wording of any conditions and to agree a Section 76. 
 
 
 

 
Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 
 
1.1 
 
 
1.2 
 
 

Description of Proposed Development 
 
The proposed demolition works relate to ‘Demolition of 25-29 University Road with 
retention of front facade and alterations to the ground floor façade’.  
 
An associated full application for redevelopment of the site has been submitted in 
respect of the application site, proposing ‘Partial demolition and redevelopment of 
existing buildings to provide 16 apartments, communal bin store and landscaped 
communal garden’ (reference LA04/2020/0847/F).  
 

2.0 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 

Description of Site 
 
The site is located within the urban limits of Belfast. The application site relates to 3 
buildings located within an existing terrace along University Road. 2 of the buildings 
(No. 25 and 27) have been badly damaged in a fire, with damage to the roof, 
windows, doors and internal fittings clearly visible from the street. The buildings are 
3 storeys in height, with a dormer window located on the roof plane of No. 29. The 
buildings are finished in render and the style / dimensions of the existing window 
openings of the application buildings replicate the neighbouring buildings along the 
terrace. The ground floor doors and windows are more modern in design and 
appearance. The front of the site is currently secured with fencing. The rear of the 
site is accessible via an existing archway located directly beside No. 3 Claremont 
Street. There is a small yard at the rear of the site, which is currently used for 
parking and storage. At the rear of this yard, there is an elongated triangular area 
that runs along the rear of No. 9 – 17 Claremont Street. This area is quite 
overgrown with vegetation and appears to have been used for small scale dumping 
in the past.  
 
The surrounding area is characterised primarily by a mix of land uses, primarily 
residential and commercial (including restaurants, retail, offices and financial 
services). The front portion of the site, including the buildings, is located within the 
Queens Conservation Area, whilst the rear portion is located within a draft Area of 
Townscape Character.  
 

Page 150



Application ID: LA04/2020/1208/DCA 

Page 5 of 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 
 

Site History 
 
LA04/2020/0392/DCA – 25-29 University Road - Full demolition of existing first and 
second floors including facades with facade retention of ground floor front and rear 
walls due to fire damage – Application Withdrawn  
 
LA04/2019/1523/F - 25-29 University Road - Partial demolition, alteration and 
extension of existing buildings including change of use from restaurant/offices to 20 
apartments and erection of communal bin store – Application Withdrawn 
 
LA04/2019/1526/DCA - 25-29 University Road - Partial demolition of internal and 
external walls, roof and rear returns – Application Withdrawn 
 
Z/2005/0326/A – 25-27 University Road - Advertising Banner on front elevation of 
Restaurant (Retrospective) – Permission refused 28/6/05 
 
Z/2004/0152/F – 25-27 University Road - Change of use and refurbishment of 
existing restaurant to provide public house – Permission Granted 18/5/04 
 
Z/2002/1532/F – 29 University Road - Retail/Office development – Permission 
Granted 30/5/03 
 
Z/2002/1533/F – 29 University Road – Office Development – Permission Granted 
30/5/03 
 
Z/1997/0741 – Fitzy’s Restaurant, 25-27 University Road - Extension and general 
refurbishment of restaurant – Permission Granted 
 
Z/1995/0928 – 25-27 University Road - First floor extension to rear of Fitzys 
Restaurant 
 
Z/1994/0763 – 25-27 University Road - Alterations & improvements to new 
restaurant frontage 
 

Page 151



Application ID: LA04/2020/1208/DCA 

Page 6 of 10 

Z/1994/0665 - 25-27 University Road - Extension to rear of existing restaurant and 
change of use of first floor to licensed restaurant 
 
Z/1992/1171 - 25-27 University Road - Change of use of existing licensed 
restaurant, hot food outlet and offices to public house licensed premises 
 
Z/1992/1170 – 25 University Road - Change of use of ground floor of No 25 
University Road from hot food outlet to form extension to existing licensed 
restaurant at No 27 University Road 
 

4.0 Policy Framework 
 

4.1 
 
4.2 

Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP) 
 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (dBMAP)  
 

4.3 Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS)  
PPS 6 Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage 

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

5.1 
 

Not applicable 
 

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

6.1 
 

BCC Conservation Area Officer – No objection to demolition, on the basis that 
submitted structural information is accurate. Concerns with proposed development 
noted, however balanced against the limited public views.  
 

7.0 Representations 
 

7.1 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 

1 objection has been received in relation to this proposed demolition.   
 
The objection raised the following issues: 

 Shared party wall between objector’s property (No. 23) and the application 
building (No. 25) is experiencing structural movements and deteriorating due 
to exposure to the elements.  

 Current Conservation Area consent application should consider and mitigate 
against adverse impact of No. 23.  

 Further information requested regarding how party wall stability will be 
maintained, waterproofed and protected from the elements and how the 
party wall will be monitored for movements through the demolition process.  
 

8.0 
 

Assessment 
 

 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Development Plan context 
Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 requires regard to be had 
to the Development Plan, so far as material to the application and to any other 
material considerations. Section 6(4) states that where regard is to be had to the 
Development Plan, the determination must be made in accordance with the Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The adopted Belfast Metropolitan 
Area Plan 2015 (BMAP) has been quashed as a result of a judgement in the Court 
of Appeal delivered on 18th May 2017. As a consequence of this, the Belfast Urban 

Page 152



Application ID: LA04/2020/1208/DCA 

Page 7 of 10 

 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
 
 
8.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.7 
 
 
 
 
 
8.8 
 
 
 

Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is now the statutory development plan for the area with 
dBMAP remaining a material consideration.  
 
The site is not zoned for a use within BUAP or draft BMAP. The front portion of the 
site including the buildings is located within the Queens Conservation Area (CA), 
whilst the rear part of the site is located within the draft ‘Lower Lisburn Road’ Area 
of Townscape Character (dBMAP). The site is also located within the designated 
Queens Office Precinct (dBMAP). The site fronts on to University Road, which is a 
designated arterial route, as designated by dBMAP.  
 
Policy / Legislative Framework 
The site of the proposed demolition is located within the City Centre Conservation 
Area. The proposal is considered under Section 104(11) of the Planning Act (NI), 
Paragraph 6.19 of the SPPS and policy BH 14 of Planning Policy Statement 6: 
Planning, Archaeology and the Built Environment. Section 104(11) of the Planning 
Act (NI) 2011 states that special regard must be had to the desirability of;  
(a) preserving the character or appearance of that area in cases where an 
opportunity for enhancing its character or appearance does not arise; 
(b) enhancing the character or appearance of that area in cases where an 
opportunity to do so does arise. 
 
Similarly, Paragraph 6.18 of the SPPS states special regard to the desirability of 
enhancing the character or appearance of Conservation Areas should be afforded 
when an opportunity to do so exists, or the character or appearance should at least 
be preserved where an opportunity to enhance does not exist. 
 
Policy BH 14 of PPS 6 relates specifically to demolition in a conservation area. The 
Department will normally only permit the demolition of an unlisted building in a 
conservation area where the building makes no material contribution to the 
character or appearance of the area. Policy BH14 also states that where the 
principle of demolition is acceptable, it will normally be conditional on prior 
agreement for the redevelopment of the site and appropriate arrangements for 
recording the building before its demolition.  
 
Principle of Demolition 
Policy BH14 of PPS 6 states ‘The Department will normally only permit the 
demolition of an unlisted building in a conservation area where the building makes 
no material contribution to the character or appearance of the area’. 
The Conservation Area Officer (CAO) has provided comment on the proposal, 
advising that the existing buildings make a significant contribution to the 
architectural and historic interest / character and appearance of the CA. As such, 
there is a presumption against demolition. In assessing proposals for demolition, the 
Department will have regard to the same broad criteria for demolition of listed 
buildings.  
 
Para 6.5 of PPS 6 provides further amplification of the issues that are generally 
relevant to listed building consent applications, specifically importance of the 
building, its architectural and historic interest, the particular physical features of the 
building, the building’s setting and contribution to the local scene and the extent to 
which proposed works would bring substantial benefits to the community.  
 
The CAO has identified the features of the buildings which make a significant 
contribution to the architectural and historic interest / character and appearance of 
the CA, i.e. the buildings feature a stuccoed finish, with decorative quoins, console 
brackets supporting eaves and sliding sash windows within moulded surrounds. The 

Page 153



Application ID: LA04/2020/1208/DCA 

Page 8 of 10 

 
 
 
8.9 
 
 
 
 
8.10 
 
 
 
8.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.12 
 
 
 
 
 
8.13 
 
 
 
 
 
8.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

agent has advised that the proposed demolition does not include these features as 
the front facades are to be retained.  
 
Policy BH10 of PPS 6 states ‘There will be a presumption in favour of retaining 
listed buildings. The Department will not permit the demolition of a listed building 
unless there are exceptional reasons why the building cannot be retained in its 
original or a reasonably modified form’. 
 
The agent advises that the exceptional reason for demolishing the internal parts of 
the building and rear elevations is that the building has been severely fire damaged. 
It is noted that only two of the three buildings (No’s 25 and 27) are fire damaged.  
 
In accordance with Para 6.23 and 6.25 of PPS 6, the agent has provided additional 
information in support of the case for demolition. The agent advises that the building 
is fire damaged and is not currently in use, therefore the proposal offers a viable 
new use for the site. He does not believe that it would be viable for a charitable or 
community organisation to bring this building back into use. Furthermore, he 
advises that the important features of the buildings previously identified by the CAO 
are proposed for retention and there are clear benefits to regenerating the site to 
provide housing in line with the Belfast Agenda and emerging LDP. The agent 
advises that the condition of the building is very poor as outlined in the structural 
reports and the intention of the scheme is to repair the building whilst retaining and 
enhancing the historic features identified by the CAO. He considers the proposed 
scheme represents an alternative proposal for the site.  
 
The CAO acknowledges the information submitted by the agent in support of the 
proposed demolition and recommends that an independent structural engineer’s 
report is sought to verify the submitted details. The CAO advises further that on the 
basis that the submitted details are bona fide and sufficient to meet the PPS6 
criteria, there would be no objections to the demolition works. 
 
As noted earlier, information has been submitted by the agent to support the case 
for demolition. The Council has sought independent expert advice and has been 
advised that there appears to be a case for some demolition (or careful 
dismantling), however the engineer questioned the argument in relation to 
demolition of No. 29 as it had not been damaged in the fire.  
 
Further research into the history of the building at No. 29 shows that this building 
was actually constructed approximately 16-18 years ago, in accordance with 
previous approval(s) Z/2002/1532/F and Z/2002/1533/F. The below image from 
Google earth shows the site of No. 29 as a vacant gap site in December 2001. It is 
noted that the redevelopment of the site took place subsequent to the designation of 
Queens CA.  
 

Page 154



Application ID: LA04/2020/1208/DCA 

Page 9 of 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.16 
 
 
 
 
8.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.19 
 
 
 
 
8.20 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
In addition, there is a significant planning history associated with No. 25 and 27 in 
relation to the previous use as a restaurant. Consequently, the internal layout of 
both buildings had been amended significantly from the traditional layout when the 
buildings were first constructed.  
 
An objection has been received raising issues in relation to the structural integrity of 
the party wall boundary between No. 23 and 25. The purpose of this application for 
Conservation Area Consent is to assess the impact of the proposed demolition 
works on the appearance and character of the CA. Notwithstanding, it is considered 
that the proposed demolition can be undertaken appropriately without harm to the 
neighbouring building. Furthermore, as the roof of No’s 25 and 27 is currently 
damaged, it is considered that the current situation is potentially more harmful than 
the proposed demolition and subsequent redevelopment of the site.  
 
In summary, it is acknowledged that No. 25 and 27 have been damaged by fire. The 
CAO has advised that there is no objection to the proposed demolition, provided the 
submitted structural information is accurate. An independent engineer has advised 
that, following consideration of the information, there is a case for demolition. The 
proposal results in the retention of the building facades, thereby protecting the 
features of the buildings which contribute to the character of the CA. Furthermore, it 
is noted that No. 29 University Avenue is a relatively new building and the internal 
layout of No. 25-27 has been amended over the years in line with its restaurant use. 
In conclusion, it is considered that, on balance, the proposed demolition is 
acceptable. 
 
Redevelopment  
PPS 6 clarifies that full information and detailed plans about what is proposed for 
the site after demolition will be required with any conservation area consent 
applications, and where consent may be granted, this would normally be subject to 
conditions requiring redevelopment in line with an approved scheme.  
 
This application is linked with LA04/2020/0847/F for ‘Partial demolition and 
redevelopment of existing buildings to provide 16 apartments, communal bin store 
and landscaped communal garden’, which has also been recommended for 
approval 

Page 155



Application ID: LA04/2020/1208/DCA 

Page 10 of 10 

9.0 
 
9.1 
 

Summary of Recommendation:    APPROVAL 
 
On balance, it is considered that the proposed development complies with the tests 
of the Development Plan and retained planning policy, therefore recommendation is 
to approve, subject to conditions and Section 76 agreement. It is requested that the 
Section 76 Agreement and final wording of conditions is delegated to the Strategic 
Director of Place and Economy. 
 

10.0 
 
10.1 
 
 
 
 
10.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Conditions 
 
The works hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of 5 years 
beginning with the date on which this consent is granted.  
 
Reason: As required by Section 105 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
This consent is granted subject to the implementation of a satisfactory replacement 
scheme as approved under planning application reference LA04/2020/0847/F. The 
approved demolition is prohibited until such time as a contractor has been 
appointed and contracts have been signed for the approved redevelopment of the 
site.   
 
Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme in the interest of 
the Queens Conservation Area. 
 

Notification to Department (if relevant) 
 
DFI to be consulted, if approved by BCC Planning Committee.  

Representations from Elected members: 
 
N/A 

 

 

Page 156



 
 

 

   Addendum 
                           Development Management Officer Report 

Committee Application 
 

Summary 

Committee Meeting Date:  Tuesday 17th August 2021 
 

Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

Proposal: 
Proposed mixed use development comprising 
1no. ground floor retail unit and 13no. 
apartments, associated amenity space, 
landscaping and all other site works. 
 

Location: 
93-95 Falls Road   
Belfast   
BT12 4PE   

Referral Route: Objections has been received which is contrary to BCC Planning Officers’ 
recommendation. 
 

Recommendation:   Approve subject to conditions / Section 76 Agreement  

Applicant Name and Address: 
Scarsdale Properties LLP 
263 Falls Road 
Belfast 
BT12 6FB 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
TSA Planning 
20 May Street 
Belfast 
BT1 4NL 
 

Addendum Report 
 
This full application was previously listed for Planning Committee on 18th May 2021. However, the 
application was not presented at committee as the agent asked for it to be withheld while further 
consultation with local residents was undertaken by the applicant.  
 
A meeting was held on Wednesday 26th May 2021 at Davitts Gaelic Athletic Association on Falls 
Road. The meeting was arranged and chaired by the Chairman of Clonard Residents 
Association, the developer, local residents and Councillor Clare Canavan were in attendance. 
 
A summary of the meeting was forwarded by the agent and is set out below: 
 
Neighbours raised three areas of concern; 

 
1. EXISTING PARKING CONGESTION/ ISSUES: 
 
-         Residence Group main point of discussion related to “existing” parking in the area; and the 
worry that the proposed development will only add to the parking congestion. 
 
- Design team highlighted that the proposed scheme design is for CAT 1 social housing 
and is supported by a travel plan and other supporting documents which have been assessed 
and accepted by DFI Roads.  Design team also noted that the location of the site is on a main 
route into the city with access to excellent public transport links.  

 
- The main concern of residents appeared to be daily issues with cars parking across and 
blocking their driveways, this would be a parking enforcement issue which is outside of the remit 
and control of the planning application process.  

Page 157

Agenda Item 7b



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 2 of 19 

 
- It was apparent from the meeting that the Groups concerns are not actually with the 
proposed development but the existing inconsiderate parking and parking management. 
 
2. END USER OF THE APARTMENTS 
 
- Several residents wanted to know who would be assigned the apartments. Concerns over 
1 bed apartments and issues with general needs apartments in other areas which has resulted in 
anti-social issues. 
 
- Design team confirmed apartments would be for CAT 1 social housing (i.e. over 55’s/ 
active elderly age group).  It was confirmed that all apartments are 2 bed units (with the exception 
of a designated ground floor wheelchair apartment which would be 1 bed). 
 
- The residents group broadly accepted the above and was not a major concern thereafter. 
 
3. TIMESCALES ON DEVELOPMENT AND POTENTIAL CONSTRUCTION WORKS 
IMPACT TO LOCAL RESIDENTS 
 
- The residents group wanted an outline of the construction programme and raised 
concerns over how the construction phase would be managed in respect to closing footpath 
sections and demolition works next to existing houses. 
 
- The design team highlighted that all construction works (including demolition) would follow 
all H&S / CDM regulations.  It was stated that there would be more consultation with contractor 
and residents/ local businesses prior to any construction works starting to outline any temporary 
footpath closures (which are also subject to DFI Roads consultation and approval). 
 
- The developer stated that following demolition that construction works would follow on 
immediately as works would be completed under one contract.  This was in response to local 
resident concerns if the site would remain vacant for some time between demolition and 
construction. 
 
Note –  
All residents had opportunity to view the presentation drawings on display at the meeting and the 
design team answered any specific questions following the main presentation. 
 
Several residents did note that the overall scheme proposal looked well and their main 
reservation and concerns related to existing parking congestion and issues within the local area. 

 
Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing bank building and the construction 
of part 4 storey part 3 storey mixed use development containing one retail unit and 2 apartments 
on the ground floor and 11 apartments on the upper floors. 
 
6 letters of objection were previously received including a representation from Clonard Residents 
Association, citing concern with the following: 
• Disruption and noise pollution during construction; 
• Parking pressure/ lack of availability; 
• Highway safety; 
• Loss of light / overshadowing; 
• Overlooking / loss of privacy; 
• Lack of amenity space; 
• No prior consultation with local area; 

• Anti-social behaviour.  

Page 158



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 3 of 19 

 
Since consultation with the residents’ group, Planning Service has received no further objection 
to the proposal. 
 
The applicant has advised that the proposed end user for the development is to be Category 1 
Social Housing apartments for the active elderly. Whilst this is welcomed by officers’, there is no 
planning policy requirement for the apartments to be restricted solely to social housing, therefore 
no planning condition is recommended.  
 
The site is unzoned whiteland in the BUAP. In Draft BMAP 2004 and 2015, the site is located 
along an arterial route in a designated shopping/ commercial area. The redevelopment of this 
brownfield site and the principle of apartments at this location are considered acceptable. The 
provision of the retail unit is compliant with dBMAP.   
 
The proposed development will not adversely impact the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area.  It is considered to be sympathetic in its built form, scale, massing and 
appearance with the surrounding area and neighbouring properties.  It is considered that the 
proposal will not raise any unacceptable issues in relation to residential amenity including 
overshadowing, loss of light and overlooking. 
 
The proposal is unlikely to have a significant impact on the local road network in terms of traffic, 
road safety and parking.  No provision for parking has been incorporated, however, this reduced 
standard is considered acceptable due to the site’s highly sustainable location along an arterial 
route with the provision of Green Travel Measures. The developer has agreed to provide a travel 
card for each unit for 3 years as well as the provision of a cycle user subsidy scheme (e.g. Belfast 
Bikes) for the same period, should approval be granted. 
 
Having regard to the policy context and objections received (considered fully in the main body of 
the report), the proposal is considered on balance to be acceptable and the officer 
recommendation to approve is unchanged. 
 
Recommendation - Approval subject to conditions and Section 76 Agreement  
 
It is requested that the committee delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Building 
Control to finalise the wording of conditions and the completion of a Section 76 Agreement to 

secure the green travel measures. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 159



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 4 of 19 

Development  Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

Summary 

Committee Meeting Date: 18th May 2021   

Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F  

Proposal: 
Proposed mixed use development comprising 
1no. ground floor retail unit and 13no. 
apartments, associated amenity space, 
landscaping and all other site works. 

Location: 
93-95 Falls Road   
Belfast   
BT12 4PE   

Referral Route: Objections have been received to this proposal contrary to BCC Planning Officer 
recommendation.  
 

Recommendation: Approve  

Applicant Name and Address: 
Scarsdale Properties LLP 
263 Falls Road 
Belfast 
BT12 6FB 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
TSA Planning 
20 May Street 
Belfast 
BT1 4NL 
 

Executive Summary: 
This application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the existing bank building and 
the construction of part 4 storey part 3 storey mixed use development containing one retail unit 
and 2 apartments on the ground floor and 11 apartments on the upper floors.  This follows on 
from a previously refused scheme under reference LA04/2018/2292/F.  
 
The main issues to be considered in this case are: 
 

 Principle of development 

 Retail Impact  

 Design, Impact on character and appearance of the area  

 Impact on amenity   

 Access, Movement and Parking   

 Flooding  

 Infrastructure Capacity 
 
The site is unzoned whiteland in the BUAP. In Draft BMAP 2004 and 2015, the site is located 
along an arterial route in a designated shopping commercial area. The redevelopment of this 
brownfield site and the principle of social housing apartments at this location are considered 
acceptable in principle. The provision of the retail unit is compliant with dBMAP.   
 
The proposed development will not adversely impact the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area.  It is considered to be sympathetic in its built form, scale, massing and 
appearance with the surrounding area and neighbouring properties.  It is considered that the 
proposal will not raise any unacceptable issues in relation to residential amenity including 
overshadowing, loss of light and overlooking. 
 
The proposal is unlikely to have a significant impact on the local road network in terms of traffic, 
road safety and parking.  No provision for parking has been incorporated, however, this reduced 
standard is considered acceptable due to the site’s highly sustainable location along an arterial 
route with the provision of Green Travel Measures. The developer has agreed to provide a travel 

Page 160



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 5 of 19 

card for each unit for 3 years as well as the provision of a cycle user subsidy scheme (e.g. Belfast 
Bikes) for the same period, should approval be achieved.  
 
The previous reasons for refusal under application LA04/2018/2292/F have been adequately 
addressed.  
 
DFI Roads, Rivers Agency, DAERA, BCC Environmental Health and BCC Urban Design Officer 
offer no objections to the proposal.  
 
NI Water have advised that whilst there is capacity at the WWTW, the sewer network within the 
catchment area is at capacity. The applicant is currently in discussions with NI Water regarding a 
potential solution. It is considered that the issue can be resolved by means of a negative 
condition to address this matter. 
 
6 letters of objection have been received including a representation from Clonard Residents 
Association, citing concern with the following: 

 Disruption and noise pollution during construction; 

 Parking pressure/ lack of availability; 

 Highway safety; 

 Loss of light / overshadowing; 

 Overlooking / loss of privacy; 

 Lack of amenity space; 

 No prior consultation with local area; 

 Anti-social behaviour.  

 
These matters are addressed in the main body of the report.   
 
Having regard to the policy context and objections received, the proposal is considered on 
balance to be acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval. 
 
Recommendation - Approval subject to conditions and Section 76 Agreement  
 
It is requested that the committee delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and 
Economy to grant conditional planning permission and to finalise the wording of conditions and 
the completion of a Section 76 Agreement to secure the green travel measures.  

 
  

Page 161



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 6 of 19 

Case Officer Report 

Site Location Plan 

 
 
 
 

Page 162



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 7 of 19 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 163



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 8 of 19 

 

 
REAR ELEVATION 

 

 
MCQUILLAN STREET 

 
 
 

Page 164



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 9 of 19 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 Description of Proposed Development 
 
This application seeks full planning permission for the construction of a mixed-use 
development containing 1 retail unit and 13 apartments (12 x 2 bedroom and 1 x 1 bedroom), 
associated amenity space, landscaping and all other site works. A vacant social club building 
which was a former bank building are to be demolished. 
 
There is an entrance to the retail unit on the Falls Road. There is another rear access to the 
retail unit and bin store from the narrow alleyway between the application site and No. 97 
Fall Road. Apartments can be accessed via Waterford Street. Amenity space has been 
incorporated at ground floor level as well as a bin store and bicycle storage.  
 
The scheme has been amended following a PAD under ref: LA04/2020/0244/PAD; and 
refusal of LA04/2018/2292/F - Demolition of existing building and erection of 16No. 
apartments for social housing use and 1No. retail unit together with associated works. 
 
The applicant/ agent has advised that the development is to be Category 1 Social Housing 
apartments for the active elderly.  

2.0 Description of Site and Area  
 
The application site comprises of a former vacant bank building- now vacant social club 
fronting onto Falls Road and Waterford Street.  Falls Road is a busy arterial route well served 
by public transport – buses and black taxis.  
 
The surrounding area is defined by a mix of commercial, retail and residential uses, with 
Waterford Street and McQuillan Street characterised by two storey terraced dwellings. 
Open space - Dunville Park is located directly opposite the site and the Royal Victoria 
Hospital is close by. There are a number of schools and a university within walking 
distance and Falls Leisure Centre is easily accessed also.   

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 Site History 
 
LA04/2018/2292/F -   Demolition of existing building and erection of 16No. apartments for 
social housing use and 1No. retail unit together with associated works. Permission Refused 
05.09.2019 
 
LA04/2020/0244/PAD - Demolition of existing building to facilitate mixed use development 
comprising 1 no. ground floor retail unit and 14 no. Category 1 over 55's social housing 
apartments, associated amenity space and all other site works. – PAD Concluded. 
 

4.0 Policy Framework 
 

4.1  Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) 

4.2  (Draft) Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004 

4.3 (Draft) Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015  
 
Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is now 
the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-adoption 
through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP still carry 
weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. The 
weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker. 

Page 165



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 10 of 19 

 4.3.1 Policy SETT 2 Development within the Metropolitan Development Limits and 
Settlement Development Limits 

 4.3.2 Policy SETT 3 Arterial Routes   

 4.3.3 Policy R4 Arterial Routes and Local Centres  

4.4 Regional Development Strategy 2035  

4.5 Strategic Planning Policy Statement 2015 (SPPS) 

4.6 Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, Movement and Parking 
Planning Policy Statement 7: Quality Residential Environments  
Planning Policy Statement 12: Housing in Settlements  
Planning Policy Statement 15: Planning and Flood Risk   

4.7 Developer Contribution Framework (2020)   

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

5.1 DFI Roads – No objection subject to condition   

5.2 NI Water – WWTW available, however sewer network is at capacity  

5.3 Rivers Agency – No objection subject to conditions 

5.4 NIEA Water Management Unit – content if NIW content  
NIEA Regulation Unit – no objection subject to conditions 

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

6.1 BCC Environmental Health – No objection subject to conditions 

6.2 Urban Design Officer – No objection subject to conditions 

7.0 Representations 
 

7.1 The application was neighbour notified on the 2nd December 2020 and advertised in the local 
press on the 20th November 2020. 
 
6 letters of objection have been received including 5 from neighbours from McQuillan Street 
and Waterford Street; a further objection has been received from Clonard Residents 
Association. The representations are summarised 
             

 Concerns of disruption and noise pollution when building work commences 
Officer Response: Environmental Health have advised that the developer follows 
noise control advice for construction and demolition sites. 

 Concerns as to how waste will be managed 
Officer Response: A bin store is enclosed and integrated into the proposed building. 
A Service Management Plan has been provided which includes management of 
waste. In addition, Environmental Health have powers to investigate complaints 
regarding environmental issues associated with waste.  

 Concerns regarding parking space availability  
Officer Response: The previous parking survey identified capacity in the surrounding 
area. A planning agreement is to be signed whereby the developer will provide 
Translink travelcards for each dwelling unit in addition to other measures to 
encourage green travel and to encourage a shift from car dependency. Bicycle 
storage has been included in the development.  

 Concerns regarding highway safety 
Officer Response: DFI Roads are the governing authority with regard to road safety, 
they have deemed the proposal acceptable and consider it will not compromise road 
safety 

 Concerns regarding loss of light/ overshadowing at adjacent properties 

 Officer response: A ‘daylight modelling analysis’ has been undertaken which 
demonstrates shadows cast by the buildings currently in situ and the new building 

Page 166



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 11 of 19 

from spring through to and winter. It indicates there will be minimal – if any change 
in the shadow cast by the buildings currently in situ.   

 Concerns regarding potential overlooking and loss of privacy at adjacent properties 
Officer response – There are no windows proposed in the elevation adjacent to 2 
Waterford street so overlooking in this context is not possible. There is potential 
overlooking of the rear of properties along McQuillan Street from the bedroom 
windows in the north facing elevation. However, this has been mitigated through the 
set back at first floor level and above to match the existing rear building line of the 
existing Waterford Street terraces. Therefore, maintaining a similar back to back 
relationship to what currently exists. In terms of the rear elevation (western), opaque 
glazing is proposed and a setback of 5.5m has been incorporated at first floor level 
and above with minimised openings. These measures will ensure an unacceptable 
level of overlooking does not occur.  

 Concern that there is lack of amenity space particularly for children to play 

 Officer response: Reduced amenity space provision has been incorporated into the 
design of the proposal, this is considered acceptable in this urban context as Dunville 
Park is highly accessible being located directly opposite and the other various local 
amenity provisions nearby.  

 Concerns that no prior consultation with neighbours has been undertaken 
Officers Response: This is a statutory requirement for pre application community 
consultation for major development proposals, however this scheme is not of a scale 
that requires prior consultation with neighbours. 

 Concerns that apartment living attracts anti-social behaviour 

Officer response; the proposal is in keeping with ‘Living Spaces: An Urban 
Stewardship and Design Guide for Northern Ireland’ guidelines. Strong boundary 
treatment provides a further degree of security. 
  

8.0 Other Material Considerations 
 

8.1 Parking Standards   
DCAN 15: Vehicular Access Standards  
Creating Places  
Living Spaces: An Urban Stewardship and Design Guide for Northern Ireland  
The Belfast Agenda  

9.0 Assessment 
 

9.1 The proposal is considered to be in compliance with the development plan. 

9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 

The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include: 
- Principle of development  
- Retail Impact  
- Design, Impact on character and appearance of the area  
- Impact on amenity   
- Access, Movement and Parking   
-          Flooding  
-          Infrastructure Capacity 
 
Principle of development  
The adopted Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (BMAP) has been quashed as a result of 
a judgement in the Court of Appeal delivered on 18 May 2017. As a consequence of this, 
the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is now the statutory development plan for the 
area. 
 
In general, the weight that should be given to draft policy increases as it approaches the 
date of final publication. It is the view that the draft BMAP, in its most recent, post-

Page 167



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 12 of 19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.10  
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.11 
 
 
 
 

examination, form continues to exist. As the decision to adopt BMAP has been quashed in 
its entirety, it is as though the draft BMAP has never been adopted. Draft BMAP remains the 
most advanced and up to date collection of development management policies for the City 
Council’s area, albeit that those policies do not carry the statutory force conferred upon an 
adopted statutory development plan by the 2011 Act. 
 
The version of draft BMAP which was purported to be adopted and not the one published in 
2004 should be given substantial weight together with and in consideration of all other 
material matters. 
 
The BUAP designates the site as un-zoned whiteland. In draft BMAP 2004 and 2015, the 
site is located on an arterial route in a designated shopping commercial area. The 
redevelopment of this brownfield site and the principle of social housing apartments at this 
location is considered to be acceptable. The proposed retail unit at ground floor is also 
compliant with draft BMAP and is considered to be acceptable providing an active frontage 
along the arterial route.  
 
Retail Impact  
The proposal would result in the creation of a retail unit with a maximum gross floorspace of 
140m2. In this instance, the proposal is for retailing within a designated shopping and 
commercial area. The proposed development would help meet a local need in an established 
residential area and would be within the floorspace thresholds set out in Policy R4. The retail 
development is limited in scale and would not prejudice the vitality and viability of nearby 
centres. The proposal would accord with the SPPS and Draft BMAP in this regard.  
 
The Environmental Health team has advised that within the odour assessment submitted 
reference was made to ’a new café and hot food unit’ at ground floor level. Clarification was 
sought from the agent, however the type of retail unit proposed for the ground floor has not 
been confirmed. In any case, a retail unit is what has been applied for and what is being 
assessed. An informative has been included to advise that planning permission should be 
sought if the retail unit is to operate as a café or hot food unit.  
 
Design, Impact on character and appearance of the area  
The proposed density of development would be in keeping within the density parameters 
already established further along this arterial route. The proposed replacement building 
would be 4 storeys on the Falls Road elevation at a maximum height of 12.175m which is 
appropriate for its location along the arterial route and having regard to the heights of 
buildings further along the Falls Road. The height is reduced to 3 storeys (approximately 
9.2m) at Waterford Street to respect the lower residential scale of properties. The ridge 
height of the 3-storey block is the same height (top of chimney) as the 2 storey residential 
terrace houses at Waterford Street. The proposed scale, height and massing represents a 
sympathetic design that on balance sits comfortably within the streetscape.  
 
The building is to be constructed using red clay brick with element of render at the side and 
rear, Windows are to be set in by a depth of one brick which provides a depth to the building 
façade and avoids a sense of flatness. The stepped mansard roofline is to be constructed in 
standing seam metal- in grey. The two different roof heights and pronounced surrounds to 
dormer windows add emphasis to the dormers and help with the overall building proportions 
and composition.  
 
The Council’s Urban Design Officer has reviewed the drawings and although content with 
the design suggests that the deeper feature header band detail above ground floor level is 
extended along the full extent of the Waterford Street block of the four storey component to 
help break up the extent of the brickwork. A condition will be included to secure this improved 
design change.  

Page 168



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 13 of 19 

9.12 
 
 
 
 
 
9.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.14 
 
 
 
 
9.15 
 
 
 
 
9.16 
 
 
 
9.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.18 
 
 
 
 
9.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Boundary treatment includes 0.6m red brick wall with 0.5m metal railings at Waterford Street 
which encloses amenity space of 21sqm; a 2m red brick wall to the rear and side boundaries 
at McQuillan Street encloses a small integral amenity space of area 23sqm. To the front, the 
ground floor apartment is set back from the street and adjoining retail unit, with a buffer 
planting zone, wall and railings breaking up the frontage.  
 
The proposed development forms a strong edge with the street and would provide a 
continuous and active frontage along the Falls Road. The proposal would enhance the 
overall character and respect the built form of this part of the Falls Road and therefore 
accords with the SPPS, Policy QD1 of PPS7, Draft BMAP, Creating Places and Living 
Spaces: An Urban Stewardship and Design Guide for Northern Ireland.  
 
Impact on amenity  
For each apartment the main outlook from the primary living areas would be to the street 
ensuring that future occupants would be afforded an adequate degree of light and outlook. 
Each apartment is an acceptable size and meets the minimum space standards set out in 
Annex A of addendum to PPS7.      
 
Two grassed communal amenity space areas have been incorporated. The total area of the 
2 spaces is 43sqm. This falls short of the minimum provision of 10sqm for each apartment 
as set out in Creating Places, however with Dunville Park directly opposite, a reduced 
provision is considered acceptable for this inner urban location along an arterial route.  
 
A Noise and Odour Assessment have been provided in support of the proposal, which have 
been reviewed by Environmental Health. A number of mitigation measures are proposed to 
protect the amenity of existing and future occupants.  
 
Daylight modelling analysis of the existing buildings and the proposed has been undertaken 
by The Boyd partnership – Chartered Architects. Results indicates that during the morning, 
midday and evening from spring through to winter similar shadows will be cast to what is in 
place at present. The building has been sensitively designed at align with the building line of 
adjoining properties with setbacks to reduce the impact on Waterford Street and Mc   
McQuillan Street occupiers. Openings have minimised at the rear with the use of opaque 
glazing to reduce the potential for overlooking. Overall, it is not considered that they will be 
an unacceptable loss of amenity in terms of overshadowing, loss of light, overlooking or 
overbearing impact to existing properties.  
 
In light of the above, it is considered that an adequate level of residential amenity would be 
maintained for future and existing occupiers in this inner urban location in accordance with 
Policy QD1 of PPS7 and the SPPS.  
 
Access, Movement and Parking    
The application was submitted with a Transport Assessment Form and Parking Statement. 
A zero level of car parking is proposed which falls short of the recommended parking 
standard. However, justification is provided for this reduced standard due to the site’s highly 
sustainable location along an arterial route in close proximity to a wide range of local 
amenities and public transport links which reduces the reliance on the private car in line with 
the main objectives of the SPPS and Draft BMAP. Provision has been made on site for 
covered cycle parking. In addition, the car parking survey carried out shows there is spare 
capacity in the evening time to accommodate any overspill from the site at nearby Clonard 
Street, Dunville Street, Waterford Street, Colligan Street and McQuillan Street without having 
an adverse impact on street car parking, highway safety and the convenience of local 
residents.  
 

Page 169



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 14 of 19 

9.20 
 
 
 
 
9.21 
 
 
 
 
9.22 
 
 
 
9.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.25 
 
 
 
9.26 
 
 

DFI Roads were consulted and they have confirmed that they are satisfied that parking on 
street is unlikely to have a significant impact on the local road network in terms of traffic and 
road safety. On this basis, the proposal is considered to accord with Policy QD1 of PPS7, 
PPS3, SPPS and Draft BMAP. 
 
To promote green travel, the applicant has agreed to provide Translink travel cards for each 
dwelling unit, – one pass for an occupier per unit, and up to 2 full time members of staff for 
the retail unit for a period of 3 years in addition to the provision of a cycle user subsidy 
scheme (e.g. Belfast Bikes) to encourage use of public transport.   
 
Satisfactory provision has been made within the building for bicycle parking, and for storage 
of waste. 
 
Flooding  
The site is not located within the fluvial flood plain, it is not prone to historical flooding nor 
surface water retention. A Drainage Assessment has been submitted and it is proposed to 
attenuate for more than the 1 in 30-year storm event in the drainage network. Rivers Agency 
has requested a plan of the drainage system is submitted prior to commencement of 
development. Rivers Agency have cited no objection to the proposal subject to inclusion of 
said condition. As such, the proposed development would comply with Policy FLD3 of PPS 
15 and the SPPS. 
 
Infrastructure Capacity  
NI Water have advised that whilst there is available capacity to receive wastewater at the 
local waste water treatment works, the sewer network within the catchment area is at 
capacity. The applicant is currently in discussions with NI Water regarding a potential 
solution. NI Water have confirmed that they have a programme for WWTW improvements 
which will increase capacity over the coming years. This includes two new sludge processing 
tanks for Belfast and subsequent improvements to the city’s six existing sludge processing 
tanks. These works are estimated to be completed within 2.5 years – well within the five-
year lifespan of planning permission were it to be granted. Moreover, NI Water makes 
allowance for existing significant committed development across the city including extant 
planning permissions. Such development will not all come forward at once which means in 
practical terms it would be unreasonable to withhold planning permission in relation to these 
issues. 
 
It is considered that the issue can be resolved by means of a negative condition to address 
this matter.  
 
Planning History 
The proposed scheme has been amended since the refusal of application 
LA04/2018/2292/F. The number of units have been reduced along with the height, scale and 
massing. The previous refusal reasons have now been adequately addressed.    

10.0 Summary of Recommendation:    
Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations raised by consultees 
and third parties, it is concluded that, on balance, the proposal is considered acceptable. It 
is requested that the committee delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and 
Economy to grant conditional planning permission subject to completion of Section 76 
agreement to secure the green travel measures.  

11.0 Conditions 
 

1. As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011, the 
development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from 
the date of this permission. 

Page 170



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 15 of 19 

            Reason: Time Limit. 
 

2. Prior to the commencement of any of the approved development on site, a final 
drainage assessment, containing a detailed drainage network design and compliant 
with Annex D of PPS 15 must be submitted to the Council for its consideration and 
approval in writing. The development shall not be carried out unless in accordance 
with the approved details. 
Reason – To safeguard against flood risk to the development and elsewhere. 

 
3.  As part of site clearance works, all remaining fuel storage tanks and associated 
       infrastructure on the site shall be fully decommissioned in line with Guidance on   
Pollution Prevention No. 2 (GPP2). Where the tank is industrial size or there is a 
number of tanks but for a domestic tank, sampling and analysis is not required. 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 
 
4. If during the development works, new contamination or risks to the water 

environment are encountered which have not previously been identified, works 
should cease and the Planning Authority shall be notified immediately. This new 
contamination shall be fully investigated in accordance with the Land Contamination: 
Risk Management (LCRM)  guidance available at  
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks 
In the event of unacceptable risks being identified, a remediation strategy shall be 
agreed with the Planning Authority in writing, and subsequently implemented and 
verified to its satisfaction. 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 

 
5.  After completing all remediation works under Condition 4 and prior to occupation of 

the development, a verification report needs to be submitted in writing and agreed 
with the Planning Authority. This report should be completed by competent persons 
in accordance with the Land Contamination: Risk Management (LCRM) guidance 
available at https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-
risks 
The verification report should present all the remediation and monitoring works and 
demonstrate the effectiveness of the works in managing all the risks and achieving 
the remedial objectives. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 
 

6. Secure and covered cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with Drawing No. 
03A published on the Planning Portal on 3rd February 2021.    
Reason: To ensure acceptable cycle parking on the site and to encourage alternative 
modes of transport to the private car 

 
7. The development hereby permitted shall operate in accordance with the approved 

Service Management Plan, published on the Planning Portal on 12th November 
2020. 
Reason: In the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users. 

 
8. If during the development works, new contamination or risks are encountered which 

have not previously been identified, works shall cease and the Planning Authority 
shall be notified immediately. This new contamination shall be fully investigated in 
accordance with best practice. In the event of unacceptable risks being identified, a 
Remediation Strategy and subsequent Verification Report shall be agreed with the 
Planning Authority in writing, prior to the development being occupied. If required, 

Page 171

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks


Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 16 of 19 

the Verification Report shall be completed by competent persons in accordance with 
best practice and must demonstrate that the remediation measures have been 
implemented and that the site is now fit for end-use.  
Reason: Protection of human health. 
 

9. Prior to occupation of the apartments, the noise mitigation measures relating to the 
development facades, glazing and ventilation systems as recommended in Section 
6 of the Irwin Carr Consulting report titled: ‘Noise Impact Assessment, 93-95 Falls 
Road, Belfast’ Report no. Rp002N 2020160 (93-95 Falls Road) dated 8th March 
2021, shall be installed and retained thereafter to ensure that internal noise levels 
within habitable rooms shall not exceed: 

 35dB LAeq,16 hr between 07.00hrs and 23.00hrs within any habitable room, if 
required with the windows closed and alternative means of ventilation provided in 
accordance with current Building Control Regulations requirements 

 30 dB LAeq,8hr within bedrooms between 23.00hrs and 07.00hrs, if required with 
the windows closed and alternative means of ventilation provided in accordance with 
current Building Control Regulations requirements. 

 45dB LAFmax, by more than 10 single sound events in any proposed bedrooms, if 
required with the windows closed and alternative means of ventilation provided in 
accordance with current Building Control Regulations requirements. 
Reason: Protection of public health and residential amenity. 
 

10. Prior to operation of the retail unit, the noise mitigation measures relating to the party 
floor/ceiling of the development as recommended in Section 9 of the Irwin Carr 
Consulting report titled: ‘Noise Impact Assessment, 93-95 Falls Road, Belfast’ Report 
no. Rp002N 2020160 (93-95 Falls Road) dated 8th March 2021, shall be installed 
and retained thereafter. 

      Reason: Protection public health and residential amenity 
 
11. No deliveries shall be permitted to the retail development between the hours of 23:00 

and 07:00hrs on any day. 
Reason :  Protection public health and residential amenity 
 

12. No external plant is permitted within the hereby permitted retail development. 
Reason: Protection public health and residential amenity 
 

13. Prior to occupation of the herby permitted development, a mechanical ventilation 
system as per the Irwin Carr Consulting report titled: ‘Noise Impact Assessment, 
93-95 Falls Road, Belfast’ Report no. Rp002N 2020160 (93-95 Falls Road) dated 
8th March 2021. (Section 11 - Odour) shall be installed within the development. 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity.  
  

14. Prior to installation of the mechanical ventilation system as per the Irwin Carr 
Consulting report titled: ‘Noise Impact Assessment, 93-95 Falls Road, Belfast’ 
Report no. Rp002N 2020160 (93-95 Falls Road) dated 8th March 2021. (Section 11 
- Odour), the location of the air inlet and outlet points shall be depicted on a scaled 
drawing and submitted to the Planning Authority for approval and shall be agreed in 
writing. The ventilation inlet and outlet points shall be located as approved. 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity.  
 

15. Notwithstanding the approved plans the brickwork feature header band above the 
ground floor level should be extended along the Waterford Street elevation for the 
full extent of the four-storey component of the development hereby approved. 
 

Page 172



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 17 of 19 

  

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 
 

16. Prior to commencement of development, sample panels of the external materials to 
be used on the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Council. The development shall be constructed in accordance with 
the approved details thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity.  
 

17. No development shall commence on site until details of sewerage waste disposal 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council.  The development 
shall not be carried out unless in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure appropriate foul drainage of the site.  
 

18. Obscure glazing shall be provided in accordance with the approved plans and 
permanently retained as such thereafter.  
 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.  

 
Informatives 
 
THE POLLUTION CONTROL AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT (NI) ORDER 1978 
Due to the proximity of residential properties to the proposed development site, the 
applicant would be advised of the following good practice documents for noise control 
during the demolition/construction phase of the development: 
- Belfast City Council’s Noise Control Advice Note for Construction and Demolition Sites 
(available at http://www.belfastcity.gov.uk/buildingcontrol-
environment/noisecontrol/typesofnoise.aspx.) and 
- British Standard 5228 -1:2009+A1:2014 – Code of practice for noise and vibration 
control on construction and open sites – Part 1: Noise and Part 2: Vibration 
 
Notwithstanding the terms and conditions of the Planning Authority’s approval set out 
above, you are required under Article 71-83 inclusive of the Roads (NI) Order 1993 to 
be in possession of the Department for Infrastructure’s consent before any work is 
commenced which involves making or altering any opening to any boundary adjacent to 
the public road, verge, or footway or any part of said road, verge, or footway bounding 
the site. The consent is available on personal application to the DfI Roads Section 
Engineer whose address is: Belfast North Section Office, 1A Airport Road, Belfast, BT3 
9DY. A monetary deposit will be required to cover works on the public road. 
 
Precautions shall be taken to prevent the deposit of mud and other debris on the adjacent 
roads by vehicles travelling to and from the construction site. Any mud or debris 
deposited on the road must be removed immediately by the contractor. 
 
All construction plant and materials shall be stored within the curtilage of the site.  
 
It is the responsibility of the Developer to ensure that water does not flow from the site 
onto the public road (including verge or footway) and that existing road side drainage is 
preserved and does not allow water from the road to enter the site 
 
Separate planning approval should be sought if the retail unit is to be used as a café or 
hot food unit. 

Page 173



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 18 of 19 

Notification to Department (if relevant) – N/A  

Representations from Elected members – None  

 
 
 
 

Page 174



Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

 

Page 19 of 19 

 

 
 

 

   Addendum 
                           Development Management officer report 

Committee Application 

 

Summary 

Committee Meeting Date:  Tuesday 17th August 2021 
 

Application ID: LA04/2020/2280/F 

Proposal: 
Proposed mixed use development comprising 
1no. ground floor retail unit and 13no. 
apartments, associated amenity space, 
landscaping and all other site works. 
 

Location: 
93-95 Falls Road  Belfast  BT12 4PE   

Referral Route: Objection has been received which is contrary to BCC Planning Officers’ 
recommendation. 
 

Recommendation:   Approve subject to conditions 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Scarsdale Properties LLP 
263 Falls Road 
 Belfast 
 BT12 6FB 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
 TSA Planning 
20 May Street 
 Belfast 
 BT1 4NL 
 

Addendum Report 
 
This full application was previously listed for Planning Committee on 18th May 2021. The 
application was not presented as the agent asked for it to be withheld while further 
consultation with neighbours was undertaken. 
 

Signature(s): 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Summary 

Application ID: LA04/2021/0001/F Committee Meeting Date:  17th August 2021 

Proposal: 
Contractor's Temporary Site Compound (for 
proposed development at adjacent Ulster 
Independent Clinic planning ref: 
LA04/2019/0318/F) to include Contractor's 
buildings, storage, car parking, planted bank, 
Covid-19 Marshall Station / Testing Area and 
associated operational development with new, 
temporary site access from Cranmore Park 
and new, temporary pedestrian access to the 
Malone Road. 

Location: 
Site at junction of Malone Road and Cranmore 
Park to south of 14-20 Cranmore Park and east 
of 75 Cranmore Park 
Belfast BT9 6JG. 

Referral Route: At the request of the Director of Planning and Building Control under paragraph 
3.8.7 of the Scheme of Delegation  
 

Recommendation:  Approval  

Applicant Name and Address: 
Ulster Independent Clinic  
245 Stranmillis Road 
 Belfast  
 BT9 6JH 

Agent Name and Address: 
TMP Architects 
101 University Street 
 Belfast 
 BT7 1HP 

Executive Summary: 
The application seeks temporary planning permission  for a period of 3 years for change of use of 
current open space area for construction of a Contractor's Site Compound (for proposed 
development at adjacent Ulster Independent Clinic planning ref: LA04/2019/0318/F) to include 
Contractor's buildings, storage, car parking, planted bank, Covid-19 Marshall Station / Testing Area 
and associated operational development with new, temporary site access from Cranmore Park and 
new, temporary pedestrian access to the Malone Road.  
 
The key issues to be considered are: 
 
- Principle of Development / Loss of Open Space  
- Impact on Conservation Area 
- Impact on trees /LLPA   
- Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 
- Impact on Natural Heritage 
- Impact on traffic/parking 
- Section 76 agreement 
 
The site is designated as whiteland in the BUAP and within both versions of draft BMAP as 
existing open space and a local landscape policy area. The site forms part of sub area F of the 
Malone Conservation Area.   
 
The proposed change of use will result in the temporary loss of open space and will temporarily 
adversely impact the character and appearance of Malone Conservation Area and the draft 
LLPA. The BCC Conservation Officer has objected to the proposal.  However, officers consider 

Page 177

Agenda Item 7c



that these temporary impacts on the conservation area and loss of open space must be balanced 
against the substantial community / public benefits that will derive from an extended hospital 
which would be of a greater benefit to the wider community. As such it is considered that this 
presumption against the development can be relaxed in this instance, having regard to Section 
104 of the Planning Act, Policy BH12 of PPS6, Policy OS1 of PPS8 and the SPPS. The applicant 
has agreed to enter into a Section 76 Agreement to ensure the land is restored to its former 
condition on completion of the works.  
 
9 objections have been received, citing concern with the following;  

 Increase traffic congestion at Cranmore Park and busy road junction and associated road 
safety concerns regarding nearby schools; 

 Location of Cranmore site entrance, should be relocated to Malone Road;  

 Impact on the surrounding character with inappropriate development;  

 Impact on wildlife - Badgers within the site;  

 Removal of trees;  

 Noise and disturbance associated with the proposed use;  

 Concern regarding dates of traffic survey – undertaken during Covid restrictions.  
 
The following consultees had no objection to the proposal; 
BCC Trees and Landscaping Team – no objection with tree replanting condition 
BCC Environmental Health Service – no objection with conditioned operation times restrictions 
and acoustic barrier construction  
DfI Roads Service – no objection with conditions  
DAERA (Natural Environment Division) – no objection 
 
Recommendation – Approval  
Having had regard to the extant development plan, the draft development plan, relevant planning 
policies, and other material considerations including third party objections, on balance the proposed 
development is acceptable for a temporary period.  
 
It is recommended that the application is approved subject to conditions with delegated authority 
given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the completion of a Section 76 
agreement and wording of conditions.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 178



 
 
 

Case Officer Report 

Site Location Plan 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 179



 
Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 
1.1 
 

Description of Proposed Development 
Contractor's Temporary Site Compound (for proposed development at adjacent Ulster 
Independent Clinic planning ref: LA04/2019/0318/F) to include Contractor's buildings, 
storage, car parking, planted bank, Covid-19 Marshall Station / Testing Area and 
associated operational development with new, temporary site access from Cranmore Park 
and new, temporary pedestrian access to the Malone Road. A temporary of 3 years has 
been sought.  

2.0 
2.1 
 

Description of Site. 
The site is an area of open space adjacent to and associated with a school playing fields 
at the road junction of Malone Road and Cranmore Park.  The site and the playing fields 
are currently in the ownership of the Royal Belfast Academical Institution (RBIA). The site 
is located within Sub Area I of the Malone Conservation Area Guide and adjacent to Sub 
Area F Bawnmore/Cranmore/Osborne. 
 
The site is enclosed behind a medium height picket fence and an array of mature planting 
of various heights, the boundary planting is sparce and allows views over the site and the 
adjoining playing fields.  The open aspect of the site and associated playing fields 
contributes to the surrounding character of the area creating an openness to the Malone 
and Cranmore Sub Areas.   
 
Opposite the site’s Malone Road frontage (east), is a four lane carriageway beyond which 
is the Ulster Independent Clinic.  A low-level stone boundary wall with mature hedging and 
other taller planting behind forms the boundary of the Clinic and prevents views from road 
level into the Clinic site.  This boundary treatment of stone wall topped with mature 
vegetation continues further along the Malone Road for the domestic dwellings that adjoin 
the road. 
 
The Cranmore Park frontage sees the continuation of the picket fencing but with a higher 
percentage of mature planting, there is however several gaps in the planting to allow for 
views over the site.  The road at this point is much smaller in scale being a common two-
lane carriageway.  Opposite the site (north) is four large detached two storey dwellings 
(nos. 14 - 20) of various design and materials. Two of these dwellings having mature 
vegetation to the front boundary which somewhat obscures views of the site. The 
remaining two dwellings have a wall and timber fencing boundaries circa 1.5m high with 
an open frontage onto the site allowing unhindered views. 
 
The western boundary of the site is shared with a modern two storey dwelling (no.75), the 
boundary treatment between the two is circa 1.5m hight steel fence.  
 
The surrounding character is distinctly different between the busy arterial route of the 
Malone Road with no properties fronting the road, at this section, and the residential 
nature of Cranmore Park with dwellings fronting the road. 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 Planning History  
No relevant planning history on site. 
 
Surrounding area 
LA04/2019/0318/F - Refurbishment and extension to operating theatre and sterile supplies 
departments to upgrade existing facilities and provide additional storage, staff changing 
and rest room accommodation – Granted 17th July 2019  

4.0 Policy & Legislative Framework 

Page 180



4.1 Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001(BUAP) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004-2015 (dBMAP) 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
The SPPS is also relevant planning consideration for all development and advises that 
planning permission ought to be granted for sustainable development that accords with the 
area plan and causes no demonstrable harm to interests of acknowledged importance.  
The SPPS also advises on Conservation Areas, Natural Heritage and Open Space.  
Planning Policy Statement 2 Natural Heritage (PPS 2) 
Planning Policy Statement 3 Access, Movement and Parking (PPS 3) 
Planning Policy Statement 8 Open Space, Sport and Outdoor Recreation (PPS 8) 
Malone Conservation Area Design Guide 
Section 104 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 

“Special regard must be had to the desirability of preserving the character or appearance 
of the Conservation Area or enhancing the character of appearance where an opportunity 
to do so arises.” 

5.0 Statutory Consultee Responses 

 DfI Roads Service – No objection with conditions 
DAERA (Natural Environment Division) -  No objection 

6.0 Non Statutory Consultees Responses 

 BCC Environmental Health – No objection with conditions 
BCC Conservation & Heritage Team – Objection  
BCC Trees and Landscaping Team – No objection with tree planting request  

7.0 Representations 

7.1 
 

The application has been neighbour notified (37 addresses) and advertised in the local 
press. To date the Council has received nine objections from six individuals, summarised 
as:  

 Increase traffic congestion at Cranmore Park and busy road junction and 
associated road safety concerns regarding nearby schools; 

 Location of Cranmore site entrance, should be relocated to Malone Road;  

 Impact on the surrounding character with inappropriate development 

 Impact on wildlife - Badgers within site; 

 Removal of trees; 

 Noise and disturbance associated with the proposed use; 

 Concern regarding dates of traffic survey – undertaken during Covid restrictions.  

8.0 Other Material Considerations 

 None 
 

9.0 Assessment  

 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 

Principle of development / Loss of Open Space: 
The site is within the existing development limits for the city in the development plans.  
Within the BUAP the site is shown as whiteland i.e. no specific land use designation.  The 
site within the draft BMAPs is designated as an area of existing open space and within a 
local landscape policy area (BT 103).  It is stated within BT103 that the site and playing 
fields is an area of local nature conservation interest and a major green wedge in the 
urban fabric providing a visual link between the Lisburn Road and Malone Road.   
 
The proposal will result in the loss of existing open space. In accordance with Policy OS1 
of PPS8 and the SPPS, there is a presumption against the loss of open and this should 
only be set aside in exceptional circumstances. One of these exceptions is where it is 
clearly shown that the redevelopment will bring substantial community benefits that 
decisively outweigh the loss of open space.  
 
In this case, supporting statements have been provided by the applicant to demonstrate 
why the proposal should be considered an exceptional case. This sets out the substantial 

Page 181



 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.8  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.9 

community benefits – with the proposal supporting the construction of increased hospital 
facilities to a key healthcare facility and the provision of services to the NHS which also 
assist with current waiting lists. There are also the indirect benefits of training for the 
medical profession.  
 
The information also demonstrates why the compound can’t be located within the existing 
site of the Ulster Independent Clinic with the current application site being the only suitable 
and available site. The developer’s choice of site is based on three criteria, site location (to 
enable isolation of covid testing point for operatives from the hospital site), site area (size 
and right topography to facilitate the storage and accommodation units) and site 
availability (availability for duration of construction works). A search area of 400m was 
carried out with surrounding lands which indicated that all three criteria could not be 
achieved with the exception of the application site.  
 
Having regard to the above, officers consider that this represents substantial community 
benefits not just to the Belfast area but to the wider province. When considered against the 
temporary loss of open space, it is considered that this outweighs the loss in this 
exceptional instance in accordance with Policy OS1 of PPS8 and the SPPS.   
 
Impact on Malone Conservation Area: 
BCC Conservation Team was consulted on the proposal and advised that the proposal is 
contrary to the Malone Conservation Area Guide and concluded the following.  “It is 
considered that the proposal would be contrary to policy BH12 criterion C, the scale, 
materials and detailing fails to respect the area; criterion E important views within the area 
will be affected and criterion; criterion F trees and other landscape features are protected 
and would be affected by the proposal, the proposal will fail to comply with the associated 
conservation area design guidance for similar reasons.  Given that the proposal includes 
industrial containers, surface covering and associated site equipment, it is considered that 
the proposal would negatively impact upon the existing green space which makes an 
important contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation area” 
 
The points of concern expressed by the Conservation Officer are shared by officers’ and 
the permanent retention of the proposal would not meet the standards for approval for 
development within the Conservation Area.  It is appreciated that the use of land as a site 
compound including storage containers and hoarding are a significant alteration from the 
existing open space / soft landscaping and would not be in accordance with Section 104 of 
the Planning Act (NI) 2011 which requires development to either enhance the area where 
there is an opportunity to do so and to preserve where there is no opportunity which is also 
echoed in paragraph 6.18 of the SPPS and is the guiding principle of policy BH12 of PPS 
6.  Paragraph 6.18 of the SPPS advises that this general presumption should only be 
relaxed in exceptional circumstances where it is considered to be outweighed by other 
material considerations in the public interest.  
 
In this instance, the proposal would temporarily adversely impact the Malone Conservation 
Area. However, officers consider that the proposed temporary impacts on the conservation 
area must be balanced against the substantial community / public benefit that will derive 
from an extended hospital which would be of a greater benefit to the wider community. As 
such it is considered that this presumption against the development can be relaxed in this 
instance, having regard to Section 104 of the Planning Act, Policy BH12 of PPS6 and the 
SPPS. Amendments have been secured to lessen the potential impacts of the proposal 
though additional planning around the boundaries of the site and a planted bund. It is 
proposed that the temporary planting is conditioned to ensure compliance.   
  
Impact on trees / LLPA  

Page 182



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.14 
 
 

The site is designated within the draft BMAPs as being in an area of existing open space 
BT067 (Historic Park, Gardens and Demesne Cranmore) and a landscape policy area 
BT103 (Cranmore/Bladon Local Landscape Policy Area) within the draft BMAP.   It is 
noted that the proposal involves the removal of an existing tree from the site to 
accommodate an access point.  It is proposed that the tree is replaced after the site 
compound is removed and to ensure compliance will be subject to a S76 agreement. Any 
temporary adverse impacts on the LLPA is offset by the substantial community discussed 
above. 
 
Impact on Neighbouring Amenity: 
Officers acknowledge that the operations of a builder’s compound can have an impact on 
the amenity of neighbouring residential dwellings. In partnership with the BCC 
Environmental Health (EHO), officers have sought to reduce any potential impact to a 
minimum.  A Noise Impact Assessment has been carried out. The scheme has been 
amended to remove the materials storage and skip area along with the jet wash facility. In 
this regard, EHO has assessed the proposal and subsequent supporting information in 
terms of noise /  impact on the neighbouring residential dwellings. EHO have offered no 
objection and have recommended the inclusion of planning conditions to ensure the 
operating hours of the site, the inclusion of an acoustic barrier to limit noise escape from 
the site and controls on plant and machinery.  On this basis, it considered that the 
proposal would not unacceptably impact the residential amenity of neighbouring properties 
in accordance with the SPPS.  
 
Impact on Natural Heritage: 
Representation was received to indicate that the site may be an area for local wildlife, with 
badgers being of interest.  Officers sought the advice and guidance of the Natural 
Environment Division regarding potential for impact on wildlife.  NIEA requested and 
received additional information including a badger survey and having considered the 
submitted information stated there was no natural heritage concerns regarding the 
proposal. The proposal is therefore considered to accord with PPS2.  
 
Impact on Traffic/Parking 
Several objections expressed concerns regarding the additional vehicle movements that 
will be associated with the proposal. Comments relate to increase traffic at 
Malone/Cranmore junction and the potential for conflict with local school traffic and 
pedestrians, in addition to the dates when traffic surveys were undertaken. DfI Roads was 
consulted on the proposal and the objections received and found the proposal to be 
acceptable subject to standard conditions. The proposal includes 38 parking spaces. It is 
not expected to significantly impact existing traffic flows. It is noted that the site operating 
times will have most arrivals prior to school starting times and leaving times later than 
school closing times, avoiding peak school times. Overall the proposal is considered to 
accord with PPS3.  
 
Other Considerations: 
Officers are of the opinion that although the hospital is a private facility, the information 
provided has confirmed that it provides and will be providing services to the NHS 
regarding the current waiting lists for NHS patients.  The proposal will allow the 
construction of additional hospital facilities that will contribute not just to a private benefit 
but also to a public benefit, the temporary loss of the open space when considered against 
the public benefit outweighs the concerns regarding the temporary loss of amenity and 
temporary impact on the Conservation Area.  
 
Section 76 Agreement: 
The following areas of the proposal will be secured through a section 76 agreement 

Page 183



 
 
 
 
 
9.15  
 
 

• The reinstatement of the lands to its prior condition before commencement of 
development  
• The replanting of a semi-mature tree to be agreed with BCC Tree Officer 
• Reinstatement of boundary fencing to its prior condition before commencement of 

development. 
 
Conclusion: 
Officers consider that the proposal will result in the loss of open space and will have a 
detrimental  impact on the surrounding amenity for the Malone Conservation Area. 
However, the impact will be time limited, maximum 3 years, and will not be a permanent 
unacceptable alteration to the conservation area character.  The proposal will allow 
construction works to proceed in a timely manner to a hospital facility which will have a 
benefit to the people of the city and beyond.  It is recommended that a temporary grant of 
permission is given to the proposal. 

10.0 
 
10.1 

Summary of Recommendation: Approval Subject to Conditions/ Completion of S76 
agreement  
Having had regard to the extant development plan, the draft development plan, relevant 
planning policies, and other material considerations including third party objections, the 
proposed development is acceptable for a temporary period.  

11.0 Conditions  

  
1. The permission hereby granted shall be for a limited period of 3 years only and 

shall expire on 15th April 2024. 
 
Reason: To enable Council to consider the development in light of circumstances then 
prevailing.  
 
         2.The vehicular access, including visibility splays and any associated works to the                  
public road, shall be provided in accordance with Drawing No. No.201/2 uploaded to the 
planning portal on 20th April 2021. 

 
Reason: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of road safety 
and the convenience of road users. 
 

3. The area within the visibility splays and any forward sight line shall be cleared to 
provide a level surface no higher than 250mm above the level of the adjoining 
carriageway before the development hereby permitted becomes operational and 
such splays shall be retained and kept clear thereafter. 

 
Reason: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of   road safety 
and the convenience of road users. 
 

4. The development hereby permitted shall not become operational until hard 
surfaced areas have been constructed and permanently marked in accordance 
with Drawing No. No.201/2 uploaded to the planning portal on 20th April 2021, to 
provide for parking within the site.  No part of these hard-surfaced areas shall be 
used for any purpose at any time other than for the parking and movement of 
vehicles. 

 
Reason: To ensure adequate provision has been made for parking within the site. 
 

5. Following within 1 month of the cessation of operations at the site, the redundant 
vehicular access from the site to the public road shall be permanently closed and 
the footway reinstated to the satisfaction of the Department for Infrastructure. 

 

Page 184



Reason: To minimise the number of access points onto the public road in the interests of 
road safety and the convenience of road users. 
 

6. The hereby permitted compound shall not operate outside the following hours:  
 Monday to Friday: 7am – 7pm  

 Saturdays: 7am – 1pm.  

 At no time on a Sunday or bank holidays. 
 
 Reason: in the interests of residential amenity 
 

7. The sound rating level (dBLAr,T) of all combined plant and equipment 
associated with the proposed development shall s not exceed the existing 
daytime and night time background noise level (dB LA90) at nearest sensitive 
receptors as measured in line with BS4142:2014 Methods for rating and 
assessing industrial and commercial sound.  

 
Reason: in the interests of residential amenity 
 

8. Mobile plant operating within the development shall be fitted with broadband 
“white noise” (full spectrum) reversing alarms as necessary.  

 
Reason: in the interests of residential amenity 
 

9. Prior to operation of the development, an acoustic barrier shall be erected 
along the site boundary as presented in the submitted drawing - Proposed Site 
Plan dated Dec 2020, Drawing No 201/2 Job no 20730. The barrier shall be 
constructed of timber panelling (close lapped with no gaps) with a surface 
density or superficial mass of at least 15kg/m2 and shall be retained thereafter.  

 
Reason: in the interests of residential amenity 
 

10. The landscaping detailing, as proposed within drawing 03B published to the 
planning portal 20th August 2021 shall be completed with one month of the 
compound becoming operational.   
 

Reason: Io mitigate the impact of the proposal on the conservation area. 
 

  

Page 185



 
 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   13th January 2021 

Date First Advertised  15th January 2021 
 

Date Last Advertised 21st May 2021  

Elected representative Interest: 
 
None 

 
Neighbours notified & Advertised : 
 
37 Neighbours 
 
  

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 12th May 2021  
 
 

Date of EIA Determination None required  

ES Requested 
 

No 
 

Drawing Numbers and Title 
01 Site Location Plan 
03B Site Plan  
04 Sections / Elevations  

Notification to Department (if relevant) – Not required  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 186



Committee Application 
 

Development Management Report  

Application ID:  LA04/2019/0775/F Date of Committee:  17 August 2021 

Proposal:  
Erection of 18 dwellings to include revision of 
site layout of previous approval 
Z/2007/1401/F at sites 2-8 (7 dwellings) and 
additional 11 No. dwellings, including 
landscaping, access via Hampton Park and 
other associated site works (Amended 
Proposal Description) 
 

Location: 
Lands approximately 50m to the north of 35 
Hampton Park and approximately 30m to the west of 
60 Hampton Park, Galwally, Belfast 

Referral Route:  Objections received - Proposal is for over 12 residential units 
 

Recommendation:  APPROVAL   
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
D & J Enterprises 
55 Somerton Road 
Belfast 
BT15 4DD 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Alan Patterson Design 
Darragh House  
112 Craigdarragh Road 
 Helens Bay 

Executive Summary: 
 
The proposal is for ‘Erection of 18 dwellings to include a revision of site layout of previous approval 
Z/2007/1401/F at sites 2-8 (7 dwellings) and additional 11 No. dwellings, including landscaping, access 
via Hampton Park and other associated site works (Amended Proposal Description)’.  
 
185 representations have been received in relation to this proposed development. 184 are objections 
to the proposal, with 1 non-committal. Objections have been received from Councillor Brian Smyth, 
Councillor Donal Lyons and Paula Bradshaw MLA. Councillor Smyth has requested that the Planning 
Committee carry out a site inspection, prior to making a decision on the application.  
 
The site is undesignated whiteland within the BUAP and is zoned for housing within dBMAP (ref. 
SB05/04). The site is also located within the Lagan Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), 
The Belvoir Site of Local Nature Conservation Importance (SLNCI) and a small portion of the site is 
located within the Hampton Park Area of Townscape Character (ATC). The site lies immediately 
adjacent to Lagan Valley Regional Park (LVRP).  
 
There is an extant planning approval on a large portion of the site for 35 dwellings, approved under ref. 
Z/2007/1401/F. A recent application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for existing use / development 
(CLEUD) under ref. LA04/2020/2324/LDP confirmed that works have been carried out in accordance 
with the previously approved development under ref. Z/2007/1401/F can lawfully be completed.  
 
The key issues to consider in the assessment of this proposed development are:  

 Impact on ecology. 

 Impact on traffic, road safety and access. 

 Impact on character of the area. 

 Impact on potential rights of way.  
 
 

Page 187

Agenda Item 7d



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 2 of 25 

Through the processing of the application numerous amendments have been received to address 
issues around the settlement limit boundary, the topography of the site, the inter relationship of units 
and internal boundaries, residential amenity and landscaping. 
 
It is considered that the proposed development is generally respectful of the surrounding context and 
character of the immediate locality. Furthermore, it is considered the pattern and layout; the design 
scale and density of the development is appropriate and generally in keeping with the overall character 
of the area; and the environmental quality of the established residential area will be maintained.  There 
will be no significant negative impacts to the amenity of existing residents and the scheme will result 
in a quality residential environment for prospective residents.  
 
Supporting information has been submitted in relation to the impact on ecology, specifically in relation 
to habitats and protected species, including badgers. Following consultation with NIEA, it is considered 
that the proposed development complies with the policy tests of PPS 2, subject to conditions mitigating 
potential ecological impacts.  
 
It is therefore also considered the proposed development complies with planning policy in relation to 
amenity space, protection of open space, flooding / drainage, infrastructure, landscaping and 
archaeological heritage.  
 
DFI Roads have provided comments on the proposed development, including access, car parking, 
intensification of Hampton Park junction. Following amendments to the scheme, DFI Roads have no 
objection, subject to conditions. 
 
The proposed layout includes a pathway linking the proposed development (and in effect, Hampton 
Park) with Lagan Lands East. The Council’s Access Officer has also advised that the existing route to 
Galwally Avenue does not have the hallmarks of a public right of way and is unlikely to be asserted as 
such. 
 
The scheme is considered on balance to be acceptable.  
 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 
 
It is considered that the proposed development complies with the tests of the Development Plan and 
retained planning policy, therefore recommendation is to approve, subject to conditions. It is 
recommended that the Director of Planning and Building Control uses her delegated authority to 
finalise the wording of conditions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 188



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 3 of 25 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 
 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 

Description of Proposed Development 
 
The proposal is for ‘Erection of 18 dwellings to include revision of site layout of previous approval 
Z/2007/1401/F at sites 2-8 (7 dwellings) and additional 11 No. dwellings, including landscaping, 
access via Hampton Park and other associated site works (Amended Proposal Description)’.  
 
The site is accessed directly from the end of Hampton Park. The existing road at Hampton Park 
continues for approximately 45 metres before taking a 90 degree turn in a northerly direction. 
Two access roads extend from the main thoroughfare in a westerly direction, providing access 
to proposed dwellings.  
 
All 18 no. dwellings are detached and two storeys in height. The dwellings are primarily finished 
in red brick, however some of the house types also utilise smooth white render as a secondary 
material. The dwellings are also finished with black roof tiles, red brick chimneys, black 
aluminium rainwater goods, hardwood doors and hardwood / uPVC windows.  
 

2.0 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 

Description of Site 
 
The site is located within the urban limits of Belfast.   The site is secured by a vehicular gate; 
the gate was open for pedestrian access at the time of the site visit. Part of an access road has 
already been created within the site. Additionally, it appears the foundations of a garage have 
been dug approximately 25 metres from the access gate.  
 
The site is irregularly shaped, measuring approximately 1.98 Ha. The northern portion of the 
site is relatively flat, however the land falls away significantly in the south western corner of the 
site. There is an existing watercourse in this south western corner. The site benefits from 
existing mature vegetation along the southern, northern and western boundaries of the site. The 
eastern boundary of the site is largely undefined, as the application site is part of a larger site. 
 
The surrounding area is defined by low density residential housing on lands to the east. Lagan 
Valley regional Park is located immediately to the west of the site. The River Lagan is situated 
approximately 120 metres to the west of the site. 
 

Page 189



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 4 of 25 

 
 

 
 

Page 190



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 5 of 25 

 
 
 

 
 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 

Page 191



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 6 of 25 

 

3.0 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
3.7 
 
 
3.8 
 
3.9 
 
3.10 
 

Site History 
 
LA04/2021/1371/F - Erection of 4 no. dwellings (change of house type to sites 1, 33, 34, 35 of 
previous approval Z/2007/1401/F), garages, and all other associated site works – Under 
consideration 
 
LA04/2020/2324/LDP – Proposed completion of residential development of 35 dwellings, 
previously approved under ref. Z/2007/1401/F (Amended Description) – Permitted 
Development 22/4/21 
 
Z/2012/1326/F – Lands at Hampton Park - Application under article 28 of the Planning 
(Northern Ireland) Order 1991 to vary the wording of planning condition 11 attached to 
planning permission Z/2007/1401/F – Granted 19/3/13 
 
Z/2007/1401/F – Lands at Hampton Park - Proposed residential development encompassing 
35 dwellings, garages and associated site works – Granted 30/1/09 
 
Z/2003/1250/O – Hampton Park - Proposed residential development – Granted 14/1/05 
 
Z/1994/0877 – Hampton Park – Layout of Housing Development and provision of roads – 
Granted 
 
Z/1988/0257 – Lands to north and west of Hampton Park – Private Housing Development – 
Refused 
 
Z/1982/0775 – Hampton Park – 18 dwellings – Refused 
 
Z/1981/0274 – Hampton Park – Housing Development – Refused 
 
Z/1974/0043 – Hampton Park – Low Density Housing Development – Refused 
 

4.0 Policy Framework 
 

4.1 
 
4.2 

Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP) 
 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (dBMAP)  
 

4.3 
 

Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS)  
PPS 2 Natural Heritage 
PPS 3 Access, Movement and Parking 
PPS 6 Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage 
PPS 6 Addendum Areas of Townscape Character 
PPS 7 Quality Residential Environments 
PPS 7 Addendum - Safeguarding the character of established residential areas 
PPS 8 Open Space, Sport and Outdoor Recreation 
PPS 12 Housing in Settlements 
PPS 15 Planning and Flood Risk 
 
Creating Places 
DCAN 15 Vehicular Access Standards 
 

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses 

Page 192



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 7 of 25 

 

5.1 DFI Roads – No objection, subject to conditions. 
 

5.2 
 

Historic Environment Division – No objection, subject to conditions. 
 

5.3 
 

NI Water – No objection. 
 

5.4  
 

NIEA – have raised no issues.  Objections have been sent to NIEA any further comments will 
be included in the Late Items pack. 

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

6.1 BCC Environmental Health – No objection. 
 

6.2 Rivers Agency – No objection. 
 

6.3 
 

BBC Tree and Landscaping Officer – No objection, subject to conditions.  

6.4 Lagan Valley Regional Park – Issues raised. 
 

6.5 Shared Environmental Services – No objection.  
 

7.0 Representations 
 

  

Page 193



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 8 of 25 

7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 

185 representations have been received in relation to this proposed development. 
184 are objections to the proposal, with 1 non-committal. Objections have been 
received from Councillor Brian Smyth, Councillor Donal Lyons and Paula Bradshaw 
MLA. Councillor Smyth has requested that the Planning Committee carry out a site 
inspection, prior to making a decision on the application. 
 
The objections raised the following issues, the matters raised are dealt with through 
out the assessment: 
 
Procedural Matters 

 Issues with neighbour notification.  

 Application site encroaches into the Lagan Valley Regional Park (LVRP) and 
extends outside the settlement limit.  

 Issues raised regarding the proposal description, ‘The application description 
appears more confused than before and fails the key test of bringing to the 
mind of a reasonable person what is proposed (the Morrelli test)’.  

 Inconsistencies with submitted drawings.  

 Issues raised with the completed P1 form, specifically Q 14.  

 Site area is over 2 Ha, therefore the application should be categorised as a 
major development.  

 Part of the site lies within an Area of Townscape Character (ATC), therefore 
a Design and Access statement should be submitted. 

 Proposal partly relates to a change of house type of Z/2007/1401/F. No 
evidence has been submitted to the Council proving that this approved 
development commenced on time. 

 Issues raised regarding the Council considering the application as it is 
‘environmentally destructive’.  

 Proposed development is a case of the council taking from the area without 
proper consultation of the people they represent who already live here. 

 Issue raised regarding construction of street lights within the application site.  

 Issue raised regarding commencement of works prior to the grant of planning 
permission.  

 Objection received questioning if a full detailed assessment has been carried 
out to confirm the amount of land required.  

 Issue raised with 14-day period for response to neighbour notification letters. 
 
Ecology and Landscape / Open Space 

 Proposal fails to provide a landscape buffer as set out in draft BMAP. 
Landscape buffer should also be provided around the badger protection area.  

 Proposal will result in destruction of habitats. It contains mature woodland and 
open parkland which provides important habitat for a range of wildlife. 

 Destruction of habitat during nesting season. 

 Loss of meadowland will detrimentally impact on local insect population and 
pollination.  

 Proposed development will result in light pollution for the local bat population.  

 Large number of active badger setts on site, which require protection. 
Proximity of proposed development to active badger setts.  

 Badger habitat is contracting due to the encroachment of creeping 
development such as this.  

 Loss of a large proportion of this area will have a detrimental knock on effect 
to species in the surrounding area and will further displace vulnerable species. 

 Site location constitutes an important high quality waterfront habitat not for 
humans but for biodiversity and wildlife. 

Page 194



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 9 of 25 

 Detrimental impact on mature trees and species rich hedgerows. Issues 
raised regarding removal of mature trees to facilitate development.  

 Application site located within a Site of Local Nature Conservation Importance 
(SLNCI). 

 Extraordinary increase in dwellings for an extremely sensitive site. 

 Lagan Meadows should be kept as a nature reserve, for the health and 
enjoyment of all. Concern that more meadowland is being taken from 
communities to further intensify urban density without provision of further 
green / recreational spaces for mitigation.  

 There is a shortage of meadow type habitat within the area.  

 Proposed development is located on the periphery of Belvoir Park Forest Park 
and LVRP, an important area in terms of ecological prowess within Belfast.  

 Proposed development will increase connectivity between Belvoir Forest park 
and the new Lagan bridge, resulting in increased pedestrian and cycle use, 
thereby detrimentally impacting the natural environment.  

 The subject lands should be incorporated into Lagan Lands East.  

 Proposed development is located within an Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB) which should be protected.  

 The area should be a conservation area to be protected and preserved, not 
built on.  

 The submitted NI Biodiversity Checklist is unsatisfactory and devoid of 
sustainable proposed implementations to preserve the local species. 

 Mitigation against invasive species is necessary.  

 Proposed development should be accompanied by an Environmental Impact 
Assessment (EIA). An EIA should be compulsory on such a biodiverse rich 
site. An issue has been raised regarding the Council’s ‘token’ assessment of 
environmental impact. Council failing in its duty if it does not insist upon 
submission of an extensive EIA. International law is clear that under the 
protective principle where there is the possibility for significant harm to the 
environment, an environmental risk assessment should be undertaken. 

 DAERA have not been consulted in relation to the impact on local wildlife.  

 Concerns raised regarding NIEA’s consultation response in relation to 
potential adverse effects on surrounding natural environment and habitat.  

 Construction works may cause water runoff pollution.  

 Lack of studies assessing how the proposed development will impact the 
River Lagan.  

 The subject lands should be owned and preserved by the National Trust, not 
built over.  

 The existing site has stored carbon over time. Disturbing this ecosystem goes 
against recent commitments by Belfast City Council (BCC) to conserve 
nature and aim to reduce carbon emissions, improve air quality, reduce 
flooding (note the site's proximity to the Lagan), increase urban cooling, 
support and enhance biodiversity and improve the mental and physical 
wellbeing of people living in or visiting the area. 

 BCC has declared a climate and biodiversity emergency.  

 Current Building Regulations are totally inadequate to reduce carbon 
emissions, to preserve water and to reduce flooding. 

 Carbon neutralising green spaces such as this will become absolutely crucial 
in the future to tackle climate change locally. 

 The tree survey appears lacklustre, with little to no detail applied 
to the trees poised for removal. 

Page 195



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 10 of 25 

 Proposal goes against BCC’s ‘One Million Trees’ initiative, where the Council 
has committed to plant one million native trees across the city, not cut them 
down.  

 Proposal does not support the Council’s initiative to return 30% of the city to 
nature by 2030. 

 Proposal will result in additional light, noise and air pollution.  

 Open, green spaces such as the application site are a scarcity in the city and 
should be protected at all costs. During the Covid 19 pandemic, the value of 
outdoor amenity space was recognised.  

 Northern Ireland has the least amount of accessible green space in relation 
to other parts of the UK.  

 Access to open space / nature helps to maintain mental health and physical 
wellbeing.  

 Lagan Bank has been encroached over recent decades by private housing 
developments.  

 There are plenty of alternative brownfield sites within the city centre that could 
benefit from rejuvenation.  

 There is no need for extensive housing to be built within green areas so close 
to the city centre due to the change in work patterns with majority of people 
now working from home.  

 It is unclear whether the proposed development will include planting of mature 
trees along the roadside, similar to the existing arrangement along Hampton 
Park.  

 
Design, Character, Density and Residential Amenity 

 Proposed site is extremely close to Lowry Court, a residential facility, and will 
be detrimental to the comfort, safety and wellbeing of the residents. 

 Open space should be provided as an integral part of the development, in 
accordance with PPS 8.  

 Proposed development would be detrimental to the character of Hampton 
Park.  

 Proposed development will be visible from LVRP, thereby changing the 
distinct character of the area. 

 Proposed density should not be significantly higher than the existing 
development along Hampton Park, in accordance with PPS 7 Addendum. 
Proposed dwellings are tightly squeezed together.  

 Proposed development should be low density and support green spaces 
within its boundaries.  

 Plot ratio is not respectful of surrounding context. 

 Proposed development envisages a higher density development than 
previously approved, including more extensive excavation and potentially, 
construction of retaining walls.  

 Proposed development may require retaining walls, contrary to Para 4.13 of 
PPS 7.  

 Proposed development will increase anti-social behaviour in the area.  

 Proposal will result in further criminal activity within the area.  

 Issues raised with quality / size of garden areas. 

 Proposal results in overdevelopment. Amount of development has more than 
doubled from original approval Z/2007/1401/F.  

 Proposed development is incompatible with the policies of the Belfast Urban 
Area Plan 2001, the statutory development plan for the Council area. 
Proposed development does not pass policy tests in relation to conservation, 
archaeology, recreation and transport.  

Page 196



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 11 of 25 

 Proposed design has little architectural merit, not in keeping with the strong 
heritage and highly sensitive nature of the surrounding contextual 
environment. 

 Proposed houses will affect views on to the Lagan Valley AONB for existing 
residents.  

 Detrimental impact on residential amenity of existing residents, specifically 
impact on privacy, natural light, noise, odour, late night activities.  
 
 

Traffic, Parking and Movement 

 Proposed development will result in increased traffic and an intensification of 
the Hampton Park junction with Ormeau Road. Issues raised regarding the 
number of dwellings served by a single road.  

 A survey should be conducted by Police Traffic Brach to assess the likely 
impact and safety risk due to the additional traffic generated by the proposal.  

 Traffic control will need to be introduced at the Hampton Park road junction.  

 Impact on road safety, particularly in relation to pedestrians (children and 
elderly) and cyclists.  

 There is no lighting or traffic infrastructure on the main road to access 
Hampton park. 

 Detrimental impact on access for emergency vehicles.  

 Construction vehicles will cause damage to Hampton Park roadway.  

 Proposed development does not include access to LVRP.  

 Proposed development should provide access to the Lagan Gateway 
greenway.  

 Issues raised regarding potential access to LVRP and users potentially 
parking in Hampton Park for access.  

 No consideration has been given to the path from Hampton Park through the 
site to Galwally Avenue. This path has been in operation for 40 years and is 
considered to constitute a public right of way (PROW).  

 Proposed development impacts on the current pathways interconnecting 
Galwally Avenue / Belvoir Forest Park, Hampton Park and the Annadale 
Embankment. These paths have been in use for over 30 years and should be 
designated PROWs.  
 

Other Environmental Matters 

 Proposed development will cause a further strain to the drainage and sewage 
infrastructure of the surrounding area. 

 Detrimental impact on archaeological heritage.  

 Issues raised with plans to construct more houses beside the River Lagan on 
a flood plain.  
 

8.0 
 

Assessment 
 

 
 
8.1 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 

 
Preliminary Matters 
It is considered that the proposal description is accurate, in accordance with Article 3 
(2) (a) of the Planning (General Development Procedure) Order (NI) 2015.  
 
A recent application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed use / development 
(CLEUD) under ref. LA04/2020/2324/LDP confirmed that the previously approved 
development under ref. Z/2007/1401/F has commenced and can lawfully be 
completed. 

Page 197



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 12 of 25 

 
8.3 
 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
 
 
 
8.5 
 
 
 
 
 
8.6 
 
 
 
 
8.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.8 
 
 
 
 
8.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The application site has been measured at 1.98 Ha, therefore the proposed 
development is correctly classified as a local development, in accordance with the 
Planning (Development Management) Regulations (NI) 2015.  
 
The front portion of the site extends into the Hampton Park Area of Townscape 
Character (ATC), therefore a Design and Access Statement is required for the 
proposed development, in accordance with Section 6 of the Planning (General 
Development Procedure) Order (NI) 2015. A Design and Access Statement was 
submitted as required.  
 
Objections in relation to unauthorised commencement of development have been 
referred to the Council’s Planning Enforcement Team. However, it is noted that there 
is an extant approval within part of the site for 35 dwellings, previously approved 
under ref. Z/2007/1401/F.  
 
Issues have been raised in relation to neighbour notification. The Council is content 
that neighbour notification has taken place, in accordance with Section 41 of the 
Planning Act (NI) 2011 and Article 8 of the Planning (General Development 
Procedure) Order (NI) 2015. 
 
Issues have also been raised regarding the completion of the P1 application form, 
specifically Question 14 which asks if the applicant is ‘aware of the existence on the 
application site of any wildlife protected under the Wildlife (NI)Order 1985 (as 
amended)’. The P1 form did not tick yes or no but referred to the submitted NI 
Biodiversity Checklist. Further inspection of the submitted Checklist provides 
reference to specific species that may be affected by the proposed development and 
what surveys / assessments are required to determine potential impacts. 
 
A small portion of the application site is located outside the settlement limit of Belfast. 
This portion is located along the southern portion of the western boundary. No 
development is proposed within this part of the site.   
 
Development Plan 
Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 requires regard to be had 
to the Development Plan, so far as material to the application and to any other 
material considerations. Section 6(4) states that where regard is to be had to the 
Development Plan, the determination must be made in accordance with the Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The appeal site is located within 
the urban area of Belfast. The adopted Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (BMAP) 
has been quashed as a result of a judgement in the Court of Appeal delivered on 18th 
May 2017. As a consequence of this, the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is 
now the statutory development plan for the area with draft BMAP remaining a material 
consideration.  
 
The site is undesignated whiteland within the BUAP, however it is zoned for housing 
within dBMAP (ref. SB05/04). The Housing zoning includes a number of key site 
requirements (KSRs) in relation to residential density, access, natural environment, 
landscaping, connectivity, flood risk, watercourses and overhead lines. The PAC 
made general points regarding KSRs and advised that many of the KSRs were not in 
accordance with guidance set out in Para 39 of PPS 1 (now superseded by the SPPS) 
and in any case, many of the matters are covered by regional policy in PPS 7 and 
can be addressed in the concept plan and at detailed application stage. 
Subsequently, the adopted BMAP (since declared unlawful) retained the zoning but 
all KSRs were removed.  

Page 198



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 13 of 25 

 
8.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.12 
 
 
 
 
8.13 
 
8.14 
 
 
 
 
8.15 
 
 
 
 
 
8.16 
 
 
 
 
 
8.17 
 
 
 
 
8.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.19 
 
 

 
During the BMAP Inquiry, the PAC considered an objection to the housing zoning, 
which argued that part of the zoning was located within the LVRP, therefore in breach 
of the policies of the LVRP Local Plan 2005. The PAC concluded that the zoning was 
outside the LVRP and consequently, recommended no change to the plan. It is 
therefore assumed that in the event of adoption of BMAP, this housing zoning would 
be included.  
 
The site is located within the Lagan Valley AONB. A small portion of the site (southern 
portion of western boundary) is located within the LVRP, however no development is 
proposed on this part of the site (following amendments). The remaining part of the 
site is not located within LVRP.  
 
The front portion of the site is located within the Hampton Park ATC.  
 
The site is located within Belvoir SLNCI and Area of constraint on mineral 
development. In addition, Lagan Meadows SLNCI is located approximately 185 
metres to the west of the site and Galwally SLNCI is located approximately 320 
metres to the east of the site.  
 
dBMAP also included plans for a rapid transit scheme that passed close to the 
western boundary of the application site. During the BMAP Inquiry, the PAC 
recommended that details of this part of the route were deleted from the Plan and 
further assessment was undertaken.   
 
Principle of development 
There is an extant planning approval on a large portion of the site for 35 dwellings, 
approved under ref. Z/2007/1401/F. A recent application for a Certificate of 
Lawfulness for existing use / development (CLEUD) under ref. LA04/2020/2324/LDP 
confirmed that the previously approved development under ref. Z/2007/1401/F has 
lawfully commenced.  
 
Furthermore, as noted in para 8.10, the application site is zoned for housing within 
dBMAP. It is therefore considered that the principle of residential development on the 
site is acceptable.  
 
SPPS 
The SPPS provides a regional framework of planning policy that will be taken account 
of in the preparation of Belfast City Council's Local Development Plan (LDP). At 
present, the LDP has not been adopted therefore transitional arrangements require 
the council to take account of the SPPS and existing planning policy documents, with 
the exception of PPS 1, 5 and 9. The SPPS advises that within established residential 
areas, the proposed density of new housing development, together with its form, 
scale, massing and layout should respect local character and environmental quality 
as well as safeguarding the amenity of existing residents. The SPPS aims to promote 
more sustainable housing development within existing urban areas and places 
emphasis on increasing housing density within settlements. It also encourages 
sustainable forms of development, good design and balanced communities. The use 
of greenfield land for housing should be reduced and more urban housing should be 
accommodated through the recycling of land and buildings.   
 
Character / Layout / Design 
The surrounding area is characterised primarily by residential development to the 
east of the application site and green, open space to the west of the application site 
towards the River Lagan. Hampton Park is characterised by large detached dwellings 

Page 199



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 14 of 25 

 
 
 
 
 
8.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.23 
 
 
 
 
 
8.24 
 
 
 
 
8.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.26 

with generous gardens. It is a generously proportioned cul-de-sac, with wide tree 
lined verges on both sides. The western boundary of the site is defined by mature 
vegetation, signalling the entrance to LVRP immediately adjacent to the application 
site.  
 
The proposed development is for a total of 18 no. detached dwellings. The proposed 
dwellings are relatively large in size and set within generous plots with large gardens, 
ranging from approximately 95 sq metres to over 400 sq metres in area. The proposed 
development results in the existing road on Hampton Park continuing for 
approximately 45 metres, then taking a 90 degree turn in a northerly direction. Two 
access roads extend from the main thoroughfare in a westerly direction. The 
proposed building line is not uniform, however this is generally characteristic of 
surrounding development, particularly the residential development on the western 
side of Hampton Park. The proposed development includes wide tree lined verges on 
both sides along the main access road, thereby respecting an important characteristic 
from Hampton Park.  
 
As previously noted, the northern portion of the site is relatively flat, however the land 
falls away significantly in the south western corner of the site. Overall, there is a level 
difference of approximately 13 metres from the northern boundary of the site to the 
southern boundary. In spite of this, the use of retaining walls is generally limited within 
the site. 4 sections of retaining wall are proposed within the site, however they are 
not overly prominent and located at the rear of proposed properties. The proposed 
development mainly utilises planted embankments to accommodate significant level 
changes, for example, planted embankment at rear of dwelling no. 4 covers a level 
difference of approximately 2.45 metres. It is considered that the layout design 
minimises the impact of differences in level between adjoining properties.  
 
The presence of LVRP immediately adjacent to the site is significant and the 
proposed layout provides views towards the park as one traverses the development. 
The proposed layout includes a buffer along the full extent of the western boundary. 
No dwellings or garden areas are proposed along this buffer zone, thereby enhancing 
views and providing a clear separation with LVRP. Views of the development will be 
achievable from LVRP, however the strong western boundary and landscape buffer 
should assist in screening the development.  
 
It is considered that design of the proposed development draws upon the best local 
traditions of forms, materials and detailing. Hampton Park is defined by a mix of 
design types and materials. Although the proposed development relates to a more 
uniform house type, the use of brick and render on external walls partly ascribes to 
the existing eclectic mix of Hampton Park.  
 
The proposed boundary treatments are considered acceptable. In general, the more 
prominent boundaries at the front and sides of the proposed dwellings are defined by 
2.1 metre brick walls (with capping), with the use of timber fencing primarily limited to 
the rear boundaries, with limited public views.  
 
For the reasons outlined above, it is considered that the proposed development is 
generally respectful of the surrounding context and character of the immediate 
locality. Furthermore, it is considered the pattern of development is generally in 
keeping with the overall character and environmental quality of the established 
residential area. 
 
Residential Density 

Page 200



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 15 of 25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.27 
 
 
 
 
 
8.28 
 
 
 
 
 
8.29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
8.31 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.32 
 
 
 
 

The residential density of the proposed development equates to approximately 12 
dwellings per Hectare. The extant approval for 35 dwellings within a portion of the 
application site equated to approximately 11.5 dwellings per Hectare. With regard to 
the surrounding area, there is a slight contrast in terms of density between the lower 
density of Hampton Park and the medium density of Hampton Manor. The existing 
density of Hampton Park equates to approximately 7 dwellings per Hectare, whilst 
the density of Hampton Manor is approximately 20 dwellings per Hectare. Existing 
residential development to the north and south of the site at Mornington and Galwally 
Avenue respectively equates to approximately 11.5 to 14.5 dwellings per Hectare, 
similar to the proposed development.  
 
It is acknowledged that Hampton Park exhibits a lower residential density than the 
surrounding area, however there are several examples of medium density housing 
within the surrounding area, i.e. Hampton Manor, Mornington and Galwally Avenue. 
Furthermore, the density of the proposed development is similar to that previously 
approved and under construction within the application site.  
 
Natural Environment / Ecology 
The application site is in close proximity to a watercourse that is connected to the 
Belfast Lough Special Protection Area (SPA) / Inner Belfast Lough Area of Special 
Scientific Interest (ASSI) / Outer Belfast Lough ASSI which are of national and 
international importance. 
 
As noted previously, the application site is located within Belvoir SLNCI. Belvoir 
SLNCI contains an important resource of woodland habitat, both planted and semi 
natural, and is important for local wildlife. It contains an important wild bird 
assemblage and protected and priority species, such as badgers, bats, otters and red 
squirrels (at the time of designation). Areas of semi-natural grassland, some of which 
is species rich, adds to the variety of habitats and the biodiversity value of the SLNCI. 
 
Several supporting documents have been submitted along with the proposal: 

 NI Biodiversity Checklist 

 JNCC Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey and Protected Species Surveys 

 Badger Survey 

 Street light Impact Study including Street lighting plan 

 Badger Sett temporary closure supporting info – Mitigation Plan including 
Proposed site plan with badger setts 

The first two documents are available for viewing on the planning portal, however, 
please note the remaining three documents are not available for viewing due to 
sensitive information.  
 
NIEA Natural Environment Division (NED) have considered the supporting 
information and provided comments. NED advise that the main badger sett is located 
more than 30 metres away from the site boundary and is unlikely to be significantly 
impacted by the development. NED are also content that the outlier setts will be 
protected by buffer zones / temporarily closed during construction. NED clarify that 
wildlife licenses will be required for temporary closure of setts and have advised of 
further mitigation during construction works etc.  
 
Following assessment of the street lighting information, NED are content that the 
consideration has been given to the sensitivities of bats and badgers from excess 
lighting and appropriate measures have been proposed to limit the potential impact 
from the proposed street lighting. NED note that no details for external lighting of 
individual dwellings has been provided and advised that appropriate mitigation 

Page 201



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 16 of 25 

 
 
 
 
8.33 
 
 
 
 
8.34 
 
 
 
 
 
8.35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.36 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.37 
 
 
 
 
8.38 
 
 
 
 
 
8.39 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.40 
 

measures should be included in the Badger Mitigation plan should external lighting 
be proposed. It is considered that this can be dealt with by a planning condition in the 
event of approval.  
 
NED highlight concerns for the local urban badger population (and other wildlife) if 
any future development in the area is proposed. It is noted that the western boundary 
of the site demarcates the settlement limit and it is not anticipated that further 
development in this direction would be considered acceptable. 
 
NED note the potential for breeding birds on site, advising that birds and them 
nests are protected under Article 4 of the Wildlife (Northern Ireland) Order 1985 (as 
amended). NED recommend that any tree felling / vegetation removal required as 
part of the proposal should take place outside of the bird breeding season (1st March 
– 31st August). In the event of approval, this can be dealt with by planning condition.  
 
NED and Water Management Unit (WMU) have highlighted the presence of a 
watercourse adjacent to the southern boundary of the site and the small ditch which 
bisects the site. NED advise that a buffer of at least 10 metres should be retained 
between refuelling location, oil / fuel storage, washing area, storage of machinery / 
material / spoil etc. There shall be no direct discharge of untreated surface water 
run-off during the construction into the watercourse and storm drainage of the site, 
during construction and operational phases, must be designed to the principles of the 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). In addition, WMU have advised that a 
Construction Method Statement for works in, near or liable to affect any waterway 
must be submitted and agreed prior to commencement of works. It is considered that 
the above issues can be addressed through planning condition, in the event of 
approval.  
 
NED have noted that a number of non-native tree species have been proposed within 
the landscaping plans. Given that the proposed site is within the Belvoir SLNCI, which 
was designated in part for its woodland coverage, NED would recommend that only 
species native to Northern Ireland are planted. In addition, the manager of LVRP 
endorses this approach with regard to native species. It is considered that this can be 
addressed through planning condition, in the event of approval.  
 
NED note the presence of invasive species, specifically Japanese knotweed, which 
has been recorded just outside the boundary of the application site. NED advise that 
further mitigation will be necessary should this invasive species be recorded on the 
site.  
 
NED raise no objections to the proposal.  NIEA were reconsulted with the objections 
in relation to ecological impact of the proposal. At the time of publication, no response 
had been received. Committee will be advised in the late items pack of NIEAs 
response if received by the date of Committee.  If NIEA raise any new issues 
thereafter, the application will be re-presented to Planning Committee. 
 
AONB 
It is considered that the siting and scale of the proposed development is sympathetic 
to the character of the AONB and the locality in general. It respects features that are 
important to the character and appearance of the AONB, for example, the retention 
of majority of existing trees, proposed buffer planting along the western boundary and 
the protection of nearby badger setts.  
 
Environmental Impact Assessment 

Page 202



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 17 of 25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.41 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.42 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.43 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.44 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.45 
 
 
 
 
8.47 
 
 
 
 
 

The proposed development has a site area of 1.98 Ha and therefore falls within 
Schedule 2, Part 10 (b) 'Urban development projects, including the construction of 
shopping centres and car parks' of The Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2017 as the area of site would exceed 0.5 Ha. 
Consequently, the proposed development was screened in accordance with the 
above Regulations. In addition, following submission of objections, the Council re-
screened the proposal for further clarity. It is considered that the proposal does not 
have the potential for significant environmental impacts by reason of size, nature and 
location therefore an Environmental Statement is not required. 
 
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 
Belfast City Council in its role as the competent Authority under the Conservation 
(Natural Habitats, etc.) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995 (as amended), and in 
accordance with its duty under Regulation 43, has adopted the HRA report, and 
conclusions therein, prepared by Shared Environmental Service, dated 23rd April 
2021. This found that the project would not be likely to have a significant effect on 
any European site. 
 
Loss of open space 
A significant volume of objections has raised issues regarding the loss of existing 
open space. The open space has been recognised as an amenity and biodiversity 
asset within the local area. Policy OS 1 of PPS 8 seeks to protect existing open space 
from development. As previously noted, the application site is located at the edge of 
the settlement limit, immediately adjacent to LVRP. The site is zoned for housing in 
dBMAP and a large portion of the site benefits from an extant planning permission for 
residential development, which appears to be under construction at present.  
 
The application site is quite open with an access road running through the middle of 
the site. There are also a number of informal pathways across the site linking 
Hampton Park with Belvoir Forest and LVRP. It would appear that the site itself is not 
necessarily of significant amenity value, however it does provide access to other 
amenity areas. The proposed development includes a pathway to the LVRP located 
to the south of the proposed communal amenity area, therefore existing users will still 
be able to access LVRP. It is noted from consideration of the approved site layout of 
Z/2007/1401/F that no linkage exists to LVRP therefore it is considered that the 
proposed development represents a betterment in relation to this.  
 
Although it appears the site itself may not be of significant amenity value, Policy OS 
1 clarifies that ‘the presumption against the loss of existing open space will apply 
irrespective of its physical condition and appearance’. Despite this, as noted in para 
8.10, the site is zoned for housing and a large portion has planning permission for 
residential development. Consequently, it is not considered that Policy OS1 is 
applicable to this proposed development.  
 
Amenity space 
Adequate provision has been made for private open space within the proposed 
development, in accordance with the provisions of Creating Places. As previously 
noted, the garden areas range from approximately 95 sq metres to over 400 sq 
metres in area, representing generous provision of garden space.  
 
The application site has an area of approximately 1.98 Ha, therefore public open 
space is required as an integral part of the development, in accordance with Policy 
OS 2 of PPS 8. Approximately 0.35 Ha of public open space is provided within the 
scheme, stretching along the western boundary of the site, with the primary area of 
open space surrounded by dwelling no’s 3a, 4a, 5a and 5b measuring approximately 

Page 203



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 18 of 25 

 
 
 
8.48 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.49 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.51 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.52 
 
 
 
8.53 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0.12 Ha. Consequently, it is considered that the proposed development complies with 
the tests of Policy OS 1 of PPS 8.  
 
Landscaping 
The proposed development includes the retention of the majority of existing trees 
within the application site (proposal includes partial clearance of tree group 31g). 
Furthermore, additional planting is proposed within the development site in order to 
soften the visual impact of the development and assist in its integration with the 
surrounding area. A landscaped buffer is proposed along much of the western 
boundary to augment the existing trees and vegetation. Furthermore, additional trees 
are proposed along the southern boundary of the site. Planting at the edge of 
settlement is important and helps to assimilate and soften the impact of the 
development on the countryside and LVRP.  
 
A landscaping plan has been submitted in relation to the proposed development. The 
Council’s Tree and Landscaping Officer (TLO) has no objection to the proposal, 
however following advice from NED regarding proposed non native species, it is 
considered appropriate to condition a further landscaping plan in the event of 
approval. The landscaping plan should broadly conform to the submitted plan, 
however only native species should be included. A landscape management plan has 
also been submitted in support of the proposed development. In the event of 
approval, a condition should be included to ensure the recommendations and 
methods of the management plan are implemented.  
 
Residential amenity 
The proposal has been amended to address concerns regarding overlooking and 
privacy, particularly in relation to the southern portion of the site. As previously noted, 
there is a variation in ground levels at this part of the site, thereby increasing potential 
for overlooking. In order to address these concerns, the layout has been amended 
with increased separation distances, more effective boundary treatments, provision 
of planted embankments and retaining structures and further details regarding 
proposed ground levels. Following these amendments, it is considered that the 
proposed development will not result in an unacceptable adverse effect in terms of 
overlooking or lack of privacy.   
 
The proposed dwellings are adequately spaced, with a generous provision of open 
space between buildings. Consequently, there are no concerns regarding the impact 
of overshadowing or lack of natural light. One objector raised an issue regarding the 
impact on natural light for existing residents. It is not considered that the proposed 
development will have a detrimental impact on existing residents in terms of natural 
light as the majority of proposed dwellings are quite far removed from existing 
dwelling (nearest existing dwelling is over 40 metres away from the closest proposed 
dwelling).  
 
It is considered that the design and layout will not create conflict with adjacent land 
uses and there is no unacceptable impact on residential amenity as a result of the 
proposal. 
 
BCC Environmental Health (EHO) have been consulted on the proposed 
development and have raised no objection in relation to noise or odour. With regard 
to air quality impact, the agent has confirmed that centralised hot water / heating 
combustion process or biomass type boilers will not be used therefore there is no 
requirement for air quality assessment. The proposed development is for 18 no. 
residential dwellings and it is not anticipated that this proposed use will give rise to 
late night activity / nuisance.  

Page 204



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 19 of 25 

 
 
8.54 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.55 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.56 
 
 
 
 
 
8.57 
 
 
 
8.58 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.59 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.60 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.61 
 
 
 
 

 
Contamination 
Contamination Information has been submitted in support of the proposed 
development. The Council has consulted with EHO and NIEA Regulation Unit Land 
and Groundwater Team (RU); both consultees are satisfied that the proposed 
development will not pose unacceptable risks to human health or environmental 
receptors. RU have provided conditions in the event of approval.   
 
Access / Parking 
The proposed access is effectively a continuation of the existing roadway along 
Hampton Park. The existing road at Hampton Park continues for approximately 45 
metres before taking a 90 degree turn in a northerly direction. Two access roads 
extend from the main thoroughfare in a westerly direction, providing access to 
proposed dwellings. The most southerly road is proposed for adoption, however the 
northerly road is a private road. The proposal includes 36 in curtilage parking 
spaces (2 per dwelling) and 18 on street spaces including 3 visitor spaces. DFI 
Roads have provided comments on the proposed development and following 
amendments to the scheme, have no objection, subject to conditions.  
 
Following receipt of a significant volume of objections in relation to access, road 
safety, intensification of Hampton Park junction etc, the Council sought additional 
comments from DFI Roads. DFI Roads confirmed they retained their position set 
out in previous consultation responses. 
 
Movement pattern / local facilities  
The proposed development does not require the provision of local neighbourhood 
facilities, however the site provides easy access for vehicles, pedestrians and 
cyclists to nearby amenities and public transport facilities via Hampton Park.  
 
A significant volume of objections raised the issue of potential Rights of Way, 
(ROWs) throughout the site, in particular the routes from Hampton Park to Galwally 
Avenue and from Hampton Park to Lagan Lands East. The Council has a statutory 
duty under Article 3 of the Access to the Countryside (Northern Ireland) Order 1983 
to ‘assert, protect, keep open and free from obstruction any public right of way’. The 
AO has confirmed that no ROWs have been asserted within the application site.  
 
With regard to the aforementioned route from Hampton Park to Galwally Avenue, 
the AO has confirmed that this path does not have the hallmarks of a Public ROW 
for a number of reasons, including the presence of a wall blocking the route, part of 
the route is over the line of a large pipe and part of the path is not particularly well 
defined. Consequently, it is unlikely that the Council will assert this route as a Public 
ROW.  
 
The proposed layout also includes a pathway linking the proposed development 
(and in effect, Hampton Park) with Lagan Lands East. The AO has also confirmed it 
is the intention for this path to link into existing path infrastructure within Lagan 
Lands East in the future, thereby enhancing connectivity and access to the wider 
LVRP and Lagan gateway bridge.  
 
Flooding / Drainage 
DFI Rivers Agency (RA) advise there is a designated watercourse, known as the 
Galwally stream (U3BEL11) flowing immediately along a portion of the south western 
corner of the site. The application site does not lie within the 1 in 100-year fluvial 
floodplain. RA have advised that the proposed development will not impede the 

Page 205



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 20 of 25 

 
 
8.62 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.63 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.64 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.65 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.66 
 
 

operational effectiveness of flood defence and drainage infrastructure or hinder 
access to enable their maintenance.  
 
A Drainage Assessment (DA) was submitted in accordance with Policy FLD 3 of PPS 
15. With regard to site drainage, the proposal is to attenuate surface water within 
oversized pipes and manholes in the overall development and limit/restrict the 
discharge to green field rate. RA advises that while not being responsible for the 
preparation of the DA, accepts its logic and has no reason to disagree with its 
conclusions. Consequently, the proposal complies with the tests of Policy FLD 3 of 
PPS 15.  
 
Sewage infrastructure 
NI Water (NIW) have confirmed that there is a foul sewer within 20 metres of the 
proposed site, however there is no surface water sewer within 20 metres of the site. 
NIW have advised that the developer may wish to requisition a surface water sewer 
to serve the proposed development and / or obtain approval from Rivers Agency for 
discharge to a watercourse. NIW have also confirmed that there is available capacity 
at a nearby Waste water treatment works to serve the proposed development.  
 
Archaeological heritage 
An Archaeological programme of works has been submitted in support of the 
proposal. Historic Environment Division (HED) have provided comments, advising of 
no objection. HED agree with the archaeological mitigation strategy proposed and 
are content for the development to proceed to archaeological licensing. It is 
considered that this can be addressed by planning condition in the event of planning 
approval.  
 
Crime / Antisocial behaviour 
It is considered that the proposed development is designed to deter crime and 
promote personal safety. The primary area of public open space within the 
development benefits from passive surveillance from the nearby dwellings. 
Furthermore, the proposed rear gardens are enclosed and generally back onto each 
other. Proposed pathways, including the linkage to LVRP, also benefit from passive 
surveillance from adjacent dwellings.  
 
Impact on views 
The impact of the proposed development on views of LVRP from existing dwellings 
is not a material consideration in the assessment of this planning application.  
 

9.0 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 

Summary of Recommendation:    APPROVAL 
 
It is considered that the proposed development is generally respectful of the 
surrounding context and character of the immediate locality. Furthermore, it is 
considered the pattern of development is generally in keeping with the overall 
character and environmental quality of the established residential area. 
 
Supporting information has been submitted in relation to the impact on ecology, 
specifically in relation to habitats and protected species, including badgers. Following 
consultation with NIEA, it is considered that the proposed development complies with 
the policy tests of PPS 2, subject to conditions mitigating potential ecological impacts.  
 
DFI Roads have provided comments on the proposed development, including access, 
car parking, intensification of Hampton Park junction. Following amendments to the 
scheme, DFI Roads have no objection, subject to conditions. 

Page 206



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 21 of 25 

 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 

 
The proposed layout includes a pathway linking the proposed development (and in 
effect, Hampton Park) with Lagan Lands East. The Council’s Access Officer has 
advised that the existing route to Galwally Avenue does not have the hallmarks of a 
public right of way and is unlikely to be asserted as such. 
 
It is also considered the proposed development complies with planning policy in 
relation to residential amenity, amenity space, protection of open space, flooding / 
drainage, infrastructure, landscaping and archaeological heritage.  
 
It is considered that the proposed development complies with the tests of the 
Development Plan and retained planning policy, therefore recommendation is to 
approve, subject to conditions. It is recommended that the Chief Executive, or her 
nominated officer, uses her delegated authority to finalise the wording of any 
conditions. 
 

10.0 
 
10.1 
 
 
 
 
10.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.5 
 
 
 
 

Conditions 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years 
from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
No dwelling shall be occupied until its related hard surfaced incurtilage area has 
been constructed in accordance with the approved PSD Drawings No. P291-OCSC-
DR-C-0707 Rev P09 and P291-OCSC-DR-C-0708 Rev P06 uploaded to the 
Planning Portal on 2nd September 2020 to provide adequate facilities for parking.  
These spaces shall be permanently retained. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate parking in the interests of road safety and the 
convenience of road users. 
 
The area within the visibility splays and any forward sight line shall be cleared to 
provide a level surface no higher than 250 mm above the level of the adjoining 
carriageway before the development hereby permitted occupied and such splays 
shall be retained and kept clear thereafter. 
 
REASON:  To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interest of road 
safety and the convenience of road users. 
 
The access gradients to the dwellings hereby permitted shall not exceed 8% (1 in 
12.5) over the first 5 m outside the road boundary.  Where the vehicular access 
crosses a footway or verge, the access gradient shall be between 4% (1 in 25) 
maximum and 2.5% (1 in 40) minimum and shall be formed so that there is no 
abrupt change of slope along the footway. 
 
REASON:  To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of 
road safety and the convenience of road users. 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Planning (General Development) (Northern 
Ireland) Order 1993, no buildings, walls or fences shall be erected, nor hedges nor 
formal rows of trees grown in (verges/service strips) determined for adoption. 

Page 207



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 22 of 25 

 
 
10.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REASON: To ensure adequate visibility in the interests of road safety and the 
convenience of road users and to prevent damage or obstruction to services. 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Planning (General Development) (Northern 
Ireland) Order 1993 no planting other than grass, flowers or shrubs with a shallow 
root system and a mature height of less than 500 mm shall be carried out in 
(verges/service strips) determined for adoption. 
 
REASON:  In order to avoid damage to and allow access to the services within the 
service strip 
 
The Private Streets (Northern Ireland) Order 1980 as amended by the Private 
Streets (Amendment) (Northern Ireland) Order 1992. 
 
The Department hereby determines that the width, position and arrangement of the 
streets, and the land to be regarded as being comprised in the streets, shall be as 
indicated on Drawings No:P291-OCSC-DR-C-0707 Rev P09 and P291-OCSC-DR-
C-0708 Rev P06 bearing the Department for Infrastructure determination date 
stamp 23/9/20. 
 
REASON:  To ensure there is a safe and convenient road system to comply with the 
provisions of the Private Streets (Northern Ireland) Order 1980.   
 
No development activity, including ground preparation or vegetation clearance, shall 
take place until a Badger Mitigation Plan (BMP) has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The approved BMP shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details and all works on site shall 
conform to the approved BMP, unless otherwise approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. The BMP shall include the following: 
a. Provision of 25m buffers from all development activity to all retained Badger setts 
(clearly shown on plans); 
b. Details of wildlife corridors to allow movement of Badgers to and from setts 
and/or foraging areas; 
c. Details of appropriate fencing to protect Badgers and their setts/wildlife corridors; 
d. Details of appropriate measures to avoid illumination of Badger setts and the 
retention of dark corridors; 
e. Details of appropriate measures to protect Badgers from harm during the 
construction phase; 
f. Details of the appointment of a competent ecologist to oversee the 
implementation of Badger mitigation measures during the construction phase, 
including their roles, responsibilities and timing of visits. 
g. If external lighting to individual dwellings is proposed, full details and appropriate 
mitigation measures are required.  
 
Reason: To protect Badgers and their setts. 
 
No vegetation clearance/removal of trees/vegetation structures shall take place 
between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has 
undertaken a detailed check for active bird’s nests immediately before clearance 
and provided written confirmation that no nests are present/birds will be harmed 
and/or there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting birds. Any such 
written confirmation shall be submitted to the Planning Authority within 6 weeks of 
works commencing. 

Page 208



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 23 of 25 

 
10.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.12 
 
 
 
 
 
10.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.15 
 
 

 
Reason: To protect breeding birds. 
 
No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, or have its roots 
damaged within the crown spread nor shall arboricultural work or tree surgery take 
place on any retained tree to be topped or lopped other than in accordance with the 
approved plans and particulars, without the written approval of the Planning 
Authority. Any arboricultural work or tree surgery approved shall be carried out in 
accordance with British Standard 5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction – Recommendations. 
 
Reason: To ensure the continuity of the biodiversity value afforded by existing trees. 
 
Storm drainage of the site, during construction and operational phases, must be 
designed to the principles of the Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) in order to 
prevent the polluting effects of storm water on aquatic environments. Construction 
of SuDS should comply with the design and construction standards as set out in 
The SuDS Manual - Construction Industry Research and Information Association 
(CIRIA) Report C697. 
 
Reason: To minimise the impact of the development on the biodiversity value of the 
aquatic environment. 
 
All surface water run-off during the construction phase shall be directed away from 
the watercourse and site drains. 
 
Reason: To minimise the impact of the development on the biodiversity value of the 
aquatic environment. 
 
A suitable buffer of at least 10m must be maintained between the location of 
refuelling, storage of oil/fuel/spoil, construction materials, concrete mixing and 
washing areas and the watercourse and site drains. 
 
Reason: To minimise the impact of the development on the biodiversity value of the 
aquatic environment. 
 
Prior to the commencement of development, a landscaping scheme shall be 
submitted to and agreed with the Council. The scheme shall broadly conform to the 
details already submitted, however all proposed species shall be native. The 
scheme shall detail species types, siting and planting distances and a programme 
of planting for all additional landscaping on the site and will comply with the 
appropriate British Standard or other recognised Codes of Practice.  The works 
shall be carried out prior to the completion of the development unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Council. Any trees or plants indicated on the approved 
scheme which, within a period of five years from the date of planting, die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged, diseased or dying shall be replaced during 
the next planting season with other trees or plants of a location, species and size, 
details of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Council. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and to ensure 
the provision of a high standard of landscape. 
 

Page 209



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 24 of 25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
10.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.17 
 
 
 
 
 
10.18 
 
 
 
 
10.19 
 
 
 
 
 
10.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All trees and planting within the site shall be retained unless shown on the approved 
drawings as being removed. Any retained trees or planting indicated on the 
approved drawings which become seriously damaged, diseased or dying, shall be 
replaced during the next planting season (October to March inclusive) with other 
trees or plants of a location, species and size to be first approved in writing by the 
Council.  
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity 
 
Prior to any work commencing all protective barriers (fencing) and ground protection 
is to be erected or installed as specified in British Standard 5837: 2012 (section 6.2) 
on any trees / hedging to be retained within the site, and must be in place before 
any materials or machinery are brought onto site for demolition, development or soil 
stripping. Protective fencing must remain in place until all work is completed and all 
associated materials and equipment are removed from site.  
 
Reason: To ensure the protection of, and to ensure the continuity of amenity 
afforded by any existing trees to be retained within the site and on adjacent lands.  
 
If roots are accidentally damaged the tree council must be notified and given the 
opportunity to inspect the damage before it is covered over.  
 
Reason: To ensure the protection of, and to ensure the continuity of amenity 
afforded by existing trees / hedging.  
 
Careful hand digging will be employed within the RPAs with extreme care being 
taken not to damage tree roots and root bark.  
 
Reason: To avoid root severance  
 
No storage of materials, parking of vehicles or plant, temporary buildings, sheds, 
offices or fires within the RPA of trees within the site and adjacent lands during the 
construction period.  
 
Reason: To avoid compaction within the RPA. 
 
If during the development works, new contamination or risks are encountered which 
have not previously been identified, works should cease and the Planning Authority 
shall be notified immediately. This new contamination shall be fully investigated in 
accordance with the Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination 
(CLR11). In the event of unacceptable risks being identified, a remediation strategy 
shall be agreed with the Planning Authority in writing, and subsequently 
implemented and verified to its satisfaction. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for 
use. 
 
After completing the remediation works under Condition 20 and prior to occupation 
of the development, a verification report needs to be submitted in writing and 
agreed with Planning Authority. This report should be completed by competent 
persons in accordance with the Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination (CLR11). The verification report should present all the remediation, 
waste management and monitoring works undertaken and demonstrate the 

Page 210



Application ID: LA04/2019/0775/F 

Page 25 of 25 

 
 
10.22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

effectiveness of the works in managing all the risks and wastes in achieving the 
remedial objectives. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for 
use. 
 
A detailed Construction Method Statement, for works in, near or liable to affect any 
waterway as defined by the Water (Northern Ireland) Order 1999, must be 
submitted to and agreed by the Council, at least 8 weeks prior to the 
commencement of the works or phase of works. 
 
Reason: To ensure effective avoidance and mitigation measures have been 
planned for the protection of the water environment. 
 
No site works of any nature or development shall take place until the programme of 
archaeological work previously submitted to and approved by the Council has been 
completed. An archaeological excavation licence will need to be granted prior to the 
commencement of excavation works.   
 
Reason: to ensure that archaeological remains within the application site are 
properly identified and protected or appropriately recorded. 
 
A programme of post-excavation analysis, preparation of an archaeological report, 
dissemination of results and preparation of the excavation archive shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the programme of archaeological work. These 
measures shall be implemented and a final archaeological report shall be submitted 
to and agreed by the Council within 12 months of the completion of archaeological 
site works, or as otherwise agreed in writing with the Council.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the results of archaeological works are appropriately 
analysed and disseminated and the excavation archive is prepared to a suitable 
standard for deposition. 
 
The open space and amenity areas indicated on Drawing No 04F uploaded to the 
Planning Portal on 10th June 2021 shall be managed and maintained in accordance 
with the Landscape Management Plan uploaded to the Planning Portal on 15th April 
2019. Any changes or alterations to the approved landscape management 
arrangements shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council. 
 
Reason: To ensure successful establishment and ongoing management and 
maintenance of the open space and amenity areas in the interests of visual and 
residential amenity. 
 

Notification to Department (if relevant) 
 
 

Representations from Elected members: 
 
Cllr Brian Smyth 
Cllr Donal Lyons 

 

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee Application 
 

Development Management Report 

Committee Date: Tuesday 17th August 2021 Application ID:   LA04/2020/0493/F 
 

Proposal:  
Alteration and extension of existing building to 
provide 4 No one bed apartments - Existing 
apartments replaced (Amended Description).  

Location: 
23 Glandore Avenue BT15 3FN and 2 
Glanworth Gardens Belfast BT15 3FH 

Referral Route: 
Request to be presented to Planning Committee by Elected Member  

Recommendation: 
Approval subject to conditions 
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Lawrence Bannon 
21 Downview Avenue 
 Belfast 
 BT15 4EZ 

Agent Name and Address: 
HR Jess LTD 
1 Jordanstown Road 
 Newtownabbey 
 BT37 0QD 

Executive Summary  
The application seeks full planning permission for the alteration and extension of the existing 
property which contains 2 no. apartments (1 no. 2 bedroom and 1 no. 4 bedroom) to provide 4 No 
one bedroom apartments. The 1-bedroom apartments will occupy 3 floors, with 1no apartment on 
the ground floor, 2no apartments on the first floor and 1no apartment on the second floor proposed 
(currently 1 no. apartment ground with second floor apartment occupying the first and second 
floors).  The rear return will be replaced, it will be wider aligning with the main gable of the property 
but shorter in length allowing bin storage, cycle parking and private amenity space to be provided 
the rear of the apartments and increasing the separation distance with its neighbour to the south.  
 
The main issues to be considered in this case are: 

 Principle of development 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the area including the draft Area of Townscape 
Character 

 Residential Amenity 

 Access, Parking and Road safety 

 Available Infrastructure 
 
The application was neighbour notified and advertised in the local press. A total of 19 letters of 
objection have been received. These objections raised a number of concerns including, impact on 
the Area of Townscape Character, design, impact on amenity, parking provision, accuracy of the 
parking survey and the structural impact on adjoining property. 
 
BCC Environmental Health Services was consulted and is content with the proposal subject to an 
informative being attached to the decision. 
 
NIW has been consulted and offers no objection. 

thi 
DfI Roads was also consulted and offered no objection subject to conditions.  
 
The proposal has been assessed against and is considered to comply with the BUAP, Draft BMAP, 
PPS3, PPS7, PPS7 Addendum, the SPPS and Creating Places.  
 
 

Page 213

Agenda Item 7e



2 
 

Recommendation: 

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal is 

considered acceptable on balance and it is recommended that planning permission is granted 

subject to conditions with delegated power given to the Director of Planning and Building Control 

to finalise conditions. 

 
  

Page 214



3 
 

Case Officer Report  

Site Location Plan:  

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

Page 215



4 
 

EXISTING AND PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 216



5 
 

EXISTING AND PROPOSED PLANS 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 217



6 
 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 

 
1.0 
1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 

Description of Proposed Development  
The proposal is to replace 2 no. existing apartments with 4 no. 1 bedroom apartments 
with internal reconfiguration of the rooms and the demolition and replacement of the 
rear return.  
 
The property will be accessed via a communal entrance on the ground floor of the front 
Glandore Avenue elevation which will lead to the 4no. apartments. Bin storage, cycle 
parking and amenity space is provided to the side and rear of the property for each of 
the apartments. Access to the rear is provided from Glanworth Gardens. 

2.0  
2.1 

Description of Site and Area 
The site is a large two and half storey semi detached property finished in red brick. The 
site is located on the junction of Glandore Avenue and Glanworth Gardens. There is an 
existing two storey rear return on the building with a boundary wall enclosing a rear 
amenity area to the site which is used for the storage of bins. The surrounding area is 
primarily residential and is characterised by semi-detached and terrace dwellings 
finished in red brick and white render. 

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 
3.1 
 
  
 
3.2 

Site History  
Z/2009/0499/F 23 Glandore Avenue & 2 Glanworth Gardens, Belfast, BT15 3FB 
Alteration & extension of existing building to provide 3no. 1 bed apartments & 2no. 2 
bed apartments. PERMISSION GRANTED 
 
Z/2009/1332/F 23 Glandore Avenue and 2 Glanworth Gardens, Belfast, BT15 3FB. 
Alteration and extension of existing building to provide 3no. 1 bed apartments and 2no. 
2 bedroom apartments - existing apartments replaced (amendment to approved 
scheme Z/2009/0499/F to include two storey bay with terrace on top) PERMISSION 
GRANTED 

4.0 
4.1 
4.2 
4.3 
4.4 
4.5 
4.6 
4.7 
4.8 

Policy Framework 
Regional Development Strategy 
Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (published 2004) (dBMAP 2004)  
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (published 2014) (dBMAP 2015) 
Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, Movement and Parking 
Planning Policy Statement 7: Quality Residential Environments 
Planning Policy Statement 7 Addendum – Safeguarding the Character of Established 
Residential Areas  

5.0 
 
5.1 
 
 

Statutory Consultees  
 
DFI Roads – Offered no objection to the proposal subject to conditions being attached 
to the decision relating to the provision of cycle parking and opening of gates included 
in the proposal. They were also reconsulted to consider the objections and were 
content with the submitted Parking Survey. 
 

6.0 
6.1 
 
 
6.2 

Non Statutory Consultees 
Environmental Health – No objection subject to Informatives to be included on the 
decision notice. 
 
NI Water – No objection – Advise applicant that consultation with them is required at 
an early design stage by means of a Predevelopment Enquiry to obtain details of the 

Page 218



7 
 

availability of existing water and sewerage infrastructure and how their proposal may 
be serviced if not already applied for. 

7.0 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Representations  
The application was neighbour notified on the 11th March 2020 and advertised in the 
local press on the 13th March 2020. The application was further neighbour notified on 
22nd December 2020 and 7th April 2021 following amendments to the proposal. 19 
letters of objection were received in total from 12 neighbours. 
 
Issues raised in the objections include:  
 

- impact on character of the area and draft ATC – see Assessment below 
- number of units / size of the units / overdevelopment – see Assessment below 
- impact on amenity – see Assessment below 
- noise from additional units – Environmental Health have no objection 
- devaluation of area – not a material planning consideration 
- accuracy of the parking survey – DfI Roads no objection, see Assessment 

below 
- provision of parking inadequate – DfI Roads no objection, see Assessment 

below 
- health and safety – developer responsible for ensuring construction complies 

with health and safety legislative requirements 
- hygiene concerns with respect to refuse/bins - Environmental Health have no 

objection 
- shared boundary with the adjoining property and potential structural damage by 

demolition of the rear return / shared chimney – boundary issues are a civil 
matter; it is the developers’ responsibility to engage with the neighbouring 
property to agree any works to a shared boundary;   

- sewage issues – NIW raised no objection 
- location of flues / pipes – the rear return slopes away from the adjoining property 

and all service related pipework and flues should be contained within applicants 
own boundary as existing, Informatives will be attached 

8.0 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
8.3 
 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
 
 
8.5 
 
 

Assessment   
 
Principle of development 
The site is within the development limit of Belfast as designated in both the BUAP and 
the draft BMAP (both versions). The site is unzoned whiteland within the proposed 
Glandore Gardens ATC designation within Draft BMAP.  
 
There is an existing residential use on the site, the property has previously been 
converted into two apartments. A previous application under reference Z/2009/1332/F 
was approved on the site for 3no. 1 bed apartments and 2no. 2 bedroom apartments. 
This approval was never implemented and has lapsed. 
 
Given the existing apartment use on site the principle of a residential use for apartments 
is established and therefore the principle of development is acceptable subject to other 
material considerations. 
 
The SPPS requires development to cause no demonstrable harm to interests of 
acknowledged importance. Interests of acknowledged importance in this case are the 
surrounding character of the area; neighbouring amenity, and traffic, access and 
parking.  
 
Impact on the character and appearance of the area including the draft Area of 
Townscape Character 

Page 219



8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
8.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.7 
 
 
 
8.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.9 
 
 
 
8.10 
 
 
 
 
 
8.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Any proposal for residential development should conform to all of the points (a)-(I) in 
Policy QD1 of PPS7. Development should produce an appropriate level of design and 
create a quality and sustainable environment. Development should not cause 
unacceptable harm to local character, environmental quality or residential amenity. 
 
During the processing of the application amendments were secured to: - 
 

 Reduce the scheme from 5 to 4 No. Units 

 Retain the side bay window  

 Increase private amenity space provision 

 Reconfigure the bike storage and bin areas  

 Incorporate a revised internal layout to enable all occupants to access the rear 
private amenity space  

 Revise boundary wall & fences to continuation of existing. 
 
The proposal retains the original property, only the rear return is to be removed. Its 
replacement is wider but shorter than the original enabling private amenity space to be 
created to the rear. It remains subservient to the original property in terms of height.  
 
The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of layout, scale and massing within the 
context of the surrounding area, therefore it is compliant with criterion (a) of Policy QD1. 
The proposed extension and alterations to the existing building are considered 
sympathetic to the character and design of the building. The scale of the replacement 
rear return is considered acceptable in context with the existing building and the 
surrounding area. 
 
There are other apartment properties in the area. There is a variety of rear returns 
within the area. The replacement will utilise the same materials as existing. The 
proposal is not out of keeping with the character of the surrounding area. 
 
The scheme will not erode the character or amenity of the area and the proposal does 
not constitute over development each of the units meeting space standards contained 
within Annex A of the Second Addendum to PPS 7. Apartments nos 2 & 3 are the 
smallest in area, however still meets the space standards of a 1no bed apartment with 
an area of 37sqm (requirement 35sqm). 
 
The property is located within Glandore Gardens Area of Townscape Character. In draft 
BMAP 2004 the key features cited for this draft ATC are the two and three storey terrace 
dwellings, broad tree lined roads with views over the City and Cavehill, three storey 
brick terraces to Antrim Road and two storey brick terraces on side roads. As this is a 
draft ATC the policies within the addendum to PPS 6 do not apply however the 
character of the draft ATC remains a material consideration when assessing demolition 
and redevelopment. This proposal retains the original property which is a two storey 
semi detached red brick dwelling with internal alterations only proposed, the main 
chimney on the gable is retained and the proposal was amended to retain the large bay 
window on the side gable; demolition and replacement is of the rear return only.  There 
is a mixture of rear returns of varying design, sizes and finishes in the area, it is not 
considered that the rear return to be demolished is integral to the character of the 
overall draft ATC. Its replacement remains below the eaves height of the original 
property, remains subservient in nature and utilises red brick walls and black slate roof 
to match existing. To ensure high quality materials are secured that respect the 
character and appearance of the area, it is recommended a condition be attached 
requiring samples of the external materials to be submitted for agreement by the 
Council. 

Page 220



9 
 

8.14 
 
 
 
 
8.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.16 
 
 
8.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.18 
 
 
8.19 
 
 
 
8.20 
 
 
 
 
8.21 
 
 
 
 
8.22 
 
 
 
 
8.23 
 
 
 
 

It is considered that there will be no detrimental impact on the character of the proposed 
ATC. The proposal complies with the SPPS, Planning Policy Statement 7 and its 
associated addendum. 
 
Residential Amenity 
The development will create a safe environment with clearly defined defensible space 
to the front and side of the property with enclosed front and side gardens. Creating 
Places recommends 10sqm of private amenity space per apartment; 50sqm of private 
amenity is provided to the rear of the apartments. There is also provision of enclosed 
space for bin storage and cycle parking. The first floor apartments benefit from a small 
balcony. Overall there is 101sqm of private and communal amenity space which is in 
excess of guidance. 
 
The apartments all comply with the space standards as set out in Annex A of PPS7 
Addendum. 
 
All of the proposed windows within habitable parts of the building will have an 
acceptable outlook to Glandore Avenue and Glanworth Gardens. There is no 
overlooking to the private amenity of neighbouring properties. The side gable on to 
Glandworth Gardens already provides outlook for habitable rooms and whilst the rear 
return will extend to the side to align with the main house it will be reduced in length 
and will remain further away from the side gable and boundary of properties on the 
opposite roadside of Glandworth Gardens than adjacent existing dwellings, the 
separation distance will ensure there will be no unacceptable impact on the private 
amenity of neighbouring properties by way of overlooking. The replacement rear return 
will have a smaller footprint and be further away from its rear neighbour at no. 4 than 
existing. 
 
In terms of dominance or overshadowing the proposal is not considered to impact on 
neighbouring properties given it is reduced in size.  
 
In terms of noise, Environmental Health were consulted and considered the proposed 
development in terms of noise, air pollution, general amenity, ambient air quality, 
contaminated land and other considerations and offered no objection. 
 
In light of the above, it is considered that an adequate level of residential amenity would 
be maintained for future and existing occupiers in accordance with PPS7, its associated 
addendum and the SPPS.  
 

 
Access, Parking and Road safety 
The planning application is supported by a Parking Report.  The existing property has 
no in curtilage parking and no new parking is proposed as part of this application. Three 
sheltered Sheffield cycle stands are proposed within the rear of the site. 
 
The Parking Report demonstrates that there is available capacity of on-street parking 
within the vicinity of the site to accommodate the requirements of the development 
without having an adverse impact on existing parking within the area. DfI Roads have 
reviewed the Parking Report and are content with its findings.  
 
DfI Roads were consulted and have no objection to the proposed development subject 
to conditions. DFI Roads were reconsulted on the objections from third parties relating 
to the accuracy of the parking statement provided, they again provided no objection to 
this or the overall proposal.  
 

Page 221



10 
 

8.24 
 
 
8.25 
 
 
 
 
8.26 
 
 
 
8.27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.28 
 
 
 
 

The proposal is located within close proximity to public transport and neighbourhood 
facilities. 
 
The existing property has 2 no. apartments, 1 no. 2 bedroom and 1 no. 4 bedrooms, 
as such there are 6 bedrooms in total. This proposal is for 4 no. one bedroom 
apartments therefore it is considered that the use/occupancy of the property will not be 
intensified, and existing arrangements suffice. 
 
The impact of the proposal on the local road network is therefore considered to be 
acceptable in terms of traffic and road safety and would comply with Draft BMAP, 
PPS3, PPS7 and the SPPS. 
 
Available Infrastructure 
NI Water have no objection to the proposal. Owing to the scale and nature of 
development proposed, it is not considered that proposed development would have a 
significant impact on existing infrastructure and as such, there are no issues of 
principle. In addition, connections to the water and foul sewer system are covered by 
separate legislation.  
 
Conclusion 
Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the 
proposal is considered to comply with the Area Plan, SPPS, PPS7, PPS 7 Addendum 
and Creating Places. Planning permission is recommended subject to conditions. 

9.0 
9.1 

Summary of Recommendation – Approval 
Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the 
proposal is considered acceptable and it is recommended that planning permission is 
granted subject to conditions with delegated power given to the Director of Planning 
and Building Control to finalise conditions. 
 

10.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Conditions 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years 
from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
 2. The development shall not be occupied until secure and covered cycle parking 
facilities have been provided on the site in accordance with proposed floor plan and 
elevation Drawing No.04C received by Belfast Planning Service on 2nd April 2021 . 
These facilities shall be permanently retained on the site.  
 
Reason: To ensure acceptable cycle parking on the site and to encourage alternative 
modes of transport to the private car. 
 
 3. Gates (if erected) shall not open towards the public footway. 
 
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety and the convenience of other road users 
 
4. Notwithstanding the materials outlined on the approved plans, the development 
hereby permitted shall not commence until samples and a written specification of the 
materials to be used in the external elevations have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and 
thereafter retained in accordance with the approved details.  

 

Page 222



11 
 

Reason: To protect the visual amenities of the area.  
 
Informatives 
 

1. The applicant is advised that all development should be within the ‘red line’ 
boundary of the application site, any disruption to the boundary requires the 
consent of the neighbour. 

2. This permission does not confer title. 
3. Due to the proximity of residential accommodation to the proposed 

development site, the applicant would be advised of the following good 
practice documents for noise control during the demolition/construction phase 
of the development: 

 
I. Belfast City Council's Noise Control Advice Note for Construction and Demolition 
Sites (available at http://www.belfastcity.gov.uk/buildingcontrol-
environment/noisecontrol/typesofnoise.aspx.) and 
II. British Standard 5228-2009+A1:2014 - Code of practice for noise and vibration 
control on construction and open sites - Part 1: Noise and Part 2: Vibration. 
 

4. In the event that unexpected contamination is encountered during the 
approved development of this site, the development should cease and the 
applicant should contact the Planning Authority. Investigation of the 
contamination, risk assessment and, if necessary, remediation work, should 
be undertaken and verified in accordance with current best practice. 

5. Precautions shall be taken to prevent the deposit of mud and other debris on 
the adjacent road by vehicles travelling to and from the construction site.  Any 
mud, refuse, etc deposited on the road as a result of the development, must be 
removed immediately by the operator/contractor. 

6. Notwithstanding the terms and conditions of the Planning Authority's approval 
set out above, you are required under Article 71-83 inclusive of the Roads (NI) 
Order 1993 to be in possession of the Department for Infrastructure's consent 
before any work is commenced which involves making or altering any opening 
to any boundary adjacent to the public road, verge, or footway or any part of 
said road, verge, or footway bounding the site.  The consent is available on 
personal application to the DfI Roads Section Engineer whose address is 
Belfast North Section Office, 1A Airport Road, Belfast, BT3 9DY. A monetary 
deposit will be required to cover works on the public road. 

7. All construction plant and materials shall be stored within the curtilage of the 
site. 

8. Provision shall be made to the satisfaction of DfI Roads, to ensure that surface 
water does not flow from the site onto the public road. 

 

 

  

Page 223



12 
 

ANNEX 
 

Valid  19th February 2020 

Date First Advertised  13th March 2020 
 

Date Last Advertised  9th April 2021 
 

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses) 
 
11/03/2020 
 
Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses) 
1 Glanworth Gardens,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 3FH    
 
1, Glanworth Gardens, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FH   
  
18g ,Glandore Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 3FB    
 
18g, Glandore Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
 
19, Glandore Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
 
19, Glandore Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
 
20 Glandore Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 3FB    
 
21 Glandore Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 3FB    
 
21, Glandore Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
 
21, Glandore Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
  
21, Glandore Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
  
21, Glandore Avenue, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
 
22 Glandore Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 3FB    
 
22, Glanworth Gardens, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FH    
  
25 Glandore Avenue Belfast Antrim  
 
25 Glandore Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 3FB    
 
25, Edgcumbe Gardens, Belfast, Down, Northern Ireland, BT4 2EG    
 
25, GLANDORE AVENUE, BELFAST, ANTRIM, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
  
25, GLANDORE AVENUE, BELFAST, ANTRIM, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
 
25, GLANDORE AVENUE, BELFAST, ANTRIM, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
 
25, GLANDORE AVENUE, BELFAST, ANTRIM, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
 

Page 224



13 
 

25, GLANDORE AVENUE, BELFAST, ANTRIM, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FB    
  
 
27, Edgcumbe Gardens, Belfast, Down, Northern Ireland, BT4 2EG    
 
4 Glanworth Gardens,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 3FH    
 
4, Glanworth Gardens, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FH    
 
4, Glanworth Gardens, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FH    
 
6, Glanworth Gardens, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FH    
 
8 Glanworth Gardens Belfast Antrim  
 
8, Glanworth Gardens, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT15 3FH    
 
Flat 1,25 Glandore Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 3FB    
 
Flat 2,25 Glandore Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 3FB    
 

Date of Last Neighbour 
Notification  

07/04/2021 
 
 

Date of EIA Determination N/A 
 

ES Requested No 
 

Drawing Numbers and Title 
01 – Site Location Plan 
04C – Site Plan, Existing and Proposed Plans and Elevations 

Notification to Department (if relevant) – N/A 
Date of Notification to Department: 
Response of Department: 
 

Elected Representatives:     N/A 
 

 

 

Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank



Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Summary 

Committee Meeting Date: Tuesday 17 August 2021 
  

Application ID: LA04/2020/1858/F  

Proposal: 
Residential development of 18 no. social 
housing units, comprising two terraces. 
Development includes associated car parking, 
gardens, landscaping, site access and all 
other site works. 
 

Location: 
Hillview Retail Park, Crumlin Road, Belfast.   

Referral Route: As per request from elected representatives. 

Recommendation: Refusal 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Hillview Centre Belfast Ltd 
155-157 Donegall Pass 
 Belfast 
 BT7 1DT 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
 RPP Architects 
155-157 Donegall Pass 
 Belfast 
 BT7 1DT 
 

Executive Summary: 
Planning permission is sought for the erection of 18 social houses comprising two different rows 
of housing.  
 
The site has an area of 0.41ha and is located within the development limits for Belfast in both the 
Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP); and the draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (BMAP). The 
application site is unzoned whiteland within the development limits in BUAP. The site is located 
within a proposed district centre designation (BT017/2) in draft BMAP 2004.  
 
The main issues to be considered in this case are; 
 

 The principle of the proposal at this location 
 Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 Impact on Residential Amenity for existing and prospective residents 
 Impact on Built Heritage  
 Access, Parking, and Transport 
 Infrastructure Capacity 
 Impact on Human Health 

 
District Centres are characterised by predominantly retail and commercial uses, acting as key 
service centres for surrounding communities.  The proposal will result in a loss of space for this 
use and therefore, the principle of the proposal is unacceptable on the basis that the site is within 
a zoned district centre and is also incompatible with adjacent land uses. The proposed residential 
use is incompatible with the adjacent land use which consists of the retail units, service yards and 
the large areas of hardstanding for the car park. As such it is considered that housing at this location 
is unacceptable.  

 
The layout and density proposed results in overdevelopment of the site and is contrary to the SPPS 
and Policy QD 1 of PPS 7 Quality Residential Development and would result in unacceptable 
damage to the local character; and would create an undesirable living environment for prospective 

Page 227

Agenda Item 7f



residents by way of the poor layout, overlooking and inadequate amenity provision.  The scheme 
also fails to promote the safety and surveillance for prospective residents due to its location along 
an interface wall and within a retail park. 
 
220 objections have been received including written objections from: William Humphrey, MLA, Cllr 
Nicola Verner, Cllr Brian Kingston, Cllr Dale Pankhurst. Cllr Dean McCullough.  Objections relate 
to the use of the retail site for housing, impact on community issues, safety concerns, contrary to 
wider planning policy, inappropriate layout and impact on the character of the area, poor outlook 
onto peace wall, inadequate amenity provision, design and layout create conflict with adjacent land 
uses, impact on residential amenity,  overlooking, particularly at the north western corner of the 
site, the proposal could encourage crime and compromise personal safety given the sensitive 
location of the site, inequality amongst provision of housing for different parts of the local 
community. One letter of support has been received from a resident of the greater North Belfast 
area. Which welcomed much needed housing in the area. 
 
These issues are addressed in the assessment in the case officer report.  
 
In respect of the impact on parking and traffic, DfI Roads has stated that the proposal is 
unacceptable. Rivers Agency and Environmental Health have commented that the proposal is 
lacking adequate information. Consequently, the proposal also fails to comply with PPS 3 and PPS 
15. 
 
Recommendation  
Having regard to the Development Plan and all other relevant material considerations, the proposal 
is considered unacceptable and refusal is recommended for the reasons set out in the case officer 
report below. It is requested that delegated authority is given to the Director of Planning and 
Building Control to finalise the refusal reasons. 
 
 

 
  

Page 228



Case Officer Report 

Site Location Plan 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 229



 
 
 
 

 

 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
1.0 Description of Proposed Development 

Proposed residential development of 18 no. social housing units, comprising two 
terraces. Development includes associated car parking, gardens, landscaping, site 
access and all other site works. 

2.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
The site is located within the boundary of the Hillview Retail Park, adjacent to the 
Hillview retail buildings, Hillview Road and near to the Crumlin Road. The proposed site 
is vacant of buildings but is presently used as a car park for the retail park. The site is 
characterised by tarmac and hard surfacing materials, with planting along the boundary 
with Hillview Road. The site is relatively flat. The site is immediately bounded to the 
north by an interface wall, with Rosehead housing development behind (mainly social 
housing). There is a small enclosed area of trees to the north-east. A brick wall and 
metal fencing at a height of 1.5m bound the site along the Hillview Road entrance to the 
retail park. The immediate adjacent context to the north is primarily two storey 
residential premises beyond and on the other side of the wall. West and south of the site 
is characterised by the wider retail centre and car parking.  
 
Industrial units and commercial premises are located to the east off the Hillview Road. 
Historically the site formed part of a spinning mill during the industrial boom in Belfast. 
Remnants of the old textile and linen factories which dominated this area of the city are 
still present, most notably the four storey Brookfield Mill along Flax Street and the five-
storey Mill building along Sydney Street West. 
 
The retail park was opened in 2003 before closing in 2008. Redevelopment work has 
begun on the wider retail site in recent times with the opening of a Lidl supermarket. The 
site is a short walking distance to a petrol station and convenience store and is located 
only 1.5 miles from the city centre.  

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
3.0 Planning History 

Ref ID: LA04/2016/1112/PAN 
Proposal: Refurbishment of 6no. existing retail units, including subdivision of unit 1 to 
create seven retail units in total, new car showroom, drive through restaurant, two coffee 
restaurant pods, and establish a community market zone (to trade outside of sunday 
opening hours 9-12.30) 
Address: Hillview Retail Park, Crumlin Road, Belfast, BT14 6AA, 
Decision: PANACC 
Decision Date: 17.06.2016 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2017/0361/F 
Proposal: Subdivision of retail unit 1 into 2 no new retail units with provision of 
mezzanine at new unit 1b, single storey rear extension with dock leveller, elevation 
changes including re-cladding, reconfiguration of existing car parking and all associated 
works 
Decision: GRANTED 
Decision Date: 26.6.2018 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2016/1111/PAD 

Page 230



Proposal: Refurbishment of 6No. existing retail units, including subdivision of unit 1 to 
create seven retail units in total, New car showroom, drive through restaurant, two 
coffee/restaurant pods,  and establish a community market zone (to trade outside of 
sunday opening opening hours 9-12.30) 
Address: Hillview Retail Park, Crumlin Road, Belfast, BT14 6AA, 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2016/2360/F 
Proposal: Development to include the subdivision of existing retail unit 1 into 2 no. new 
retail units (with provision of new 1st floor mezzanine level at new unit 1B for storage); 
re-cladding works to existing units 2-5; demolition and reconfiguration of the front facade 
treatment to the elevations of new units 1A and 1B; new rear single storey extension into 
the service yard of unit 1B to facilitate servicing and deliveries; new dock leveller at the 
rear of proposed unit 1B; 1 no. new drive-thru restaurant unit; 1 no. new drive-thru 
cafe/restaurant pod; 1 no. stand alone restaurant unit; 1 no. new car sales premises; 
reconfiguration of existing car parking areas and all associated works 
Address: Hillview Retail Park, Crumlin Road, Belfast, 
Decision: Granted 
Decision Date: 23.01.2018 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2016/0162/F 
Proposal: Road realignment including a right turn lane and associate site and access 
works (renewal of previous planning permission Z/2009/1515/F) 
Decision: GRANTED 
Decision Date: 04.07.2016 
 
Ref ID: Z/2009/0434/F 
Proposal: Use of existing car park to hold car boot sale on Saturday and Sunday 
mornings. 
Address: Hillview Retail Park, Crumlin Road, Belfast, Co. Antrim, BT14 7EE 
Decision: Refusal 
Decision Date: 15.12.2009 
 
Ref ID: Z/2001/2689/F 
Proposal: Development to encompass one major retail unit and five smaller retail units 
with associated car parking (Amended Scheme). 
Address: Hillview Industrial Estate,Crumlin Road,Belfast,BT14 
Decision: Granted 
Decision Date: 02.09.2002 
 
Ref ID: Z/1999/2344 
Proposal: Development to encompass 2 No major retail units and 3 No smaller retail 
units with associated car parking 
Address: Hillview Industrial Estate, Crumlin Road, Belfast, BT14. 
Decision: Granted 
Decision Date: 16.10.2000 
 
Ref ID: Z/1995/2700 
Proposal: Shopping centre to comprise major retail outlet, retail 
warehousing, associated small shop units and car park 
Address: HILLVIEW INDUSTRIAL ESTATE CRUMLIN ROAD, BELFAST BT15 
Decision: Granted 
Decision Date: 16.12.1996 

4.0 Policy Framework 
4.1 Regional Development Strategy (RDS) 

Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 

Page 231



Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 
(Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is 
now the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-
adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft 
BMAP still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker) 
Policy SETT 2 Development within the Metropolitan Development Limits and Settlement 
Development Limits. 

4.2 Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) 
PPS 3: Access, Movement and Parking 
PPS 6: Planning, Archaeology, and the Built Heritage 
PPS 7: Quality Residential Developments 
PPS 12: Housing in Settlements  
PPS 15: Planning and Flood Risk 
Creating Places 
Development Control Advice Note 8 – Housing in Existing Urban Areas  

5.0 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2  
 

Consultations: 

Statutory Consultee Responses 

DFI Roads – Unacceptable 

NI Water - No objections  

Rivers – Additional information required 
HED- No objections 
 
Non-Statutory Consultee Responses 
Environmental Health – Additional information required 

6.0 
6.1 
 
 
 
 

Representations 
The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press. 220 
objections have been received including objections from the following; William 
Humphrey, MLA, Cllr Nicola Verner, Cllr Brian Kingston, Cllr Dale Pankhurst. Cllr Dean 
McCullough .  
 
The issues raised include.  
 

 Impact on community relations. 

 Creation of tension and division within the community. 

 Issues associated with an interface area. 

 The site should be maintained as a retail use with the perception that the site is a 
shared space for retail and employment and not housing. 

 In appropriate location for housing. 

 Contrary to planning policy including PPS 7 Policy QD 1. 

 Development does not respect the surrounding context and is inappropriate in 
terms of layout, scale, proportions, massing and appearance of buildings, 
landscaping and hard surfaced areas. 

 Site is dominated by hard standing.  

 The rear boundary of a security wall ought to be considered as a poor outlook for 
the prospective residents of the proposed development 

 There is inadequate provision made for private open space and landscaped 
areas as an integral part of the development. Many of the private garden areas 
fall below the minimum requirement of 40 square metres as set out in the 
Creating Places guidance documentation. 

 The design and layout create conflict with adjacent land uses. 

 Adverse effect on the proposed properties in terms of overlooking, particularly at 
the north western corner of the site. 

Page 232



 The development does not deter crime, nor does it promote personal safety.  

 The site, if approved, could encourage crime and compromise personal safety 
given the sensitive location of the site. 

 Inadequate amount of amenity space 

 Perception that one part of the local community (referred to as Catholics) get 
estate housing development built for them whilst another part of the community 
(referred to as Protestant) only get a handful of houses built for them. This was 
claimed to be sectarian.   

 
One member of the public has submitted a single letter support highlighting that housing 
is very much needed in this area of North Belfast. 

7.0 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.4 
 

Assessment 
The key issues in the assessment of the proposal are as follows: 

 The principle of the proposal at this location 
 Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 Impact on Neighbouring Residential Amenity  
 Impact on Built Heritage  
 Access, Parking, and Transport 
 Infrastructure Capacity 
 Impact on Human Health 

 
The principle of the proposal at this location 
The application site is unzoned whiteland within the development limits in BUAP. The site 
is located within a proposed district centre designation (BT017/2) in draft BMAP 2004. 
District Centres are characterised by predominantly commercial uses, acting as key 
service centres for surrounding communities. The Hillview District centre comprises a Lidl 
store and a number of empty units. There are a number of vacant retail units within the 
centre. The plan is silent on a residential use within this zoning. The boundary between 
the proposed site and the district centre is undefined. The residential use is incompatible 
with the adjacent land uses which consist of the retail units and the large associated 
hardstanded car park. Traffic, delivery and servicing vehicles and shoppers visiting the 
district centre would all create a level of disturbance for the proposed residential use and 
subsequently would not create a quality living environment. District centres are essentially 
zoned as retail / commercial spaces within the city. The proposed use would potentially 
blight and compromise the retail function of the district centre and its potential to 
regenerate. As such it is considered that the principle of housing at this location is 
unacceptable. The proposal is contrary to the zoning for draft BMAP (BT017/2) which 
designates the site as a District Centre and the design and layout of the housing use will 
create conflict with the adjacent retail uses on the site. The proposal is also contrary to 
paragraph 6.276 of the SPPS, as it fails to retain and consolidate this existing district 
centre as a focus for local everyday shopping and it has the potential to undermine the 
function of the district centre.  
 
Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area 
The proposal consists of 18 no. social housing units, comprising two terraces. The mix of 
accommodation comprises of 4 different house types. The two rows of terraces are set 
out perpendicular to each other.  Each unit will have a private rear garden and a small 
green area to the front. The site will be accessed from within the Hillview District Centre. 
Car parking will be located to the front of the majority of dwellings. The proposed layout 
has been designed with dwellings fronting onto the internal carriageway in a linear form. 
The site is dominated by parking with residents outlooking to hardscaped car parking.  
The proposal fails to provide any communal open space.  
 
The proposed design and fenestration are consistent with housing in the wider area, 
incorporating a similar, fenestration, and solid to void ratios. The roof style depicts an 

Page 233



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.9 
 
 
 
 
 

alternative approach to traditional roofs in the area with the pitch elevation facing the front 
street. The proposal ensures that there’s active frontage along the internal carriageway. 
The proposed dwellings are mostly two storeys with a number two and a half storeys in 
height which add to the variety of the style. They are domestically scaled in keeping with 
the bulk, scale and massing of residential properties adjacent to the application site. The 
buff facing brick finish on dwellings is in keeping with the character of the surrounding 
area. The density of the development equates to 44 dwellings per hectare. This can be 
considered as a medium density development and is within the typical density range found 
in the local context and in the similar wider area of Belfast. The dwellings range from 82m2 
and 93m2 and are compatible with housing standards. All dwelling units are built to a size 
not less than those set out in Policy LC1 Protecting Local Character, Environmental 
Quality and Residential Amenity (addendum to PPS 7: Safeguarding the character of 
established residential areas).  
 
The proposed development is essentially located within the confines of a retail site. it  
does not respect the surrounding retail context and is inappropriate to the character of the 
district centre, thus impacting on the overall amenity of the area. Due to its layout and 
neighbouring retail use it is considered that the proposal does not create a quality 
sustainable residential environment and as such the proposal is contrary to the SPPS and 
Policy QD 1 of PPS7 criteria (a) and (h). 
 
Amenity Provision 
It is considered that the scheme fails to provide quality amenity and landscaped space.  
The proposed is inadequate and inappropriate and is therefore contrary to the SPPS and 
Policy QD1 of Planning Policy Statement 7 in that the development would, if permitted 
create undesirable living conditions for prospective residents due to inadequate provision 
of quality amenity space.  Amenity space provision is below the standard 40sqm for an 
individual house for the majority of the units. Whilst it is marginal in some instances, the 
outlook from the rear amenity space for the ‘Row A’ terrace will be north facing and will 
look directly onto the interface wall which will result in dominance and limited natural light 
entering rear amenity areas and rear windows. This factored in with the shortfall in amenity 
space is unacceptable and substandard and fails to create a quality living environment for 
residents. In addition, there is no useable communal open space within the development. 
A significant portion of the site is occupied by hardstanding for car parking.  
 
It is evident that this is a car centric design, proposing a shared surface scheme which 
when factored with the lack of open space, absence of quality footpaths or cycle paths, 
into and out of the site will create an undesirable living environment dominated by the 
private vehicle. This again is an indication of over development of the site.  It is considered 
that the proposal does not create a quality sustainable residential environment and as 
such the proposal is contrary to the SPPS and Policy QD 1 of PPS7 criteria (c) and (e).  
 
In terms of prospective residents, each unit has adequate outlook to the street and 
external amenity areas. However, the relationship between the two blocks of terraces will 
result in a poor outlook for the two northern units of Block B as they will outlook within 5m 
to the side gable of Block A and the rear boundary of the first unit in Block B.  This will 
also result in overlooking to the rear gardens of the first units in Block A due to the limited 
separation distance, which is an indicator of overdevelopment.  
 
Given the location of the interface wall running along the rear of the proposed site, the 

scheme fails to promote safety and surveillance for prospective residents due to the 

juxtaposition with the interface wall and the location within a retail park.  The development 

therefore is also contrary to PPS7 Quality Residential Developments in this respect. 

 

Page 234



7.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Impact on Neighbouring Residential Amenity  
The layout/aspect of all buildings within the site is such that there will be no significant 
overlooking into neighbouring properties outside the site. However as already mentioned 
there will be issues associated with overshadowing and dominance due to the proximity 
of terrace A to the interface wall. The interface wall separates the proposal from the 
Rosehead residential development to the north. This is a large blank wall measuring at 
least 6m in height. A separation distance of 21metres is provided from the rear elevation 
of terraced dwellings ‘Row A’ to the buildings within the Rosehead development to the 
North  
 
Impact on Built Heritage  
HED (Historic Buildings) has considered the impact of the proposal on the setting of the 
following listed building: HB26/43/010 259 Crumlin Road, Belfast, Co Antrim, BT14 7DY 
(Grade B2) which is of special architectural or historic interest as set out in Section 80, of 
the Planning Act (NI) 2011. On the basis of the information provided under the policy 
requirements of the SPPS (NI) and Policy BH11 (Development affecting the Setting of a 
Listed Building) of the Department's Planning Policy Statement 6: Planning, Archaeology 
and the Built Heritage (PPS 6), HED advises that it considers the proposal is sufficiently 
removed in context from the listed building as to have no impact. HED (Historic 
Monuments) is content that the proposal satisfies PPS 6 policy requirements, subject to 
conditions for the agreement and implementation of a developer-funded programme of 
archaeological works, including an Industrial Archaeology survey and a mitigation strategy 
focussing on the industrial archaeological remains of the site. This is to identify and record 
any industrial archaeological remains in advance of new construction, or to provide for 
their preservation in situ, as per Policy BH 4 of PPS 6. 

 
 
 
Access, Parking, and Transport 
DFI Roads were consulted on the proposal and commented that the application as 
submitted in its present form is unacceptable as an acceptable layout in accordance with 
Creating Places has not been demonstrated. In summary, DFI Roads commented that the 
following points require to be addressed. 

The red line does not contain sufficient areas to deliver the required works. 
Namely:- 

 The gate will be moved back, and the gate posts will be moved back but the red 
line does not contain the existing gate location. In other words, the applicant shows 
no authority to remove (and make good) the gates. 

 A fully adopted road and footways will need to be delivered to serve this 
development. All of the (access) road and footways on both sides of the access 
road currently lie outside the application site. 

 Adequate Visibility splays need to be provided which may not be achievable due 
to trees and a wall.  

 A Travel Plan is required 

 Transport Assessment Form is required. 
 

DFI Roads highlighted in their consultation response that additional information was 
required to make a further assessment on the proposal.  However further information was 
not requested as the proposal is not considered acceptable in principle and to request 
such information would put the applicant to unnecessary expense. There are fundamental 
issues with the proposal and in line with the Council’s Planning Operating principles it is 
deemed appropriate to determine the application based on the information received to 
date.  
 

Page 235



7.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.19 
 
 
 
7.20 
 
 
 
 
 

It is considered that the proposal is contrary to Planning Policy Statement 7: Quality 
Residential Environments; Policy QD1, in that the applicant has failed to demonstrate an 
acceptable road layout and parking arrangement in accordance with the guidance 
contained within ‘Creating Places’ and is also contrary to the SPPS and policies AMP 1 
and AMP2  of PPS3, in that the applicant has failed to submit information as requested to 
demonstrate  the access will not prejudice road safety; adequate provision for car parking 
has been made; and cyclists need have been taken into account. 
 
Flooding 
Whilst the application submission included a flood risk assessment the applicant failed to 
include a drainage assessment as part of the application submission.  DfI Rivers advises 
that in accordance with the Revised PPS 15, Planning and Flood Risk, FLD 3, 
Development and Surface Water (Pluvial) Flood Risk outside Flood Plains, a drainage 
assessment is required as the following thresholds have been exceeded:  It is a residential 
development comprising of 10 or more dwelling units  
 
DFI Rivers also noted that any Schedule 6 agreement should be included within the 
Drainage Assessment to confirm DfI Rivers local area office is in agreement to this 
proposed arrangement.  If it is proposed to discharge storm water into an NI Water system 
then a Pre-Development Enquiry should be made and if a simple solution cannot be 
identified then a Network Capacity Check should be carried out. Correspondence with 
both authorities should have been included in the drainage assessment regardless of 
outcome. As there are fundamental concerns with the proposal and in line with the 
Council’s operating principles it was considered not to request additional information from 
the applicant and to proceed with a determination based on the original submission. The 
proposal is therefore contrary to PPS 15 Policy FLD 3. 
 
 
Infrastructure Capacity 
NI Water have no objections to the proposal. Owing to the scale and nature of 
development proposed, it is not considered that proposed development would not have a 
significant impact on existing infrastructure and as such, there are no issues of principle. 
In addition, connections to the water and foul sewer system are covered by separate 
legislation. 
 
Impact on Human Health 
Environmental Health have considered the proposals in terms of noise, air pollution, 
general amenity, ambient air quality, contaminated land and other considerations. 
Environmental Health have concerns with the proposal relating to contamination, air 
quality and noise and set out that the necessary assessments and reports were not 
submitted with the application and would be required to make a full assessment of the 
impacts. 
 
As there are fundamental concerns with the proposal and in line with the Council’s 
operating principles it was considered not to request additional information from the 
applicant and to proceed with a determination based on the original submission. 
 
As such it is considered that the proposal would have an adverse impact on prospective 
residents and is therefore contrary to the SPPS and PPS 7 Policy QD 1 Criteria (h) in that 
the proposed development will cause demonstrable harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance. 

8.0 
 

Summary of Recommendation: 

Page 236



Having regard to the Development Plan and all other relevant material considerations, 
the proposal is considered unacceptable and refusal is recommended for the reasons 
set out in the case officer report below. It is requested that delegated authority is given 
to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the refusal reasons. 

9.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Refusal reasons: 
 
 
1: The proposal is contrary to the zoning for draft BMAP (BT017/2) which designates the 
site as a District Centre and the design and layout of the housing use will create conflict 
with the adjacent retail uses on the site.; and the proposal is contrary to paragraph 6.276 
of the SPPS, as it fails to retain and consolidate the existing district centre as a focus for 
local everyday shopping and it has the potential to blight and compromise the function of 
the district centre.    
 
2. The proposal is contrary to the SPPS and Policies AMP2, AMP7 and AMP8 of PPS 3 
Access, Movement and Parking, in that the applicant has failed to submit information to 
demonstrate;  the access will not prejudice road safety; adequate provision for car 
parking has been made; that a quality environment for cyclists and pedestrians will be 
created. 
 
3. The proposal is contrary to the SPPS and Policy QD 1 of PPS 7 –Quality Residential 

Developments Criteria (a), as the development fails to respect the surrounding context 

and is inappropriate to the established character and appearance of the area and if 

permitted, would introduce an incompatible land use. 

4.The proposal is contrary to the SPPS and Policy QD 1 of PPS 7 –Quality Residential 

Developments, if permitted, would create an undesirable living environment for 

prospective residents as the design and layout will result in overdevelopment of the site 

as it results in a proliferation of parking and reduced private and communal amenity space 

provision resulting in a poor outlook and unacceptable living environment .  

5. The proposal is contrary to the SPPS and Policy QD 1 of PPS 7 –Quality Residential 

Developments, if permitted, would create an undesirable living environment for 

prospective residents as the design and layout will result in a poor outlook for residents of 

Block B and internal overlooking to residents on Block A 

6. The development is contrary to PPS7 Quality Residential Developments, if permitted, 

would result in a development that does not promote safety and surveillance for residents 

due to the juxtaposition with the interface wall. 

7: The proposal is contrary to the SPPS and Policy QD 1 of PPS 7 –Quality Residential 

Developments Criteria (h). If permitted it would result in an undesirable living environment 

for prospective residents due to potential issues relating to noise, air quality and 

contamination. 

8. The proposal is contrary to the SPPS and Policy FLD 3 from Planning Policy Statement 

15: Planning and Flood Risk in that it has not been demonstrated that the proposal would 

provide satisfactory measures for the mitigation of flood risk and in particular drainage. 

 
 

Page 237



ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   8th January 2021 

Date First Advertised  22nd January 2021 
 

Date Last Advertised  
 

 

Representations from Elected Members: 
As set out in report 

Date of Last Neighbour Notification  
 
 

Date of EIA Determination N/A 

ES Requested 
 

No 
 

Planning History 
 
Relevant history set out in report. 
 
 
 
 

Drawing Numbers and Title 

 

Notification to Department (if relevant) 
Date of Notification to Department:   
Response of Department: 

 

Page 238



 

Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

Summary 

Committee Meeting Date: Tuesday 17 August 2021 
  

Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F    

Proposal: 
Development of 14 social housing 
dwellings, with associated private amenity 
spaces, new lay-by parking and 
associated site works. 9 x3 person 2-
bedroom townhouse (general needs), 3 x 
5-person 3-bedroom townhouse (general 
needs), 2 x 2-person 1-bedroom 
apartments (general needs). (Further 
information received) 

Location: 
197-203 Crumlin Road Belfast BT14 7DX.   

Referral Route: Representations are contrary to Officer’s recommendation. 

Recommendation: Approval 

Applicant Name and Address: 
N B Housing 
Gate Lodge  
8 Flax Street 
 Belfast 
 BT14 7EQ 

Agent Name and Address: 
 Diamond (Belfast) Ltd 
33 Strathmore Park North 
 Belfast 
 BT15 5HQ 

Executive Summary: 
Planning permission is sought for the erection of 14 social houses within three rows of 
housing.  
 
The site has an area of 0.15ha and is located within the development limits for Belfast in 
both the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP); and the draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 
2015 (BMAP). The site is unzoned in BUAP 2001. The northern half of the site is unzoned 
in draft BMAP 2004. The southern part of the site is zoned as a shopping/commercial area, 
along an arterial route within draft BMAP 2004.  
 
The main issues to be considered in this case are; 
 

 The principle of the proposal at this location 
 Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 Impact on amenity  
 Access, parking and transport 
 Infrastructure Capacity 
 Impact on Human Health 

 
The principle of the proposal is acceptable on the basis that the site is within the 
development limits in both the extant and draft plans and has a history of planning 
approvals for housing in the past. The development plan does not preclude housing from 
this location. 

Page 239

Agenda Item 7g



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 2 of 15 

 
The proposal respects the building line and follows the general pattern of development in 
the area. The design and layout will not create conflict and is in keeping with the local 
character and will not impact on environmental quality or residential amenity in 
accordance with PPS 7. 
 
In terms of prospective residents, each unit has adequate outlook to the public street. All 
dwelling units are proposed to be built to a size not less than those set out Policy LC1 
providing adequate living accommodation.  
 
It is also considered that the design, layout and separation distances proposed are 
acceptable and will not significantly impact on existing residential amenity by way of 
overlooking, dominance, loss of light or overshadowing. 
 
Objections have been received from the Lower Oldpark Community Association. They 
have raised a number of concerns including:  
 
Parking and traffic; the proposal is at odds with the Development Plan zoning for a 
Commercial/Shopping area; the proposal should contain an element of retail/commercial 
uses and the proposal does not respect the built context/local character of the area. 
These issues are addressed in the assessment below.  
 
In respect of the impact on parking and traffic, DfI Roads are content with the parking 
spaces and access provided, Rivers Agency, NI Water and Environmental Health have 
considered the proposal and offered no objections. 
 
The proposal is recommended for approval subject to Conditions. Delegated authority is 
sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording of conditions 
subject to no new substantive planning issues being raised by third parties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 240



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 3 of 15 

Case Officer Report 

Site Location Plan 

 
 

 

 
  

Page 241



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 4 of 15 

 
 
 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
1.0 Description of Proposed Development 

Development of 14 social housing dwellings, with associated private amenity 
spaces, new lay-by parking and associated site works. 9 x3 person 2-bedroom 
townhouse (general needs), 3 x 5-person 3-bedroom townhouse (general 
needs), 2 x 2-person 1-bedroom apartments (general needs). 

2.0 Description of Site 
The site is relatively flat and extends to 0.15 hectares (0.371 acres). It is a 
brownfield site, located immediately north of Crumlin Road, between the 
junctions of Albertville Drive (to west) and Century Street (to the east). The sites 
perimeter to its southern, eastern and western boundary is formed by typical 
security style construction fencing, which has been augmented by sheet metal in 
intermittent areas. The northern boundary abuts the side garden areas of No. 1 
Albertville Drive and No. 2 Century Street, which is formed by a c.2.4m high brick 
wall. Internally, the site exhibits the characteristics of being previously 
developed, which has over time become overgrown by vegetation. This can be 
seen through gaps in the security fencing, which currently presents an eyesore 
onto Century Street, Albertville Drive and Crumlin Road; the latter of which is a 
key Arterial Route into Belfast City Centre to the south east (AR 03/06). The 
wider area is characterised by housing. 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
3.0 Site History 

 
Ref: Z/2006/1320/F 
Location: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast 
Proposal: Erection of 4 storey mixed use development to include 38No. 
Apartments with 4No. retail units 
Decision: Permission Granted 
Date: 16th December 2013 
 
Ref: Z/2007/1613/F 
Location: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast 
Proposal: Variation and alterations to retail and residential development 
previously approved under Z/2006/1320/F (above). 
Decision: Permission Granted 
Date: 19th November 2007 
 
Ref: Z/2013/1140/F 
Location: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast 
Proposal: Amendment to previous Planning Approval (under Z/2007/1613/F) for 
retail and residential development (3No. retail units and 34No. apartments) 
Decision: Permission Granted 
Date: 16th December 2013 
Ref: Z/2014/0658/F 
Location: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast 

Page 242



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 5 of 15 

Proposal: Amendment to previous approval under Z/2013/1140/F for retail and 
residential development (1No. retail unit, 12No. townhouses and 1No. 
apartment) 
Decision: Permission Granted 
Date: 28th April 2016 
 

Ref ID: Z/2014/0658/F 

Proposal: Amendment to previous approval under (Z/2013/1140/F) for retail and 
residential development (1 retail unit, 12 townhouses & 1 apartment) 
Address: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast, 
Decision: Permission Granted 

Decision Date: 05.05.2016 

4.0 Policy Framework 
4.1 Regional Development Strategy (RDS) 

Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 
(Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant 
development plan is now the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft 
BMAP had reached pre-adoption through a period of independent examination, 
the policies within the Draft BMAP still carry weight and are a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications. The weight to be 
afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker) 
Policy SETT 2 Development within the Metropolitan Development Limits and 
Settlement Development Limits. 

4.2 Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) 
PPS 3: Access, Movement and Parking 
PPS 7: Quality Residential Developments 
PPS 7: Addendum Safeguarding the Character of Established Residential Areas 
PPS 12: Housing in Settlements  
PPS 15: Planning and Flood Risk 
Creating Places 
Development Control Advice Note 8 – Housing in Existing Urban Areas  

5.0 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
5.2  
 

Consultations: 

Statutory Consultee Responses 

DFI Roads – All issues resolved with the exception of the Travel Plan. 

NI Water - No objections  

Rivers - No objections 
Non-Statutory Consultee Responses 
Environmental Health – No objections 

6.0 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 

Representations 
 
The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press. 
Representations have been received from Lower Oldpark Community 
Association (LOCA). They have highlighted a number of concerns relating to the 
following. 
 
Parking and Traffic concerns relating to the shortage of car parking spaces for 
the development and the impact the proposal may have on car parking in the 

Page 243



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 6 of 15 

 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
6.4 

wider neighbourhood and for existing residents and a general increase in traffic 
volumes.  
 
Proposal is contrary to Development Plan zonings for Commercial/Shopping 
area and the site should contain an element of retail/commercial uses. 
 
Development is not respecting the built context/local character of the area as the 
proposal is for two storey and the wider area is two and a half storeys in height. 
 
LOCA reviewed the applicant’s Car Parking Survey report by Gilligan and 
Partners and claimed that the survey significantly understates the actual level of 
parking that occurs in the area.  
 
LOCA made a submission highlighting their interpretation of the parking situation 
in the area including.  
 

 Who parks in the area, 

 Current parking/ traffic flow issues highlighted by local residents. 

 Parking issues of concern relating to the planning application under 
consideration. 

 Future additional parking demand. 

 Up to date images of the level of parking in the area. 
 
This was forwarded to DFI Roads. DFI Roads responded stating that the issue 
with the Travel Plan remains as before. DFI Roads had previously indicated the 
submitted Parking Survey was acceptable.   

7.0 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.4 

Assessment 
The key issues in the assessment of the proposal are as follows: 

 The principle of the proposal at this location 
 Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 Impact on amenity  
 Access, parking and transport 
 Infrastructure capacity 
 Impact on Human Health 

 
The principle of the proposal at this location 
The principle of housing on this site is already firmly established through the 
pertinent planning history set out above. It is acknowledged that the history 
referenced, included an element of retail in each regard, and that the frontage of 
the site is zoned as a shopping/commercial area, along an arterial route within 
draft BMAP.  
 
It is important to note that Policy SETT 3 of draft BMAP states that the 
regeneration of arterial routes can be facilitated by allowing appropriate housing 
development. Furthermore, the retail function that could potentially exist on the 
site was diluted by successive planning permissions going from 4No. Units to 
3No. units, and then 3No. units to 1No. unit on the corner of Albertville Drive.  
 
The applicant has highlighted that there is a need for social housing on the area. 
The area is within close proximity to retail shops at existing commercial nodes 

Page 244



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 7 of 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.8 
 
 
 
 

(such as the adjacent Vine Centre) and designated District Centre (such as 
Hillview Retail Park) which is undergoing a transformation in terms of the retail 
offer on site. The objection regarding the Development Plan zoning from Lower 
Oldpark Community Association was considered. However, taking into 
consideration the site history which already accepted the loss of 
retail/commercial and the opportunities for shopping elsewhere in the vicinity it is 
considered on balance to be acceptable. 
 
Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area 
The proposal consists of 14 social housing units split into 3 rows of terraced 
dwellings fronting onto Crumlin Road, Century Street and Albertville Drive. They 
consist of 9 x 3-person 2-bedroom townhouse (general needs), 3 x 5-person 3-
bedroom townhouse (general needs), 2 x 2-person 1-bedroom apartments 
(general needs). The dwellings measure between 73sqm and 94 sqm whilst the 
apartments range from 51sqm to 52 sqm.  
 
The dwellings will be bounded by 1.8m high timber fencing and 2m high brick walls. 
The surrounding area is defined by a mixture of terraced housing and apartment 
developments. The proposed density of development would be within the density 
parameters already established in the local area. The form of the development 
which consists of traditional 2 storey dwellings with pitched roofs is in keeping with 
the character of the wider area. An objection raised a concern relating to the design 
and that the units were only two storeys in height. It is acknowledged that other 
housing fronting the main road is typically 2.5 – 3 storeys and this was raised with 
the Housing Executive.  NIHE confirmed that the dwelling size is funded to meet 
the needs of households that would not require another storey of accommodation.  
Furthermore, the development plan contains no height guide at this location. The 
height, scale and massing are generally reflective of the wider area. The external 
materials proposed include red smooth brick external walls, white colour render 
and slate grey concrete roof tiles. The design, building line, ridge heights, 
fenestration and solid to void proportions are typical of the surrounding area. As 
such the proposal is in keeping with the locality and is compliant with PPS 7 Policy 
QD1. 
 
The proposed dwellings maintain the established building line along the street 
which helps it to integrate into the existing urban grain. Amenity space provision 
for the dwellings are generally well in excess of minimum standards as set out in 
supplementary guidance, with provision of private amenity space of 
approximately 40-91sqm per dwelling unit. The apartments will have 
approximately 72sqm of shared amenity space.  Overall, the proposed 
development would not cause unacceptable harm to the local character, 
appearance, and environmental quality of the area of the area in accordance 
with Policy QD1 of PPS7, Policy LC1 of PPS7 Addendum, Creating Places and 
the SPPS.  
 
Impact on amenity  
The layout/aspect of all buildings within the site is such that there will be no 
significant overlooking into neighbouring properties. In addition, there is sufficient 
separation distances to existing neighbouring properties to ensure that 
dominance and overshadowing will not occur to an unacceptable degree. The 

Page 245



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 8 of 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

proposal is for an infill site and the dwellings will re-establish housing onto a 
brownfield site whilst maintaining the existing street building line. The character 
of this area is medium to high density. There will be no opportunity for 
overlooking into neighbouring properties due to the separation distances and 
existing boundary treatments in the form of existing trees and boundaries. In 
terms of prospective residents, each unit has adequate outlook to the public 
street and external amenity areas. It is considered that the design, layout and 
separation distances proposed are acceptable and will not impinge on residential 
amenity via overlooking, dominance, loss of light or overshadowing. 
 
Access, parking and transport 
DFI Roads were consulted on the proposal and have objected on the basis of the 
Travel Plan submitted. The site will offer 14 car parking spaces to the front of 
properties along Century street and Albertville Drive. Importantly no car parking 
spaces are allocated along the Crumlin Road which is an arterial route which 
requires to be left unobstructed by car parking for the use of frequent bus 
services and active travel. Objectors had raised the shortfall of car parking and 
traffic issues associated with the proposal as a concern. DFI Roads offered no 
fundamental objections to the proposal other than the detailing of the travel plan 
offered by the applicant.  
 
DFI Roads commented that the submitted Travel Plan should be conditioned for 
3 years as opposed to 1 year. The agent requested that BCC Planning consider 
that 1 year was appropriate. The Travel Plan included 1 no Translink Travel Card 
per dwelling, provision of 1no membership for the Belfast Bike Scheme and 
provision of a 50% subsidy for 1no membership to a car club. 
 
BCC Planning consider that the location of the site which is highly accessible to 
a range of services by active travel and public transport. The planning history is a 
material consideration which must be given weight where developments of equal 
or greater density have previously been approved and implemented without the 
requirement of a travel plan. 34 no. units were approved accompanied by 34 no. 
parking spaces and this consent was implemented but not completed; this is in 
comparison to this proposal for 14 no. units with 14 spaces provided.) On 
balance, it is considered the specific considerations for tis development site 
outweigh the necessity for a 3-year travel plan as requested by DfI Roads and 
the submitted Travel Plan is considered acceptable.  
 
The proposal will regenerate a brownfield site and offers slightly lower car 
parking numbers than set out in the Parking Standards. The site faces onto an 
arterial route which has easy and convenient access to frequent public transport 
into the city centre. Whilst cycle lanes in the vicinity are substandard, they do 
exist and offer a choice for active travel users. As previously mentioned, the 
location is highly accessible. The site has excellent public transport links being 
located along the Crumlin Road which is served by metro bus routes to the city 
centre. As such It is considered that the proposal complies with Policies AMP1 of 
PPS 3.  
 
 
 

Page 246



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 9 of 15 

7.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.14 

Infrastructure capacity 
NI Water have no objection to the proposal. Owing to the scale and nature of 
development proposed, it is not considered that proposed development would 
have a significant impact on existing infrastructure and as such, there are no 
issues of principle. In addition, connections to the water and foul sewer system 
are covered by separate legislation. Rivers Agency have commented that there 
are no watercourses which are designated under the terms of the Drainage 
(Northern Ireland) Order 1973 within this site. they have offered no objections 
subject to conditions.  
 
Impact on Human Health 
Environmental Health have no objections to the proposal. They are of the opinion 
that past land use on or in close proximity to this proposed development will not 
cause a potential impact on the health of the future occupants and are content 
subject to conditions relating to contamination and noise. 

8.0 
 

Conclusion 
Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the 
proposal is considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended 
subject to conditions. It is requested that delegated authority is given to the 
Strategic Director of Place and Economy to finalise the planning conditions. 

9.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Conditions: 
 
1: The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 
years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
2: Prior to the occupation of the proposed development, the applicant shall 
provide to and have agreed in writing by the Planning Service, a Verification 
Report. This report must demonstrate that the remediation measures outlined in 
the RSK Environment Ltd report entitled ‘NB Housing, Remedial Strategy, 197-
203 Crumlin Road, Belfast’ (dated March 2020 and referenced 602709-R2 (00)) 
have been implemented.  
The Verification Report shall demonstrate the successful completion of 
remediation works and that the site is now fit for end-use (residential with home 
grown produce). It must demonstrate that the identified potential pollutant 
linkages are effectively broken. The Verification Report shall be in accordance 
with current guidance as outlined by the Environment Agency and, in particular, 
must demonstrate that:  

 A capping layer comprising of 800mm of suitable material overlain by 200mm 
of topsoil has been provided to the gardens shown in Figure 4 of the RSK 
Remedial Strategy.  
All material used in the capping layer is demonstrably suitable for the proposed 
end use (residential with home-grown produce).  

 A geotextile barrier is present at the base of the capping layer.  
 
Reason: Protection of human health. 
 
3: If during the development works, new contamination or risks are encountered 
which have not previously been identified, works shall cease and the Planning 

Page 247



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 10 of 15 

Authority shall be notified immediately. This new contamination shall be fully 
investigated in accordance with best practice. In the event of unacceptable risks 
being identified, a Remediation Strategy and subsequent Verification Report 
shall be agreed with the Planning Authority in writing, prior to the development 
being occupied. If required, the Verification Report shall be completed by 
competent persons in accordance with best practice and must demonstrate that 
the remediation measures have been implemented and that the site is now fit for 
end-use.  
 
Reason: Protection of human health. 
 
4: The design of the hereby permitted apartments shall include noise mitigation 
measures to ensure that internal noise levels within habitable rooms shall not 
exceed:  
 
(a) 35dB LAeq,16 hr between 07.00hrs and 23.00hrs within any habitable room, 
if required with the windows closed and alternative means of ventilation provided 
in accordance with current Building Control Regulations requirements  

(b) 30 dB LAeq,8hr within bedrooms between 23.00hrs and 07.00hrs, if required 
with the windows closed and alternative means of ventilation provided in 
accordance with current Building Control Regulations requirements.  
 
(c) 45dB LAFmax, by more than 10 single sound events in any proposed 
bedrooms, if required with the windows closed and alternative means of 
ventilation provided in accordance with current Building Control Regulations 
requirements.  
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity  
 
5: Prior to the commencement of any of the approved development on site, a 
final drainage assessment, compliant with FLD 3 & Annex D of PPS 15, and 
Sewers for Adoption Northern Ireland 1st Edition, including a detailed drainage 
network design and a demonstration of how out of sewer flooding due to 
exceedance of the drainage network will be managed, must be submitted to the 
Planning Authority for its consideration and approval.  
 
Reason: To safeguard against flood risk to the development and from the 
development to elsewhere. 
 
6: The development shall operate at all times in accordance with the Travel Plan 
uploaded to the Planning Portal on 11/02/2021. 
 
Reason: To encourage alternative modes of transport to the private car. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 248



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 11 of 15 

 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   4th March 2020 

Date First Advertised  8th May 2020 
 

Date Last Advertised  
 

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses) 
The Owner/Occupier,  
01,The Vine,193 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
02,The Vine,193 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
04,The Vine,193 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
1 Albertville Drive,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BX    
The Owner/Occupier,  
142 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
144 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
146 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
148 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
150 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
152 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
154 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
156 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
158 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
160 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7EF    
The Owner/Occupier,  
185 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
187 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
189 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
191 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
197 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AZ    
The Owner/Occupier,  

Page 249



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 12 of 15 

197 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AZ    
The Owner/Occupier,  
197 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AZ    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2 Albertville Drive,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BX    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2 Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
201 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7DX    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2a ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2b ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2d ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2e ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
4 Albertville Drive,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BX    
 James Wright 
9-21, Avoca Street, Belfast, Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT14 6EN    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 10,2c ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 12,2f ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 13,2f ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 14,2g ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 15,2g ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 16,2g ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 17,2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 18,2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 19,2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 20,2c ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 21,2c ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 22,2c ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  

Page 250



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 13 of 15 

Apartment 23,2c ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 24,2f ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 25,2f ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 26,2f ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 27,2g ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 28,2g ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 29,2g ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 30,2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 31,2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 32,2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 33,2f ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 34,2f ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 35,2f ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 36,2g ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 37,2g ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 38,2g ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 5,2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 6,2h ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 7,2c ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 8,2c ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 9,2c ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment11,2f ,Century Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7BW    
The Owner/Occupier,  
The Vine,193 Crumlin Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT14 7AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
    
 

Date of Last Neighbour Notification  
 

Page 251



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 14 of 15 

 

Date of EIA Determination  

ES Requested 
 

Yes /No 
 

Planning History 
Ref: Z/2006/1320/F 
Location: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast 
Proposal: Erection of 4 storey mixed use development to include 38No. Apartments 
with 4No. retail units 
Decision: Permission Granted 
Date: 16th December 2013 
 
Ref: Z/2007/1613/F 
Location: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast 
Proposal: Variation and alterations to retail and residential development previously 
approved under Z/2006/1320/F (above). 
Decision: Permission Granted 
Date: 19th November 2007 
 
From a desktop streetview review, the above consent appears to have been enacted in 
late 2008, with the erection of a steel frame which resembles that of a singular block 
building. The Streetview images show that this structure remained in place between July 
2008 and July 2012. The enactment of this consent has been acknowledged within the 
Case Officers assessment for the succeeding application detailed below. 
 
Ref: Z/2013/1140/F 
Location: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast 
Proposal: Amendment to previous Planning Approval (under Z/2007/1613/F) for retail 
and residential development (3No. retail units and 34No. apartments) 
Decision: Permission Granted 
Date: 16th December 2013 
Ref: Z/2014/0658/F 
Location: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast 
Proposal: Amendment to previous approval under Z/2013/1140/F for retail and 
residential development (1No. retail unit, 12No. townhouses and 1No. apartment) 
Decision: Permission Granted 
Date: 28th April 2016 
 
 

Ref ID: Z/2014/0658/F 

Proposal: Amendment to previous approval under (Z/2013/1140/F) for retail and 
residential development (1 retail unit, 12 townhouses & 1 apartment) 
Address: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast, 
Decision: PG 

Decision Date: 05.05.2016 
 
 

Ref ID: LA04/2016/1185/F 

Page 252



Application ID: LA04/2020/0754/F 

 

Page 15 of 15 

Proposal: Proposed change of use of previously approved retail unit to 2 apartments. 
Address: 197-201 Crumlin Road, Belfast, 
Decision: WITHDR 

Decision Date: 14.06.2017 
 
 

Ref ID: Z/1988/2469 

Proposal: External improvements to premises 

Address: 197 CRUMLIN ROAD, BELFAST BT14 

Decision:  
Decision Date:  
 
 

Ref ID: Z/1975/0987 

Proposal: SAUNA CENTRE 

Address: 26-28 VERNON STREET, BT7 

Decision:  
Decision Date:  
 
 

Ref ID: Z/2004/0735/F 

Proposal: Erection of an office unit on the ground floor and 3 no. apartments above 
(amended scheme and revised description) 
Address: 203 Crumlin Road, Town Parks, Belfast, BT14 7DX 

Decision:  
Decision Date: 06.12.2005 
 
 

Ref ID: Z/1999/3090/F 

Proposal: Construction of 22 new dwellings 

Address: Albertville Drive 

Decision:  
Decision Date: 08.03.2000 
 

Drawing Numbers and Title 

Drawing No.  
Type  
Status: Submitted 

Notification to Department (if relevant) 
 
Date of Notification to Department:   
Response of Department: 
 

 
 
 

Page 253



This page is intentionally left blank



Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

Summary 

Committee Meeting Date: Tuesday 17 August 2021 

Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

Proposal: 
Proposed demolition of existing church hall 
building and construction of 9.no apartments 
and 1no. retail unit. 

Location: 
491-495 Lisburn Road 
 Belfast 
 BT9 7EZ 

Referral Route:  
Requested to be presented to the Planning Committee by elected member  

Recommendation:  Approval Subject to Conditions 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Kirk Bryson & Co Ltd 
c/o Osborne King  
The Metro Building  
6-9 Donegall Square South 
Belfast 

Agent Name and Address: 
Coogan and Co Architects Ltd 
122 Upper Lisburn Road 
 Finaghy 
 Belfast 

Executive Summary: 
 
The application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the existing Church Hall on site 
and the replacement with nine apartments, one retail unit and associated site works 
 
The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include: 
 

 Principle of re development and Use 

 Scale, Design, Massing & Layout  

 Impact on Surrounding Character, ATC 

 Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

 Provision of internal and outdoor amenity 

 Parking and traffic issues 

 Water and Sewage 

 Other Environmental Matters 
 
 
A total of 8 letters of objection have been received following the initial and amended scheme.  Seven 
of the letters are from two individuals and the other is from Cllr. Tracy Kelly supporting the comments 
from one of the objectors.  Cllr. McKeown also made representations and requested that the 
application is brought before the Committee for the reasons set out in the objection letters.  Six of the 
letters were received before the final amended scheme was notified.  It is considered that some of 
the initial issues of concern have been resolved following amendments to the scheme. 
 
The issues of concern expressed include: 

 Inadequate Parking provision, 

 Overlooking/dominance of neighbouring properties, 

 Noise/smell from balconies resulting from talking/smoking 

 Food waste - additional bins to serve the development 

 Density - 10 apartments  

 Need/economic impact - need for an additional retail unit 

 Design contrary to Area of Townscape Character 
 
Response to the points raised are dealt with in the case officer report below. 

Page 255

Agenda Item 7h



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

 
The proposal is within the urban area and within the development limits of Belfast.  The proposed 
uses of retail on the ground floor with residential above is compatible on the site and in the area and 
therefore the principle is acceptable providing the proposal is compliant with all relevant polices and 
material considerations.   
 
The proposed design, scale, height, mass and appearance is on balance acceptable within the 
surrounding context. The proposed residential units are of a size and layout which are acceptable 
with all having access to amenity provision, a reduced standard of amenity is considered acceptable 
as the site sits in a highly accessible location close to local amenities including parks and a 
contribution will be made towards local park amenities. 
 
The proposal has been amended during the processing both to ensure it will not result in an 
unacceptable impact in terms of dominance and overlooking on neighbouring terraces; and to ensure 
the design will sit more comfortably both on the Lisburn Road and the residential street. It is 
considered that the proposal will not have a significant detrimental impact on neighbouring residential 
amenity.   
 
All consultees, DFI Roads, Environmental Health, Urban Design Officer, NIW and Rivers Agency 
offer no objection to the proposal.   
 
Section 76 Agreement  

- The development proposed falls short in terms of private and shared amenity and therefore 
the developer will provide a contribution to local public amenity to off set this reduction.  

- The development does not provide parking, DFI Roads are satisfied that sufficient on-street 
parking is available and have requested green travel measures in the form of travel cards, 
that each of the apartments is supplied with a travel card funded for 3 years to encourage the 
uptake in the use of public transport. 
The developer has agreed to enter into a Section 76 agreement to secure these measures. 

 
 
Recommendation  
Having had regard to the extant development plan, the draft development plan, relevant planning 
policies, and all other material considerations the proposed development is considered on balance to 
be acceptable. 
 
It is recommended that delegated authority is given to Director of Planning and Building Control to 
finalise the wording of conditions. 

 
  

Page 256



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

 

Case Officer Report 

Site Location Plan 

 
 
 

 
 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 
1.1 
 

Description of Proposed Development 
Full planning permission is sought for the proposed demolition of existing church hall 
building and construction of 9.no apartments and 1no. retail unit. 
 

2.0 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description of Site. 
The site is an existing Church Building of no particular design merits, being constructed 
with a mono pitched roof and constructed with red, yellow, and brown brickwork.  The 
building occupies a corner plot at the Lisburn Road, a busy commercial frontage, and 
Rathcool Street a residential street of two storey terrace dwellings.  The site sits opposite 
to the Lisburn Road Police Station and adjoins a single storey high row of 
commercial/retail units.  To the opposite corner of Rathcool Street is a modern four storey 
building consisting of ground floor retail and apartments above. 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 Planning History  
 

Page 257



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

LA04/2020/1359/F - Proposed change of use from existing church hall to a restaurant 
(includes demolition of existing mezzanine level) 
 

4.0 Policy Framework 

4.1 Planning policy framework and guidance included: 
- Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP) 
- Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (dBMAP) 2004 

The extant development plan is the BUAP.  However, given the stage at which the Draft 
BMAP has reached pre-adoption through a period of independent examination, the 
policies within the Draft BMAP still carry weight and are a material consideration in the 
determination of planning applications.  The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement 
for the decision maker. 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for NI (SPPS) 

- Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS 3) Access, Movement & Parking 
- Addendum to Planning Policy Statement 6 Areas of Townscape Character 
- Planning Policy Statement 7 Quality Residential Environments 
- Addendum to Planning Policy Statement & Safeguarding the Character of 

Established Residential Areas 
- Planning Policy Statement 12 Housing in Settlements 
- Development Control Advise Note 8  
- Creating Places Achieving Quality in Residential Developments 
- Belfast Agenda 

 

5.0 Statutory Consultee Responses 

 Rivers Agency – no objection 
NI Water – no objection 
DfI Roads Service – no objection 

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 

 BCC Environmental Health – no objection  
BCC Urban Design Officer 

7.0 Representations 

7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 

The proposal was advertised in the local press and 17 neighbouring properties notified, to 
date the Council has received 8 letters objecting from two neighbouring residents and one 
from Cllr. Tracy Kelly who is supporting one of the objecting neighbours.  Cllr. McKeown 
also requested that the application is brought before the Committee supporting the 
objection reasons. 
 
Issues raised include: 

 Inadequate Parking provision, 

 Overlooking/dominance of neighbouring properties, 

 Noise/smell from balconies resulting from talking/smoking 

 Food waste - additional bins to serve the development 

 Design contrary to Area of Townscape Character 
 
Response to concerns: 

 DfI Roads Service consulted response indicates no significant impact on the road 
network - sufficient parking within the wider area.  Proposal to provide adequate 
cycle parking and supply funded travel cards for three year to encourage 
sustainable methods of transport 

 Environmental Health Service has commented on the issue of anti-social behaviour 
regarding potential noise impact from balconies and advised that The Clean 
Neighbourhood & Environment Act (NI) 2011 and the Noise Act 1996 allows for 
legal action regarding unacceptable nuisance.  Regarding smells the objectors 
refer to people smoking on the balconies and the resulting smell impacting their 

Page 258



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

property.  Officers are of the opinion that the separation distance and normal 
outdoor environmental conditions would prevent by products of smoking from 
affecting neighbouring properties. 

 The objector referred to waste and refers to addition bin storage/collection being a 
concern.  Officers consider that sufficient space has been provided on site for the 
storage of waste containers.  It is proposed that the waste capacity requirement 
calculated at 730Lts will require 1 euro-bin and one wheelie bin providing 840Lts 
will be collected on a two weekly bases.  Dry recyclable waste need is calculated at 
570Lts method of storage and collection will be 10no. 55Lts boxes and 1no. 240Lts 
Blue wheelie bin a total provision of 790Lts to be collect on a weekly basis.  
Organic waste needs are calculated at 104Lts weekly, the provision for storage 
being is 1no. 140Lts brown bin for weekly collection.  Officers opinion is sufficient 
waste storage is supplied and the number of bins and collection periods will not 
result in a significant impact on the surrounding area. 

 All other matters including ATC considered below in report. 
 

8.0 Other Material Considerations 

 DCAN 15 Vehicular Access Standards 
DOE Parking Standards 
 
 

9.0 Assessment  

9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The key issues to consider in the assessment of this application are as follows: 
 
 

 Principle of re development and Use 

 Scale, Design, Massing & Layout  

 Impact on Surrounding Character, ATC 

 Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

 Provision of internal and outdoor amenity 

 Parking and traffic issues 

 Water and Sewage 

 Other Environmental Matters 
 
Principle of Development 
The site is located within the settlement limits for the city within BUAP and the 2004 and 
2015 dBMAP.  The site is further designated within the Lisburn Road draft Area of 
Townscape Character (ATC). It is also shown to be adjacent to an existing commercial 
frontage and on an arterial route. The area is mixed use with commercial frontage with 
living above the shop a common feature and terraced residential streets run behind.   The 
SPPS sets out that planning permission ought to be granted for sustainable development 
that accords with the Local Development Plan and causes no harm to areas of 
acknowledged importance. There is no policy to the contrary therefore, in principle 
redevelopment of this site for retail and residential is a considered compatible and 
acceptable. 
 
Scale, Design and Massing: 
In terms of the scale, of the proposal, it is for a four-storey apartment and retail 
development consisting of nine apartments and one retail unit.  The proposed 
development is to occupy a corner plot at the junction of the Lisburn Road and Rathcool 
Street.  The location is considered to have the benefit of allowing a larger and higher scale 
building to be accommodated, giving a strong presence to the frontage.  The proposal will 
be paired with an existing apartment and retail development on the opposite street corner 
of similar scale, massing, dimensions and styling.  The neighbouring apartment block at no 

Page 259



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

505 Lisburn Road provides a context for the scale, design and massing and proportions 
for this scheme.  The use of a mixed palette of materials prevents the building from having 
a monolithic appearance.  Whilst the building is larger than the existing and its immediate 
neighbours the appearance of dominance is reduced as the proposal, given its design will 
have differing heights to the roof, the levels being 7.0m at the rear to Rathcool Street and 
stepping up to 12.65m when fronting the Lisburn Road and a roof mono-pitched canopy of 
13m.   
The Lisburn Road frontage will have an overall roof height that is the same as that found 
at 505 Lisburn Road.  The proposal will be approximately 19.3m from front to back along 
the Rathcool Street frontage, the same proportion as to be found at 505 Lisburn Road.  
The proposal in terms of height and massing along Rathcool Street will reflect that found 
within the street. 
 
 
The remainder of the terrace is single storey at 489 Lisburn Road – whilst the proposed 
relationship is not comfortable as it will result in a 3 storey height difference, the area has 
other examples of height changes for example no 465 Lisburn Road and junction of 
Adelaide Avenue which is 2.0m higher than the proposal.  The frontage of Lisburn road 
has been in somewhat of a transition for a number of years which is evidenced by single 
and two storey terraced frontage being replaced by larger scale buildings. 
 
Design amendments to the proposal have been received and have reduced the impact of 
the proposal on the neighbouring terrace in terms of dominance with heights of the 
development being reduced to reflect those of the neighbouring terrace.  The height of 
apartments adjacent to Rathcoole Street terrace being 7.13m approximately 0.65 below 
the ridge height of the terrace. 
 
 
Surrounding Character ATC 
The site is located within a draft ATC as designated within the dBMAP.  Whilst in draft the 
policies within the addendum to PPS 6 do not apply.  However, it has been established 
through planning appeals that the character of the draft ATC remains a material 
consideration when assessing both demolition and development.  Demolition of buildings 
that make a positive contribution is a material consideration and any replacement should 
not result in a negative impact. The proposal calls for the demolition of the existing modern 
building that is considered by officers to be of no historic merit, the building being modern 
and a utility building designed as a Church Hall with no particular design features of note 
and makes no significant contribution within the surrounding context.   
 
The proposed retail and apartment development have been designed to take design clues 
from the surrounding built environment.  Although some surrounding designs are 
questionable, they are nonetheless the elements that make up the draft ATC.   Officers 
considered that the proposal will not significantly impact on the surrounding character 
which is dominated by commercial and residential uses; commercial to the road frontage 
and residential to the streets leading from the frontage. 
 
Impact on neighbouring amenity: 
The proposed site is within a mixed area of residential and commercial land uses, the 
proposal is to replace an existing single storey mono pitched roofed hall with a multi-storey 
apartment block.  The introduction of this increased scale and massing of a new apartment 
block introduces new impacts on the surrounding neighbouring land uses.  The original 
design of the proposal, which included ten apartments, was considered to have a negative 
impact on the neighbouring terrace dwelling (Rathcool Street) in terms of dominance and 
shadowing.  The design was amended in response to these concerns resulting in the rear 
section of the building being stepped back and stepped down to lessen the impact on the 

Page 260



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.10 
 
 
9.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.14 
 
 
 

terrace. It was considered important that this element of the development should take 
reference from the ridge height of the terrace.  The result of these changes was a 
reduction in dominance and potential over shadowing of the nearest neighbouring terrace 
dwelling.  It also resulted in a reduction in the number of apartments by one reducing the 
scheme to nine apartments overall.  The final design also includes obscure glazed 
windows to the rear elevation to protect the rear amenity space of the terrace, these 
windows being either secondary windows to habitable rooms or serving stairwells 
therefore resulting in no loss of amenity to the future occupiers.   
 
Officers also sought changes to the bin storage area, bringing it within the confines of the 
site and away from the gable of the neighbouring terrace.   
 
Impact on surrounding context: 
The proposal is for a modern designed apartment block finished in a variety of materials 
including traditional red brick, stone, and zinc cladding.  These materials are reflective of 
the surrounding area as demonstrated at the existing apartment block to the opposite 
corner of Rathcool Street.  The red brick is the traditional material for the surrounding area 
and the proposed elevations will be primarily finished in brick.  The height of the proposal 
can be seen to be reflective of the other apartments that are located along this section of 
the Lisburn Road.   
 
As part of the design a section of the ground floor area is proposed as retail/commercial 
use, the Lisburn Road frontage is heavily used for retail and commercial uses and 
therefore this element of the proposal will sit comfortably with and is compatible in this 
location on an Arterial Route. 
 
 
Layout  
Whilst the addendum to PPS7 does not apply to arterial routes.  The internal space 
provided to each unit, is designed to comply with the space standards The one-bedroom 
units arranging from 39sqm to 50sqm and the two-bedroom units being 60sqm, the 
published space standards setting out for a one bedroom unit 35/40sqm and for a two 
bedroom unit 60/65sqm. The internal space provision and layout is acceptable.  The 
layouts are such that each unit will have sufficient light and a quality living environment. 
 
 
Amenity Space 
The amenity space provision for the apartments is 59sqm and consists mainly of balconies 
which have an outlook onto the Lisburn Road and Rathcool Street.  Balconies by their 
nature can result in an element of overlooking of neighbouring properties especially in 
locations where there are height differences between buildings.  The outlook from the 
balconies towards the Lisburn Road will be of a busy thoroughfare, commercial outlets, 
and a Police station beyond.  Officers consider there to be no significant overlooking 
concerns with this element of the proposal.  The Rathcoole Street outlook will be towards 
the relatively new apartment block on the opposite street corner, which relies on bay 
windows and Juliette balconies to several units for amenity.  The outlook onto the 
remaining area of the Rathcool Street is towards the front of the dwellings forming the 
street.  It is considered that the street fronting aspect of these dwellings ensures there will 
not be no significant overlooking of the private amenity enjoyed by the existing residents.   
 
Seven of the nine apartments will have a balcony for outdoor amenity space, the balconies 
range from 3sqm to 7sqm of space.  Three units will have access to the terrace outdoor 
space of 19sqm, 4.4sqm and 3.4sqm.  In total therefore, there is a shortfall of 41sqm 
amenity provided which should be at least 100sqm (10sqm per unit).  The applicant has 
offered to make a contribution towards the amenities at the local park. The details of the 

Page 261



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

 
 
 
 
 
9.15 
 
 
 
 
 
9.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.20 

developer contribution / works will be finalised in conjunction with BCC Parks Department 
and finalised by the Director of Planning and Building Control and delegated authority is 
requested from Committee.  
 
In addition it is considered the shortfall in external amenity space can be overcome to a 
great extent by the site’s location on a busy thoroughfare which offers a high level of 
outdoor amenity such as coffee shops, bars and restaurants along with ease of access to 
a public park which is within 200m of the site.   
 
Parking and traffic issues: 
There is no parking provided with the scheme.  DfI Roads Service have assessed the 
parking survey and travel plans submitted with the proposal; they are content that there is 
sufficient on-street parking available.  The building is designed with an acceptable cycle 
parking area for 8 number bikes that meets DfI standards.  It is also proposed within the 
residential travel plan that each of the apartments is supplied with a travel card funded for 
3 years to encourage the uptake in the use of public transport.  It is considered that the 
provision of on-street parking, cycle parking and resident travel cards that the proposal 
has no outstanding travel and parking issues.   
 
 
Environmental issues: 
BCC Environmental Health was consulted on the proposal, following seeking additional 
information on points around contamination, air quality, noise management they indicate 
that there are no significant environmental issues with the proposal.  Environmental Health 
has offered conditions for the control of several the above points relating to contamination 
should any additional contaminants be found during construction works, internal and 
external noise control and the control of dust during construction.  Taking account of 
Environmental Health comments, it is considered there are no significant environment 
issues regarding the proposal.   
 
Water and sewage: 
NI Water was consulted their response indicates that there are no significant issues with 
the proposal in terms of water and sewage requirements.  NIW in their response to 
consultation provided a copy of the Pre-Development Enquiry that the developer had 
agreed with NIW regarding water and sewage connections.   
 
It is for the developer and NIW to finalise an acceptable solution to any outstanding water 
supply/sewage connections issues and given this is a developed site these connections 
already exist within the site and its surroundings.  It is considered that the proposal will not 
have any significant impact on the water/sewage network once agreement is achieved 
between the developer and NIW.   
 
 
Section 76 Agreement  

- The development proposed falls short in terms of private and shared amenity and 
therefore the developer will provide a contribution to local public amenity to offset 
this reduction. The applicant has offered to make a contribution and or works 
towards the amenities at a local park. The details of the developer contribution / 
works will be finalised in conjunction with BCC Parks Department and by the 
Director of Planning and Building Control with delegated authority requested from 
Committee.  
 

- The development does not provide parking, DFI Roads are satisfied that sufficient 
on-street parking is available and have requested green travel measures in the 

Page 262



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

form of travel cards, that each of the apartments is supplied with a travel card 
funded for 3 years to encourage the uptake in the use of public transport. 
 
 

The developer has agreed to enter into a Section 76 Agreement under the Act to secure 
these measures. 
 
 
 

10.0 
 
10.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.2 
 
 
10.3 

Summary of Recommendation: Approval Subject to Conditions 
 
The proposal will provide a retail/commercial on the ground floor and nine apartments 
above within the urban area which is compatible in the context and in principle is 
acceptable.  The site location provides excellent access to commercial/retail outlets, public 
parks, places of entertainment and ease of access to public transport.  The proposal will 
not have a significant detrimental impact on the neighbouring amenity and the scale, 
height, mass and appearance are on balance acceptable in the context. 
 
 Approval is recommended subject to Conditions and a Section 76 Agreement to provide 
Green Travel measures and a contribution to local public open space. 
 
It is requested that the final wording of conditions and the agreement under Section 76 is 
delegated to the Director of Planning and Building Control.  
 
 

11.0 Conditions and Informatives 

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years 
from the date of this permission. 

 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 

2. Covered cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with Ground Floor Plan 
published on the Planning Portal 27th May 2021.     
 

Reason: To ensure acceptable cycle parking on the site and to encourage alternative modes 
of transport to the private car. 

 
3. The Residential Travel Plan, published on the Planning Portal 23rd October 2020, 

shall be implemented on completion of the development.  
 

Reason: To encourage the use of alternative modes of transport to the private car in 
accordance with the Transportation Principles. 

4. Prior to occupation of the development, the alternative means of acoustically 
attenuated ventilation systems to habitable rooms shall be selected in accordance 
with the recommendations contained within the RPS Memo re: LA04/2020/1360/F, 
dated: 05/3/2021, so that each acoustically attenuated ventilation system achieves 
the required sound reduction performance (dB Ctr), or greater, in accordance with 
Table 1 of that memo when installed.  
 

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity  
 
 

5. The glass balustrades to development balconies and terraces shall be installed in 
accordance with elevation drawings Nos 10B and 12B and shall meet the acoustic 

Page 263



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

specification as detailed in Section 2.4 of the RPS Memo re: LA04/2020/1360/F, 
dated: 05/3/2021.  

 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity 
 

6. A Dust Management Plan should be prepared in accordance to Guidance on the 
Assessment of Dust from Demolition and Construction (Institute of Air Quality 
Management, 2014) and implemented during either demolition or construction works 
on the site.  

 
Reason: The protection of human health and residential amenity. 
 

7. If during the development works, new contamination or risks are encountered which 
have not previously been identified, works shall cease and the Planning Authority 
shall be notified immediately. This new contamination shall be fully investigated in 
accordance with best practice. In the event of unacceptable risks being identified, a 
Remediation Strategy and subsequent Verification Report shall be agreed with the 
Planning Authority in writing, prior to the development being occupied. If required, 
the Verification Report shall be completed by competent persons in accordance with 
best practice and must demonstrate that the remediation measures have been 
implemented and that the site is now fit for end-use.  

 
Reason: Protection of human health. 

 
  

Page 264



Application ID: LA04/2020/1360/F 

 

 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   22nd July 2020 

Date First Advertised  31st July 2020 
 

Date Last Advertised  

Elected representative Interest: 
 
Cllr Tracy Kelly  
   
Cllr Gary McKeown 
Neighbours notified & Advertised: 
 
17 Neighbours 
 
  

Date of Last Neighbour Notification  
9th June 2021 
 

Date of EIA Determination  

ES Requested 
 

No 
 

Drawing Numbers and Title 
 

Notification to Department (if relevant) 
 
Date of Notification to Department:  N/A 
Response of Department: 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 265



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Summary 

Committee Meeting Date: 17 August 2021 Application ID:LA04/2019/2778/F 

Proposal: 
Proposed erection of a residential development 
comprising 18 no. two bedroom apartments and 
5 no. one bedroom apartments with associated 
amenity space, cycle & bin storage, 
landscaping and site works (23 units in total).  
Amended Description and Amended Plans. 

Location: 
Lands at 159-165 Holywood Road 
Belfast 
BT4 3BE 

Referral Route: Recommendation to approve contrary to advice from a statutory consultee  

Recommendation: Approval subject to conditions 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Stormont Inn Ltd 
Jefferson House  
Queen Street 
Belfast 
BT1 6HL 

Agent Name and Address: 
Turley 
Hamilton House  
3 Joy Street 
Belfast 
BT2 8LE 

Executive Summary: 
The proposal seeks planning permission for a residential development of 23 apartments (18 two 
bed apartments and 5 one-bedroom apartments) with associated amenity space, cycle and bin 
storage, landscaping and site works. 
 
The Key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include: 

 Principle of development  

 Impact on character and appearance of the area 

 Impact upon the setting of nearby listed building 

 Residential Amenity 

 Provision of Parking and Access 

 Water Infrastructure, Drainage and Flooding  
 
The proposed site is located on lands at Nos. 159 to 165 Holywood Road on a corner site 
adjacent to a road intersection where the Holywood Road, Belmont Road, Dundela Crescent and 
Pimms Avenue converge. The site is located adjacent to a mixture of commercial, public and 
residential land uses. The topography of the site slopes up noticeably to the north east along 
Holywood Road and then slopes away to the south along Dundela Crescent.  
 
The application site is located within the development limits identified under the existing Belfast 
Urban Area Plan (BUAP) and draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan. In dBMAP (both versions) it is 
located adjacent to an arterial route and within a Commercial Node/Area of Parking Restraint. 
The site currently comprises vacant land with previous buildings demolished. 
 
There is a Planning History on the site which informs consideration of the current proposal. 
Application LA4/2015/1160/F permitted 18 no. apartments on lands at 165-169 Holywood Road 
(granted 05/06/2018) and Application LA04/2017/1558/F permitted 4 no. apartments on lands at 
159-163 Holywood Road (granted 19/05/2017). Both approvals are extant and provide a 
legitimate fallback position.  
  

Page 267

Agenda Item 7i



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 2 of 15 

The application now submitted combines both sites and proposes to build and manage as a 
single development as opposed to two separate developments; the current proposal is for 23 
units (1 additional to the 22 approved in total under the previous two permissions).  
 
The proposal was amended and reduced during the processing of the application (originally 
sought 32 no. apartments) and is now largely informed by the extant approvals on the site 
presenting 4 stories with a 5th set back on the corner of Holywood Road/Dundela Crescent and 
stepping down to 4 stories where it adjoins its neighbouring building on the Holywood Road.  
 
No parking is proposed, however, the site is located adjacent to an arterial route well served by 
public transport and within an area of parking restraint in a commercial node.  Integral cycle 
parking is provided on the lower ground floor. The applicant has submitted a Residential 
Framework Travel Plan and Service Management Plan. DfI Roads have objected to the 
development requesting further sustainable travel measures be provided. However, given the 
fallback position it is considered unreasonable to insist on additional measures, noting that DfI 
Roads sought no such measures for the previous two permissions, which can be implemented. 
Officers consider that the one additional unit created through the amalgamated proposal does not 
necessitate measures beyond what was previously approved and are satisfied that conditions to 
ensure the development operates in accordance with the Residential Travel Plan now submitted 
are sufficient given the extant approvals on the site.  
 
HED advises that the proposal, as presented, shall have an adverse impact on the listed building 
and its setting, however, it defers to the Council in relation to material consideration afforded to 
previously approved applications.  The Council considers that significant weight should be given 
to the previous approvals given they are both extant and is satisfied on balance that the amended 
proposals will not have any greater adverse impact on the listed building than what is already 
approved and can be implemented.  
 
Overall, it is considered on balance that the amended proposal would respect its surrounding 
context, is in a sustainable location and would not cause significant harm to the amenity of 
neighbouring properties or heritage assets in accordance with the SPPS, PPS3, PPS6, PPS7, 
and its addendum. 
 
No third-party representations have been received. 
 
Environmental Health, NI Water and Rivers Agency have offered no objection to the proposal.   
 
Recommendation:  
 
Having regard to the policy context, planning history and other material considerations above, the 

proposal is considered acceptable on balance and it is recommended that planning permission is 

granted subject to conditions with delegated power given to the Director of Planning and Building 

Control to finalise conditions. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 268



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 3 of 15 

Case Officer Report 

Site Location Plan 

 
 

Site Plan 

 
 

Page 269



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 4 of 15 

Typical Floor Plan 

 
Holywood Road Elevation 

 
Consultations: 

Consultation Type Consultee Response 

Non-Statutory Env Health Belfast City 
Council 

Substantive Response 
Received 
 

Page 270



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 5 of 15 

Statutory NIEA Advice 
 

Statutory Rivers Agency Standing Advice 
 

Statutory DFI Roads – Hydebank Substantive Response 
Received 
 

Statutory NI Water Substantive Response 
Received 

Representations: 

Letters of Support None Received 

Letters of Objection None Received 

Number of Support Petitions and 
signatures 

No Petitions Received 

Number of Petitions of Objection 
and signatures 

No Petitions Received 

 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0  Description of Proposal 
The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a residential 
development comprising 18 no. two bedroom apartments and 5 no. one bedroom 
apartments with associated amenity space, cycle & bin storage, landscaping and site 
works (23 units in total).   
 
The proposed building is 4 stories with a 5th set back and is finished in a combination of 
brick and render with lightweight cladding and aluminium fascia to the upper set back. A 
combination of private and communal amenity space is provided however no parking is 
provided with a reliance on on-street parking. 
 

2.0  Description of Site 
The site is located on a main arterial route in the east of the city and encompasses 
undeveloped lands where previous buildings have been demolished.  The northern 
boundary of the adjoins a road junction where Holywood Road, Belmont Road, Pimms 
Avenue and Dundela Crescent converge.  A public car park and residential properties 
exist to the south of the site and to the east and west of the site there are commercial 
premises fronting on to Holywood Road. The topography of the site slopes up noticeably 
to the north east along Holywood Road and then slopes away to the south along Dundela 
Crescent. 
   
To the north east of the site on the opposite side of Belmont Road there is a Grade B2 
listed building at Nos. 2 to 4 Belmont Road occupied by the UUP Headquarter Offices. It 
is a well-proportioned and detailed red-brick building dating from c.1902 which curves at 
the street corner and is well detailed with an ornate stone pedimented entrance, carved 
stone clock and openwork balustrade with ball finials. Internally it is altered and 
modernized and the windows on the first floor are not original. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 271



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 6 of 15 

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations 
 

3.0   
  
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 

Site History and Surrounding Area 
 
LA04/2015/1160/F– Demolition of existing building and construction of 18 apartments with 
balconies - 165-169 Holywood Road, Belfast, BT4 3BE 
– PERMISSION GRANTED - 23.05.2017 
 
LA04/2017/1558/F- Development of 4 no. apartments - 159-163 Holywood Road, Belfast, 
– PERMISSION GRANTED– 08.06.2018 

4.0 
4.1 
4.2 
4.3 
4.4 
4.5 
4.6 
4.7 
4.8 
4.9 
 
4.10 
4.11 
4.12 

Policy Framework 
Regional Development Strategy 
Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (published 2004) (dBMAP 2004)  
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (published 2014) (dBMAP 2015) 
Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, Movement and Parking 
Planning Policy Statement 6: Planning, Archaeology and Built Heritage 
Planning Policy Statement 7: Quality Residential Environments 
Planning Policy Statement 7 Addendum – Safeguarding the Character of Established 
Residential Areas  
Planning Policy Statement 12: Housing in Settlements 
Planning Policy Statement 15 – Planning and Flood Risk 
Developer Contribution Framework (adopted January 2020) 
 

5.0  
 
5.1 
5.2 
5.3 
5.4 
 
6.0 
 
6.1 
 

Statutory Consultees Responses 
 
DfI Roads were consulted and have objected 
NI Water were consulted and have no objection 
Rivers Agency were consulted and have no objection 
HED were consulted and have objected 
 
Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
 
Environmental Health were consulted and have no objection. 
 

7.0 
7.1 
 
 

Representations 
The application has been advertised in the local press and all neighbours have been 
notified. No representations have been received.  
 

8.0 
8.1 
8.2 

Other Material Considerations  
Creating Places 
Development Control Advice Note 8: Housing in Existing Urban Areas 
 

9.0 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Assessment 
The Key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include: 

 Principle of development  

 Impact on character and appearance of the area 

 Impact upon the setting of nearby listed building 

 Provision of Parking and Access 

 Residential Amenity 

 Water Infrastructure, Drainage and Flooding  

Page 272



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 7 of 15 

9.2 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
 
9.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.10 
 
 

The adopted Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (BMAP) has been quashed as a result 
of the judgement in the Court of Appeal delivered on 18 May 2017.  As a consequence of 
this, the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is now the statutory development plan for 
the area. 
 
Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 requires regard to be had to the 
Development Plan, so far as material to the application and to any other material 
considerations.  Section 6 (4) states that where regard is to be had to the Development 
Plan, the determination must be made in accordance with the Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.   
 
As the decision to adopt BMAP has been quashed in its entirety, it is as though the draft 
BMAP has never been adopted, however, given the stage at which the draft BMAP had 
reached pre-adoption, through a period of independent examination, the policies within 
the Draft BMAP still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of 
planning applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter for the decision maker. It is 
considered that significant weight should be given to the latest version of dBMAP given 
the advanced stage that it reached in the adoption process. 
 
The site is located within the development limits of both the existing and the draft Area 
Plans.  The site is undesignated “whiteland” in the BUAP. In dBMAP the site fronts on to 
an Arterial Route (AR01/18) and is located within a Commercial Node and Area of 
Parking Restraint on Arterial Routes (AR03/14) at Holywood Road/Belmont Road junction 
(both drafts).   
 
Under the SPPS, the guiding principle for planning authorities in determining planning 
applications is that sustainable development should be permitted, having regard to the 
development plan and all other material considerations, unless the proposed 
development will cause demonstrable harm to interests of acknowledged importance.  It 
is deemed that this proposal will not result in demonstrable harm. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
The site is within the settlement limit of Belfast and is within a Commercial Node on an 
Arterial Route which have an important role to play in encouraging regeneration-based 
housing within the urban footprint closely integrated with local services and facilities. 
 
The principle of residential development on the site has already been established through 
extant planning permissions LA04/2017/1558/F and LA04/2015/1160/F which approved 4 
no. and 18 no. apartments respectively (22 in total) neither of which provided any 
dedicated car parking and which were accommodated in two buildings 4 stories in height, 
one with a 5th floor set back. These permissions provide a legitimate fall-back position 
and as such are a material consideration to be given weight in the consideration of the 
current proposal. 
 
The policy context since assessment of the previous permissions has not changed. 
Taking the history as outlined above into consideration, the principle of the development 
of an amended scheme which amalgamates both approvals into one resulting in the 
addition of one unit is considered acceptable.  
 
Impact on character and appearance of the area  
 
The proposal originally submitted was for 32 no. apartments (17 no. 2 bed and 15 no. 1 
bed) in a building ranging from 4 to 5 stories with a 5th and 6th storey set back 
respectively. Amendments were secured during the processing of the application to 

Page 273



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 8 of 15 

 
 
 
9.11 
 
 
 
 
9.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

reduce the number of apartments and the scale and height of the building to reflect what 
was previously considered acceptable and for which extant consent was in place. 
 
The proposal now comprises 23 apartments (18 no. 2 bedroom and 5 no. 1 bedroom) in 
one apartment block. The proposal is within a high-density area with the density now 
proposed not significantly greater than what is approved with only one additional unit 
created.  
 
The block is within the footprint of previously demolished buildings. The proposed new 
build is considered to respect the established building line on the Holywood Road and 
turns the corner on to Dundela Crescent maintaining the integrity of the built frontage. All 
apartments are accessed through a main entrance door on to the Holywood Road - a 
rendered portico with recessed door leading into an entrance lobby. A secondary access 
is provided to the rear alongside an access to the cycle and bin storage which is provided 
at lower ground floor level to the rear elevation where the ground levels naturally fall. An 
additional entrance to the rear leads to a rear garden and enclosed resident’s communal 
flexible space.    
 
The block is four stories to the Holywood Road with a fifth set back on the corner of 
Holywood Road and Dundela Crescent. Whilst the 2 approved units are amalgamated 
into one development the proposed use of materials aids in breaking up the bulk of the 
unit to read as having a finer urban grain comparable to the extant separate approvals on 
site. The external walls are proposed to be finished primarily in off-white render above 
blue brick to the ground floor with the end block on the Holywood Road elevation to be 
finished in red facing brick. The setback floor is proposed to be finished in pale blue 
lightweight standing seam cladding with aluminium fascia to the flat roof.  Decorative 
render fascia plinths are proposed above the upper ground floor and below the setback 
top floor to give the building a clear division of top, middle and bottom sections.  The 
windows and doors are proposed to be dark grey uPVC. The balconies for the 
apartments are proposed to be enclosed with glass balustrades creating a uniform 
lightweight feature on the corner.  
 
The site is on a prominent corner with the approved block considered visually robust and 
recognisable with potential to add to local urban grain. The comparative overlay below 
details the minor differences between the approved and proposed schemes with respect 
to height and scale with the red line indicating the previous approval on the corner site, 
the aluminium fascia to the flat roof sitting just above its previous position. 

 

Page 274



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 9 of 15 

9.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.17 
 
 
 
 
9.18 
 
 
 
 
9.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.20 
 
 
 
 
 
9.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amendments to comprehensively develop the two previous approved blocks as one, 
resulting on 1 no. additional apartment unit, are considered to respect their surrounding 
context and would not have an unacceptable impact on the local character and 
appearance of the area which has a varied palette of materials and architectural styles. 
On balance the proposal is in compliance with the Area Plan, SPPS and PPS7.  
 
Impact upon the setting of nearby listed building 
 
HED have been consulted as the site is in proximity to Nos. 2-4 Belmont Road, a Grade 
B2 Listed Building of special architectural and historic interest, protected under Section 
80 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011. The building was not listed when application 
LA04/2015/1160/F was first received in September 2015, becoming listed in March 2016. 
HED whilst accepting the principle of development on the site considers that the proposal 
is incongruous in its setting and a competing focus with heritage assets, they suggest that 
a four-storey version of the current scheme may be an acceptable compromise, removing 
one full storey of accommodation and incorporating the set-back on the uppermost floor. 
HED is cognisant of the previous approvals on site and advise that they defer to the 
Council in relation to material consideration afforded to previously approved applications. 
 
The proposal has been assessed against paragraph 6.12 of the SPPS and Policy BH 11 
of PPS 6. Paragraph 6.12 advises that Listed Buildings are key elements of our built 
heritage and are important for their intrinsic value and the contribution to the character of 
their location.   
 
The proposal is located at the junction of Holywood Road, Belmont Road, Dundela 
Crescent and Pims Avenue. The Listed Building is approximately 20m north of the 
development site on the corner of Belmont Road and Holywood Road directly opposite 
the Tesco Express on the southern side of the Belmont Road.  
 
As one travels along Dundela Crescent, the listed building terminates the view and will 
continue to do so post development. When travelling towards the site along Belmont 
Road the new building will come into view behind the Tesco Express however it is far 
enough removed so as not to have an unacceptable impact on the setting of the listed 
building at 2 to 4 Belmont Road. The two buildings will be read together when travelling 
north along Holywood Road, however, the listed building again is set in a more central 
position within this viewpoint with the new building set to one side; city bound travelling 
south the new build will be prominent given its central position terminating this view, 
however, it is viewed alongside the rear/gable of the listed building which itself is partially 
screened by trees. On approach from Pims Avenue the listed building and new building 
will be read together within the same setting. The new building whilst reading alongside 
the listed building on a number of approaches never restricts views of the building. 
 
It is considered that where the two buildings are read together the proposed building’s 
contrasting lighter colour materials, together with its modern and simple design, the 
proposal allows the listed building to remain a key focus. The impact of the proposed 
building on the Listed Building would be mitigated by its siting, design and the separation 
distance between the buildings.  
 
Taking into consideration the extant permissions which provide a legitimate fallback for 
the development of the site and the materials, siting and design of the proposed it is 
considered on balance the proposal would not be harmful to the setting of listed building 
and is acceptable having regard to the SPPS and Policy BH11 of PPS6. 
 
 
 

Page 275



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 10 of 15 

 
 
9.22 
 
 
 
9.23 
 
 
 
9.24 
 
 
 
 
9.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.26 
 
9.27 
 
 
 
 
 
9.28 
 
 
 
 
 
9.29 
 
 
 
9.30 
 
 
 
9.31 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Residential Amenity 
 
All apartments are accessed from Holywood Road and all have satisfactory outlook and a 
suitable degree of light from their main habitable rooms on to the Holywood Road or 
Dundela Crescent. 
 
The apartments have all been measured and are in line with the space standards as set 
out in Annex A to Addendum to PPS7, a 1 bed apartment being 50sqm and a 2-bed 
apartment being 60sqm; all in excess of this minimum. 

 
A small defensible space is proposed to the front of the apartments on to Holywood Road 
and at the corner with Dundela Crescent with low ornamental shrub planting behind a 
dwarf wall; this provides a buffer to the street articulating the boundary and maintaining a 
clear definition between the public and private realm.   
 
11 of the proposed 23 no. apartments will have a private balcony ranging between 4.6 
and 35.7sqm each and providing a total private amenity provision of 135.5sqm; the 
remaining 12 apartments would have access to 72.8sqm2 of communal amenity space 
on the fourth floor in the form of a roof terrace accessible by central lift and stairwell. On 
the lower ground floor an internal flexible communal space measuring 62.7sqm is to be 
available to residents and is accessed through a small private 11sqm garden.  The extant 
approvals on site included 8 no. private balconies with the remaining 14 no. apartments 
sharing communal amenity space. Overall, the amount of amenity provision will exceed 
the minimum 10sqm recommended standard set out in Creating Places with an average 
of 12.2 sqm per apartment.  
 
It is considered that adequate private amenity space is provided. 
 
The proposed apartments are sufficiently separated from the existing dwellings at 
Dundela.  Crescent, with 15m to closest dwelling gable with non-habitable window and 
30m to closest dwelling with habitable window. These separation distances would ensure 
the development would not detrimentally affect the residential amenity of these existing 
dwellings. 
 
Given the sites urban context, and the development pattern in the immediate area it is 
considered that the distances and layout are acceptable and the proposal would not 
result in an unacceptable loss of privacy or undue level of overlooking to existing and 
proposed occupiers. Loss of daylight / sunlight would not be caused to existing properties 
and a sufficient level of daylight/sunlight would be provided for future occupants. 
 
In light of the above, it is considered that an adequate level of residential amenity would 
be maintained for future and existing occupiers in accordance with PPS7, PPS7 
Addendum (Safeguarding the Character of Established Residential Areas) and the SPPS.  
 
The Environmental Health Service have considered the proposed development in terms 
of noise, air pollution, general amenity, ambient air quality, contaminated land and other 
considerations and offer no objection. 
 
Overall, the proposal will not result in any unacceptable amenity impacts on prospective 
residents or on neighbouring properties in accordance with the SPPS, PPS7 and 
Creating Places. Regard must also be had to the extant permissions on the site. 
 
 
 

Page 276



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 11 of 15 

 
 
9.32 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.33 
 
9.34 
 
 
 
9.35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.36 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.37 
 
 
 
9.38 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.39 
 
 
 
 
 

Provision of Parking and Access 
 
Like the two extant planning permissions on the site, the proposed development provides 
no in curtilage parking. A Transport Assessment Form accompanied the application 
which included parking surveys which detailed available provision of on street spaces. 14 
no. cycle parking spaces are to be provided for in 7 no. sheffield stands on the lower 
ground floor of the development. A Travel Plan has been provided.  DfI Roads object and 
have advised that they find the Travel Plan is unacceptable because it is lacking in 
tangible measures to promote sustainable alternatives to the private car and that 
consideration should be given to including: 
 

a. Provision of three-year Residential Travel Cards for each apartment; 
b. Provision of three-year membership of Belfast by Bike Scheme for each 

apartment. 
c. Provision of Car Club membership for some residents. 

 
They have also requested the provision of 1 disabled space in-curtilage. 

 
The Agent has indicated their agreement to contribute the Travel Cards, Bike Scheme 
and Car Club Membership for one year, however, DfI Roads retain their objection with 
respect to a request for 3 years and give no weight to the previous approvals on site. 
 
The extant approvals on site are a material consideration. When LA04/2015/1160/F (18 
apartments) and LA04/2017/1558/F (4 apartments) were approved DfI Roads found the 
proposals acceptable; neither included in-curtilage parking and neither included Travel 
Plans. It was considered in the case officer report for those approvals that the site had 
excellent public transport links and adequate reserve parking capacity existed in the 
vicinity of the area. 
 
This proposal now before Council is effectively an amalgamation of these two previous 
approvals on the site, developing and managing both as one comprehensive block 
resulting in the creation of only one additional apartment. The planning history is a 
material consideration which should be given significant weight in consideration of the 
current proposal. There has been no change in policy since the previous approvals were 
granted. Both approvals remain extant and can be built out.  It is considered that it would 
be unreasonable to require additional travel measures given the current schemes can be 
implemented and it is considered a refusal on such basis would not be sustained. 
 
It is considered on balance, giving weight to the specific planning history in this instance, 
that the proposal is acceptable in terms of highway safety, capacity and car parking in 
accordance with the SPPS, PPS3, PPS7, Creating Places, BUAP and draft BMAP.  
 
Conditions with respect to cycle parking, closing redundant access and requirement for 
technical approval are recommended as per the previous permissions. On balance, 
conditions are also recommended with respect to the Travel Plan and Service 
Management Plan submitted. 
 
Infrastructure, Drainage and Flooding  
 
NI Water have been consulted and confirmed that public water supply, foul sewer and 
public water connections are within 20m of the proposal and that there is capacity at the 
Waste Water Treatment Works.  NIW advise that the Developer is required to consult 
with them directly by means of a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) to determine if there is 
capacity to serve this proposal and that Application to NIW is required to obtain approval 
to connect. 

Page 277



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 12 of 15 

9.40 
 
 
9.41 
 

This planning application is supported by a Drainage Assessment which has been 
reviewed by Rivers Agency who have advised they have no objection to the proposal. 
 
The proposal complies with PPS15 Planning and Flood Risk. 
 

Neighbour Notification Checked     Yes 
 

Summary of Recommendation: 
Taking all factors into consideration on balance, the proposal is considered acceptable.  
 
Having regard to the policy context, planning history and other material considerations above, 
the proposal is considered acceptable on balance and it is recommended that planning 
permission is granted subject to conditions with delegated power given to the Director of 
Planning and Building Control to finalise conditions. 
 

Conditions: 
  

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from 
the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 

 
2. Notwithstanding the materials outlined on the approved plans, the development hereby 

permitted shall not commence until samples and a written specification of the materials to 
be used in the external elevations have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and thereafter retained in 
accordance with the approved details.  

 
Reason: To protect the visual amenities of the area.  

3. No apartment shall be occupied until provision has been made for on-site covered cycle 
parking in accordance with the approved plan.  These facilities shall be permanently 
retained. 

 
Reason:  To ensure acceptable cycle parking facilities on the site and to encourage alternative 
modes of transport to the private car. 
 

4. All redundant accesses from the site to the public road shall be permanently closed off 
and the footpath reinstated to the satisfaction of DfI Roads. 

 
Reason:  In order to minimise the number of access points on to the public road in the interests 
of road safety and the convenience of road users. 
 

5. The development shall operate at all times in accordance with the Travel Plan uploaded 
to the Planning Portal on 26/06/2020. 

 
Reason: To encourage alternative modes of transport to the private car. 
 

6. The development shall operate at all times in accordance with the Service Management 
Plan uploaded to the Planning Portal on 26/06/2020. 

 
Reason: In the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users. 
 

Page 278



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 13 of 15 

7. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, the bin store facilities 
shall be provided in accordance with the approved plans and shall be made available and 
thereafter be retained for use at all times in accordance with the approved plans. 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure the provision of satisfactory facilities for the 
storage and recycling of refuse and to protect the character and appearance of the area. 
 

8. No development shall commence on site unless a hard and soft landscaping scheme and 
Management Plan for the communal amenity areas has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the City Council. The scheme shall include details of all new walls, other 
boundary treatment and finished ground levels; details of the hard surface treatment of 
open parts of the site (to include the proposed roof terrace); a planting specification and a 
programme of implementation; and a management plan for all communal spaces 
(including the lower ground floor communal space).  
 
All works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be 
carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the City Council. All communal amenity areas shall be permanently 
retained and managed in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason:  In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, and residential amenity of 
future tenants. 
 

9. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until details of boundary walls 
or other means of enclosure have been submitted to and approved in writing by the City 
Council. The development shall not be occupied unless the boundaries have been 
implemented in accordance with the approved details and shall be permanently retained 
as such thereafter.  

 
Reason:  In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and residential amenity. 
 
Informatives;  
 
1. This planning permission includes conditions which require additional details to be submitted 
to and approved by the Council. Please read the conditions carefully.  You should allow at least 
8 weeks for the Council to assess the details and respond.  This may take longer in cases which 
involve the submission of detailed technical reports.  You should allow for this when planning 
your project. If you proceed without the approval of these details from the Planning Authority you 
do so at your own risk. 
 
2.The applicant’s attention is drawn to the consultation responses received by the Council in 
respect of this application. The responses are available to view on the planning portal by 
entering the planning reference number at https://www.planningni.gov.uk/index/tools/public-
access-info.htm 
 
3.This determination relates to planning control only and does not cover any consent or approval 
which may be necessary to authorise the development under other prevailing legislation as may 
be administered by the Council or other statutory authority. 
 
4. This permission does not alter or extinguish or otherwise affect any existing or valid right of 
way crossing, impinging or otherwise pertaining to these lands 
 
 

 

  

Page 279

https://www.planningni.gov.uk/index/tools/public-access-info.htm
https://www.planningni.gov.uk/index/tools/public-access-info.htm


Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 14 of 15 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   11 November 2019 

Date First Advertised  13 December 2019 

Date Last Advertised  
26 February 2021 

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses) 
    
 

The Owner/Occupier,  
1-3 ,Belmont Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 2AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
1-5 ,Belmont Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 2AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
152-154 ,Holywood Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 1NY    
The Owner/Occupier,  
156 Holywood Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 1NY    
The Owner/Occupier,  
158 Holywood Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 1PB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
159 Holywood Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 3BE    
The Owner/Occupier,  
165-169 ,Holywood Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 3BE    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2 Belmont Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 2AN    
The Owner/Occupier,  
3 Dundela Close,Belfast,Down,BT4 3AX    
The Owner/Occupier,  
4 Belmont Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 2AN    
The Owner/Occupier,  
4 Dundela Close,Belfast,Down,BT4 3AX    
The Owner/Occupier,  
4a ,Belmont Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 2AN    
The Owner/Occupier,  
4a ,Belmont Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 2AN    
The Owner/Occupier,  
9 Dundela Crescent,Belfast,Down,BT4 3BN    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 1,3a ,Belmont Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 2AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Apartment 2,3a ,Belmont Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 2AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Bank Chambers,151 Holywood Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 3BE    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Bank Chambers,151 Holywood Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 3BE    
 

Page 280



Application ID: LA04/2019/2778/F 

 

Page 15 of 15 

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 17 February 2021 

Date of EIA Determination N/A 

ES Requested 
 

No 
 

Drawing Numbers and Title 
 
01 Site Location Plan - uploaded to Planning Portal 03/03/2019 
 
3B Site Plan - uploaded to Planning Portal 12/02/2021 
 
4B Lower Ground Floor Plan - uploaded to Planning Portal 12/02/2021 
 
5B Proposed Upper Ground Floor Plan - uploaded to Planning Portal 12/02/2021 
 
7B Fourth Floor Plan - uploaded to Planning Portal 12/02/2021 
 
9B Holywood Road Elevation - uploaded to Planning Portal 12/02/2021 
 
10B Holywood Road Rear Elevation - uploaded to Planning Portal 12/02/2021 
 
12B Dundela Crescent Elevation - uploaded to Planning Portal 12/02/2021 
 
14 First Floor Plan - uploaded to Planning Portal 12/02/2021 
 
15 Second/Third Floor Plan - uploaded to Planning Portal 12/02/2021 
 
 

 

Page 281



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee Report 

Development Management Report 

Application ID:   LA04/2021/1645/F Date of Committee: Tuesday 17th August 2021 

Proposal:  

Single and two storey rear 
extension, rear car parking and 
turning area. 

Location: 
44 Ravenhill Park 
 Belfast 
 BT6 0DG. 

Referral Route: Applicant a member of staff under Section 3.8.5 (b) of the Scheme of 
Delegation 

Recommendation:  Approval 
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Brian Hanratty 
44 Ravenhill Park 
 Belfast 
 BT6 0DG. 

Agent Name and Address: 
Colm Donaghy Chartered Architect 
43 Dungannon Street 
Moy 
BT71 7SH 

Executive Summary: 
The proposal is for a single and two storey rear extension with a rear car parking and 
turning area.  The proposal infills an area at first floor level and extends from the existing 
two storey rear return - the two storey element extends approximately 4.8m from the 
existing return at a height of approximately 7m which is set below the existing rear return. 
The single storey element extends a further 1m and contains a flat roof at a height of 
approximately 3.2m. To the rear of the extension is a proposed parking area. 
 
Area Plan 
The site is whiteland within the BUAP and is within the proposed Ravenhill Park Area of 
Townscape Character (ATC) as designated within both versions of dBMAP. 
 
The key issues to be considered are: 

 Character, appearance and design.  

 Impact on amenity 
 

The extension is considered sympathetic to the existing dwelling and surrounding area including 

the proposed ATC and will not have an adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents. 

No representations have been received.  

Having had regard to the development plan, relevant planning policies, and other material 
considerations, it is determined that the proposal should be approved.  
 
Recommendation: Approval  
It is recommended that the application is approved subject to conditions and it is requested that 
delegated authority is given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording 
of conditions. 

Page 283

Agenda Item 7j



Case Officer Report 
Site Location Plan 

 

 
 
Block Plan 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 284



Elevations 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Floor plans 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 285



Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 Description of Proposed Development 
The site is located at 44 Ravenhill Park. The property is a two storey, detached, red brick 
dwelling with a two storey rear return and a single storey lean to. The property contains a 
small garden to the front bounded by a hedgerow and a large garden to the rear. There 
is a shared driveway between no. 44 and no. 46 with a parking area directly to the rear of 
the dwelling.  

 
The surrounding area is comprised of similar detached dwellings with red brick being the 
predominant material, the property is located within the proposed Ravenhill Area of 
Townscape Character.  

2.0 Description of Site 
Single and two storey rear extension, rear car parking and turning area. 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 Site History 
None 

4.0 Policy Framework 

4.1 Belfast Urban Area Plan 
 

4.2 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004, 2015  
Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is 
now the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-
adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP 
still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker. 
 

4.3 Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
 

4.4  Addendum to Planning Policy Statement 7: Residential Extensions and Alterations 

5.0 
 

Statutory Consultees Responses 
None 

6.0 
 

Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
None 
 

7.0 Representations 
 
The application was neighbour notified on the 26th July 2021 and advertised in the local 
press on the 23rd July 2021. This period expired on the 9th August 2021. No 
representations were received. 
  

 

8.0 Other Material Considerations 
None 

8.1 Any other supplementary guidance 
None 
 

9.0 Assessment 

9.1 The proposal is considered to be in compliance with the development plan. 

 
 
9.2 
 

Assessment 
 
The key issues to be considered are: 

Page 286



 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Character, appearance and design 

 Impact on amenity 
 
It is considered that the proposal is in compliance with the SPPS in that the proposed 
development will not cause demonstrable harm to interests of acknowledged importance 
which are considered below. 
 
Character, appearance and design including proposed Ravenhill Park ATC  
The proposal infills an area at first floor level and extends from the existing two storey rear 
return, the two storey element extends approximately 4.8m from the existing return at a 
ridge height of approximately 7m which is set below the existing rear return. The single 
storey element extends a further 1m and contains a flat roof at a height of approximately 
3.2m. To the rear of the extension is a proposed parking area. The scale and massing of 
the proposed two storey/ single storey extension is considered sympathetic with the 
existing dwelling and the surrounding area. The proposed extension is set below the ridge 
height of the existing rear return with a reduced width to the main house, appearing 
subservient to the existing property. The surrounding area is comprised of large extensions 
and the proposal in considered modest in the context of the site and surrounding area. The 
design is of high quality with the proposed pitched roof mirroring that of the existing return 
and the use of red brick which matches the existing dwelling. The extension and associated 
works are located wholly to the rear and therefore will maintain the character of the 
proposed ATC. Overall, the proposal is considered to accord with Policy EXT1 of PPS7 
Addendum and paragraphs 4.23 – 4.30 within the Strategic Planning Policy Statement for 
Northern Ireland. 
 
Impact on amenity 
The proposed extension is considered to be compliant with Policy EXT1 of the addendum 
to PPS7 in that the proposal will not have an adverse impact on the amenity of 
neighbouring residents. No 42 adjoins the western boundary of the application site. The 
proposal meets the angles test. The proposed first floor infill extension extends no further 
than the existing two storey element of No 42. The proposed two storey extension at the 
rear is set off the boundary by 4m with the overall extension only projecting a further 2.4m 
beyond the main building line of No 42 and with its northern orientation, an unacceptable 
loss of light, overshadowing or overbearing impact will not occur.  
 
No 46 adjoins the eastern boundary of the application site and is separated by a shared 
driveway. The proposed extension would marginally fail the light angles test from the 
nearest ground floor window at No 46. However, this is not a rigid test, rather an 
assessment tool to be used in conjunction with other factors as set out below. The 
proposed two storey extension is set in 1.5m from the existing rear return of No 44 and will 
be approximately 8m away from the nearest ground floor window at No 46 with an 
intervening driveway and single storey pitched roof garage. This window is already 
impacted by existing stepped building lines and north facing orientation. Given this and the 
separation distances to the proposed extension, the proposal would not result in an 
unacceptable loss of light. Any overshadowing would be limited to the evening and the 
existing driveway and thus would not result in an unacceptable impact on No 46. Having 
regard to the separation distances and resultant building lines, the proposal would not 
result in an overbearing impact on No 46.  
 
One first floor window is proposed on each gable wall. The window facing No 46 would 
overlook the existing shared driveway. The window facing No 42 is a small opening which 
is stepped in and overlooks the side gable / roof to No 42, thus results in no unacceptable 
loss of privacy to neighbours.  Two windows are proposed on the gable wall at ground floor 
level facing no. 42 including a high level window, the existing mature boundary treatment 
would prevent overlooking.  
 

Page 287



9.8 
 
 
9.9 

The proposal will also not cause unacceptable loss of, or damage to, trees or other 
landscape features which contribute significantly to local environmental quality.  
 
There remains sufficient space within the rear of the property for domestic use.  
 

9.10 Having regard for the policy context and the considerations above, the proposal is 

deemed acceptable. 

10.0 Summary of Recommendation:    Approval 
 

11.0 Conditions 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 
years from the date of this permission. 
 

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 

2.  All external facing and roofing materials shall be implemented as specified on the 
approved plans.   
 
Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area. 
 
Informatives 
 
1. The drawing refs referred to above correspond with those drawings submitted 

to the Authority in respect of this application and published to the Planning 
Portal NI on: 20/07/2021 Drawing Nos 01, 03.  

 

  

Notification to Department (if relevant): N/A  
 
 

Representations from Elected members: None  
 

 

Page 288



Committee Decision Application 
 

Development Management Report 

Application ID:  LA04/2021/1595/F Date of Committee: 17th August 2021 

Proposal: 
Replacing existing kiosk with upgraded kiosk 
which includes covered area. 

Location: 
Lands in front of Calvert House 
23 Castle Place and 17 Castle Place Belfast 
BT1 1GB 

Referral Route:  Application made by Belfast City Council 

Recommendation: Approval  

Applicant Name and Address: 
City Regeneration and Development  
Belfast City Council 
9-21 Adelaide Street 
Belfast 
BT2 8DJ 

Agent Name and Address: 
MMAS Architects 
Conway Mill  
Belfast 
BT13 2DE 

Executive Summary: 
Planning Permission is sought for the replacement of the existing kiosk with upgraded kiosks which 
includes a covered area. The proposal is an amendment to the previously approved application 
under the reference LA04/2020/2216/F. This application re-locates the kiosks with the covered 
area moving approximately 2m further east towards nos. 23 and 17 Castle Place.  
 
The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include: 

 Impact on character and appearance of the area including Belfast City Centre Conservation 
Area and Setting of Listed Buildings  

 Impact on amenity  

 Impact on road safety  
 
The site is located within Belfast City Centre Conservation Area. Overall, the proposal would 
enhance the character and appearance of the area including the Conservation Area and would not 
be detrimental to the setting of nearby listed buildings, amenity of neighbouring properties or 
harmful to road safety.  
 
The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press, no comments have 
been received to date. Historic Environment Division, Environmental Health and Conservation 
and Heritage have been consulted and offer no objections. Whilst there is an outstanding 
response from DFI Roads, they had no objections to the previous application and given the minor 
amendments it would be expected that they will not object. The formal response will be reported 
to members in the Late Items update.  
 
The proposal has been assessed against and is considered to comply with the SPPS, BUAP, Draft 
BMAP, PPS3 and PPS6. Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations, the 
proposal is considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval. 
 
Recommendation – Approval subject to conditions 
It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to no objection from DFI Roads with 
delegated authority given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording of 
conditions  

 
  

Page 289

Agenda Item 7k



Application ID: LA04/2021/1595/F 

 

Page 2 of 9 

Case Officer Report 

Site Location Plan 

 

 
 

 

Page 290



Application ID: LA04/2021/1595/F 

 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 
 
 

Page 291



Application ID: LA04/2021/1595/F 

 

Page 4 of 9 

 

 
 
 
  

Page 292



Application ID: LA04/2021/1595/F 

 

Page 5 of 9 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 Description of Proposed Development 

The application is for the replacement of the existing kiosk with upgraded kiosks which 
includes a covered area. The existing kiosk will be replaced with two separate corten steel 
kiosks, with a corten steel frame to support the sail inspired canopy above. The proposal will 
be erected adjacent to the existing kiosk and the Belfast bikes, which are to be relocated 
further along Castle Place. The total area to be used for the proposal is approximately 14.6m 
by 7.5m, with the maximum height being 7.5m. The application also includes bespoke 
concrete and Corten steel planters/seats surrounding the kiosks to varying sizes.  
 
The proposal is an amendment to the previously approved application under the reference 
LA04/2020/2216/F. This application re-locates the kiosks with the covered area moving 
approximately 2m further towards nos. 23 and 17 Castle Place.  
 

2.0 Description of Site and Area  
The application is located at Castle Place, which is considered the historical heart of the City. 
The character of the area is representative of the city centre, comprising primarily of retail and 
office uses. The application boundary is on the site of the existing kiosk and Belfast bikes. The 
site is within the development limit of Belfast as designated in both the BUAP and draft BMAP.  
The site also falls within the City Centre Conservation Area. 
 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 Site History 
 
LA04/2020/2216/F 
Lands in front of Calvert House, 23 Castle Place, Belfast BT1 1GB,  Replacing existing kiosk 
with upgraded kiosks which includes covered area. PERMISSION GRANTED.  23.06.2021. 
 
Z/2006/1479/F 
Remove existing kiosk and replace with a new single storey kiosk. 
Permission Granted  
 
Z/2005/0590/F 
Removal of existing tower feature, display panels and shop kiosk. Replace with new single-
storey shop kiosk. 
Permission Granted  
 
Z/1999/2698 
Replacement of existing kiosk with tram for information and ticket point and cafe facilities for 
temporary period. 
Permission Granted  
 
Z/1999/2697 
Erection of signage forming an integral part of proposed kiosk. 
Permission Granted  
 

4.0 Policy Framework 
 

4.1  Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) 

4.2 (Draft) Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (BMAP) 2004, 2015  
 

Page 293



Application ID: LA04/2021/1595/F 

 

Page 6 of 9 

Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is now 
the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-adoption 
through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP still carry 
weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. The 
weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker. 

 Draft BMAP 2004 

 4.2.1 Policy SETT2 Development with the Metropolitan Development Limit and 
Settlement Development Limits  

 Draft BMAP 2015 (purported to be adopted) 

 4.2.2 Policy SETT 2 Development within the Metropolitan Development Limits and 
Settlement Development Limits.  

4.3 Regional Development Strategy 2035  

4.4 Strategic Planning Policy Statement 2015  

4.5 Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, Movement and Parking  

4.6 Planning Policy Statement 6: Planning Archaeology and the Built Heritage 

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

5.1 Historic Environment Division – no objection 

5.2  DFI Roads – no response received as of yet  

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

6.1 BCC Conservation and Heritage – no objection  

7.0 Representations 
 

7.1 The application was advertised in the local press on the 23rd July 2021. Neighbour 
notifications were issued on the 27th July 2021.  No representations have been received.   

8.0 Other Material Considerations 
 

8.1 Belfast City Centre Conservation Area Design Guide  
Section 104 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011  

9.0 Assessment 
 

9.1 The proposal is considered to be in compliance with the development plan. 

 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:  

 Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area including Belfast 
City Centre Conservation Area and setting of Listed Buildings  

 Impact on amenity 

 Impact on highway safety  
 
Impact on the character and appearance of the area including Belfast City Centre 
Conservation Area and setting of Listed Buildings  
 
At present, Castle Place is suffering in terms of footfall as a result of the Primark fire and 
Covid19 Pandemic, however the proposal represents an opportunity to support the 
revitalisation and regeneration of the city centre post COVID-19. 
 
The scale, form, materials and detailing of the kiosks and covered area remain as previously 
approved and therefore are still considered to respect the adjoining buildings in the area. Due 
to the open aspect of the area, it is important that careful consideration is given to the impact 
on neighbouring listed buildings. Historic Environment Division were consulted as part of the 
application process and note the similarities between this application and the previous 
approval and therefore have no objections.  

Page 294



Application ID: LA04/2021/1595/F 

 

Page 7 of 9 

 
9.5  
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.8 
 
 

 
Given the site also falls within Belfast City Centre Conservation Area, the Conservation and 
Heritage team have been consulted as part of the application process. The Conservation 
Officer notes that the proposal is a minor amendment from the previous approval and will 
result in no further harm to the conservation area.  
 
Overall, it is considered that the proposal complies with PPS6, the SPPS and Section 104 of 
the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 201 in that the kiosks and canopy would enhance the 
character and appearance of the area including the City Centre Conservation Area, while also 
improving the usability of the space.  
 
Amenity 
The proposal re-locates the two kiosks within the covered area and moves the covered area 
approximately 2m eastwards further towards nos. 17 and 23 Caste Place. While the proposal 
is closer to nos. 17 and 23, these are commercial buildings and therefore there will no further 
impact on amenity over that previously approved under the application LA04/2020/2216/F. 
Given the nature of the development, with two new kiosks proposed, the Environmental Health 
team have been consulted as part of the application process and have confirmed they have 
no objection to the proposal.  
 
Impact on road safety  
The proposed kiosks and canopy will be positioned on the existing footpath of Castle Place, 
therefore, it is expected that there will be no impact on vehicular traffic in the area, and it is not 
expected to impair views of any road signs or traffic signals. The existing Belfast Bikes kiosk 
will be relocated further along Castle Place to allow for the installation of the proposal.  While 
the kiosks are proposed on the footpath and will cover a larger area than the existing kiosk, it 
is considered that sufficient accessible space remains for all pedestrians and users. DFI Roads 
were consulted on the previous application and had no objections with conditions, given the 
minor amendments to the proposal, it is not expected that DFI Roads will object to this 
application and the previous conditions remain valid.   
 

10.0 Summary of Recommendation:   Approval subject to conditions 
Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations, it is concluded that the 
proposal is considered acceptable, subject to no objection being raised by DFI Roads. It is 
recommended that planning permission is granted with delegated authority given to the 
Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording of conditions.  

11.0 Conditions  
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years 
from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 

2. Materials and finishes shall be as per Planning drawings 03, 04, 05 and 06 (date 
published 15 07 2021) 
 
Reason: In order to protect the conservation area and the setting of the neighbouring 
listed buildings in accordance with   Policy BH 11 (Development affecting the Setting 
of a Listed Building) of the Department's Planning Policy Statement 6: Planning, 
Archaeology and the Built Heritage. 
 

3. Any existing street furniture to be removed, relocated or adjusted to accommodate the 
development hereby permitted shall, after obtaining permission from the appropriate 

Page 295



Application ID: LA04/2021/1595/F 

 

Page 8 of 9 

Notification to Department (if relevant): N/A  

Representations from Elected members: N/A  

 

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses) 
 

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses) 
The Owner/Occupier,  
1 Donegall Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 5AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
1-27 ,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1BL    
The Owner/Occupier,  
1-3 ,Donegall Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 5AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
1-5 ,Royal Avenue,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1FB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
12 Breda Drive Belfast BT8 6JU  
The Owner/Occupier,  
14 Donegall Place, Belfast, Antrim, BT1 5BA    

authority, be done so at the applicant’s expense and to the satisfaction of the 
Department for Infrastructure prior to the development becoming operational. 
 
Reason: In the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users. 
 
 

4. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until the existing Belfast 
Bike scheme cycle stands have been relocated (at the applicant’s expense) to the 
satisfaction of the Department for Infrastructure. 
 
Reason: In the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users. 
 
 

5. The development hereby permitted shall not become operational until works to remove 
the existing lay-by at Castle Place have been completed. 
 
Reason: In the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users. 

 
Informatives 
 

1. The drawing refs referred to above correspond with those drawings submitted to the 
Authority in respect of this application and published to the Planning Portal NI on: 
15/07/2021 Drawing Nos 01, 03, 04, 05, 06 

 
2. Any connections to listed buildings from the structure would require separate listed 

building consent.  

Page 296



Application ID: LA04/2021/1595/F 

 

Page 9 of 9 

The Owner/Occupier,  
16 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
17 Castle Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1EL    
18-22 ,Castle Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
2-14 Mcauley House,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1SY    
The Owner/Occupier,  
23 Castle Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
24-26 ,Castle Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
28-30 ,Castle Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
3 Donegall Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 5AA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
33 Castle Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GA    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Calvert House,23 Castle Place,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1FY    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Jd Sports Fashion PLC, Edinburgh House, Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Bury  BL9 8RR    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Kiosk 1,2-14 Mcauley House,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Mcauley House,2-14 Mcauley House,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Office 2f,2-14 Mcauley House,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Office 3f,2-14 Mcauley House,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Office 4f,2-14 Mcauley House,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HB    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Ofifice 2f To 4f,2-14 Mcauley House,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HB    
 

 

Page 297



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Committee Application 

 

Development Management Report  

Application ID:  LA04/2021/0773/F Date of Committee:  17th August 2021 

Proposal: Retention and alteration of shipping 
container for use as a community facility with 
domestic kitchen.  
  

Location: Ulidia Playing Fields   
290 Ormeau Road   
Belfast   
BT7 3GG 
  

Referral Route: Belfast City Council is the landowner 
 

Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions 
  

Applicant Name and Address: 
Rosario YFC 
469 Ormeau Road 
Belfast 
BT7 3GR 

Agent Name and Address: 
Doherty Architectural Services 
37 Wynchurch Avenue 
Belfast 
BT6 0JP 
  

Executive Summary:  
 
Full planning permission is sought for the retention of an existing in-situ storage container to be used 
as a community facility with domestic kitchen.  
 
The key issues in assessing the proposal are: 
 

 The area of open space lost as a result of the development 

 Design, Impact on character and appearance  

 Impact on amenity  
 
Environmental Health (EH) are satisfied the proposal will not have a negative impact on amenity.  
 
No representations have been received.  
 
In principle, there is no objection to the proposal and it is considered to comply with planning policy 
including PPS8 and the SPPS. It will improve facilities for the local community and will complement 
the existing sports facility.    
 
Recommendation: Approval  
 
It is recommended that the application is approved subject to conditions and it is requested that 
delegated authority is given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording of 
conditions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 299

Agenda Item 7l



Application ID:   

 

Page 2 of 6 

 
 
 

                                             Case Officer Report 
Site Location Plan 

 

Page 300



Application ID:   

 

Page 3 of 6 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 301



Application ID:   

 

Page 4 of 6 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 Description of Proposed Development 
Planning permission is sought for the retention of an existing shipping container currently 
used for the storage of sports equipment is converted to a community facility with a domestic 
kitchen. 
  
The container is 12m in length and 2.4m wide with a height of 2.5m. There is space to 
accommodate approximately 14 people seated within the container, a disabled WC is at the 
north end of the container and the kitchen to the south with seated area in the middle. 
An area of hardstanding measuring 12m x 3m is proposed to the east of the container 
adjacent to the pitch edge. 2 x doors and a serving hatch are proposed in the east facing 
elevation. There are 2 x high level windows proposed in the west elevation. The shipping 
container is to be clad in timber.  

2.0 Description of Site 
The site located near the entrance to the playing fields which forms part of a wider area of 
open space at Ulidia – otherwise known as Ormeau playing fields. The entrance to Ulidia 
playing fields is at 290 Ormeau Road, located on the left side of the Ormeau Road travelling 
out of town. It is located between a row of commercial premises and St Judes Parade. The 
playing fields which are enclosed by residential housing on three sides cover an area of 
approximately 2.8ha. They are home to Rosario Football Club. 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 Site History 
Z/2004/1713/F - Single storey extension to existing sports pavilion (for provision of toilet and 
shower facilities) and alterations. Approved 15.10.2014 
Z/2005/1443/F - Retain use as a sports pavilion. Alterations, extension and refurbishment of 
existing building. Approved 28.10.2005 
Z/2014/0510/F - Changing 1 No. grass pitch to 3G type pitch along with associated fencing + 
flood lighting (6no. 15m Columns) Approved 23.02.2015 

4.0 Policy Framework 
 

4.1 Regional Development Strategy 2035 
 

4.2 Strategic Planning Policy Statement NI 2015 
 

4.3 Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 
 

4.4 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2004 
 

4.5 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015  
 

4.6 Planning Policy Statement 8: Open Space, Sport and Outdoor Recreation 
 

 Policy OS1  
Protection of Open Space 

The Department will not permit development that would result 
in the loss of existing open space or land zoned for the 
provision of open space. The presumption against the loss of 
existing open space will apply irrespective of its physical 
condition and appearance. 
An exception will be permitted where it is clearly shown that 
redevelopment will bring substantial community benefits that 
decisively outweigh the loss of the open space. 
An exception will also be permitted where it is demonstrated 
that the loss of open space will have no significant 

Page 302



Application ID:   

 

Page 5 of 6 

detrimental impact on the amenity, character or biodiversity of 
an area and where either of the following circumstances 
occur: 
(i) in the case of an area of open space of 2 hectares or less, 
alternative provision is made by the developer which is at 
least as accessible to current users and at least equivalent in 
terms of size, usefulness, attractiveness, safety and quality; 
or 
(ii) in the case of playing fields and sports pitches within 
settlement limits, it is demonstrated by the developer that the 
retention and enhancement of the facility can only be 
achieved by the development of a small part of the existing 
space - limited to a maximum of 10% of the overall area - and 
this will have no adverse effect on the sporting potential of the 
facility. This exception will be exercised only once. 
 

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

5.1 NI Water – Public water supply within 20m has capacity to serve this proposal. However 
Waste Water Treatment Works is currently operating above design capacity and new 
connections to the sewer are being curtailed. The applicant is advised to contact NIW to 
discuss areas for concern. 
 
Officer Response: The existing site is already connected to the foul sewer system and given 
the minor scale of development, no issue is raised. An informative has been attached to 
advise the applicant to connect NI Water.  

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

6.1 Belfast City Council (BCC) Environmental Health (EH) – EH at BCC has assessed the 
application in terms of noise, air pollution, contaminated land and general amenity. EH has 
raised no objection to the proposal.  
 

7.0 Representations 
 

7.1 The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press.  5 x properties 
which front onto the Ormeau Road were notified, the proposal was advertised in the local 
press. No representations or objections were received.  
 

8.0 Other Material Considerations 
 

8.1 None  
 

9.0 Assessment 
 

9.1 Principle of Development 
The proposal is compliant with the local development plan. The site is located in ‘an area of 
existing open space’ as zoned in the BUAP and both versions of draft BMAP. Use of the 
shipping container as a community facility with kitchen is ancillary to the use of land as 
football pitches and so the principle of this development is acceptable. 

9.2 PPS8 Policy OS1 – Protection of Open Space 
The footprint of the shipping container is 29 sqm and the hard-standing area is 36sqm. The 
playing fields/wider area of open space has an area of approximately 2.8ha. The 
development accounts for a very small proportion of the overall playing fields – 0.2% and it 
located outside the boundary of the sports pitch itself. The proposed shipping container is 

Page 303



Application ID:   

 

Page 6 of 6 

ancillary to the main use of the site for sport and recreation and will complement it. The 
proposal is considered to accord with Policy OS1 of PPS8 and the SPPS in this regard.  
 
Design / Impact on character and appearance 
The container will not be visible from the wider area. It is self contained within the existing 
playing fields site with views only from the rear of properties which back onto it. The 
container will be clad with timber which will assist with its integration into the site. Design is 
considered appropriate and it would not be harmful to the character and appearance of the 
area.  
 
Impact on Residential Area  
The facility is located at a distance of approx. 80m from the nearest residential property. The 
amenity of neighbours or those using the facility will not be negatively impact as affirmed by 
BCC EH. The facility will be an enhancement for those who utilise the playing fields. 

9.3 Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal is 
considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended subject to conditions. 
 

10.0 Summary of Recommendation:    Approval 
 

11.0 
 
1. 
 
 
 
 
2.  

Conditions 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from the 
date of this permission. 
 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
The shipping container hereby permitted shall be clad in timber as per approved drawing no 
02 uploaded to the planning portal 1st April 2021.   
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 Informative 
 
There is a public water supply within 20m and has capacity to serve this proposal. An 
application to Northern Ireland Water (NIW) is required to obtain approval to connect. 
New foul sewage connections are being curtailed due to Belfast Waste Water Treatment 
Works currently operating above design capacity and the receiving foul sewerage network 
located upstream of an unsatisfactory intermittent discharge. The applicant is advised to 
contact NI Water at:  
developerservices@niwater.com 

Notification to Department (if relevant): Not required  
 
 

Representations from Elected members: None  
 

 

 

Page 304

mailto:developerservices@niwater.com


 

Committee Application 
 

Development Management Report  

Application ID:  LA04/2021/0791/F Date of Committee: Tuesday 17th August 2021 

Proposal: Renewal of planning permission 
LA04/2019/2412/F for temporary single storey 
timber structure. 
  

Location: C.S. Lewis Square   
Newtownards Road   
Belfast   
BT4 1HL. 

Referral Route: Belfast City Council is the landowner.  
 

Recommendation:   Approval subjection to conditions  
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Eastside Property 
Avalon House  
278-280 Newtownards Road 
Belfast 
BT4 1HE 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Doug Works 
17 Albion Works Studios  
63 Sigdon Road 
London 
E8 1AW 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
This application was submitted on 01/04/2021 and seeks permission for the renewal of planning 
approval LA04/2019/2412/F for a temporary timber structure at CS Lewis Square prior to its expiry on 
31/07/2021. A further temporary period of 18 months has been sought.  
 
The main issues to be considered in this case are:  

 Principle of development  

 Impact on character and appearance of the surrounding area 

 Access 

 Flooding  

 
The proposal provides an addition to the visitor attraction at the Hub and offers shelter to users of 
C.S Lewis Square. Overall, it would not detract from this public space and surrounding area including 
the Connswater Greenway.  
 
Rivers Agency were consulted in relation to the proposal and have no objections to its renewal.  
 
The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press. No representations 
have been submitted.  
 
Having regard to the development plan, relevant planning policies, and other material considerations, 
it is recommended that the proposal should be approved.  
 
Recommendation – Approval Subject to Conditions  
 
The proposal is considered acceptable and it is recommended that planning permission is granted 
subject to conditions with delegated authority given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to 
finalise conditions. 
 
 

Page 305

Agenda Item 7m



Application ID:  LA04/2021/0791/F 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 
 

Case Officer Report 

Site Location Plan 

 
                           
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 306



Application ID:  LA04/2021/0791/F 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 
 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 
1.1 

Description of Proposed Development 
Renewal of planning approval LA04/2019/2412/F for temporary single storey timber structure 
for a further 18 months. 
 

2.0 
2.1 

Description of Site 
The application site is a paved area located between the visitors centre and the 
neighbouring Boots chemist, in view of the Newtownards Road. The surrounding area is 
predominantly commercial with the Connswater Greenway to the north of the site.  
 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 Site History 
 

3.1 Z/2007/0350/F - Proposed Connswater community greenway (a linear park) following the 

course of the Connswater, Loop and Knock rivers. This includes walkways, pedestrian 

crossings and cycle ways; landscaping, and allotments; bio-remediation of the river including 

limited realignment, cross section re-profiling, riffles, cascades, attenuation pools and reed 

beds, several minor footbridges across the river and 3 No. landmark foot and cycle bridges; 

street furniture, lighting, cycle stands, interpretation boards and CCTV; fencing and gates; 

limited car parking to provide disabled access to greenway and rationalisation of car parking 

at Holywood Arches and installation of weir infrastructure at entrance to Victoria Park. 

Permission granted 26.07.2007 

 

Page 307



Application ID:  LA04/2021/0791/F 

 

Page 4 of 7 

3.2 Z/2008/0795/F - Variation of conditions 5 and 6 of planning approval Z/2007/0350/F. 

Permission granted 28.10.2008 

 

3.3 LA04/2016/0910/F - Civic Square at Holywood Arches. Permission granted 25/10/2016 

 

3.4 LA04/2018/0593/F - Temporary single storey open timber structure. Permission granted 

27.04.2018. Conditioned for a limited period of 18 months, to expire on 15th November 2019 

and be removed in its entirety. 

3.5 LA04/2018/1390/NMC - Non material change ref LA04/2018/0593/F. NMC Granted.  

 

3.6  LA04/2019/2412/F - Renewal of planning approval LA04/2018/0593/F for single storey timber 

structure. Permission Granted 31.01.2020. Conditioned for a limited period of 18 months, to 

expire on the 31st July 2021 and be removed in its entirety. 

4.0 Policy Framework 
 

4.1 
4.2 

Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP)  
(Draft) Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004 & 2015  
Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is now 
the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-adoption 
through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP still carry 
weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. The 
weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker. 

4.3 SPPS, Planning Policy Statements: 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, Movement and Parking (Revised Feb 2005) 
Planning Policy Statement 8: Open Space, Sport and Outdoor Recreation 
Planning Policy Statement 15: Planning and Flood Risk 
 

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

5.1 Rivers Agency – No objection  

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

6.1 None 
 

7.0 Representations 
 

7.1 The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press. No 
representations have been received regarding the application. 
 

8.0 Other Material Considerations 
 

8.1 None 
 

9.0 Assessment 
 

9.1 
 
 
 
 

The key issues to be considered are: 

 Principle of development  

 Impact on character and appearance of the surrounding area 

 Access 

Page 308



Application ID:  LA04/2021/0791/F 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 

 Flooding  

 
Principle of Development   
 
The proposal relates to the renewal of planning permission for a temporary timber structure 
for a further 18 months at the entrance of the C.S Lewis Civic Square which is an area of 
existing open space. There will be no loss of existing open space in accordance with Policy 
OS1 of PPS 8 and the SPPS.  
 
Impact on character and appearance of the area 
 
The proposal comprises an open boarded timber structure which has been designed to reflect 
the local architectural heritage of the ‘Belfast truss’ which was a prevalent roof structure of 
industrial buildings in Belfast. The structure also serves a practical function providing shelter 
to users of the open space. It is considered that it would offer an enhancement to the character 
and appearance of this public space and the surrounding area in accordance with the SPPS.  
 
A line of four oak trees lie directly behind the proposed structure. The structure has been 
positioned to stay clear of the canopy of these trees and it is considered that it will not have a 
detrimental impact on them.  
 
Access 
 
The proposal will maintain pedestrian/cyclist connectivity to/from Newtownards Road and C.S 
Lewis Square in accordance with Policy AMP 1 of PPS 3 and the SPPS.  
 
Flooding 
 
The application site is located within the flood plain. The proposal represents an exception of 
Policy FLD 1 of PPS 15 and the SPPS as it is a minor development within an area protected 
by flood defences. A Flood Risk Assessment was previously completed as part of the 
redevelopment of C.S Lewis Square. The proposal is an open structure which would not 
impede the flow of water. As such, no concern is raised in respect of flooding. Rivers Agency 
have been consulted and have no objections to the proposal.  
 
 

10.0 Summary of Recommendation:  Approval  
 
 

10.1 Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations including the previous 
history on site, the proposal is considered acceptable and planning permission is 
recommended subject to conditions.  
 

11.0 Conditions  
 

1. The permission hereby granted is for a limited period of 18 months only and shall 

expire on (from date of decision XXX). The structure shall be removed in its entirety 

from the site and the ground covering return to its former condition.  

Reason: A permanent structure at this location has not been assessed and may result in a 
detrimental impact to the locality.  
 

2. The development shall remain as constructed and shall not be altered. 

Page 309



Application ID:  LA04/2021/0791/F 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 
Reason: To protect the visual amenities of the area.  
 
Informative  
 

1. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the information provided on the consultee 

responses which are available to view on the planning portal.  

 

2. This determination relates to planning control only and does not cover any consent or 

approval which may be necessary to authorise the development under other prevailing 

legislation as may be administered by the Council or other statutory authority.  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   02.04.2021 

Date First Advertised  16.04.2021  

Date Last Advertised 16.04.2021  

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses) 
 

The Owner/Occupier,  
402 Newtownards Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 1HH    
The Owner/Occupier,  
402 Newtownards Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 1HH    
The Owner/Occupier,  
404-408 ,Newtownards Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 1HH    
The Owner/Occupier,  
404-408 ,Newtownards Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 1HH    
The Owner/Occupier,  
404-408 ,Newtownards Road,Belfast,Down,BT4 1HH    
The Owner/Occupier,  
Unit 14 Connswater Retail Park,East Bread Street,Ballymacarret,Belfast,Down,BT5 5DL    

  

Page 310



Application ID:  LA04/2021/0791/F 

 

Page 7 of 7 

Date of Last Neighbour Notification  
26.04.2021  

Date of EIA Determination n/a 

ES Requested 
 

No 
 

Drawing Numbers and Title 

01-Site Location Plan Original  

02-Existing Elevations Original  

03-Existing & Proposed Elevations Original  

04-Existing & Proposed Sections Original  

05-Proposed Plan Original  

06-Proposed Elevations Original  

07-Proposed Roof Plan 

  

Notification to Department (if relevant) 
 
Date of Notification to Department:   n/a 
Response of Department: 
 

Representations from Elected members: 
No representation has been received from elected members. 

 

Page 311



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1b Minutes
	pla240621s

	2 Committee Site Visit
	3 Quarter 1 Finance Update
	RESTRICTED Appendix 1 Q4 20_21 04JUNE21

	4 Planning Appeals Notified
	5 Planning Decisions Issued
	6 Vesting Order and Abandonment
	Adam Street Abandonment

	7a (Reconsidered Item) LA04/2020/0847/F & LA04/2020/1208/DCA - Partial demolition and redevelopment of existing buildings to provide 16 apartments, communal bin store and landscaped communal garden at 25-29 University Road
	#LA0420201208DCA 25-29 University Rd

	7b (Reconsidered Item) LA04/2020/2280/F - Mixed use development comprising 1 ground floor retail unit and 13 apartments, associated amenity space, landscaping and all other site works at 93-95 Falls Road
	7c LA04/2021/0001/F - Contractor's Temporary Site Compound (for proposed development at adjacent Ulster Independent Clinic planning ref: LA04/2019/0318/F) to include Contractor's buildings, storage, car parking, planted bank, Covid-19 Marshall Station / Testing Area and associated operational development with new, temporary site access on Site at junction of Malone Road and Cranmore Park to south of 14-20 Cranmore Park and east of 75 Cranmore Park
	7d LA04/2019/0775/F - 18 dwellings to include revision of site layout of previous approval Z/2007/1401/F at sites 2-8 (7 dwellings) and additional 11 No. dwellings, including landscaping, access via Hampton Park and other associated site works on lands approximately 50m to the north of 35 Hampton Park and approximately 30m to the west of 60 Hampton Park, Galwally
	7e LA04/2020/0493/F - Alteration and extension of existing building to provide 4 No one bed apartments at 23 Glandore Avenue and 2 Glanworth Gardens
	7f LA04/2020/1858/F - 18 social housing units at Hillview Retail Park
	7g LA04/2020/0754/F - 14 social housing units at 197-203 Crumlin Road
	7h LA04/2020/1360/F - Demolition of existing church hall and construction of 9.no apartments at 491-495 Lisburn Road
	7i LA04/2019/2778/F - Residential development comprising 18 x two-bedroom apartments and 5 x one-bedroom apartments with associated amenity space, cycle & bin storage, landscaping and site works (23 units in total) on lands at 159-165 Holywood Road
	7j LA04/2021/1645/F - Single and two storey rear extension, rear car parking and turning area at 44 Ravenhill Park
	7k LA04/2021/1595/F - Lands in front of Calvert House - Re-placing existing kiosk with upgraded kiosk which includes covered area at 23 and 17 Castle Place
	7l LA04/2021/0773/F - Retention and alteration of shipping container for use as a community facility with domestic kitchen Ulidia playing Fields, Ormeau Road
	7m LA04/2021/0791/F - Renewal of planning permission LA04/2019/2412/F for temporary single storey timber structure at C.S. Lewis Square, Newtownards Road

